GREATERLONDONAUTHORITY LONDON

AGENDA

Meeting Budget Monitoring Sub-Committee
Date Wednesday 11 September 2019
Time 2.00 pm

Place Chamber, City Hall, The Queen's
Walk, London, SE1 2AA

Copies of the reports and any attachments may be found at
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly /budget-monitoring

Most meetings of the London Assembly and its Committees are webcast live at
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/webcasts where you can also view past
meetings.

Members of the Committee
Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman) Jennette Arnold OBE AM
Len Duvall AM (Deputy Chair)

A meeting of the Committee has been called by the Chairman of the Sub-Committee to deal with the
business listed below.

Ed Williams, Executive Director of Secretariat
Tuesday 3 September 2019

Further Information

If you have questions, would like further information about the meeting or require special facilities
please contact: Lauren Harvey, Committee Assistant, Telephone: 020 7983 4383;

Email: lauren.harvey@london.gov.uk

For media enquiries please contact Aoife Nolan, External Communications Officer;
Telephone: 020 7983 4067; Email: acife.nolan@london.gov.uk If you have any questions about
individual items please contact the author whose details are at the end of the report.

This meeting will be open to the public, except for where exempt information is being discussed as
noted on the agenda. A guide for the press and public on attending and reporting meetings of local
government bodies, including the use of film, photography, social media and other means is available
at www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Openness-in-Meetings.pdf.

There is access for disabled people, and induction loops are available. There is limited underground
parking for orange and blue badge holders, which will be allocated on a first-come first-served basis.
Please contact Facilities Management on 020 7983 4750 in advance if you require a parking space or
further information.

vl 2015


http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/budget-monitoring
http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/webcasts
mailto:aoife.nolan@london.gov.uk
http://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Openness-in-Meetings.pdf

If you, or someone you know, needs a copy of the agenda, minutes or reports
in large print or Braille, audio, or in another language, then please call us on
020 7983 4100 or email assembly.translations@london.gov.uk.

Si usted, o algiin conocido desea recibir una copia del order del dia, acta o informe en
Braille o en su propio idioma, y gratis, no dude en ponerse en contacto con nosotros
llamando al teléfano 020 7983 4100 o por correo electronico:
assembly.translations@london.gov.uk.

Se vocé, ou algliem que conheca precisa uma copia da ordem do dia, anotacées ou
relatorios em prensa grande ou Braille, ou em outra lingu, entao por favour nos
telephone em 020 7983 4100 ou e-mail assembly.translations@london.gov.uk.

Haddii ama ama qof aad tagaanid, uu ugu baahan yahay koobiga ajendhada, haddaladii
ama warbixinta in far waaweyn loogu qoro ama farta qofka indooclaha akhrin karo, amaba
luugad kale, fadlan naga soo wac telefoonkan 020 7983 4100 ama email
assembly.translations @london.gov.uk.

Ta ba ri enikeni ti o ba ni ife ni eda ewe nla ti ighimo awon asoju tahi papa julo ni ede ti
abinibi won, ki o kansiwa lori ero ibanisoro. Nomba wa ni 020 7983 4100 tabi ki e kan si

wa lori ero assembly translations@london.gov.uk.

A dHA Al AR Bl dl Al A ubld Ao (sdyBl), Mz (24 i) e
Buiza (eadl)-dl -sa Hiel 2ani ouddl 3 adaui 2aa oo 55 eumi Addl
sy, dl su s34 020 7983 4100 GuR st »al assembly translations @london.gov.uk
Gy wuA §-1da 53,

STl 9 WP AEoE (Fe A arersl, TG 91 [[remeeg aFh F# 92 g 91 @2+
SN ST (BT SRR CPCS Bl S0 W B0 SIS0 020 7983 4100 & HTF 10T (I Bs]
9l assembly.translations@london.gov.uk < Z-TI3¢e (AT Feee] |

# Zog 7 IoF T fan dv fowadt §, 803, HifZar &1 aoeet 7 fouget &t anft, €3 nugt
feg suel 7 59® € gu feu A far J9 89 feg odlet T 3t fagur s9a AS 020 7983 4100
'3 2WiIgs a9 At fER U ' FIH® J9 : assembly.translations@london.gov.uk

r'//al.-{?uruEﬂ:pﬁfug}dfﬂdgfuzkﬁggzuﬁ:gz&J’.f;{LéE’JII;EFU“I;G;;JLJ:L%&.?,TL = T/ﬁ
assembly.translations@london.gov.uk ﬁ,.iyu,; JSLU di@:}&ﬁﬂ?{(ﬂﬂ 79834100%°

I1SO
9001

Quality
Management

Certificate Number: FS 80233


mailto:assembly.translations@london.gov.uk

Agenda

Budget Monitoring Sub-Committee
Wednesday 11 September 2019

1 Apologies for Absence and Chairman’s Announcements

To receive any apologies for absence and any announcements from the Chairman.

2 Declarations of Interests (Pages 1 - 4)

The Sub-Committee is recommended to:

@)

(b)

©

Note the list of offices held by Assembly Members, as set out in the tables at
Agenda Item 2, as disclosable pecuniary interests;

Note the declaration by any Member(s) of any disclosable pecuniary interests
in specific items listed on the agenda and the necessary action taken by the
Member(s) regarding withdrawal following such declaration(s); and

Note the declaration by any Member(s) of any other interests deemed to be
relevant (including any interests arising from gifts and hospitality received
which are not at the time of the meeting reflected on the Authority’s register
of gifts and hospitality, and noting also the advice from the GLA’s
Monitoring Officer set out at Agenda Item 2) and any necessary action taken
by the Member(s) following such declaration(s).

3 Minutes (Pages 5 - 34)

The Sub-Committee is recommended to confirm the minutes of the meeting held on
12 June 2019 to be signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

The appendices to the minutes set out on pages 11 to 34 are attached for Members and
officers only but are available from the following area of the GLA’s website:
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly /budget-monitoring



http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/budget-monitoring

Summary List of Actions (Pages 35 - 68)

Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat
Contact: Lauren Harvey; lauren.harvey@london.gov.uk; 020 7983 4383

The Sub-Committee is recommended to note the completed and outstanding actions
arising from previous meetings of the Budget Monitoring Sub-Committee.

The appendices to the report set out on pages 37 to 68 are attached for Members and officers
only but are available from the following area of the GLA’s website:
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly /budget-monitoring

Quarter 1, 2019/20 GLA Group Monitoring Reports (Pages 69 - 238)

Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat
Contact: Lauren Harvey; lauren.harvey@london.gov.uk; 020 7983 4383

The Sub-Committee is recommended to note the monitoring reports for Quarter 1 of
2019/20.

The appendices to the report set out on pages 71 to 238 are attached for Members and officers
only but are available from the following area of the GLA’s website:
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly /budget-monitoring

Q1 2019-20 Review (Pages 239 - 240)

Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat
Contact: Gino Brand, gino.brand@london.gov.uk, 020 7983 5792

The Sub-Committee is recommended to:
(€)) Note the report as background to putting questions to invited guests, and
the subsequent discussion; and

(b) Delegate authority to the Chairman, in consultation with party Group Lead
Members, to agree any output from the discussion at the meeting.


mailto:lauren.harvey@london.gov.uk
http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/budget-monitoring
mailto:lauren.harvey@london.gov.uk
http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/budget-monitoring
mailto:gino.brand@london.gov.uk

10

11

Mayor's Decision Lists: 3 May 2019 to 4 July 2019 (Pages 241 - 266)

Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat
Contact: Lauren Harvey, lauren.harvey@london.gov.uk, 020 7983 4383

The Sub-Committee is recommended to discuss any issues arising in respect of the
Mayor’s Decision Lists for the period 3 May 2019 to 4 July 2019 (previously made
available as background papers to the relevant Mayor's Report to the Assembly),
and decide whether to refer any issues to the Budget and Performance Committee
for detailed consideration.

The Mayor’s Decision Lists set out on pages 243 to 266 are attached for Members and officers
only but are available from the following area of the GLA’s website:
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly /budget-monitoring

Payments over £250 (Pages 267 - 300)

Report of the Executive Director of Resources
Contact: Yen Dang, yen.dang@london.gov.uk, 020 7983 4863

The Sub-Committee is recommended to note the report.

The appendices to the report set out on pages 269 to 300 are attached for Members and
officers only but are available from the following area of the GLA’s website:
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly /budget-monitoring

Budget Monitoring Sub-Committee Work Programme (Pages 301 - 302)

Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat
Contact: Gino Brand, gino.brand@london.gov.uk, 020 7983 5792

The Sub-Committee is recommended to note its work programme.

Date of Next Meeting

The next meeting of the Sub-Committee is scheduled for Wednesday, 4 December 2019 at
2.00pm in the Chamber, City Hall.

Any Other Business the Chairman Considers Urgent


mailto:lauren.harvey@london.gov.uk
http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/budget-monitoring
mailto:ashraf.ali@london.gov.uk
http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/budget-monitoring
mailto:gino.brand@london.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 2

GREATERLONDONAUTHORITY LONDONASSEMBLY

Subject: Declarations of Interests

Report to: Budget Monitoring Sub-Committee

Report of: Executive Director of Secretariat Date: 11 September 2019

This report will be considered in public

1.1

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

Summary

This report sets out details of offices held by Assembly Members for noting as disclosable pecuniary
interests and requires additional relevant declarations relating to disclosable pecuniary interests, and
gifts and hospitality to be made.

Recommendations

That the list of offices held by Assembly Members, as set out in the table below, be noted
as disclosable pecuniary interests’;

That the declaration by any Member(s) of any disclosable pecuniary interests in specific
items listed on the agenda and the necessary action taken by the Member(s) regarding
withdrawal following such declaration(s) be noted; and

That the declaration by any Member(s) of any other interests deemed to be relevant
(including any interests arising from gifts and hospitality received which are not at the
time of the meeting reflected on the Authority’s register of gifts and hospitality, and
noting also the advice from the GLA’s Monitoring Officer set out at below) and any
necessary action taken by the Member(s) following such declaration(s) be noted.

Issues for Consideration

Relevant offices held by Assembly Members are listed in the table overleaf:

' The Monitoring Officer advises that: Paragraph 10 of the Code of Conduct will only preclude a Member from
participating in any matter to be considered or being considered at, for example, a meeting of the Assembly,
where the Member has a direct Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in that particular matter. The effect of this is
that the ‘matter to be considered, or being considered” must be about the Member’s interest. So, by way of
example, if an Assembly Member is also a councillor of London Borough X, that Assembly Member will be
precluded from participating in an Assembly meeting where the Assembly is to consider a matter about the
Member’s role / employment as a councillor of London Borough X; the Member will not be precluded from
participating in a meeting where the Assembly is to consider a matter about an activity or decision of London
Borough X.

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SET 2AA
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk v2/2018

Page 1




Member

Interest

Tony Arbour AM

Jennette Arnold OBE AM

European Committee of the Regions

Gareth Bacon AM

Member, LB Bexley

Shaun Bailey AM

Sian Berry AM

Member, LB Camden

Andrew Boff AM

Congress of Local and Regional Authorities (Council of
Europe)

Leonie Cooper AM

Member, LB Wandsworth

Tom Copley AM

Member, LB Lewisham

Unmesh Desai AM

Tony Devenish AM

Member, City of Westminster

Andrew Dismore AM
Len Duvall AM
Florence Eshalomi AM
Nicky Gavron AM
Susan Hall AM

David Kurten AM
Joanne McCartney AM
Steve O’Connell AM
Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM
Keith Prince AM
Caroline Russell AM
Dr Onkar Sahota AM
Navin Shah AM

Fiona Twycross AM

Member, LB Harrow

Deputy Mayor
Member, LB Croydon

Alternate Member, European Committee of the Regions
Member, LB Islington

Deputy Mayor for Fire and Resilience; Chair of the London
Local Resilience Forum

Peter Whittle AM

[Note: LB - London Borough]

Paragraph 10 of the GLA’s Code of Conduct, which reflects the relevant provisions of the Localism
Act 2011, provides that:

- where an Assembly Member has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any matter to be considered
or being considered or at

()  ameeting of the Assembly and any of its committees or sub-committees; or

(i) any formal meeting held by the Mayor in connection with the exercise of the Authority’s
functions

- they must disclose that interest to the meeting (or, if it is a sensitive interest, disclose the fact
that they have a sensitive interest to the meeting); and

- must not (i) participate, or participate any further, in any discussion of the matter at the
meeting; or (ii) participate in any vote, or further vote, taken on the matter at the meeting

UNLESS

- they have obtained a dispensation from the GLA’s Monitoring Officer (in accordance with
section 2 of the Procedure for registration and declarations of interests, gifts and hospitality —
Appendix 5 to the Code).

Failure to comply with the above requirements, without reasonable excuse, is a criminal offence; as is
knowingly or recklessly providing information about your interests that is false or misleading.

Page 2



34

35

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

4.1

5.

5.1

In addition, the Monitoring Officer has advised Assembly Members to continue to apply the test that
was previously applied to help determine whether a pecuniary / prejudicial interest was arising -
namely, that Members rely on a reasonable estimation of whether a member of the public, with
knowledge of the relevant facts, could, with justification, regard the matter as so significant that it
would be likely to prejudice the Member’s judgement of the public interest.

Members should then exercise their judgement as to whether or not, in view of their interests and
the interests of others close to them, they should participate in any given discussions and/or
decisions business of within and by the GLA. It remains the responsibility of individual Members to
make further declarations about their actual or apparent interests at formal meetings noting also
that a Member’s failure to disclose relevant interest(s) has become a potential criminal offence.

Members are also required, where considering a matter which relates to or is likely to affect a person
from whom they have received a gift or hospitality with an estimated value of at least £25 within the
previous three years or from the date of election to the London Assembly, whichever is the later, to
disclose the existence and nature of that interest at any meeting of the Authority which they attend
at which that business is considered.

The obligation to declare any gift or hospitality at a meeting is discharged, subject to the proviso set
out below, by registering gifts and hospitality received on the Authority’s on-line database. The on-
line database may be viewed here:
https://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/gifts-and-hospitality.

If any gift or hospitality received by a Member is not set out on the on-line database at the time of
the meeting, and under consideration is a matter which relates to or is likely to affect a person from
whom a Member has received a gift or hospitality with an estimated value of at least £25, Members
are asked to disclose these at the meeting, either at the declarations of interest agenda item or when
the interest becomes apparent.

It is for Members to decide, in light of the particular circumstances, whether their receipt of a gift or
hospitality, could, on a reasonable estimation of a member of the public with knowledge of the
relevant facts, with justification, be regarded as so significant that it would be likely to prejudice the
Member’s judgement of the public interest. Where receipt of a gift or hospitality could be so
regarded, the Member must exercise their judgement as to whether or not, they should participate in
any given discussions and/or decisions business of within and by the GLA.

Legal Implications

The legal implications are as set out in the body of this report.

Financial Implications

There are no financial implications arising directly from this report.

Local

Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

List of Background Papers: None

Contact Officer: Lauren Harvey, Committee Assistant
Telephone: 020 7983 4383

E-mail:

lauren.harvey@london.gov.uk

Page 3



https://www.london.gov.uk/about-us/governance-and-spending/good-governance/gifts-and-hospitality

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



Agenda Item 3

GREATERLONDONAUTHORITY LONDONASSEMBLY

MINUTES

Meeting: Budget Monitoring
Sub-Committee

Date: Wednesday 12 June 2019

Time: 2.00 pm

Place: Committee Room 5, City Hall, The
Queen’'s Walk, London, SET1 2AA

Copies of the minutes may be found at:
http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/budget-monitoring

Present:

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman)
Len Duvall AM (Deputy Chair)
Jennette Arnold OBE AM

1 Apologies for Absence and Chairman‘s Announcements (Iltem 1)

1.1 There were no apologies for absence.

2 Declarations of Interests (Item 2)

2.1 Resolved:

That the list of offices held by Assembly Members, as set out in the table at
Agenda Item 2, be noted as disclosable pecuniary interests.

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk

Page 5


http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/budget-monitoring

Greater London Authority
Budget Monitoring Sub-Committee
Wednesday 12 June 2019

Membership of the Sub-Committee (Iltem 3)
Resolved:

That the membership and chairing arrangements for the Budget Monitoring
Sub-Committee, as agreed at the Annual Meeting of the London Assembly on
2 May 2019, be noted as follows:

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman)
Len Duvall AM (Deputy Chair)
Jennette Arnold OBE AM

Terms of Reference (Item 4)
Resolved:

That the term of reference for the Sub-Committee, as agreed at the Annual
Meeting on 2 May 2019, as set out below, be noted:

To consider the quarterly monitoring reports provided by the GLA and its
functional bodies as referred to it by the Budget and Performance Committee, and
any other reports falling within the terms of reference of the Budget and
Performance Committee which that Committee considers appropriate, and to report
back its findings to the Budget and Performance Committee as necessary.

Standing Delegation of Authority (Item 5)

Resolved:
That the standing delegation of authority, as set out below, be noted:

At its Annual Meeting on 1 May 2013, the Assembly agreed to delegate a general
authority to the Chairs of all ordinary committees and sub-committees to respond
on the relevant committee or sub-committee’s behalf, following consultation with
the lead Members of the party Groups on the committee or sub-committee, where
it is consulted by organisations and there is insufficient time to consider the
consultation at a committee meeting.

Page 6



6.1

7.1

7.2

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

Greater London Authority
Budget Monitoring Sub-Committee
Wednesday 12 June 2019

Minutes (Item 6)

Resolved:

That the minutes of the Budget Monitoring Sub-Committee meeting held on
20 March 2019 be signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

Summary List of Actions (Item 7)
The Committee received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat.
Resolved:

That the outstanding actions arising from a previous meeting of the Budget
Monitoring Sub-Committee be noted.

GLA Borrowing (Item 8)

The Committee received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat as background to
putting questions to the following invited guests:

e Simon Kilonback, Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London (TfL);

e Sarah Bradley, Group Financial Controller, TfL;

e Emanuela Cernoia-Russo, Corporate Finance and Strategy Director, TfL;
e Luke Webster, GLA Group Treasury & Chief Investment Officer; and

e Martin Wheatcroft, Fiscal Accountant, Pendan.
A transcript of the discussion is attached at Appendix 1.

During the course of the discussion, Members requested a copy of TfL’s debt profile over a
20- to 25-year period.

Resolved:

(@) That the report and the discussion be noted; and

(b) That authority be delegated to the Chairman, in consultation with party Group
Lead Members, to agree any output from the discussion at the meeting.

Page 7



9.1

9.2

10
10.1

10.2

11

11.2

12
12.1

12.2

13

13.1

Greater London Authority
Budget Monitoring Sub-Committee
Wednesday 12 June 2019

Quarter 4, 2018/19 GLA Group Monitoring Reports (Iltem 9)
The Sub-Committee received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat.
Resolved:

That the monitoring reports for Quarter 4 of 2018/19 be noted.

Mayor's Decision Lists: 12 February 2019 to 2 May 2019 (Item 10)

The Sub-Committee received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat.
Resolved:

That the Mayor’s Decision Lists for the period 12 February 2019 to 2 May 2019 be
noted.

Payments over £250 (Item 11)
The Sub-Committee received the report of the Executive Director of Resources.
Resolved:

That the report be noted.

Budget Monitoring Sub-Committee Work Programme (Iltem 12)
The Sub-Committee received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat.
Resolved:

That the work programme be noted.

Date of Next Meeting (Item 13)

The next meeting of the Sub-Committee was scheduled for 11 September 2019 at 2.00 pm in
the Chamber, City Hall.

Page 8



Greater London Authority
Budget Monitoring Sub-Committee
Wednesday 12 June 2019

14  Any Other Business the Chairman Considers Urgent (Item 14)

14.1  There were no items of business the Chairman considered urgent.

15 Close of Meeting

15.1  The meeting ended at 3.30 pm.

Chairman Date

Contact Officer: Lauren Harvey, Committee Assistant, telephone: 020 7983 4383;
Email: lauren.harvey@london.gov.uk

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Appendix 1
Budget Monitoring Sub-Committee — Wednesday, 12 June 2019
Transcript of Item 8 — GLA Borrowing

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): OK. We are now on to item 8, the main item of business, which is on
Greater London Authority (GLA) borrowing.

| would like to welcome our guests, in order: Sarah Bradley, the Group Financial Controller at Transport for
London (TfL); Emanuela Cernoia-Russo, the Director of Corporate Finance and Strategy at TfL;

Simon Kilonback - we have all met Simon - the Chief Finance Officer (CFO) at TfL; Luke Webster, the GLA
Group Treasury and Chief Investment Officer and consistently the best-dressed man at the GLA --

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: | love the bowtie. | am going to take a picture of it.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): -- which is a hands-down undisputed title; and finally, of course
Martin Wheatcroft, who is a Fiscal Accountant at Pendan. Welcome to all of you and thank you very much for
your time this morning.

The main item of business is to focus on GLA Group borrowing. A lot of that will be TfL and traditionally we
start these things with some fairly open, setting-the-scene type of questions. The first one is to you all but
probably I will go to you, Simon, for the first answer. Does borrowing remain an effective way of funding
transport infrastructure?

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): Yes, it does, Chairman. Transport
infrastructure in particular tends to have very high upfront costs and very long useful and economic lives of the
assets that are being invested in. Therefore, in order to allow that transport infrastructure to be delivered and
for the farepayers and taxpayers who use that to get the benefit of it earlier, borrowing is an effective method
of allowing those things to be delivered, provided there are sufficient revenues and funding to support those
income streams.

The alternative would be to pay-as-you-go, which would mean, if we use the example of buying a house,
spending 25 years trying to save up and things would come along probably during that time and you would
never quite get there. In order to ensure that we can continue to invest in improving the infrastructure in the
city, borrowing does remain an important part of that.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): You gave a hint to the answer to the question | am about to ask you now in
what you have just said. What would make a capital project ideal for borrowing and, equally, what would make
a capital project unwise for borrowing?

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): In my view, the types of investment
that are suitable for borrowing are those sorts of assets that are able to help generate a revenue stream in
return. For example, investing in and replacing the rolling stock and signalling for our railways as they need to
be replaced allows you to run a business that drives the revenue that helps repay that borrowing going
forward. In particular in infrastructure terms, at TfL we tend to focus our borrowing requirements on those
assets that are capable of helping to deliver an income stream to support the repayment of the debt that was
used to finance them.

Page 11



Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): An example of a project that would not be suitable then is one that does not
produce an income stream?

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): Yes. This is why, when we look at the
discussions with the Government and with the GLA about how we fund and finance infrastructure in London,
both borrowing and grant, councils, public sector net debt, the -- historically, when we have been discussing
with central Government rather than with the GLA and the Treasury over grant funding and borrowing, we
have talked to them about the total quantum of investment that is required and how that is then split between
borrowing and grant. We have discussed the basis of the types of assets within that portfolio that generates
return and services debts and also the availability of income and funding streams to service that debt.

Then, for the types of investment where typically TfL as the transport body would be unable to collect revenue
-- many infrastructure assets generate social benefits but do not generate an income stream for the transport
body. Those are the sorts of assets that we look to fund through the use of grant funding or other methods of
taxation that more appropriately reflect the users and the benefits of those types of assets.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): The former example where you get a revenue stream would be something
like Crossrail, | suppose, but also the Silvertown Tunnel. The latter would be something like the Rotherhithe
Bridge?

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): Yes. Sorry, | was confusing myself
there between Silvertown, where we are raising a toll and -- yes, assets like the [Rotherhithe] bridge or
investments in road safety and walking and cycling infrastructure, where there is a clear benefit in terms of
safety and in terms of air quality but do not derive an income stream that the transport body can appropriate
through its fare box or through other mechanisms, would be an example where the use of grant funding would
be the more appropriate way of funding it.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): OK. Martin, | want to bring you in. We did some comparative analysis when
putting this meeting together and we looked at various types of borrowing in different types of sectors.
Transport infrastructure is funded from user charges to a much lesser degree than some of the others; for
example, utilities, which is 100% funded by user charges. Transport is a very small portion of the whole lot.
Why is that?

Martin Wheatcroft (Fiscal Accountant, Pendan): That is principally because we have a state-owned
railway system. Network Rail is a Government entity and so most of the funding, through a policy choice, is
coming through the national debt borrowing mechanism. In fact, a lot of the private funding that was raised
when it was previously Railtrack has been refinanced through public debt. That is the principal reason.

Another reason is that most of the suburban and subway-type systems are state-owned or local
government-controlled in this country. Again, that is funded. Most of the debt that is raised by TfL and so on
is funded through the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) or other public funding and so it is ultimately funded
through the Debt Management Office (DMO) of the Treasury.

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): Chairman, may | just make a factual
response to that? One third of TfL’s debt is raised through the PWLB. Two thirds of TfL’s debt has been
raised either in the bond markets or from the European Investment Bank (EIB) or other loan bodies around the
world. You are right that that is all funded eventually by farepayers or taxpayers but the sources for TfL in
particular - and also, | am sure Luke will say - have been largely funded in the public markets because it was
determined that having a rating and lenders that are not the public sector brings a bit of discipline about the

Page 12



affordability of debt and the appropriateness of debt. That has been a function of what we have been doing
over the last few years.

Martin Wheatcroft (Fiscal Accountant, Pendan): Yes, you are right.

Luke Webster (Group Treasury and Chief Investment Officer, Greater London Authority): To answer
that, Chairman, for the GLA Group, borrowing and capital expenditure are hugely significant issues and pose
some of the greatest risks that we face as a group. It is very important to distinguish between the concepts of
funding and financing in a situation like this. The PWLB or the bonds that Simon has mentioned that both TfL
and we have issued are financing mechanisms. Those are tools to generate cash today to incur the
expenditure.

The funding is where the consequences really lie. How do we actually pay for that? How do we pay the
interest on that? How do we pay it back over time? That is where there is a very complex picture within the
Group. We have mentioned fare revenues as one source. In the GLA’s case we do not have an operating
business per se; it is TfL that will operate that asset. When we are engaging in borrowing, the income stream
that we are relying on is often direct taxation of some form. In the case of Crossrail, it is the GLA’s ability to
levy the business rate supplement (BRS) that enables us to undertake that borrowing. In the case of the
Northern line extension (NLE), which is our other major borrowing concentration at the moment, it is the
Enterprise Zone and the access to business rates and various development tariffs that that gives us. It is very
important to not muddle the two concepts.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): Sure. Coming back to you, Simon, when TfL is assessing various capital
projects, what is the internal process for deciding whether you will fund that project by borrowing or not?

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): As | said, we are quite clear on the
types of assets that are suitable to be funded by borrowing and the types of assets that need to be funded
through other means. We know, for example, that we have a requirement as at today, when we have awarded
the procurement of new rolling stock for the Docklands Light Railway (DLR) to replace the existing trains.
That is likely to be something that will need to be financed because it has a high upfront cost that we incur
over the next four to five years but a useful life of 30 to 40 years. We look at these sorts of assets in our
business planning as the ones for which borrowing or finance leases or another financing mechanism will be
the appropriate way to finance them; whereas large elements of our investment programme, as we have talked
about, generate wider benefits that are captured through other taxation funding streams but not through fares
revenue or not through the business rate mechanism that flows through the GLA to TfL.

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: Yes. Going back to Simon, | wanted to just pick up something you said. You
said you broke down the source and one third was from the Government and two thirds were from other
sources. You made reference to the EIB. Would there be constraints or caveats over funding like that that
would say it would always have to go to the infrastructure that has revenue rather than to the other type of
funding that you have? You talked about the other, if you like, not soft work but the road usage and
what-have-you. Just give me an idea, or are you just free? Do you just lump them together and it really does
not matter where the source of the funding comes from?

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): In the round, in our treasury
management - and | am sure that Luke will say the same - having the flexibility to use the financing tools and
linking them to projects but not directly hypothecating revenue and financing streams is important when you
have scarce resources and you have to have some flexibility. However, in practice with, for example, the

Page 13



Export Development Canada loans that have supported specific projects such as the last set of rolling stock
procured from Bombardier, and the EIB, which tends to lend on specific projects and has lent for --

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: Yes, | thought they did. | was just wanting you to confirm that.

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): Yes. They lend for the Crossrail
project. They lend to the London Overground project. They lend for parts of the DLR project. The loans are
there to pay for those assets and we have to demonstrate that we deliver those assets as a result of the loans
from those counterparties.

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: Do you give yourself the flexibility or is the flexibility given to you by statute?
Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): Sorry, which flexibility?
Jennette Arnold OBE AM: To use your pot as you want or because of political determination.

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): There is a statutory element to it in
that for all local government bodies, all loans must rank equally and without priority and, therefore, all lenders
must have access to the same funding streams as each other. That is an important statutory requirement.

Luke Webster (Group Treasury and Chief Investment Officer, Greater London Authority): The
borrowing powers are very wide. We can borrow from whatever source is most prudent and suitable at the
time.

Coming back to your point about whether we mix it, we do have a statutory obligation as part of the guidance
that flows from the Local Government Act 2003 to look at our debt position in the round relative to all of our
income streams so that we can take a prudent view across the whole organisation. Yes, we manage things on a
project-by-project basis - that is inevitable given the nature of the projects that we are looking at - but we do
take that overview as well to make sure that the overall position remains prudent.

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: You are saying it is enabling?

Luke Webster (Group Treasury and Chief Investment Officer, Greater London Authority): Yes. This
is one of the areas of local government finance that is very well requlated and the statute is in fact very helpful
here.

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: Thank you.

Len Duvall AM (Deputy Chair): In terms of your borrowing and planning and assumptions and all those
issues, does the relationship around Government funding settlements make it harder to plan for and access
future borrowing? Is there a cause-and-effect or a link in terms of levels of borrowing and issues like that?
Can you just explain that to me in baby language?

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): Certainly. TfL is relatively unique
amongst public bodies in that we have historically had funding settlements that specify an amount of grant
and an amount of borrowing and that we are not allowed to increase our borrowing above those amounts
agreed with the Treasury without the Treasury’s approval. They typically have been linked to the period of the
Spending Review settlement - whether a two, three or five-year period, for example - and there has not been a
lot of flexibility to move the debt for the optimal financial reasons around within that period.

Page 14



If you compare that to Network Rail in the days before Network Rail was directly funded by the Department
for Transport (DfT), Network Rail used to borrow for its whole regulatory settlement period and would have a
total amount of debt that it was allowed to borrow in order to discharge its investment programmes but it was
up to Network Rail to manage across that period of time flexibly and prudently how and when to borrow to
secure best value or also to deliver the projects.

Until the 2017 Spending Review, we could not even move money between years, but in the 2017 Spending
Review we secured some flexibility not to bring forward but to defer borrowing to when it was absolutely
needed. The difficulty is five years ahead of time, for example, predicting in exactly which year we will need to
raise the money. That has been what has led to the cash balances building up over time because we knew we
needed the money to deliver the project but the delivery of the project would change as we tried to pursue the
most efficient way of delivering the project. In the last couple of years, we have deferred about £300 million
of borrowing from one year to the next and then raised it in the year in which the expenditure was incurred.

We do find ourselves constricted in two ways: one, by the Treasury limits and framework about what we can
borrow and when - and historically that has been the thing that has constricted our borrowing - and, two, in
more recent times with our well-known financial challenges the affordability of that debt has become the
limiting factor about how much we can plan to borrow over the time and in the future.

Len Duvall AM (Deputy Chair): Is that the same for the rest of the GLA Group or is the relationship slightly
different?

Luke Webster (Group Treasury and Chief Investment Officer, Greater London Authority): No, it is
different. As Simon says, TfL is the only part of the Group where the Government has attempted to impose a
level of borrowing control. For the rest of us, it is the standard statutory position for local government where
there is a duty to determine the amount you can borrow and then exercise that in a prudent fashion. The
flexibility is useful for us but your initial point about the impact of settlements and so on means that any
uncertainty is something that we have to factor into our assumptions about what we can sustain and afford.
That is why the GLA’s main risk exposures from borrowing are all tied to revenue streams that we have a very
high degree of confidence in, namely the BRS, which has its own statutory underpin and is not something that
we would expect to be tinkered with, and likewise the Enterprise Zone deal that we have entered into to secure
revenues for the NLE. Uncertainty does make it difficult to forecast.

Len Duvall AM (Deputy Chair): In terms of the policy of the national Government, regardless of whoever is
in power, there is always going to be tinkering in some ways but, Simon, your argument is that you want to be
treated equally, the same as others?

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): Yes.

Len Duvall AM (Deputy Chair): Should that be a bigger ask? | am not saying that it is just amongst you
accountants having this debate in the Government or between civil servants and officials, but should that not
be one of our bigger asks in the spending rounds in the future? Money is not going to increase and, even if it
was, it is going to mainly be directed to certain priorities. Should that flexibility you are asking for be, in your
mind, elevated to a much higher ask than when we go in to ask for Crossrail 2 or any other transport
infrastructure and that, actually, no, we need to get the basic rules right before we go into how we fund it and
that needs to be elevated much higher by the politicians in their discussions and asks of the Government?

Page 15



Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): It certainly is part of the ask and the
discussion this time around and it was last time around as well when we sought a number of wider flexibilities.
For example, TfL has the ability to use hedging to manage currency risk and other types of risk, but we are not
allowed to borrow in any currency other than sterling. There are times in which it would be cheaper for us to
borrow in United States dollars, for example, and swap that back into sterling. We have made the case
repeatedly that we have both the statutory ability and also the in-house technical expertise to be able to do
that. Again, constraining the borrowing to sterling only, particularly in times when demand from investors for
sterling-denominated debt might become more constrained for the United Kingdom (UK) as a whole, some of
these flexibilities absolutely would be very helpful things to have.

Len Duvall AM (Deputy Chair): Of course these people that we are dealing with, we assume, do not get out
of bed to make life tougher for you in terms of work and so there must be a counterargument for why they
have put some of those constraints on you in terms of the ability to do it. Just tell me very quickly because we
need to move on. What would be their arguments for why we should not allow you to have that flexibility? |
can see the issue about working in other currencies, particularly if you are purchasing infrastructure and might
want to purchase in another country abroad.

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): The argument on currency would be
that the UK Treasury through the Finance Ministry has spent a number of years making sure that almost all of
its debt is denominated in the currency that it is responsible for. You can understand the argument for that,
but the UK DMO does issue an element of currency debt for reserves purposes. If you think about TfL’s debt
in the round, it would be a rounding error, really. | know that £500 million to £1 billion a year is a lot of money
and it is a lot of debt, but in terms of the quantum of debt raised by the DMO every year, it is not really going
to feature as a material increment on that from a risk perspective.

From a control perspective, it has very much been the case - with London leading the way in terms of
devolution over the last few years - that having the Treasury wanting to know where the money is going to be
spent and what it is being spent on in its overriding desire to have certainty about the profile of debt and what
it is being spent on. Again, as a CFO | could understand that, but at the same time, when we are being rightly
charged with demonstrating that we can be more efficient, in some ways having a bit more flexibility would
give us more ability to find opportunities to deliver things more efficiently.

Len Duvall AM (Deputy Chair): Your argument would be that it is about efficiency in planning and
efficiency in flexibility and thought that you can deliver. Are there other checks and balances you can offer up
to say, “Look, these are the wrong sorts of checks and balances. If you are worried about us in any way, there
are other checks and balances that you might want to consider but not these ones because these are working
against your interests as well as our interests in terms of delivery issues?” What would be those checks and
balances that you would offer up in a different way so that | can keep my foot on the back of you and make
sure you are delivering in the right way?

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): Continuing to agree what transport
infrastructure is. The elements that are in the national interest and therefore would be funded from debt, for
example, which does contribute towards public sector net debt, is an important part of the discussion. We
have a shared understanding with the DfT. We meet reqularly and we know what they are and discuss and
debate what they are.

Even if you took away the current constraints around the funding settlement, we would still have exactly the

same constraints and framework as the rest of the local government sector and so we would still be required to
set an authorised legal limit for our debt. We would still be required to demonstrate that that was prudent and

Page 16



affordable. In addition, we have for many years agreed with the Government that having a credit rating and
having debt that is, in part, raised in the public markets as well as directly through the DMO does indeed
impose that discipline and imposes it through a third party in the form of the credit rating agencies and the
lenders.

We believe we have demonstrated all of those things, but there is an element here about being the most
devolved part of the local government area that leads to a desire to have a few more checks and balances.

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: Chairman, just a quick question, if | might. You talked about devolution and we
are talking about regulations that are around still, this old structure regarding the relationship between local
government, the Government and the iron hand of the Treasury in between.

Do you get a sense that there are people now at the Treasury who have insight into the move towards greater
devolution and are thinking that there needs to be now perhaps another look at allowing specific flexibilities as
required by each region?

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): | might perhaps defer to Luke, who
probably has more direct discussions with the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government
(MHCLG) around devolution. We tend to focus on the transport infrastructure discussions.

Luke Webster (Group Treasury and Chief Investment Officer, Greater London Authority): Our
statutory freedoms do come from MHCLG, as Simon acknowledges. The idea of self-regulation within a robust
prudential framework is something that is well understood and supported by policymakers, but the tension
balancing that is the fact that London’s expenditures are so significant at a national level and there is a
political sensitivity around London being seen to receive special treatment. That sometimes does lead to other
parts of the Government - potentially the Treasury - taking very keen interest and often seeking to insert a
level of conditionality into settlements and exercise some level of oversight and control through other means.
There is a plurality of views, | would say, in central Government on this.

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: You do not know whether or not there would be any changes made if, say, a
Government went gung-ho and gave new energy to the Northern Powerhouse or to wider devolution?

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): The powers that Transport for the
North, for example, are seeking mirror the powers that the GLA and TfL already have. Most of the discussion
is about the regions being able to do the same things that London and TfL have been able to do for a number
of years rather than significantly moving to a completely different place.

What seems to be emerging from a number of the reviews into how infrastructure should be paid for, the
Williams Rail Review and some of the other reviews that are going on, is that having that greater ability at a
more local level to make the decisions that balance where investment goes and how it is paid for is the right
way forward, but clearly there are both constrained resources for the Government as a whole, which |
understand, and also a political element at the moment as well, which we are all well aware of, in terms of
seeking to, as Luke has said, demonstrate that other parts of the UK are also benefiting from investment. We
have seen that with a number of London projects that have to move forward in “lockstep” with the North. That
has been the language that has been used. We should be getting investment at the same time as these sorts
of constraints.

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: Thank you. That is very interesting.

Page 17



Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): The final scene-setting question is aimed at you, Simon and Luke. If you
had not been able to borrow, what major projects would not have happened? Let us start with you, Simon.

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): For both Luke and | Crossrail 1 would
not have happened had London not been able to borrow. For TfL specifically, the upgrade and modernisation
of the Circle, District, Hammersmith & City and Metropolitan lines, and the Victoria Line and the London
Overground would not have been able to happen. The major rail improvements we have seen over the course
of the last 18 years would not have been able to happen had we had to save up and pay for them as we went.
Indeed, some of that investment, as you know, is catching up on years of underinvestment before the
formation of the GLA.

Luke Webster (Group Treasury and Chief Investment Officer, Greater London Authority): The two
projects that we substantively borrowed for are Crossrail and the NLE. As Simon says, neither of those would
be remotely feasible on an idea of saving up first. Not only would that take a very long time, but the costs
associated with delivering those projects increase by far more than inflation as a result of general structural
complexity within London. Borrowing is the only possible solution for things of that nature, in my view.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): Have we had any borrowing-funded projects over the lifetime of the GLA
that have struggled to realise sufficient financial benefits to cover the funding costs?

Luke Webster (Group Treasury and Chief Investment Officer, Greater London Authority): For the
GLA itself, no. Crossrail was the first borrowing undertaken by the GLA. It was debt-free before that time.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): TfL’s debt, Simon, has been going up consistently since 2005/06, has it
not? How do you ensure the outstanding debt relates to the assets that are still in use?

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): The debt has gone up in a planned
way. That is important to say to start off with. The debt has not been rising as a result of the operating
position and choices made over the level of subsidy. The debt has been rising to fund the capital programme
and has been deliberately targeted at those things that | have already mentioned - Crossrail, the first tranche
of the Tube upgrades, London Overground, etc - and has been raised to do only those things.

In terms of going forward, our current business plan shows us continuing to borrow to complete those
investments over the next two or three years but then not borrowing beyond that period of time unless and
until either TfL can generate enough surpluses to support some further borrowing or there is more devolution
of funding or there is another funding stream that could continue to support those sources of funding going
forward.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): We have reached peak borrowing? Can | put it that way?

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): We are reaching peak borrowing based
upon our current levels of income, yes.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): And current level of debt?
Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): And current level of debt, yes.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): The debt, as you say - and | accept your point - was planned to rise in the
way that it has, but what about the debt profile? How are you planning for it to come down? As you say,

Page 18



unless the debt ceiling is increased, unless the limit is allowed to increase, there is no more room for
manoeuvre unless you pay some of it off.

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): We have, it is important to say,
planned to reach a level of debt that pays for Crossrail 1 and pays for that first series of Tube and rail
upgrades. Then there is an amortisation profile for that debt to pay it off to create further capacity in the
future to borrow more for more projects.

| will perhaps ask Emanuela to go into more detail but | will give you the overview. We have borrowed

£11 billion to date and the further £2.5 billion we will be borrowing over the next few years, we have planned
that so that we have a range of maturities in every year going right out to 50 years such that our weighted
average maturity of debt is about 19 years. The reason we do that is to reflect the economic life of the type of
assets that we are financing: rolling stock 30 to 40 years, stations 50 years plus, tunnels for Crossrail 100 years
plus, but other assets need to be replaced within, say, a ten-year cycle. We have looked to and we have
worked in the past with the UK DMO to think about appropriate average lifespans for debt and we aim at
having at least an average lifespan of 15 years, but that allows us to pay off debt at the same time as raising
new debt to finish the current projects that we are doing.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): Is it possible to plot that? Do you have that available if | wanted to look at
your debt profile over a ten-year period, a forecast?

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): We can provide that to you, Chairman.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): You can? Perhaps we can sweep that up in the letter. It is quite interesting
to see how you are playing this going forward because you are now very constrained. When Crossrail was
delayed, we know that famously the loan had to go to the GLA rather than to you because you could not take
any more and then it had to grant fund you. That is right, is it not?

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): Yes. Just to clarify, in the first
instance to have the first slug of the cost overrun covered by a grant from the GLA, which the GLA is
borrowing against the Mayoral Community Infrastructure Levy (MCIL) revenues, was very important in terms of
both our affordability given the delays impacting our revenues and therefore the amount of debt that we can
support and also to preserve some flexibility beyond the £750 million additional facility if it is required either
for Crossrail or for other things.

Len Duvall AM (Deputy Chair): As | understood the question - maybe | have it wrong - and in terms of
individual projects that we borrow against, there is a profile on performance and the nature of those projects.
It does not really matter whether they are - it is hard to say in this case - poor performers or they are just the
way the profile and the debt repayments come back. Does that revenue stream coming back to pay back the
debt of borrowing really matter? You are collectively doing it as a TfL organisation and so the performance of
one project versus another is neither here nor there. It just happens to be part of the borrowing and the debt
repayments. Or do you do individual profiles of different schemes that you have borrowed for and their
performance? Are we talking about the cable car [Emirates Air Line]?

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): We have not borrowed for the cable
car [Emirates Air Line].

Len Duvall AM (Deputy Chair): Was it the EIB? It was grant, was it not?

Page 19



Emanuela Cernoia-Russo (Corporate Finance and Strategy Director, Transport for London): There
was some grant funding from the European Union (EU) but not borrowing.

Len Duvall AM (Deputy Chair): In terms of some of the problems that you have had with revamping some
of those Tube lines that you did and the stop-start nature of that, it must have had an impact on debt
repayments. Is that the life of some of these projects? Crossrail was spectacular. | am not decrying it and the
impact in terms of the debt, but is that not a life of borrowing against some of these transport projects and
some of the problems that may arise as they come to fruition?

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): We do look at it on a portfolio basis
and so of course we understand for each of our capital projects and for each of our businesses, which have
different characteristics. For example, the Underground is generating a direct operating surplus but we need it
to continue to grow that operating surplus. Most of the borrowing has been raised for the Underground and
so the Underground needs to effectively cover the interest costs of our borrowing and the repayment of that.
It also needs to cover the renewal costs of replacing track and things like that as well, which we will come back
to. The projects themselves all affect our financial position and so we look at them individually and in the
aggregate, but, as Luke does for the GLA, we manage the debt on a portfolio basis in aggregate because there
will be some projects that are performing very well and some projects, like Crossrail, that are requiring
additional time and money to complete. We look at not just the individual impact of each of those things but
the net impact as a whole as well.

Len Duvall AM (Deputy Chair): Thank you. Sorry, Chairman.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): That is quite all right. Have you had any assets that have been funded by
borrowing that have had to be replaced before the financing has been raised sufficiently to pay off the original
borrowing in the first place?

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): Not so far. We are still in the process
of completing each of those projects | have discussed. They are in the course of finishing construction and
delivery into service. You would expect that the income that they help to generate over the next 30 to 40
years helps repay that debt. Given that both TfL and the GLA when we were created in 2000 did not have any
debts on our balance sheets at all, we do not have any legacy of older projects that may have underperformed
in the way in which you describe.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): This links with the question that Assembly Member Duvall has just asked,
but presumably you are tracking each of your assets where you are funding by borrowing against the level of

financial returns?

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): No, we track each of our assets and
projects, absolutely, but we also track in aggregate because there are other factors that affect our affordability.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): | am just wondering. Are there any assets that you are funding by borrowing
that are not raising sufficient finance at the moment or their run rate is not looking good? Everything is OK on
that? OK.

Sarah, can you talk me through the minimum revenue provisioning (MRP) process, please?

Sarah Bradley (Group Financial Controller, Transport for London): Yes. We are required to make
provision for the repayment of debt. Currently, the vast majority of TfL’s borrowings are passed down to its

Page 20



subsidiaries. Very little is retained wholly within TfL. So that the borrowings are passed down to subsidiaries,
the MRP is made through the depreciation charge on the assets that have been constructed. There is a charge
of about £19 million per year on those assets, which are in the corporation and TfL itself and have been funded
from borrowing.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): Is that £19 million per year used to pay off the debt instantly or do you put
it into reserves and save it for later?

Sarah Bradley (Group Financial Controller, Transport for London): It sits in reserves. It is part of the
resources available to meet the repayments of the borrowings as and when they fall due.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): How much is in reserves to cover that at the moment?

Sarah Bradley (Group Financial Controller, Transport for London): | cannot remember. It is three or
four years” worth of MRP and so not an enormous amount.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): £70 million or thereabouts?

Sarah Bradley (Group Financial Controller, Transport for London): Yes. We do not separately identify
it in reserves.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): Luke?

Luke Webster (Group Treasury and Chief Investment Officer, Greater London Authority): Without
delving too far into the arcana of local government accounting, MRP is a common source of confusion because
it does, in effect, create a cash reserve but it is not appearing in reserves in the sense that if you look at the
accounts and look at the reserve numbers you will see it. It is a cash phenomenon. As all local authorities have
to, we need to set a balanced budget every year. The vast majority of our incoming resources come in as cash,
as taxes, as fare income, as grants, cash resources matching the accounting number of income.

Because MRP is not a cash movement - like depreciation, it is a notional accounting charge - it counts towards
the expenditure of our profit-and-loss account. If we have 100% of income coming in and let us say the MRP
is 5% of the budget that year, we will have a budget that looks balanced but 5% of the total expenditure in
cash will have just accumulated on the balance sheet. There is no transfer to reserves that you would see other
than noting that the cash balance was higher. In due course that cash can be used to repay debt.

It is one of the features of local governance finance that can make accounts quite hard to understand.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): There is not a movement into reserves, then?

Luke Webster (Group Treasury and Chief Investment Officer, Greater London Authority): No, not in
the sense of our normal reserve --

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): It is reflected on the balance sheet as cash but there is just an
understanding that a certain level of that cash is set aside as the MRP?

Luke Webster (Group Treasury and Chief Investment Officer, Greater London Authority): Yes. All
things being equal, if there were no debtors and creditors and no other reasons for a mismatch of cash and

Page 21



reserves, as a result of MRP you would see a cash balance that was higher than the reserve balance until the
point it was used to repay the debt.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): We are going to move on to talk about the affordability of borrowing.
Assembly Member Duvall?

Len Duvall AM (Deputy Chair): In terms of the question, really, this is to all of you. | do not know who
wants to begin. What are the key warning signs to look at that would indicate that an organisation is
borrowing too much? Luke, shall we go to you?

Luke Webster (Group Treasury and Chief Investment Officer, Greater London Authority): We have
clear forecasts of our expected revenues such as the BRS or the Enterprise Zone income from the NLE, which
we are counting on to fund our repayment of debt and interest. If the costs approach the level of expected
income, then that starts to give us some early warning signs. The worst case would be if that was exceeded
and, therefore, there was a risk that we were having to use other sources of funding.

This is something that we look at very closely, as | am sure my colleagues in TfL do as well, typically on a
five-year forward horizon. It is very central to the ratings process and so, | guess, for the taxpayer and others
seeking assurance over how we are managing this, the rating is a key indicator. Making sure that we have the
right ratio of income to financing costs and that we are able to manage that stably are the things that we look
at.

Len Duvall AM (Deputy Chair): The determinant for the GLA Group borrowing too much is a change in the
ratings?

Luke Webster (Group Treasury and Chief Investment Officer, Greater London Authority): That
would certainly be an indicator. Hopefully, we would head off any problems well before that occurred.

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): It is just important to note there that
clearly both the GLA and TfL are linked to the Government rating and so a change in both of our ratings has
occurred because of a change in the central Government rating. A key indicator would be whether the
relationship between TfL and the GLA's ratings, being one notch down from the UK Government’s, changed.
If that gap changed, that would be an indicator of the debt becoming more challenging in the rating agencies’
view.

Martin Wheatcroft (Fiscal Accountant, Pendan): The important thing to understand about borrowing is
that you get the benefit of building your assets or whatever you are borrowing for, but the quid pro quo is that
you are committing that your first priority - and the first thing that Simon and Luke have to do in the morning
when they get into the office - is to pay the interest and pay that debt. It is now the primary thing. That
squeezes your flexibility because you now have a fix. That is why borrowing is quite often referred to as
gearing or leveraging. It benefits you in one way that allows you to do more, but the quid pro quo is that you
have now earmarked a portion of the cash coming in now to service that debt both in terms of interest and in
debt.

It is really when the proportion that you are having to commit and the need to set aside cash to meet debt
repayments becomes unaffordable. That is the key question that that you are looking at. Looking at what
happened with Crossrail, that was clearly the case with TfL where you conclude you could not take on the extra
debt at the TfL level because it just was not affordable. That was an indicator that you had overreached your
ability.

Page 22



Len Duvall AM (Deputy Chair): That is one of the reasons why the GLA was created in the way it was, to
help, and it worked on that occasion.

Let us go to TfL in terms of your position. How concerned should we be as a Sub-Committee that TfL’s
current liabilities are twice its current assets and to what extent has this resulted in the level of debt servicing
required by TfL borrowing?

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): Let me try to unpack that a bit if | can
and then | will let Sarah come in and perhaps correct me if | go wrong on the technical balance sheet side.

We have gross assets of about £55 billion and debt of £11 billion rising to £13 billion. In terms of current
assets and current liabilities, | would not be too concerned about that. We use for efficiency purposes a form
of short-term borrowing called commercial paper. It is a market-based paper and it puts some discipline on us,
but it is also a very flexible form of borrowing that we cannot get from the PWLB. We can borrow for a day, a
week, a month or anything up to a year at a very reasonable cost and in fact we have competition from
investors to have that paper. We have about £800 million of that in issuance at the moment, but over the
course of the last couple of years, given interest rates are historically very low, we have every year been
converting some of that short-term debt into longer-term debt.

In some businesses that would be an indicator of an issue, but because we have statutory access to the PWLB
we do not have a refinancing issue. That has been an important understanding that the rating agencies have
arrived at in terms of why our commercial paper programme is a valid thing for us to do as a local authority
because we can refinance it without risk.

What | would point you to in terms of your question about the affordability is that we have started to publish
in our quarterly financial report some metrics. We show that our financing costs as a percentage of our total
income are about 7% of our total income. That is reasonable. Again, in terms of our rating agency metrics and
methodology, that is well within the range that would keep us within our current credit rating.

That is something that we wish to do. We have committed at TfL Board level to try to maintain that
single-notch difference between us and the Government. The reason that is important is not so much for our
borrowing because we do have access to the PWLB but, because we have a £7 billion supply chain, its own cost
of debt to some extent depends upon our rating and, similarly for our pension fund, it relies upon the strength
of our covenants to underpin the pension fund. That 7% cost of financing relative to our income we now
report on.

The other thing that is really important in this quite volatile period is that we have been focusing on
maintaining and rebuilding our cash balances so that we have cash coverage for those interest and financing
costs and also if there were to be a prolonged period of business interruption. Again, we have moved from
historically having a minimum cash requirement in our policy of £250 million. As TfL has grown over the last
18 years, £250 million is now only about two weeks” worth of cash and so, clearly, it would not be very prudent
to be operating on that basis. We have a minimum policy of having a month’s worth of cash, which we have
agreed with the rating agencies is suitable given again our access to the PWLB and other financing
mechanisms. However, in fact, given that we are now rated against our transport peers around the world, we
are aiming to hold something like two to three months of operating cash, which gives that liquidity around
both our borrowing and also our businesses in challenging and uncertain times.

Page 23



Len Duvall AM (Deputy Chair): On that uncertainty, the credit ratings work on not just you as an
organisation but the environment that you are working within. With issues of the international markets, the
international climate, Brexit and all those issues, what do you believe to be the risk in managing these issues in
terms of your rating being downgraded because of some of those issues?

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): We are on negative outlook from a
couple of the rating agencies. That is not because of our own financial performance. That is because they
have a negative outlook on the UK Government because of Brexit and the performance of the UK economy.
Clearly, the main impact for us would be an increase in the price of borrowing rather than the availability of
borrowing. One of the benefits we do have in the UK is a very strong investor base through the insurers and
the pension funds. Pretty much all of the debt Luke or | would need to raise could be raised in the UK through
institutions and through their own requirements if we needed to. However, as | said, the effect of a rating
downgrade, particularly as you start to go below the AA level, is that it would start to impact potentially on the
costs that our suppliers can leverage from their own financial institutions, which would be passed back to us as
increased costs. That is probably our major risk.

Len Duvall AM (Deputy Chair): Thank you.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): What about viability of interest rates? You mentioned that they have been
historically low for what seems like forever now. Everyone keeps predicting that that is going to change. How
exposed is TfL if they do start to rise?

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): Our Board-approved policy is that we
have a minimum of 75% of our debt at fixed rates of interest. We currently have something more like 97% of
debt at fixed rates of interest. Given that the interest bill is about £475 million per year, having certainty of
the cost of financing is more important than having some ability to benefit if rates go up or down by a little bit.

On our current debt, which, as | said, has an average maturity of 19 years, we do not have any interest rate risk
at all. We have also pursued facilities with the EIB and Export Development Canada that have allowed us to
forward fix debt over the years and so we have been able to mitigate some of the interest rate risk on tranches
of debt in the future through those facilities. We are coming towards the end of those current facilities but we
are working on trying to secure some more at the moment. We also have an interest rate hedging ability and it
is a live discussion with our Board as to whether we ought to be thinking about hedging some of our future
issuance over the next few years, again to protect ourselves against interest rate movements.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): On average, when you do borrow, what are the borrowing terms? You said
it is 19 years normally but - | am trying to phrase this in a way that is intelligible - all of your borrowing will not
be taken out at the same time and, similarly, it all will not mature at the same time and so it will be staggered
over time. Ordinarily when you are borrowing, over what period of time are you borrowing for?

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): As | said, if | try to answer that, we try
to make sure that we have staggered the maturity of our debts over a very long period of time so that we do
not have any specific huge spikes of debt that need to be refinanced in any one year relative to the size of our
organisation. In doing so, Emanuela and her team are mindful of making sure that as -- short-term debt tends
to be the very cheapest at the moment and at some point in history long-term debt has been cheaper. We
look to be efficient in how we borrow but we also try to make sure the average maturity of the portfolio
reflects the average economic life of the assets that we are financing. We keep the costs, the maturity profile,
the liquidity, the refinancing risk and all of those things in mind when working through an annual strategy with
our Board about when we borrow, how we borrow and for what period.

Page 24



Martin Wheatcroft (Fiscal Accountant, Pendan): If you were to borrow everything at current rates, you
would be able to get a really great deal and save a lot of money compared with what TfL is currently paying
because it is paying rates on debt that was taken out, for instance, before the financial crisis at much higher
rates than current rates. However, doing that exposes you to huge swings as interest rates can change
overnight. It is much more sensible to embed it in and, therefore, you follow a path where you are gradually
refinancing your debt every year a little bit. If it is over 19 or 20 years, then 5% of your debt is being
refinanced every year and at the moment, because we have very low interest rates and in fact they have been
going down recently, you can gradually bring the average rate of your debt down each year. Then, when it
starts to swing up, you gradually move back up but you do that over a 20-year period and so you are in a much
more stable position.

Your big exposure is new debt. If you are doing a new big project - if you start on Crossrail 2 or 3 or 4 - and
you decide to finance that through new debt and if interest rates go up, that changes the whole economics of

future projects, but you have a much more stable position through this approach of your current debt.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): Sure. That 5% figure that you just suggested as an example of how much
you would refinance per year --

Martin Wheatcroft (Fiscal Accountant, Pendan): That was on the basis of 20 years on average, yes.
Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): Is that about right for TfL?

Emanuela Cernoia-Russo (Corporate Finance and Strategy Director, Transport for London): No.
Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): Yes. We will share the profile with you
and you can see it. For efficiency purposes we have at times issued debt in larger tranches of £400 million or
£500 million because we have a best price to do that for a particular programme. In other deals we have used
smaller tranches of £50 million to £100 million. We have tried to manage the repayment profile in every year
over a very long period of time and so it is not quite 5% but --

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): It would be plus or minus a few percent each year.

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): When we share it with you, you will see
it is quite evenly spread with the largest hump, if you like, in that 20- to 25-year period.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): Your approach to debt management is minimum risk, it is fair to say?
Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): Yes.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): The scenario | am about to give you now probably could not happen
because of Bank of England independence, but probably the biggest swing in interest rates that | saw in my
lifetime was of course the Exchange Rate Mechanism debacle on Black Wednesday [16 September 1992]. It
started at 6% on the day, went up to 15% and then dropped back down to 12% by the end or something like

that, which led to the huge recession that followed and all the repossessions and everything else.

How protected would TfL be against a scenario like that happening? Let us say for the sake of argument that
we leave the EU with no deal and the economy is on a precipice and the answer is that we are to play around

Page 25



with interest rates. Would you be sheltered from that because it is all at fixed rates now and so little is having
to be refinanced year on year?

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): We would to a large extent because, as
| said, 97% of the £11 billion is fixed and our intention is to continue fixing that debt. We do have the ability
to hedge. Emanuela and her team speak to the banks and the economists on a reqular basis. If there was a
fear that future interest rates - and we look at forward interest rates - were to start to suggest there was a real
risk of things spiking up or if the currencies and volatility indices suggested that would happen, then we would
start to hedge our future debt programme. We of course always have a choice as well about not raising the
debt. Some of the debt going forward would be for projects that we have not yet started. If all of a sudden
interest rates were 15%, we might not do it.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): We are going to talk about your current borrowing plans.
Assembly Member Arnold is leading on that.

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: Yes, thank you. | have a number of questions for you. | have in front of me as a
reference this chart. The source is the Mayor of London’s Capital Spending Plan 2019/20.

My starter question is to Simon, Emanuela and Luke. What are the key deliverables from the borrowing in the
four-year Capital Spending Plan to 2022/23?

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): For TfL, it is to finish the projects we
have been talking about so far today. It is to finish Crossrail. It is to finish the upgrades of what we call the
subsurface railway between the Circle, District, Hammersmith & City and Metropolitan lines. It will be for the
new rolling stock that we have ordered over the last few years. It will be finishing the delivery of the Bank
Station upgrade and the Victoria Station upgrade. Our programme now is to finish the current series of
upgrades and then we will start to think about how we finance the next series of upgrades as we go into the
Spending Review process with the Government.

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: Luke?

Luke Webster (Group Treasury and Chief Investment Officer, Greater London Authority): For the
GLA, the substantive items are Crossrail and the NLE and so there are some remaining grants to be made as a
result of that borrowing. Our deliverable is to support our colleagues in TfL in bringing those projects to their
conclusion within the currently forecast cost envelope.

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: Thank you.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): Just on that one, if | may, correct me if | am wrong but the only reason the
GLA is borrowing on the NLE and on Crossrail is because of this situation with Crossrail’s borrowing cap, is it
not?

Luke Webster (Group Treasury and Chief Investment Officer, Greater London Authority): It is also
an issue of where the tax-raising powers lie. The GLA is the entity that is able to levy the business rates
charges directly and therefore it makes sense for the borrowing to be as close to that revenue stream as
possible.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): Would it be the GLA that was borrowing if TfL’s cap had not been reached?
Would TfL had borrowed it otherwise?

Page 26



Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): Over many years, myself, Luke and
others have thought about, as Luke says, who best should bear the borrowing almost regardless. Put aside for
a minute whether or not you are towards your maximum limit, but what is your ability to influence and manage
that borrowing? TfL can manage our own generated revenues - fares and commercial income and other things
- but the tax streams flow to the GLA. Therefore, the tax base borrowing, whether it is business rates or MCIL
or other things, now we have started to move forward with the ability to borrow against MCIL, which has been
a feature of the new Crossrail funding facility, should sit with the GLA.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): Aside from the NLE and Crossrail, does the GLA have any other borrowing?

Luke Webster (Group Treasury and Chief Investment Officer, Greater London Authority): It does
have some legacy borrowing dating from the abolition of the London Development Agency and that was debt
that at the time was incurred to purchase the [Queen Elizabeth] Olympic Park. Some of that is still on the
balance sheet and the resources that will repay that over time will ultimately flow from capital receipts resulting
from the [Queen Elizabeth] Olympic Park redevelopment.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): Sorry to interrupt you.

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: No, that really fits in. We are on the same page. We are of one mind. We have
sat on this Sub-Committee too long together. A very interesting Sub-Committee it is as well.

| was just going to go on and ask if we should be suspicious that after 18 consecutive years of borrowing, TfL
now is saying that it has no plans to borrow in 2023/24 or is it the fact that the GLA will do the borrowing on
TfL’s behalf?

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): | am not quite sure what you mean
about being suspicious.

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: We are always suspicious of TfL full stop.

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): | know. | do not know why. We are
part of the GLA family after all.

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: Do not start me off. You did give money to a bridge that was not built. | will
not go there.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): We are not going to steer into that one.

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): No, we can rehearse that one in
another forum. For both TfL and the GLA, what is clear and the case we will continue to make is that London
has far less devolution than any other major city anywhere else in the world and therefore London’s ability to
be held to funding and financing large proportions of its infrastructure investment is clearly contingent upon
having the devolved financial ability to support that. If you were to look at Paris or New York, they have 50%
and 80% devolution of their fiscal framework and that gives them a greater ability to be self-reliant. We have
a very centrally led public finance philosophy in this country and that therefore means that, for example, the
GLA capital strategy is reflected in things like the National Infrastructure Commission’s (NIC) 1.2% of gross
domestic product recommendation for fiscal spending. We work with the NIC and we work with other cities

Page 27



and regions around the UK to make the case that all of us should have the ability to make more of our own
decisions about what money we raise and how we spend it to deliver locally.

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: | totally agree with you. We see report after report pushing for those who are in
power to think through fiscal devolution because other cities clearly show that it can work but we are held
within this centralised bubble.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): Luke wanted to add to what Simon just said.

Luke Webster (Group Treasury and Chief Investment Officer, Greater London Authority): If | may,
also a piece of context that is very important to bear in mind is that we have in a sense punched above our
weight over the last decade or so because, as Simon mentioned a while ago, both the GLA and TfL at the start
of this journey were debt-free. What we have managed to do with the major projects that we have discussed
recently is to effectively take almost all of the financial flexibility we have and convert that into the ability to
invest now. To put that another way, we have maxed out our borrowing. That is a one-trick event. We cannot
raise money on the scale that we have repeatedly without a much more fundamental devolution of revenues.
When you look at these projects and when you look at some of the studies that have been done that look at
the incremental tax benefit of these, a very small proportion of that is retained within London. The greatest
benefits flow through corporation tax and income tax and are of course abstracted to the centre.

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: Shall | understand that to mean that a driver behind the current borrowing plans
is about achieving an operating surplus post 2022/237?

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): For TfL, yes. To turn that around
slightly, the driver about moving from a deficit to a surplus is to create the capacity to continue to invest in the
future and also to reflect the fact that if you continuously run deficits at some point you run out of cash.

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: Yes. That is understandable. It is a big figure to me but, Luke, the information |
have here suggests that if the GLA Group and TfL within that were to continue with the annual financing cost
and more borrowing, then by 2022/23 we would be in the region of over £1 billion in financing costs, which
sounds big to me. Is that big?

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): Not in the context of this. It is a huge
amount of money, clearly --

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: It is frightening.

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): -- but | will let Luke talk about the
GLA because the circumstances are different for the GLA than for TfL. We have said the reason why we are
not planning on continuing to borrow in the 2020s, unless and until we either secure more devolution or find
another funding stream or create significantly greater services, is that we believe that that level of borrowing is
affordable and we can afford to repay it, but in order to take on more borrowing we would have to have
additional sources of income or funding to support that.

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: Thanks. I just have a question now and | suppose it is about your opinion. This
question is about the Mayor of London’s Capital Spending Plan 2019-20. It includes £18.6 billion of
investment, of which only £4.7 billion is funded by borrowing. This is to all of you. | would welcome your
thoughts as to how reasonable it is that the burden of current investment falls on current taxpayers when they
may not benefit from the investment. Who wants to start with that?

Page 28



Luke Webster (Group Treasury and Chief Investment Officer, Greater London Authority): | can start
off. That reflects the fact that a lot of the investment we are undertaking is potentially grant funded and so,
from a whole-of-Government perspective, it may well be funded by borrowing. In fact, it probably is, but we
are acting as agents of central Government in a number of ways. The most significant example is housing, of
course. The Government through whatever means is raising that money and transferring it to us in order to
deliver these outcomes.

The other thing that can again slightly muddle that picture is capital receipts. It may be the case. The Fire
Brigade and the Police would be good examples of organisations using receipts heavily to finance capital
expenditure. These are existing assets that are being sold, generating some money, and then that is being
redeployed for new capex. That is not an immediate tax burden falling on taxpayers today. It is an
accumulation of a longer-term approach.

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: All right. Anyone else?

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): It also reflects that in TfL’s capital
strategy submission. One of our clear assumptions was that, because we do not have any certainty of how we
will be funded beyond March 2021, we are not going to assume that we will do any more borrowing beyond
that, which we have set out in our additional business plan. For public sector net debt, the Government ought
to be agnostic about whether the funding is in grant form or borrowing form because they both equally
contribute to public sector net debt. The most efficient thing actually for the UK as a whole would be for the
DMO to borrow the money because it can borrow at the lowest cost. However, we recognise that borrowing
where we can against fares revenues or other revenues demonstrates that we are taking some responsibility for
the repayment of that debt.

It does look a bit odd because we have not flowed through, for example, in the 2025 onward element of the
capital strategy an assumption about borrowing more money because we do not know how our funding will be
split. What we have said is that there is an absolute requirement for funding. The split between grant and
borrowing will need to be determined later. It is more likely that there will be further borrowing at a future
point if there were a movement on devolution. Indeed, in the past, TfL has been able to borrow more against
the total higher level of our grant income because we are able to borrow against the grant. There is a
leveraged effect of having a grant and then borrowing against it.

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: In terms of your revenue, is there a cap on revenue, say, from the fares pot? Is
there a figure that you cannot go beyond? The price of the ticket has to have some cap to it, does it not?
That would cap that funding source for you.

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): The main cap on the fares revenues is
actually the capacity of the system to carry more people. A very large part of the investment that we are
seeking to make over the next 20 years is to increase the capacity of the system. If we can increase the
capacity of the system and attract more people to use it, then the increased ridership will have a bigger effect
in terms of driving more income than the pricing policy. The pricing policy is quite complex because there is a
large interplay with what people are willing to pay and whether they choose to travel. We have seen that over
the last few years when for the first time ever, two years ago, we started to see a reduction in demand for the
Tube because there was a point at which people were making choices not to travel for discretionary trips as
part of their overall discretionary spending.

Page 29



Jennette Arnold OBE AM: That is interesting. My last question is about this Silvertown Tunnel. This has
been constructed using private sector borrowing. How confident are you that this will deliver value for money
given that the Government abolished this type of arrangement in the 2018 Budget for new projects, claiming
that they do not represent value for money?

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): We have a long history with private
finance initiatives (PFIs) and public-private partnerships (PPPs). PFls and PPPs are not inherently bad. It is
whether or not you apply them to the right types of projects. If you have been using them to pay for things
because you cannot really afford them and you do not want them on your balance sheet, then that is one
thing.

For TfL, the DLR is a great example of a piece of infrastructure that was delivered through a PFI and has been
a significant success. One of the reasons why it was so successful is it was a new discrete piece of
infrastructure that did not have an interplay with the existing network. You could let the private sector deliver
it, run it, repay the debt and then hand it back to the public sector at the end of that period of time.

PFIs and PPPs have been less successful when the inherent rigidity of embedding the finance over

30 or 40 years has had a direct operational impact upon the transport services. Therefore, when one of the
PPPs collapsed into administration and the other one was brought back in-house, one of the very large reasons
for doing that was because things change, particularly operationally, and those sorts of contracts being
embedded in a PFl or PPP structure are very difficult then for the public sector to manage.

On the Silvertown Tunnel, the reason why we chose to do this particular project at a time at which the
Government announced that it was no longer going to be using PFl as a mechanism was that they specifically
allowed devolved administrations to continue to do so if they satisfied themselves of the value for money. |
was phoned on the day of the announcement by the Treasury to say that that means this type of project. TfL
has a lot of experience over the years in building railways and commissioning railways. We have not built any
road tunnels at any time probably in the last 50 or 100 years, whereas other people around the world build
them reqularly. The private sector is better placed to deliver Silvertown [Tunnel]. The fact that the design
consent order requires a toll to be levied to manage the congestion in the area and to be a demand
management tool in the area creates a revenue stream. We are not asking the private sector to take the
revenue risk. TfL is retaining that. We are asking them to take the risk on building and delivering the project.
There is no need for any scope change and so it is a relatively simple project. We are just in the process of
awarding the contract. We have had a great competition and a lot of global interest and people who are vastly
experienced in building road tunnels have been successful in winning this. The overall cost of finance
embedded in this PFI reflects that and we think, given the requirements to do this and the constraints on TfL’s
balance sheet, this is one of the few occasions on which this type of financing mechanism makes sense.

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: Thank you.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): Martin wanted to come in.

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: Yes, Martin?

Martin Wheatcroft (Fiscal Accountant, Pendan): Yes, very quickly just to say that PPPs have not been
abolished by the Treasury. What they have done is they have announced the end of Private Finance 2 (PF2),

which was the successor to PFIl, which has basically not been successful. There were very few PF2 contracts
awarded and so they have gone back to rethink.

Page 30



Jennette Arnold OBE AM: s that because people are struggling with bad PFls?
Martin Wheatcroft (Fiscal Accountant, Pendan): As Simon said, PFls are not inherently bad --
Jennette Arnold OBE AM: You have to have the appropriate project.

Martin Wheatcroft (Fiscal Accountant, Pendan): In fact, some of the initial ones were not necessarily
very good models to follow, but over the period of PFI contracts a lot of them have been quite successful and
a lot of things have been built that would not otherwise have been built. It is a very much a mix of things.
There have been things that have gone wrong and have been unsuccessful, but there have been things that
have gone right.

The point is that the attempts to try to achieve a model that both delivers what you might call protection for
the taxpayer and for the consumer and also is sufficiently attractive to the private sector to finance is a
challenging one. PF2 has proved not to be in that road. There have been some examples where things have
been possible within the framework, but they basically have their thinking caps on about how to replace it. It
is not that we will not see these things going forward in the future. We will see them in the future, probably,
but there will be a new name and a new technical approach. Hopefully, we can retain the lessons from PFls
and what went wrong and what went right into the new model.

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: Thank you. | wish the Silvertown Tunnel project well. Back to you, Chairman.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): We are into the final section, which is the scope of additional borrowing. |
suppose the opening question would be: what are the ideal conditions required to support further borrowing?
That again would be either you, Simon, or you, Luke.

Luke Webster (Group Treasury and Chief Investment Officer, Greater London Authority): Maybe our
answer is simpler and so | will start with us. It is really the identification of new revenue streams to support any
incremental proposed borrowing. As | mentioned earlier, based on the resources that we have available to us
now, it is very challenging for us to contemplate further increases in existing debt without a detriment to our
rating. The GLA potentially could borrow for other things in the future but it would need to be very
comfortable that there is a discrete revenue stream coming with that that would support the repayment of
debt in the long run.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): Something like Crossrail 2, for example?

Luke Webster (Group Treasury and Chief Investment Officer, Greater London Authority): Subject to
suitable revenue streams, that could be something we would consider.

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): Chairman, if | may, just to support
Luke in this, the issue is identifying incremental funding. If we can identify and secure incremental funding,
then we can use borrowing as a financing mechanism to deliver things earlier.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): How likely do you think that is going to be in the coming few years?
Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): The Crossrail 2 team is submitting
another strategic outline business case (SOBC) this summer which does identify a number of streams of

additional income that could be used to finance London’s share of that project. That will be submitted over
the summer to both the DfT and TfL investment programme assurance processes. We will see where we get to.

Page 31



We have demonstrated clearly in SOBCs that have not been approved as yet that the economic case is shared
and accepted for Crossrail 2. The challenge has been increased over time about how much London should pay
and when and the current SOBC will reflect those challenges and we will see where we get to.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): Yes. That is a subject for a whole other meeting. | am just going to tease
out a date. When are you expecting to know more about that? We have had this before --

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): | know, yes. We are in the process of
submitting a revised SOBC this summer [2019]. We are dependent upon the Government approving it and
giving us an answer when it is ready to do so. Our shared intent with the DfT is to approve the SOBC and then
to discuss with the Treasury in the Spending Review the funding of that project.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): It is the mythical Spending Review that might happen at some point, maybe
in the future, perhaps?

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): Exactly.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): All right. Luke, we [the London Assembly Budget and Performance
Committee] met with the Old Oak and Park Royal Development Corporation yesterday to talk about its plans.
It is planning on increasing land values by implementing capital infrastructure. Is there a case to make for
borrowing to fund that capital infrastructure?

Luke Webster (Group Treasury and Chief Investment Officer, Greater London Authority): The GLA
would be comfortable taking some risk to support that endeavour. Whether that involved directly borrowing
new money or whether it involved using some of the GLA’s cash on the balance sheet to support it, which is a
form of debt financing but with not quite the same introduction of risk to the GLA, it would be something that
we would consider. However, we would have to be very comfortable with the business case and there would
have to be an incremental benefit observable to support the repayment of any such commitment.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): One of the problems they have is that they have been awarded a
£250 million Housing Infrastructure Fund grant. They do not have the money. There has to be a way of
satisfying various conditions but they said yesterday that they are going to be talking to the GLA about
underwriting that. Where have the conversations got to on that?

Luke Webster (Group Treasury and Chief Investment Officer, Greater London Authority): Certainly
not to the point where | am able to confirm anything, but my team will be looking at the risks involved with
any borrowing or borrowing-like solution.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): One final question is to you again, Simon. One of the Mayor’s pledges was
to deliver 10,000 affordable housing units on the TfL estate and the delivery of that has been, to say the least,
slow so far. Has TfL considered borrowing to deliver that rather than relying on private development?

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): This is one of the frustrations that
Assembly Member Duvall referred to earlier. We do not have the flexibility to do that currently. Within our
agreed borrowing limits from the Government, there is no provision for us to borrow to deliver housing and it is
one of the things that we will explore, but now we have a very clear strategy about what we are going to do.
We have identified that we have sufficient asset that you would expect to be able to borrow against the value
of those assets in order to do so. It is one of the things that we will be exploring with the Government. | know
discussions have been taking place with Homes England and others who also see that, with greater flexibility to

Page 32



finance housing given the estates that TfL has, we could be more ambitious about the delivery, but that does
require the Government to allow us to borrow or to provide us the ability to use financing mechanisms to do
that.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): Tempting fate, that is another conversation that may happen as and when
the Government is not focused solely on Brexit?

Simon Kilonback (Chief Finance Officer, Transport for London): Yes.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): The final question is coming back to Crossrail. If Crossrail were to be
delayed again - and nobody in this room hopes that it is but let us say it is - how sustainable would it be for
the GLA to take on the borrowing to fund any shortfall?

Luke Webster (Group Treasury and Chief Investment Officer, Greater London Authority): Based on
our current view of the world, that would be very challenging. One of the things that we are very pleased with
in terms of the settlement we arrived at with the Government for the incremental additional borrowing for
Crossrail was the fact that we were able to secure a regulatory change that allows us to use the MCIL to
support borrowing. It may be the case that if our current forecasts are exceeded as a result of that revenue
stream being stronger than we currently expect, there may be some headroom there, but again the ability to
borrow further from where we are today without detriment to our rating or financial stability very much
depends on additional income being identified.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): The short answer to that then is, “Not really”, is it not? It would not really
be very sustainable at all?

Luke Webster (Group Treasury and Chief Investment Officer, Greater London Authority): Not
without more money being identified. We have been very prudent with our MCIL forecasts and so | would say
there is quite a high likelihood of some upside there, but additional borrowing from where we are today is not
something that | would recommend today.

Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman): That is very clear. All right. In the absence of further questions, we have
now reached the end.

Can | thank all of our guests for attending and for your answers, which were very informative? In particular,

you, Luke, have stayed beyond the time. | was told that you needed to leave 45 minutes ago and so thank you
for sticking around.

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 34



Agenda Item 4

GREATERLONDONAUTHORITY LONDON

Subject: Summary List of Actions

Report to: Budget Monitoring Sub-Committee

Report of: Executive Director of Secretariat Date: 11 September 2019

This report will be considered in public

1. Summary

1.1 This report sets out the completed and outstanding actions from a previous meeting of the Sub-
Committee.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the Sub-Committee notes the completed and outstanding actions arising from a
previous meeting of the Sub-Committee.

Action arising from the meeting of 12 June 2019:

Agenda | Topic Status For action by
Item
8 GLA Borrowing

During the course of the discussion Members requested | Completed.
a copy of TfL’s debt profile over a 20- to 25-year period. | Attached at

Appendix 1.
Actions arising from the meeting of 20 March 2019:
Agenda | Topic Status For action by
Item
5 Road Maintenance
During the course of the discussion Transport for Completed.
London (TfL) undertook to provide the following Attached at
information: Appendix 2.
e The number of claims for damages to cars and
vehicles received during the last four years;
e Alist of road asset renewal work that would have
been carries out but will no longer be done as a
result of the two-year pause in proactive asset
City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SET 2AA Page 35

Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk



Agenda | Topic Status For action by
Item

renewals;

e The number of people killed and seriously injured
over the last four years and what caused these
incidents;

e An asset-by-asset list of road renewals for the first
12 months and a higher-level list for the rest of the
business plans; and

e Further information on when road deterioration
starts, when visual inspections are carried out and
any other detail in relation to these processes.

11 Any Other Business the Chairman Considers
Urgent
During the course of the discussion, the Divisional Ongoing. Divisional
Finance and Procurement Director, Surface Transport, Finance and
TfL, offered for TfL to provide a briefing to Assembly Procurement
Members on the long-term brand partnership proposals Director,
with Tottenham Hotspur Football Club. Surface

Transport, TfL.

List of appendices to this report:
Appendix 1 — Response from Chief Finance Officer, TfL, dated 24 June 2019

Appendix 2 — Response from Divisional Finance and Procurement Director, Surface Transport, TfL, dated
21 May 2019

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers: None.

Contact Officer: ~ Lauren Harvey, Committee Assistant
Telephone: 020 7983 4383
E-mail: lauren.harvey@london.gov.uk

Page 36




Appendix 1

Transport for London

24 June 2019
Transport for London
Gareth Bacon AM Palestra
® . . & F Z : ;
Chair, Budget Monitoring Sub Committee Il_(deB‘iicSki;ril *([?\JRload
C =1 OolNJ
City Hall
The Queen’s Walk www.tfl.gov.uk

London SE1 2AA

Dear Gareth

Thank you for your letter of 20 June following the meeting of the Budget Monitoring
Sub-Committee on 12 June.

During the course of proceedings, | agreed to provide you with a profile of our
borrowing. As you know, prudent borrowing is an important source of financing
which supports our capital investment programme. Because transport infrastructure
has high upfront costs, borrowing allows us to invest today in order to improve the
network and spread the costs over time. We are committed to managing our
borrowing in a manner that is both affordable and sustainable. \We seek to borrow
in a way which combines flexibility, security of access to funds, diversity of funding
sources and value for money.

As at 31 March 2019, we had £11.2bn of outstanding borrowing (denoted by light
blue bars in the below chart). Our December 2018 Business Plan assumes we will
borrow an additional £2.4bn by 2022/23, in addition to refinancing all borrowing that
matures during the business planning period (denoted by dark blue bars in the
below chart). This new borrowing is assumed to be for 20 years.

Our debt maturities are spread out over almost 50 years, which reflects the range in
economic life of our assets. We target a weighted average maturity of at least 15
years on our borrowing, with a current weighted average maturity of 19 years.

The chart below shows how the balance of our borrowing is expected to reduce
over time, as we assume no refinancing of existing borrowing after 2023/24.

Page 37 RN
MAYOR OF LONDON ‘{a\% VAT number 756 2769 90



TfL Outstanding Borrowing

14,000

12,000 IIII

10,000 |I||

8,000 IIIIII
|||

6,000

4,000 -

ON DO N DN HBAD KNS B A O NDH H A DN D
NI I IO DH D R R I L) ©° L
B PP S FF P FF T T T PP T PP P

Actual borrowing to 2018/19 m Expected borrowing from 2019/20

As you know, our borrowing limits are agreed both with the Mayor and with HM
Treasury. We are committed to borrowing in a transparent way, routinely publishing
our financing costs in our Quarterly Finance Reports which are available online.

I do hope this is helpful. As ever, do let me know if | can provide any further
information.

Yours sincerely

%ﬁ//-

Simon Kilonback
Chief Finance Officer

Page 38



Appendix 2

Transport for London

Transport for London
Surface Finance

Gareth Bacon AM

Chair, London Assembly Budget Sub Monitoring Committee
The Queen’s Walk Palestra
London 197 Blackfriars Road

London
SE1 2AA SE1 8NJ

Phone 020 1234 5678
Fax 020 1234 5678
tfl.gov.uk

Tuesday 21 May 2019
Dear Gareth

Thank you again for inviting me to provide evidence to the Budget Monitoring
Sub Committee to support your investigation into road maintenance practices.

As | explained at Committee, through good asset management practices we
have been gradually improving the condition of all our road assets over the past
decade. These good asset management practices mean that we have a very
good understanding of our assets, their condition and behaviour. These robust
practices, combined with our detailed understanding, have allowed us to adopt
the approach that we have in the full knowledge that we will continue to provide
a safe network. We continue to carry out safety-critical works, and do so on a
daily basis. This includes inspections, testing, and winter-preparedness, as well
as repairing defects such as potholes and traffic signal faults.

| am grateful to you for writing to seek further clarity on some of the issues we
touched upon.

The number of claims for damages to cars and vehicles received during
the last four years

Cycle Vehicle (other)
No. claims received 0 S&MS | \o claims received N0 ClAIMS
accepted accepted
2015 47 14 307 117
2016 35 5 288 85
2017 52 13 200 55
2018 56 37 515 244

Page 39 gdisaftglity
MAYOR OF LONDON [ Famorts e]”t VAT number 756 2769 90



Page 2 of 6

The increase in the number of claims received and accepted in 2018 relates to
the bad weather at the end of February and the beginning of March (dubbed
‘the Beast from the East).

A list of road asset renewal work that would have been carried out but will
no longer be done as a result of the two year pause in proactive asset
renewals and an asset by asset list for the first 12 months

Appendix 1 is a comprehensive list of projects deferred beyond 2018/19 and
2019/20. A number of these projects, as indicated in the third column, are
programmed for 2019/20 in order to enable delivery in 2020/21.

The number of people killed and seriously injured over the last four years
and what caused these incidents

It is the Mayor’s Vision Zero ambition that no-one is killed or seriously injured on
any part of London’s transport network. This commitment formed a core part of
the Mayor’s Transport Strategy (MTS) published in March last year and we also
published a Vision Zero action plan in July, setting out the policies and
interventions that will lead us and the boroughs on the path to achieving this
goal.

The MTS and Vision Zero action plan commit to eliminating deaths and serious
injuries (KSIs) on the transport network by 2041, with the following interim
targets:

Short term: 65% reduction in KSIs by 2022 against the 2005-09 baseline
Medium term: 70% reduction in KSIs by 2030 against the new 2010-14
baseline

Additional targets for bus casualty reductions:

70% reduction in KSls in, or by, buses by 2022 against 2005-09 baseline
Zero fatalities in, or by, buses by 2030

The police adopted new methods of classifying injury severity in 2015 (City of
London Police) and 2016 (Metropolitan Police Service) and also introduced
online self-reporting which has resulted in more injuries being reported overall.

Figures for 2018 show that the number of people killed in road traffic collisions
fell to the lowest level on record, with 110 police reported fatalities during 2018
compared to 131 in 2017 (see table 1). The greatest reduction was amongst
pedestrian fatalities, falling to 55 people and the lowest number on record.
However cyclist fatalities increased from 10 to 12 people and to the highest
level since 2014. Half of all cyclist fatalities occurred during May and June,

Page 40



Page 3 of 6

partly reflecting increases in cycling during the summer of 2018 which was one
of the driest and warmest on record. Provisional analysis indicates that no
fatalities involved poor road surface as a contributory factor in 2018.

The number of people killed or seriously injured in London fell by an estimated
one percent in 2018, compared to 2017, to 3,860 people which is 40 percent
down on the (2005-2009 average) baseline (see table 2). However the number
of people killed or seriously injured during 2018, compared to 2017, increased
amongst car occupants.

The number of people killed or seriously injured in or by a bus during 2018 fell
by an estimated 5 percent compared to 2017, to 58 percent down on the
baseline.

The most recent full year figures from the police show that out of 3,753
collisions that resulted in fatal or serious injury during 2017, a total of 9 of these
collisions (0.2 percent) involved poor road surfaces (see table 3). All fatal and
serious collisions involving poor road surfaces were to vulnerable road users
(people walking, cycling or motorcycling) during 2017 (see table 4). Human
error, in particular risky manoeuvres and speed, are the main factors associated
with vehicles being involved in fatal and serious collisions with people walking,
cycling or motorcycling.

Figures for 2018 are provisional and subject to change. Finalised collision
figures for 2018 are scheduled to be published in summer 2019, in line with the
DfT publication of the national collision dataset.

Table 1: Number of people killed between 2015 and 2018 in London (all
roads)

Road user 2015 2016 2017 2018
Pedestrians 66 61 73 55
Pedal cyclists 9 8 10 12
Powered two-wheeler 36 33 31 22
Car occupants 20 10 14 16
Bus or coach occupants 1 1 2 1
Other vehicle occupants 4 3 1 4
Total 136 116 131 110

Page 41



Page 4 of 6

Table 2: Number of people killed or seriously injured by road user
between 2015 and 2018 in London (all roads and provisional)

Road user 2015 2016 2017 2018
Pedestrians 1,296 1,285 1,412 1,259
Pedal cyclists 704 690 685 744
Powered two-wheeler 1,056 1,042 1,099 1,000
Car occupants 623 591 490 649
Bus or coach occupants 147 124 108 106
Other vehicle occupants 93 85 87 102
Total 3,920 3,818 3,881 3,860

Figures in italics are the back estimated figures for the number of serious, slight
and all casualties, during 2015 and 2016, taking into account changes in the
reporting of collisions by the police and the introduction of online collision self
reporting. Back estimates contain a level of uncertainty and will be refined as
more collision data collected using new reporting systems becomes available
from the police. The shaded areas show the most recent provisional figures for
2018 available from the police which are subject to change and will be finalised
in summer 2019 inline with the publication of the national dataset by the DfT.

Table 3: Number of collisions resulting in serious or slight injury and

involving poor road surface between 2015 and 2018 in London (all roads

and provisional)

Year Serious Slight Sum
2008 2 21 23
2009 4 22 26
2010 5 27 32
2011 7 14 21
2012 9 15 24
2013 8 28 36
2014 6 28 34
2015 1 9 10
2016 3 23 26
2017 9 17 26

2018 to end July 7 22 29

provisional

The shaded areas show the most recent provisional figures for 2018 available
from the police which are subject to change and will be finalised in summer
2019 inline with the publication of the national dataset by the DfT.

Page 42




Page 5 of 6

Table 4: Number of collisions resulting in cyclists, pedestrians and
motorcyclists being seriously or slightly injured involving poor road
surface between 2015 and 2018 in London (all roads and provisional).

Year Serious Slight Sum
2008 2 13 15
2009 3 17 20
2010 4 19 23
2011 7 13 20
2012 9 12 21
2013 5 22 27
2014 5 21 26
2015 1 5 6
2016 3 13 16
2017 9 11 20
oiplosddy | g 2 1

The shaded areas show the most recent provisional figures for 2018 available
from the police which are subject to change and will be finalised in summer
2019 inline with the publication of the national dataset by the DfT.

A higher-level list for the rest of the Business Plan

Appendix 2 sets out a higher-level list of asset renewal projects anticipated over
the course of the rest of the Business Plan.

Further information on when road deterioration starts, when visual
inspections are carried out and any other detail in relation to these
processes

Deterioration of any asset is continuous and generally this is proportional to the
level of use. However, we mitigate against this by continually monitoring asset
condition and risks on our roads in order to ensure the safety of the travelling
public. Our defect intervention standards have not changed and we continue to
ensure our roads are safe through appropriate inspections and routine
maintenance.

Inspections of the Transport for London Road Network (TLRN) are carried out

for safety and skid resistance, and we conduct routine maintenance in
accordance with defined defect intervention standards. The public can report

Page 43




Page 6 of 6

defects that emerge on the TLRN through our website, and we want to make it
as easy as possible for people to report defects on London’s roads so that we
can improve our awareness of where these are a concern and inform our
decisions.

Any defects on the TLRN identified as requiring emergency or urgent repairs
will be either temporarily or permanently repaired within 24 hours, or made safe
with 24 hours. Dependent upon the nature of the defect, non-urgent repairs are
required to be permanently repaired within 7 calendar days or 28 calendar
days.

Do let me know if you have any further questions or if you would like any

additional information.

Yours sincerely
Patrick Doig
Divisional Finance and Procurement Director, Surface Transport

Email: patrick.doig@tfl.gov.uk
Direct line: 020 3054 0748

Page 44



lcjo |

ON jusuiysiqunjal ainonis 39dld9 LTVH NOLLIHM 9LeVY
ON juswysiginjal ainjonig € 3ASVYHd INVTHOLVYH AINTOD 90tV
ON juswiysiqinjal ainpnis 39dId9 SSYdYIANN ITVAIYIC 0vY
ON juswiysiqunial ainpns 12NAviA AVHO 0zv|
SBA Juswiysiqingal ainponysg ININHSIGINATH IDAIHTG SNOHID HONVIA
SaA juswiysiqinjal ainjonisg 3SId LINOWT3g 39a1d9g SITVH Z1lgY
ON juswysiqinjal ainonig LNIWMNVENIT ANV IDAIH9 AYMTIVYE MdVd SANAVY “NIATVIN MIN £V
ON jusuiysiaqunyal ainpnisg 39dldg A4041VY0 S02Y
ON Juswysigingal ainjonig (¥V) 39A1¥9 TYNVO NOINN ANVHO
SBA juswysiginial ainjponig LININHSIENHTY STOAII AVMTIVY AYOY HOIH MOIMSIHO ANY AVMTIVY AVOY I9aryg M3 s0zv
ON juswysiqinjal ainjonig ANINIOVId3H LNIOr dX3 ANV SHIVAIY JLIHONOD - IDAI¥g AYMIIVY AV0y TTIMNOED
ON juswiysiqunjas ainonig 1X3 gN ANV gN 9S HSHVIN NOQaVvM €2V
ON juswysiqinial ainjonig JONVNILNIVIA SONIYVIE ANV LNIOr 13341S SYA3Q
ON juswiysiqunyas ainynig 39didd IAEND M3
ON jJuswysiqinjal ainjonns (ONZ) S39Ar¥g LN AINMOVH
ON jusuiysiqinjal ainjonis (S3YNLONYLS) HOVYOHddY HLNOS ANV HLYON LONAVIA TV ONIMYYS o)
ON juswysiqinial ainjonig ANIWHSIgEN43Y 1ONAVIA AYOYH HOIMTOOM ANV LONAVIA INVT TIVAMMOVY1E M
ON juswysiginjal ainjonig ANIWHSIgENHTY - 3DAI¥g AT13144IV4 - QY0 AV104VE 282V w
SOA juswysiqungal 8inonis ANINHSIgEIN43Y LONAVIA ANY 39aidg avoyd T13MINOYD 1SIam| O
ON juswiysigingal ainjonig IS LNINHSIGHN4TY IHINLONYLS - YIAOATH INV1 AT TMOY
SOA juswysiaungal ainpnysg H3INAOATd NOQAOHD zeey
SOA SyIom Jolew uoieys sng uonels sng peoy [[amwolr) uoysbury
ON juswiysiqinjal [suuny Jolepy qinj3yY punoquinog [suunj |lemyoelg ZdIiLS
ON juswiysiqinyal ainjonig Jolepy $S0IQ juaig ¢dILS
ON juawysiqinjas ainjonus Jolepy juswyslginjay abpug yiequie zdiLS
SOA juswysiqinjas [guuny Jofepy Syiyisyloy zdILs
SOA juswysiqinjal ainjonig Jolepy lIBYxXneA ¢diLs
SOA juswiysiqingal sunjonuig Jolepy qinjay sainjonis Aemisspa 0¥V 2dILS

SHIOM JO adA} awe 398foid

(196pnq ayy ul aseauoul [enjuelSANS YIMm JeaA) Kienlap 1z/0Z0Z @y} 8|geus o} Japio ul ubisap Jo Kianiap 0z/610z 10} pawwelboid usaq aney ysiym syoafoid 8y} ayeolpul , pawwelbold 0z/610zZ., D uwnjo) (z
s|emaual |eyded podsuel| soeung o} asned Jeshk om} ayj 0} anp 0Z/610¢Z PUE 61/81.0Z PuoAeq paliajep usaq aney jeyy sjoeloid ayj Jo 1si| B S| syt ()
:S9JON

61-1dy-60 s399l0id paliajaQ :oSned 1eak OM] S[eMalial JoSSE HOdSUBI] 99B[iNng

I XION3ddV




SOA
SOA
SOA
SOA
SOA
SOA
SOA
SOA
SOA
SOA
SOA
SOA
SOA
SOA
SOA
SOA
SOA
SOA
SOA
SOA
SOA
ON
OoN
ON
ON
ON
OoN
ON
SOA
SOA
ON
ON
ON
ON

juswysiginjal a1noNig
Juswiysigingal ainonis
Juswysiginjal a1nonis
Juswiysigingal ainjonis
Juswysignjal a1nonis
JuBWYSIgINgal 2INONIIS
juswysiginal a1njoNIs
JusWYsIqINgal 81NONNS
Juswysigingal 21njonis
Juswiysigingal ainonisg
Juswiysiginal a1nonis
uswysiginial ainonis
Juswiysiginal a1nonis
Juswysiginjal a1nonis
Juswiysigingal ainonis
Juswysigqnyal a1nonis
Juswysigingal ainonis
Juswysiginial a1njonis
Juswiysigingal ainonis
juswysIginal a1nonis
Juswysiqinjal ainonis
juswysIgingal a1nPnIs
JuswysIgnal 81nonis
JusWysIgingal 81nPNNg
Juswiysigingal ainonis
JusWysIginial 2INoNIS
JuswysIginal a1noNIs
Juswysigingal ainonis
juswysIgingel a1nPNNg
Juswysiginal a1nonis
Juswysignial a1nonig
Juswiysiginial ainonis
Juswiysiginal aInonig

Juswysignal aInonis

lcjoe

ISLd - dITS-NO €7S INVT TIYMMOV18 0§ 20 20LY

IS1d - IDAIYEL004 AVM aT3ITTIN 09 €2 90V

ISLd - 39AIM91004 AVOY IDAIYEHDIH 0L~ Ly 90vY

ISLd - ANNOE™S 1ONAVIA H4O4A00M ¥V 09 €€ 90¥V

ISLd - ANNOE N LONAVIA Q4O4A00M g 09 €€ 90vY

ISLd - AVOY HOIH ATTHONIH 00 217 90vY

LNINTOV1d3H INIOF - dITS 440 9S H3AOATd QHO411 90vY

ININIOV1dIH LNIOF - LINFNLNGY NYILSIM 8M LONAVIA AVOd T3ONY 907V
HIAOATd HINYOD SMOTIVD

LINIWHSIgYN4TY STHNLONYLS TANNNL TIVAMMOVE

ISLd - HIAOATH SIWHY SHIAVIMOIYE L TN LOZY

ISLd - dNVY M HIAOATH Q0PV 1S L7 L1790V

LINIWHSIGYN4TY LONAVIA ANV 390148 dvOod TTIMNOYED LSIM

ISLd - 19NAINOY TYNYD NOINN ANVYO 09§ 90V

ININSSISSY 39aidg ¥ILSNINLSIM

(SMHOM NOILYSITIEYLS) 39ardg TIVHXNYA

JAIMNOANOT SLHOIT NOILYDIAVYN S3DAId STNVHL

NOILOIJSNI T¥103dS YIAOATS NOAQAOHD ¥1a-a-V1-L0-2€2Y
SNOILNIAYILNI INIOHN AVALSIM

ISLd AVMLSIM

NOILO3dSNI TVIO3dS YIAOATd HOHONY ANV IdOH 06 0L-91 €Y
JONVNILNIVIN ONIHVIE H3IAOATL LANY QHO4NTIHO

STHOYY ANV D0d

SLNIOr dX3 SSYdY3IANN avOd NOSNVa 2V

SINIOr NOISNVYdX3 39d148 INVT AANVS

INIWHSIEYNATY SIOAdg 1NT ONITYI INYTHIONVH - ONITVI 30A1dd INVT HIONVH 90vV
39aI¥g SNOYID AVMHLYON ANV (1Y HSILIME H3A0) AVM FHVMOAI LPY
LNIWHSIEYNATY 1ONAVIA NOILVLS NWYHLVYIHLS

LNINHSIGENATY YON LYIATND LIFHLS HOIH WYHSIMIT 02V

SYYOM TVIAINTY SIOAIEE NOISNILXT ANV TYNIDIFO - (48) INVT YIONVH 907V
(SLNIWLNAY) HIAOATL AVOY INYNOE 2V

39ar¥g avod ’¥3A0A d1o ZoLY

H3INOAT4 AVOH NOLONITENG €V

avod SY00d TVAOY (SON) 39aiyg dvo3d

L XIAN3ddV

Page 46




ON
SO
SoA
SOA
SOA
SOA
SOA
SoA
SOA
SOA
SOA
SO
SOA
SOA

ON
ON

ON
SoA
SOA
SO
SOA
SOA
SOA
SOA
SOA
SO
SOA
SO
SOA
SOA
SOA
SoA
SO
SOA

Juswysicunyal Jaid Janry
SyJom Jofew uopels sng
syJom Jolew uoijes sng
sylom Jolew uoypess sng
Syiom Jofew uoness sng
syiom Jofew uoieys sng
syiom Jolew uoness sng
syiom Jolew uonjeys sng
sylom Jofew uoneys sng
syiom Jofew uoness sng
syiom Jofew uoieys sng
sylom Jofew uoness sng
Syiom sofew uoness sng
Sylom Jofew uoness sng
syiom Jolew uoijess sng
Syiom Jofew uoeys sng
sylom Jofew uoiess sng
Syiom Jofew uoiess sng
Syiom Jofew uonels sng
juswysiqunyal ainjonsg
juswIysiqingal ainjonis
juswysiqunyal ainjponng
JusLuysiqunjal ainjonig
Juawiysiounyal ainpnig
juswiysiqunjal ainjonig
Juswiysiqunyal ainjonig
juswysiqinal ainonng
Juswysiqunjal ainjpnig
juswiysiqunyal ainjonis
Juawysiaunjal ainpnyg
uswysiqingal ainypnig
juswysiqinjal ainjonis
juswysiqunyal ainjonig
juswysiqinial ainonig

lcjog

SHIVdIY ¥3ld INIWMNVYEINT

3AVY9dN NOILYLS SNg JLYOHLNOS

3AvY9AdN ALIOYdYD - ANVLS SNg dI1SINy

ANVLS SNE NOLONIMIN INOLS

NOILVLS SNd NOL 039 1Sv3

3Avy¥9dN NOLLYLS SN J1Lvoay

JOVNIVHA ANV ONILHOIT ‘'ONIOV4HNS GHO41l ‘ANVY.LS SNg LINNIVH
ONIOV4HNSIY NOILVYLS SNg FOVIVd TVLSAND

(dvOd LNVH9) ANVLS SNg NOILONNF WYHJYTD

ANVLS SNg avod ISNOHAOOM

SHIOM AVMIDVIHYEYD (HIMOT) NOILYLS SNG HLINSHINNYH
(AVMIDVIYEYO) NOILYLS SNE INOLSNOLATT

(DNIOV4HNS) NOILYLS SNE VIHOLDIA

ONIATING T1IH SNHOr LS NOILONNF WYHJY 1D

(AVM3IDVI¥YYO) NOILYLS SNg aN3 SHINTT

(LNIWIAOHJINI ONILHOIT) NOILYLS SN AOOMMYO
AININJOTIAIATH NOILVLS SNg I¥VYMOAa3

(SONIATING) " NOILYLS Sng NOLSn3

3AVYOdN NOILYLS SNg NYHYO3d

AINIWHSIgYNITY YIAOAT QYO AIHSNG 02 61 €V

SLINIOr g0 ANV OVYINIA INIWIDVTdIY LNIOP AVMLSIM
NOILOIdSNI TVIO3dS I3DAI¥E.L00 LTVH GHOANITLD HLNOS L-0S 61-0pY
390149 NOILVLS TIYNDOYH ANV AvOy AT THONIL

S-N ANV S-a ONINIAIM IDAidd ONIAOY H3AIY 90bY

3SIY LNOW139 39ardd S3TVH LigY

ONIJ00HdHILYM HOVOHddY HLNOS ANV HLYON I9Ardg M3 09 00-502V
AINIWHSIENTY IDAIYg SNOHID YONVIA

NOILOIdSNI TVIO3dS 94 INVT SLILLId 05 ZL-2LY

(SHHOM NOLLYSITIAVLS) STHNLONYLS SSOMD INIYG LhY
ANINHSIEENITE YON LYIATND LIFHLS HOIH WYHSIMIT 02V

SHHOM TVIAINTY NOILYINSNI AHOLYNLYLS - (31T INVT ¥IONVH 90vY) I9aldg avoy JAVHOIATYM

390149 NOILVLS TUH WYHLYIYLS €2V
dIVd3d ININVINEA 13dVHVYd - SLTINVA 3SOT10 INOVINOW
IS1d - dWVY 3 YIAOATH 900V IDS 6~ L1~ 90pV

I XION3ddV

Page 47




SOA
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
SOA
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
SOA
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
SOA
SOA
ON
SOA
ON
SO
SoA

SOA

juswysiginjal
JuswysIgInyal
Juswysigingal
Juswysiginjal
juswiysiqinyal
Juswysiginyal
juswiysiginal
uswysiaingal
juswysiginjal
Juswysiginjal
JuswysIgINgel
Juswysigingal
juswysiginjel
Juswysiginjal
juswysiginyal

JusWYsIgInyel wasAs jauuny |

juswysiginjal
juswysigingal
juswysiginjal
Juswysiginjal
Juswiysiginjal
Juswysigingal
Juswysiginjal
Juswysigingal
juswysiginyal
juswysiginjal
juswiysiqnyal
juswysiginjal
juswysiginyel

juswiysigingal

Jusweoe|dalpuswiysigingal wajsAs Buluiessay 99IUSA
Juewaoe|daluswysiqingel walsAs Bululelissy S|oIysA

we)sAs |auun|
wiaysAs jsuunj
waysAs |auun |
wialsAs |auung
wa)sAs |suun]
wiaysAs |suun]
waisAs [suun
wajsAs jsuuny
wiaisAs [auun |
wasAs [puun
wajysAs [suunt
wajsAs |suun ]
wajsAs [puuny
waysAs [suun

walsAs |suuny

uoness buidwindg
uoneys buidwndg
uonels buidwng
uone}s Buidwing
uoneys buidwng
uoneys Buidwng
uonels Buidwng
uoijels Buidwing
uone}s Buidwngd
uonels Buidwng
uoneys buidwing
uonels buidwing
uoness Buidwing

uones buidwng

juswiysigingal Jaid Jenry

Juswiysigingal Jaid Janry

lcioy

NOLLONNF LNOGVYANNOY LIDYVL O1 NOILONNI LNO9VYANNOY A¥04ANTIIYD - SHA INNIAY NYILSIM OvY
GZIN OL INVTHOLYHYILHYOD - Y 3DAINENYO 1VIHO 0LY

SNOIS ONIANIZ-AVA AILYNIWNTIL - (@12) TINNNL ¥00a VIANI 1Sv3

JVAH - (GNLME) ANNOFHLYON TANNNL TIVAMOV1E

SINILSAS NOILNGIYLSIA ANV A1ddNS ¥3MOd - (1S4) TINNNL L3FHLS FHO04

S37av0 ¥IMOd AILVIDOSSY ANV ST1av0 ¥3a334 (LSLN) 1S STNVHL ¥3ddN

INILSAS NOISSTHAANS SYO ANV SHOLOILIA Jui4 ANY 1INV INHYTY Jdid 'OVAH - (1S<) TANNNL LS FHO04
[SNYOH] LNFNHOTIAIA HOW - (GN.LME) ANNOFHLYON TANNNL TTVMHOVIE

SINZLSAS NOILOILOHd ONIHLHYT - (LM3) TANNNL AVMLSY3

SINOHJ 3dISAVOY 21 I0V1d3Y SOVHLT

d13A31 ¥3LYM ANV NOILOILIA SYO “13NVd TOHLNOD diNNd - 3AVEOdN MINIH - (LM3) TINNNL AYMLSYE
S310d NMOQ-ANIM ANV TYMINTY HSTFH43d ALOD SOVHLT

(147 LHY 9S N LME) NOILYSINYIAON DNIYOLINOW HLTVYIH - LdIND3 Yd-01avd - TINNNL 37dILININ

(LSLN) (TTYM TVHLINTO) SNOIS ONIANIA-AVM GILYNINNTIE - (LSLN) TINNNL 1S STINVHL H3ddn

SINTLSAS ALIHVS ANV 3yl - WY dINNd (@13) ¥00a VIANI LSV - (8SL1M8) 8S T3NNNL TIVMMOVE

2130 1V3H dVaNIT HO-aNY (013 ¥vavy ‘divA) NOILO3L3d LNIdIONI OLLYINOLNY - (LIND) TINNNL NVIN NIZHO
10 1V3IH "Y3NIT "0-aNY (013 ¥vavd 'aivA) NOILLO3L3A INJAIONI OLLYNOLNY (199) TANNNL NIIHD IDH0ID
[Hosogl 3aveodn (vd) SS3¥aav 211and - (GNLME) ANNOFHLEON T3NNNL TIYMMOVE
LINIWHSIEYNATH (3SNOH diNNd) MIIA LS3HOA

INTNHSIEYNATY NOILYLS dINNd (Av0od SHVYI-L) AVMENS 3341 MOTTIM
ININHSIHNATY NOILYLS diNNd (AVAMENS) SSOYD AT TdNd

LNINHSIGEN43Y NOILYLS dNNd INNIAY IOAIHGNYD

ININHSIGEN4TY NOILYLS dNd AYMENS aV0d Ldva0oH

LININHSIGENH3H NOILYLS dINNd @vOd NOLONISNIA

LNIWHSIGYNATY NOILYLS dINNd (Lid dINNS LSIM ONI AVYMENS SHVIFMOV1E
ININHSIgEN43Y (ISNOH diNNd) TYIHOWIIN YVYM HSI10d

ININHSIGENATH NOILYLS dINNd NOILYLS ONIdINNd V3T ¥3AIN

NOILVLS dINNd SSYdYIANN SHYI-™IMOV1E

ININHSIGHNATY NOILYLS diNNd AYMENS MN SNOHI0 AVMHLEON

LNIWHSIEYNATY (ISNOH dIANd) AYOd MOYYVYH

ININHSIGENATY NOILYLS dNNd - ANV TTVH 90vV

INIWHSIEEN4TY NOILYLS dINNd HLvdd3d

LNINIOV1dTd MSOIM LIXMOIL FAISHNVYE

SYHOM INTFWIAOUdINI ALIHVS SH3Id

L XION3ddV

Page 48




SOA
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
SOA
SOA
SOA
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
SOA
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON

Juswaoe|dalpuswysiqinjel walsAs Buluiensay soiysp
juswade|dalpuswysiqinal waisAs Bujuiensay aoIys
jusweoe|dalusuysiqinjal wajshs Bujuiensay sjoIys
juswaoe|daluswiysiqinal wajshs Buiuielissy ajoIysp
Juswaoe|dalguswysiqinjal wajshs Buiuiessay soiysp
juswaoe|dalusuysiqinies wajsAs Buluiensay o|oIysp
juswede|dalguawysiqingal wajsAs Buiuiesissy ajoIysp
Juswaoe|dalusuysiqinias wajsAs Bujuiesisay s|oIys)
juswaoe|dalusuysiginias wajshs Bujuiessay ooIysp

Juswaeoe|daluawysiginial
juswaoe|daipuaiysiginyal
Juswaoe|daluswysiginal
Juswaoe|daiuswiysiginial
Juswaoe|daiauswiysiginial
Juswaoe|daluawysiginial
swaoe|daijuawysiginial
Juswseoe|daluswiysiginal
jusweoe|daiusuysiginial
Juswaoejdaiuswiysigingal
Jusweoe|dalauswiysiginial

wa)shs Bulurensay apoiyap
wajsAs Buluiesisay apoIyap
wajshs Buiurensay ajoIysp
waysAs Buluienisay sy
wajsAs Buluiessay ajoIysp
wajsAs Buiuiensay spo1ysp
wajshs Buuressay ajoIysp
wayshs Buiurensay oIy
waishs Buluiessay aoIyap
wa)shs Bulurensay ajoiysp
wayshs Bujuiensay ajoiyap

Buioepnsas Aemabelien
Buioepinsal Aemabelie)
Buioeunsas Aemabelien
Buioepnsal Aemaberien
Buioepinsas Aemabelsen
Buioeunsal Aemabelien
Buioepnsas Aemabelien
Buioeunsal Aemabelien
Buioepnsal Aemabelien
Buioepnsal Aemabeuien
Buroepinsal Akemabelien
Buioepinsas Aemabelen
Buioeunsal Aemebelien
Buioepnsal Aemabelien

lC40 g

(NTONIddYM OL 0¥ 13341S NONNYD) AVMHOIH £0Z1Y

SAY dI1S 90vY ANV 18ay SNAMOYS JITdVHD 00v LY,

avod SAITIAITO OL AVOX WYSSIr) VO NOLdY10 H3ddn 0LV

(INV1 QOOM OL INVTNOAS) AYOH 1LSIM LVIHD bV

1Of T1IH SYILOOHS 0L LNO9VYANNOY TIVH T13M 502V

ANNOgHLNOS M¥3 IONVYHOHILNI NOSNYA 2V

(@Y HOIZTIWOH OL QY FTVASNIAVY) T1IH QHOANY.LS 0LY

(AMVANNOE YH OL ANV AONYS) AVOY SSVd Ag dNOAIS 02V

(3S14 NOL4ITO OL 13341S AOHIINOL) AVOH SSOHD MaN ‘zv
(3NVTHOLYHYILHYD OL 13341S AIMHNL) AVOH IOAINENYD LVIHO 01y

(QvOd 3AAH HLYON OL INV1 dINNTd) AYMMYY THL ZLEY

(QvOY NOLTHVHO OL TIIH IEN0I1SIM) HOVOHddY NYIHLNOS TINNNL TIVAMMOYIE Z0LY
(30V1d LONINONH €V OL TTIH TIWANIA) AVYOH ALINIYL v1.2Y

(NI349 INNLYOL OL IDOVLLOD SSIMS) AVOH ATTHONIA LbY

SO0 HONI4VHO OL AMVANNOEG HONOYOE - SHA SSYd-AS-NOLSONIM £V
SNIAYVYO L3700 OL a¥ NOgEITO - SHA AVOH HLYVYDTVL bY

(L334Y1LS SAYVYNOTT LS OL QYO MOIM Z01Y) HOVOHddY TINNNL TIVMMOVIE ZLY

H3LNI SSOHO LNFHE OL ¥INYOD STTdVLS) AVOH ¥V INOHIO HLHON 90vY ANY dITS 440 95 AYM NOANIH Ly

SSOYD LN3Hd OL LOr AVM HLHON 1VYIH9D - VO dVINIYID HLHON 90vY
AvOd MOYYVYH 70¥V OL INVT HIONVH - HON 90V

SHA FONVHOHILNI NOSNVYA OL @y @131dI3 - 93 AVM YILSIHOOY LSV 2V
ANINIOVTdIY SHA YINHOO X3dV OL HINHOD ONITHILS - SSVJALG LINYVYE LV
H3A0ATd AHO4A0OM OL SHHOMYILYM - AVOH HYINDHID HLHON 90vY

¢ 3SVHd ¥3INJ0D SMOT1VO OL SZIN - AVOd ¥31SIHOT0D 2LV

SHUA H3INHOO SMOTTVO OL S2IN - Av0d Y31SIHOT10D 2LV

(dvOYd S1¥380d © dvyyy) Avod ¥V INOHIO HLYON 904y

©d149.004 AOOM AFTIXNY 40 LSV N0SL OL O 4 TVLLI¥O 40 939 INNIAY IHL OL rAY - SSYDAL dNIAIS 02V

ANINIOVIdId SHYA NOILONNC #IN OL ANV dINNd - AVMMYYC 3HL ZLEY

QY dT3I4HOIH OL 3AY LNIONIA - SHA 3SIY HLYOMIOL £V

AvOd MNIT ISNOHINIT €021V OL QY0¥ MO0d VIANI 1SIM L92LY

(3NVT NOLJWYHIOHY 90€V OL AYM QOOHNISOY) SSYAAS NOLSONIM £V

AVvOYd HOIH 0001V OL SSYdHYIANN AVM INVHMYNId - HON 907V

HINHOD ONITHILS OL X3dV NOILYSITIEVLS LNIWMNYEINT SSVYJALG LINHVYE LV ZZSN
@Y d1314LNTHE OL IAV ATT1LHVYHO - SHA NIASYAN 907y

I XION3ddV

Page 49



SOA
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
OoN
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
SOA
ON
ON
ON
ON
SOA
ON
ON
ON
SOA

Buioeunsal Kkemaberue)
Buioegnsal Aemabeuie)
Buioepnsal Aemabelue)
Buioepnsal Aemsbelie)d
Buioepnsal Aemsbelie)
Buioepnsal Aeemabelie)
Buioegnsal Aemabelie)
Buioepnsal Aemebelie)
Buioepnsal Aemsbeuse)d
Buioepunsal Aemebelied
Buioepnsal Aemabelie)
Buioepnsal Aemabelie)
Buioeynsas Aeemabeused
Buroepnsal Aemabelie)
Buioepnsal Aemabeuie)
Buioepnsal Aemabelie)
Buioeynsal Aemabeuie)
Buioepnsal Aemabelien
Buioeginsal Aemabeused
Buioegnsal Aemabelse)
Buioepnsal Aemabeluie)
Buioepunsal Aemebelied
Buioeunsal Aemabelie)d
Buioesinsal Aemabeuie)
Buoepunsal Aemabeled
Buioepnsal Aemabelie)
Buioepinsal Aemabeuied
Buioeunsal Aemabeuie)
Buroepnsal Aemabenied
Buioepnsal Aeemabeuie)
Buioeunsal Aemabele)
Buioepnsal Aemsbeuie)d
Buioepnsal Aemabelie)

Buoepinsal Aemabeuie)

1¢409

NOILONNC TONI T1IH SYILOOHS 01 avoy VH VH - @Y AWYAYIY - A¥Od HOIMTOOM S02Y
(SNIA™VYD NOSEID 0L avod HLNOWNAT T1IH QHO4NVYLS 0LV

LLINIYL OL A MHOA @10) LAY 212V SY NMONM ATHINHOL) dIANIN OL AVM SHITOONNS LNOFVYANNOY L1V
MO IWILSAS AVM INO VIHOLODIA ¥12EV ANV 20EV

(14NOD INIOHY OL I3SOTO AHYNAYYH) SSVd A NOLSONIM €V

(TIH LSV3 OL dI1S-440) 9S avOod ALINIAL viev

(NOILONNF AVM ¥INTIM OL HOVOHddY € 40 Z - L) ANV QdO413L '90vY

(INV1 NITHD OL AVM NOYIH) AYMISNYO FHL ZIEY

(AVM TTIWYILYA HLIM L9d) aYOd NNLNVHIN 72V

(QVOd NOLONITING) ¥ANYOO NONNVHS €V

(Q¥ YHVd AOOMYIHS OL Y NOSEID) AVOd INVIHD ZeTY

(aY NOLYIAOD OL 212V HLIM LND L3FHLS HOIH ONILOOL eV

(@Y ONOTHNL OL 1d SYHAVIA) AVOH AVMOTIOH |V

HIANHOD ONITHILS OL X3dVY NOILYSITIEYLS INIFNMNVENT SSYDAG LANYYE LV ZZSN
(aNV1 IAIHIIG OL 90vV) AV NHILSVYI CIV

(IAV SAT3IHAVOHE OL Ay AVHEMOIN) 83 AVM IHVYMOAT L7V

(a¥ NOgg19 OL INVTNNOWNOD ¥VO d10) gM ‘0vY

AVMIOVINYYD ANNOSHLNOS g4 3FHL MOTIIM AVYAMMEYd FHL ZLEV

(1S VIMOLOIA OL 5Ag NOLSI1003) AVOH IOVIVd WVHONIMONE vleey

Ady¥3d HOIMTOOM OL @d 19381V avOod H3id LL LY

1NOgvaNNoy 39aldd vl voLv - 0LV

(LNOFYANNOY HINYO0D SMOTIVD) INNIAY NHILSY3 LV

(INV1 ATTHSY OL 133H1S IDVd) AVM HLHON LVIHO LV

(7INNNL NITEO I9H0TD 0L LNOGVYANNOY IDAINEATH) aM INNIAY NYILSYI 2LV
1NOgvaANNOY HLHOMTOL €V

(INNIAY TTVH HONVIN OL S¥L ON) €S AVM HLHON LVIHD LV

(SdITS440 YINHOD SHIMVYALS) LVD ANVTHIIENND OvY

(@Y 140YDHSNY OL AV 214 10313) AvOd NOLXIAE €ev

(1S NOYH4VS OL 1S AYIDYEVYIN) LS NOAONIEHY-4 OL 4 NOOONIHHV4 L0CY

(194 T1ONI Y TVHLNID Ol #2v) ¥ T1vH NIAHON L62V

AMO AHOLVHAD T1IH 3STNL G02V

(IN0UO IOVHVYOIA OL AVOH NOILYLS) AVOH HOYNHD T13MEIEINYD 202V

(1S ¥3Vd OL 1S HOIH INOFITAYVYIN) AVOd INOEGITAEVIN LOSY

(GZIN 62 NOILONNI AVMITS) AYOY TVIHALYY L2LY

L XIAN3ddV

Page 50




ON
oN
ON
SOA
oN
oN
oN
oN
ON
oN
ON
oN
OoN
oN
ON
oN
ON
OoN
OoN
SBA
OoN
oN
oN
oN
OoN
OoN
oN
OoN
OoN
ON
oN
ON
ON
OoN

Buioepnsal Aemabelien
Buioepinsal Aemaberues
Buioepnsas Aemabelien
Buioepinsal Aemaberien
Buioepinsas Aemabelien
Buioepnsal kemabelien
Buroepinsas Akemabelie)
Buioeunsal Aemaberiien
Buioepunsas Aemabelien
Buioepnsal Aemabelien
Buioeunsai Aemabelien
Buioepunsal Aemaberien
Buioepnsas Aemabelie)
Buioepnsal Aemabelien
Buioepnsal Aemabelien
Buioepinsal kemabelien
Buioepnsal Aemabele)
Buioepnsal Aemabelien
Buioepinsal Aemabelien
Buioeyinsal Aemaberiien
Buioepnsas Aemabelie)
Buioepnsal kemabelien
Buioepunsal Aemabelien
Buioeunsal Aemabeusen
Buioepunsal Aemabelien
Buioeunsal Aemabelsen
Buioepnsal Aemabelien
Buioepnsas Aemabelien
Buioepnsal Aemaberren
Buioeunsal Aemabelen
Buioepnnsal Aemabelien
Buioepnsal Aemabelien
Buioepinsal Aemabelien
Buioeunsal Aemabelien

Lgio L

(35070 AZHSNE OL ANV STAVH) VO INOLSAOD Z2Y

1S dT314dIvd 'AVM AHNONYY ‘LS HOIH HLYOMSANVYM £V

(3S1Y NVINMO0HE OL AYILIWIO 3DA0T) AVOYH ATTNOYY L2V

(3AISHLYON NOILONNF INVTHOLYH AINTOD) ¥V INDHIO HLHON 904y
(NOILONNI avOd AINMYIN) INNIAY NYILSYI ZLY

(I NOILONNF LI 40 1SV3) ¥V INOYHIO HLYON 907V

(3NLVLS N3AE0D OL 1S 11v¥d) 1S HOIH NIAWYD 00%Y

(@Y ¥vd ANOWHOIY O1 ©a8 1S31¥d) 1SIM VO ANOWHOIY ¥3ddn S0ZY.
(2025Y OL AYMHOYNHD) AvOy NOLSN3 L0SY

(@Y 390148 YIST1IHO OL QY TYLIdSOH TYAOY) INIWMNVEINT YISTIHD Z1ZEV
T3ANNNL IHLIHY3HLOY O1 AvOy 39aiyd ¥3IMOL - avOd YOIVIAYF ANV L3341S ATT100L 002V
(N3349 NOL137adIN OL L3IHLS HOIH NIAWYD) AVO NIAWYD £0SY
(HOYNHO OL @Y NOLONIMYVYH) A IDAINaNVYD LvIHO 0LY

AHOLVHAD HLHOMSANYM £V

NI3HO 40 AN OL dITS 40 1YVLS 93 L7- ¥ 3dIS OL dITS 40 ANI M LT - AVM NOANIH LY
(13341S HOIH AOOM SH3ITI00 OL AYOY HOYNHOLSIMHO) AVOY AHOINd b2y
(3DVTIIA ONITYI OL QYD ITUAQOOM) INVT HIONVH 900y

(ISNOHYIALYYHO OL 1334LS 133174) 13IYLS NOAONIHYYS 102y

(a4 WYv4 NOLONIAa3a O1 @y NOLSNI) AYM AT TdNd £2V

(QvO¥ NOLYYIWTIIH OL QYOY AVMOTIOH) - AVOX NIAWYD S0SY

(€8 ON OL AVM TTIHOLIN) QYO AQIIML L2V

(L33Y1S L¥VH 3LIHM OL QVOY 31INVA) 3NV NOLONINNIM #0ZEY

(@vod FI9aI¥anNyO 01 NITHD MIM) AVOH MIM 502V

194 SNOHID YONVI - QYO IMVY1LHOW HIMOT - VO ANOWHOIY YIMOT 9LEY
(S1NOAYANNOY 2z2Y ANV vzzY NIIMLIE) YOy SSYd-A9-dNodIS 0zv

(QYOH MVYOIINATIOH OL AVM ONIHLYYH) AYOY NOLHOING £2V

(350710 11030 OL £V) @Y MOOH £vev

(@vO¥ HOYNHO ZLEY LNOSVYANNOY LIDHVL) OvY

39AI¥8 TIVHXNVA Z0ZV

(@vod 37117 0L AvOd TIIMINOHD 1SIM) AVOH MOIMHVYM 02ZEY
ONIOVHINSIH AVMIDVIHEYD HINHOD AHNGHDIH LV

3IAV NVIAYNYD M AvVOd ATTINONE L2Y

avOd H1NOY OL ANVT AOOMINYNE -ONNOFH.LHON AVOY ALINIYL ¥2V
13341S NONNVO OL S-N 39aidd NOANOT - 13IHLS WYITIIM ONIM £V

I XION3ddV

Page 51



ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
oN
ON
OoN

SOA
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
oN
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON

Buioepnsal Aemabelie)
Buioepnsal Aemabelled
Buioepnsal Aemabeuie)
Buloeynsal Aemabele)
Buioepnsal Aemabeuse)
Buioepnsal Aemabelie)d
Buioepnsal Aemabelie)
Buioepunsal Aemsbelie)d
Buioepnsal Aeemabeused
Buioeynsal Aemsbeuie)
Buioesinsal Aemabelie)
Buioeunsal Aemabeuse)
Buioensal Aemabelie)
Buioeunsal Aemabelie)
Buioepnsal Aemsbelie)
Buioepnsas Aemabelied
Buioepnsal Aemsbeluie)
Buioepinsal Aemabelie)
Buioepnsal Aemebeuie)
Buioepnsal Aeemabeuied
Buioeynsal Aeemabeused
Buioepinsal Aemabeuied
Buioepinsal Aeemabeuied
Buioesnsal Aemabeuie)
Buioeyunsal Aemabelie)
Buioepnsal Aemebelied
Buroepnsal Aemabelie)
Buioepnsal Aeemabelie)
Buioepnsal Aemabelie)
Buioepinsal Aemabelie)
Buioepinsal Aeemabeuie)
Buioepnsal Aeemabeuied
Buioepnsal Aemabelie)
Buipepunsal Aemabele)

lcio8

(3Daidg vasYILLvd OL avod WYHNYNGHSY) M1YM INATHO 0ZZeY
(a¥ S9OV4 0L ad ¥ILINIYId NdIHLNOS) Y LSIM HLNOS LVIHED 0V
(INVT TIVH dI7S-440 OL 3AV 11030) Y ViYLV ANIHLNOS aM LZLY
194 AYYI4 SYOO0D OL dI1S 440 gM avOod ANIHLNOS 907V

(IAV LNVAYE OL ¥a SANYUVYL) ad TVINILHEY ANIHLNOS aM L2V

(@d 1LY9N0D NOLLNS M) aM @d SHVYd30 v

(IAYISTY IUNLYN AOOM SANOJHSIH) gS SSVd-Ad NOLSONM €V
(SNIAYVYD dI1SI 0L AvOod HOYNHO) INNIAY NYILSIM 0vY

(INN3AY AOOMHOIIE OL INNIAY T1IH I9a3) AVOd ¥v1NIHIO HLHON 907V
(INTOSIHD TANNOD OL ANV HIONVH 90¥Y) INNIAY NHILSIM 0vY
AVM ALINIYL Mr 93 QY ¥YINOHI0 HLYON 907V

(HLYON AVM ATHIAIE OL 10 A13) @N SSVYd-A9 NOLSONIM €V

(30V1d LYVEOH OL 1334LS AdNg3) SNIAHYD HONIASOUO 20€Y

(a¥ @3.LX0¥D 01 10 ¥va3d) ad ¥vINOHID HLNOS S02V

(a¥ a¥041vd Ol ad d13i14HO339) Y A3LSNV.LS 502V

(a" AISNYOH OL STHO FZISHHVd) A NOLONITIOL €05V

(c01V OL ¥ INYNEG3) @Y SHIALSIS NIATS €05V

(ITYA WYHSINY OL LS HOIH AY041d3a) ad SSOYO MAN 2V

dITS-NO g3 ‘dI1S-NO gM Lgd 0071V

ITYA NOLSONIM M SSVYd-Ag NOLSONIM €V

(@vod T13M3 OL ANVT ATTNNT T1IH SNVYLSNNA 1S ZieY

(30VHYIL YOSANIM OL 1S TIVH) ad ALID L0SY

(AVM MHVd NOLdINIY OL ¥TVAM MOTTIM) dvOod Sa1314dT0 Li2Y
(3AISHLNOS NOILONNF INYTHOLYH AINT0D) "V INOYIO HLYON 907V
(12 NOY3D 01 ad NOSNHOr) NOWINOD AT TANOYG 12V

(VoY I9VHVYOIA OL §12V) 1334LS HOYNHOD TTIMAIAINYD 202V
(L0ZvY OL L3THLS ATTHVH ¥3ddN) avOod INOFITALVIN LOSY

(ay AG3NVA OL @Y ANIHLNOS) Y ATTNOYHE L2V

(V0¥ TIIMNIMYITO OL LITHLS AHIDHVIN) VO NOJONIHHY4 102V
(avod TIHIDA3 OL VO AHO4SIdNYd) AVM ASTdNd €2V

(MOY ¥3LSTIHOO0Y OL 1S VIMOLOIA) a¥ 3Daidd TIVHXNVA 202V

(INV1 HOYNHD OL AVOY 13AVYED ¥IMOT) AYOH SONILSYH LY

(QvVOYd 104037 OL ANV AYNGSHINNND) ANNIAY AHNISHINNND 90vY
(INV1 HONOTd OL AVM AT TdNd) AvOd NOQAQHD 2€TY

L XIAN3ddV

Page 52




OoN
oN
OoN
oN
ON
oN
ON
OoN
ON
OoN
OoN
ON
ON
oN
ON
OoN
OoN
oN
oN
oN
OoN
OoN
OoN
ON
oN
OoN
oN
oN
ON
OoN
oN
OoN
oN
oN

Buioepnsal Aemabelie)
Buioepinsas kemabelsen
Buioeyinsas Aemabelie)
Buioepnsal Aemabelien
Buioepunsal Aemabelien
Buioennsal Aemabelien
Buioepnsal Aemabelien
Buroepunsas Aemabelies
Buioepnsas Aemebelien
Buioepinsal Aemaberuen
Buioeunsas Aemabelsen
Buioepinsas Aemabeliie)
Buioepnsal Aemabelses
Buioepnsas kemabeliie)
Buioepnsas Aemabelue)
Buioepnsal Aemaberien
Buioepinsas Aemabeyien
Buioepinsal Aemabelien
Buioepnsal Aemabenien
Buioepnsal Aemabelien
Buioeunsal kemabeusen
Buioepunsas Aemabele)
Buioepinsal Akemabeiien
Buloeunsas Aemabelien
Buioeunsal Aemabelien
Buioepunsas Aemebele)
Buioeyinsal Aemabelisen
Buioepnsas Aemabele)
Buroepinsal Aemabeliien
Buioepinsas Aemabelien
Buioepinsas Aemebeiiien
Buioeunsal Aemabeliien
Buioepnsal Aemabelien
Buroepnsal kemabeluen

123406

(QY HOIH 0101V OL INNIAY FHL) IA0HED IONHE 0LV

(@Y NOWWOD NOLLNS OL ANV WYHSNI10) a¥ SA1314a710 12V
(HLYON 3NV SLILL3d O1 3AY ¥IHLYIH) 1SV IAV N¥ILSY3 93 21V
(LS IAM OL @ NOOTVH) QY MHOA 50ZEV

(04 NY3LSIM LYIHO OL a¥ INVIMOVY) 93 AYMLSIM 0bY

(3NNIAY SIHYYTO OL INNIAY ¥V TVLVHL) GYOH NOANOT 2V

(0Y 39YMDAT OL MOY HINOH) Y INOFITANVIN 10 LOSY

(0¥ TUHY3ANN OL QY GYO4T3W) ANV dIHSAYOT S0ZY

(0¥ NOLYYINTTIH OL 1S NOSIWVITTIM) a¥ NIAWYD £0SY

(¥ MOIMS3X OL ¥A NOLTHYD) A ANOWHOIY ¥3ddn S0ZY

(AVM NNLNVHYIW OL ¥ 13SHOQ) aY NIAHOW 2V

(ev0ZY Mr) L84 NIATVIN £V

(3AV S¥313d LS OL 3ISOTO SLL3ddOD) M QY HYINDHID HLMON 90bY
(1S 39Vd OL 3NV TIVH) 9S AVM QHOALYM LbY

(184 OL dI1S-440 ANV dITS-NO) SV MI ¥ ¥VINDHID HLYON 90bY

(@Y MOYYVYH OL ¥ a3¥4TV) AVMLSIM 0Py

(LS ¥3AVI1D OL LS NOLAYTO) A4 NOLONINNIM €2V

(PN OL TOOHOS AYVINIYd SHYATD) 9S AVMMEYd THL ZLEY

(SAVOY HOYOHddY LNOSYANNOY SATTINVMS) INNIAY NYILSIM 0bY
(3NV1 L8VH JLIHM OL AvOd JLNVA) INVT NOLONINNIN v0ZEeY
(TOOHOS SANVI®YVd OL 10 39H0ID ONIM) LSIM INNIAY NYILSYI 83 2Ly
(10 11930 OL ¥ SYILNNH) Ay MOOH £vey

(QYOd OO TYILYM OL VO NYINOY) QYO HYINIHIO HLYON 90vY

(¥ 1¥N0D STHYI OL QY M¥OIMEYM) Y TIIMINOYD LSIM by
(NOIWNOD NOLONIM3N INOLS OL A ISNVIN) G AMOLOTY 0LY

(T1IH HLYON OL QYO H1MON LY3Y9O) QYO AVMHOYY LV

(LS 3dOH OL 1MNOD SIDAIYE) aY MHOA S0ZEV

(431 SANVTYISINNHLYON 40 IHNA OL aY HOOW TIIMNVYLS) SSVd-AD MOOHS10D v
(@4 3TYANMOYD OL Ay NIAWYD) LS NIANYD 00+Y

(30V1d NOLONITIEM OL Q¥ VIOVOY) @ NOLONITIEM LV

(@Y 1SIHOTTIH OL IAV NYFLSIM) @Y HVINOHID HLHON 907y
(dI7S-440 ‘dITS"NO 194 ALID FLIHAM) AVMLSIM 0pY

(QvOd TIIMWOND 1SIM OL 13THLS HOIH NOLONISNIN) AvOd MOIMYYM 02ZEY
(AMOLVHAD) Z2V M SSOHD ATTHNd €2V

Page 53

I XION3ddVY



ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
SOA
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
oN

Juswysiqinjal sbeuteiq
Juswysiginjal abeuielq
juswiysiginyas sbeuteig
Juauwiysiglnal abeurelq
Juswysignyal sbeurelg

Juswysiglnial abeurelq

Juswysiqinas ebeueIGALINIYL OL QY MHOA dT0) LAY L2V SV NMONM ATYINHOL) dIANIN OL AVM SHITODONNS LNOGVANNOY L1V

juswysiginal abeureiq
Juswiysigingas sbeuleig
juawuysiginyes sbeureig
Juswysiginyal abeurelq
Juswiysiginas sbeurelg
Buioepnsal Aemabeuied
Buioepunsal Aemabeled
Buioepunsal Aemabelie)
Buioepnsal Aemsbelie)
Buioeunsal Aemabele)
Buioeynsal Aemabelie)
Buioepnsal Aemabeled
Buipeunsal Akemabele)
Buioepnsal Aemabeuie)
Buioepinsal Aemabenied
Buioepnsal Aeemabeused
Buioepnsal Aemabelie)d
Buioeunsal Aemaberue)
Buioepnsal Aemabelie)
Buioepnsal Aemabelied
Buioepnsal Aeemabeuied
Buipeunsal Akemabelue)
Buioepnsal Aemebelie)d
Bupeunsal Aemabelied
Buioeynsal Aemabeuied
Buioepnsal Aemabeled
Buioepinsal Aemabeuse)d

lc o0l

(GZIN 62 NOILONNP AVMdITS) AVOY TYINILYY L2LV

(AYVYANNOE VH OL ANV AANVYS) AVOd SSVd A9 dNOdIS 02V

(VoY NOLTHVYHD OL TIiH IEINODLSIM) HOVORddY NYIHLNOS TANNNL TIVAMOVTE 201V
(TaNNNL NITYO 39Y0IO OL LNOFVYANNOY IDAIEd3d) aM INNIAY NEILSVYI LV
(QvOd HOIH OL AvOd SNNV 1S) AvOY SHILSIS NIAIS €05V

1NOgVANNOY 40 3AIS LSIM - INNIAY MeVd ANVTIOH 20V - AvOd ANVTIOH 02eeY

(38070 1030 OL €V) QY MOOH e¥eY

(ISNOHYILEVHD OL 13FYLS 13374) L3IHLS NOAONIFHVL L0V

6¢ ON OL dN AYM QHO4LVYM ONI - SNOEID TIH TTIN LY

(avOoy L4OdM3N OL INYTHOLYH) AYOY HLvE vV

G X SNOILYDILSIANI - SNOIYVA - SNOOOV1 02V

194 390149 dSOH OL ddV OL ¥2G ON INOY4 €S dvOd AISLYIHD SLEY
INV1 39001 a0 - ad NOLHOINE €2V

(80€V OL ¥0£Y) IAOHED H¥ILNND 022eY

137719 aIM00HD OL dI1S 440 ANNOALSVYE - INNIAY MOLSNVYHLTVM 907V
(17IH QYVYAYVYH) AVOY LSIM LVIHO ¥V

NOILYDILSIANI NOILYHEIA 0d QVIHYIHLYIT €VeY

(IAV LHOdSNYHL HLIM LND AvO¥ LSIM LVIHO vV

(39argg SHVIMAMOV1E OL 39ardg 00 TYIALYM) L3THLS QHOHNVLS 002EY
(AVM THYMOA3T OL IAINA FAISHEV) AVM IHVMOAT LY

HLYON NTINVHAND MP AYM HONOHOENYYA L2V

370dIN V OL dN ¥3A0-AT4 40 ONINNIDIE ‘aN ‘20LY

(HLYON NITHO M3 OL HLNOS NIZHD MIM) A INVILION S0TY

(INVT HLYVOOH ¥V OL INVT NOLONITING 91EV) LNOEYANNOY HLYVYOOH ¥V
(QVOY ¥I13XT OL AVM MHOA) LSTIM AVOH NOLdINVH ZLEY

(INVT ATTHSY OL AVOd SNIAHVD ANNNS) AVOd 3AIS AVM HLHON LVIHO LV
(@y ATTONOT OL a¥ NOSNIFOY) AOOM SHIITI0D LS HOIH eV

(@vOod INYNOFLSYI OL AvOod AFTIDIM) VO IOAIHExXN Ziev

(AVM ANV13Z3344) INNIAY NYILSTIM 0vY

(SANVTLHOHS OL MOIMYILLNG) QYO HLYVOTVL vV

(@Y ATTLNVHO OL AVMMHYd IHL) g3 Y 1SIM HLNOS LVIHO 0€V

(IAVY LHONYNNOD OL ¥ MIN HOIMTOOM) Y "¥VINDOHIO HLNOS S0CY
(@1314STUVIN OL @Y TTIHMd) A" MOLSdIHD ANV A1314dIVd 2€2V

Page 54

I XION3ddV




ON
OoN
oN
OoN
OoN
oN
OoN
oN
ON
oN
ON
oN
OoN
OoN
oN
oN
ON
ON
oN
ON
oN
oN
ON
oN
OoN
oN
OoN
oN
OoN
oN
oN
oN
oN
ON

Juswaoe|das Aemjoo
juswaoe|dal Aemjoo4
juswaoe|das Aemjoo
juswaoe|das Aemjoo
juswisoe|dal Aemjoo4
juswsoejdal Aemjoo4
Juswaoe|das Aeemjoo
juswaoejdas Aemjoo]
Juswaoe|das Aemjoo
Juswaoe|dal Aemjoo4
juswaoe|dal Aemjoo
Juswaoe|dal Aemjoo
juswaoe|dal Aemjoo
Juswaoe|das Aemjoo
juswsoe|das Aemjoo4
juswaoe|dal Aemjoo4
Juswaoe|das Aemjoo4
juswaoe|das Aemjoo
juswysiaqunjas abeureiq
Juswysiqunyal abeureig
Juswysiaunjal abeurelq
juswysiqunyal abeulelq
Juswysiaqunyal abeuielq
Juawysiounyal abeurelq
Juswysiqinyal abeureiq
uswysiaunyal abeuieiq
Juswysiqinyal abeurelq
Juswysiainjal abeurelq
Juswysiqunyal abeureiq
juswysiaunyal abeulelq
juswiysiqinyal sbeurelq
juswysiaunyal abeuleiq
Juswysiqunyal abeurelq
juswysiqunyal sbeulelq

390148 AISNHOH ¥3IANN OL €7 INOYd AVMLOOH AILVAT I ANV INIWMNYEINT AVOH AVMHOYY LV

Lcio Ll

SM3IN Y3AAY OL LS I1AHVM LS HOIH NOLYINOH ‘Z0LY

SYIMOL NIIMLIE M4 LSIM - 39A1g ¥IMOL 004V

(@Y 390189 vISY3L1vd OL QY 39189 1¥391V) ¥a STTVM 40 JONINd 02ZEY
390144 S1S31dd OL NTNOLJWYHION - 1SIM Ay ANOWHOIY ¥3ddn S0zV
8N SNAD dT3IINYYO OL ANV €S G XY4HIv4 01 I9OV.LLOD SSIMS) AVOd ATTHONIA LY
(HVd LSYNHAY OL NMOQ AYYIZA00M) QYO SHILSIS NIATS 05V
(QvOd OOTHILYM OL 13341S NOLONIAAY) AYOH MHOA

(XVINI) SNOHID OO TYILYM 00ZEY

(30VYY3L VWY OL AVOd TTIINANIM) AQYOY ALINIYL v12Y

TYMINIH AYMLOOL 13341S AFTOOL 002V

AYY34 HOIMTOOM OL a¥ 14391V avoy Y3id LL LY.

(3NV1 IALITONIM OL HLVIH STIFHUHINDS) 93 ¥VS 2LV

dYOd NOLTAIN OL LIFHLS MOIMIM avod NOLSNI ANV ITIANOLNId LOSY
(TTIHNYO0D OL dVIHOLSY3) 13341LS HOYNHD IOVHO £1ZLY

(30V1d SNVETY LS OL 1S AMNGSNYVYE) 1IIHLS HIddN LV

@y TUH FYIHSNIAIA-aY LI TNAIY ¥O9 0LV

a4 SNNV LS OL @¥ 3MOHgINId Ay HOIH 0LV ¥SS €05V

(QvOd NOLYYINTIIH O1 AvOd AYMOTIOH) - YOY NIAWYD €05V

dd S¥VA30 OL INNIAY FHL - IDVNIVHA 3AIS HLHON NOWWOD INVHAY 1D £V
JOVNIVHA NOILONNF ¥INYOD S13gdlL eV

(LNOGYANNOXY ONI) 1S @10 OL @Y LSV - IDVYNIVEA QVOY ALID L0SY
3AVHOdN AYMHOIHYIANS J10AD NZSO

Add3d HOIMTOOM OL Y 1Y391V avOy ¥3id 211V

ONIOVAHNSTH AVMIDVIHHEYD HINYOD AHYNGHOIH LV

13341S NONNVO OL S-N 39aIdd NOANOT - LIIHLS WVITIIM ONIM €V

(0¥ 39a14g Y3IMOL OL TTIH 1S IMNA) LITYLS ATT100L 002V

(NOILONNI AYM H3IWTIM O1 HOVONddY € 40 Z - 1) INVT Q404131 90y
(@Y TTIH SLNVO 40 MN — avd €11V LLA) INNIAY GHO4d00OM 00vLY
(S1NOAVYANNOY Zz2Y ANV vzz¥ NIIMLIE) avOy SSYd-A9-dNOdIS 0ZY
(@Y L40HOHSNY OL AV O1¥10313) VO NOLXIYE €2V

(INVT ATTMOY OL LNOAYANNOY ONITHILS) &N LY.

SAY dITS 907V ANV L8ay SNMOYL JITHVYHO 007 LY
¥ X ONINVITO SNOIYVYA SNOODVY 2V,

Page 55

I XION3ddY



ON
ON
ON
ON
OoN
ON
ON
ON
ON
SOA
ON
SOA
SOA
SOA
ON
ON
SOA
ON
ON
oN
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
oN
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON

Juswysiqinaiussoedal sussjuel/suwnjod Bunybi
JuswIysiqInjalAusWaoe|dal SuIsjuel/suwnjod Buybi
Juswiysiginjaiauswaoe|dal suiejuel/suwn|od Bunybi
JuswysiqnalauswWwede|dal susejuel/suwn|od Bunybi
Juswysiqinjaiuswaeoe|dal sulsjue|/suwn|od Bunybil
Juswiysiginjalauswede|dal sulajue|/suwn|od Bunybi
jJuswysiqinjai/Juswaoe|del suisjuel/suwnjod Buiybiy
Juswiysiqinjaiauswace|dal susajue|/suwn|od Bunybi
Juswysiqinjai/usIaoe|dal sulsjuel/suwnjod Bunybiy
JuswysigInyaIAusWede|dal sulelue|/suwn|od Bunybi
JusWysIqinjal/Juswaoe|dal suisjuel/suwn|od Bunybiy
Juswysiqinjal/Juswaoe|dal suisjuel/suwn|od Bunybiy
JusWysIgnaI/uswIaoe|dal sulsjue|/suwn|od Bunybiy
Juswiysiginjalauswade|dal suIsue|/Suwn|od Bunubi
JuswysiqinjaiAuswaoe|del susajuel/suwn|od Bunpybiy
juswysiginjalauswuade|dal sulsjuel/suwn|od Bunybiy
juswysignialsuswasdejdal sulsjue|/suwn|od Bunybin
Juswaoe|das Aemjoo4
juswsoe|das Aemjoo4
Juswsoe|das Aemjoo4
jusweoe|dal Aemjoo4
juswaoe|das Aeemjoo4
Juswooe|das Aemjood
juswaoe|das Aemjoo
juswaoe|dal Aemjoo
juswaoe|das Aemjoo4
juswaoe|das Aemjoo
juswaoe|dal Aemjoo4
juswsoe|das Aemjoo4
juswaoe|das Aemioo4
Juswaoe|das Aeemjoo4
Juswaoe|das Aemjoo
juswaoe|das Aemjoo4

juswaoe|das Aemioo

lcjozcl

184 TIH SINVO OL L84 NMO¥E JITHVHO - AV QHO4000M 0¥ ANIHLNOS 00¥1Y

(ONF NIATVIA 1ONI) SNAD 3937700 OL (83) €2 ON ONILHOIT AYM NIATVIN €V

JAOYD ONILOOL OL NOILYLS NOWNOD WVHJY1D - 1S HOIH ONILOOL Y HOIH WYHTVE eV
39V1d NYNGOM H3ddn OL 1SV IHVNDS Mvd - ONILHOIT AVOd NOLSN3 105V
AVMLSY3T 901V OL TIIH QHOHINYLS 01Y-0d NOLYINOH dd NOLdVY1D d3ddn L0V

ay ¥3IMO1 OL 1S HOIH HONOYOE - ONILHOIT @Y YOIVINYF OL 1S A3T00.1 002V

SIND NYTL 40 N3 OL IAY SNNAM ‘ONILHOIT AVM H3LSIHOOY LSV ¢V

WYVd LSUNHAY 201V OL ¥ AYILSNVYH 007V - SINO AYOY SHILSIS NIAIS NIANVYD €05V
19aNY S13g911 612V OL ANVT NOLJNYHIOH 90€V - d NOLSONI £V

N7 N¥VE d10 OL ONI SSOHD AT THNd - AvOd INOLSAOD 22V

NOQAOHD AHYANNOG HONOHOE OL Y HONVIN LE2V - @4 NOQAOHD Zeev

L9 SANVS-IHL-NI-NNS ONI ANV OL dN (@ Ydvd IHN00HaadiM NO) d AVMANL - V0¥ 431734 ¥31S3IHO0Y ¢V

NOLLONN TIVLNYH OL ¥ IHOWAIM - ONILHOIT NOWNOO HONOHOENYYS AVM HSLLNIM 12V
QY Mdvd IWVHYO3d OL ad 39aidd Y3IMOL - ONILHOIT AvOd LN3IX dT0 v
avOy HONVIN NOLSOg OL 3LVATTI #IN 40 LHVLS AHVYNILYD 87 ISVHd AVOd LSIM LVIHO ¥V

JHLNID T1IHS OL QY SHVIHAMOYIE - ONILHOIT L8 39Ar¥g OO TIILYM ONI LS AHO4NVLS 00zev

ay ISNOHINOLS OL NOILONNP VLNV FHL - G SHYONIAIS-NOWAOD HONOHOENHYA LV
(NOILONNP INVT ATTHYE) INNIAY NHILSVYI 2LV

13341S AYNGHLNOS OL SNIAYVYD A9AIHENYD 'avOd IDAIFMAINYD LVIHO 0LV

88l Ol 26 - AVOY TVIOHINNOD €LY

(NOWIWOD HLYOMSANYM) Q¥ ALINIELYICY

(13341S 1TOHSHIAT OL FOV1d NOLONITAlIT dvod dv3LSdINVH 007V

3INV1 13374 OL 1S ISNOHYILYVYHO - 1S NOJONIddvd 102V

avoy NMOYD ONI (1334LS 1HN0D NIAHOW OL 18 T1vH NIAHOW) avOd NOANO1 #2v
(3YIHSNOAIA @10 OL ANOLSNIAVY) AvOd HOIH WYHTVE vV

oLan (@d SATTINYMS NOHH dITS NO g 3) ‘g 3 'INNIAY NJILSIM '0vY

(@vOd 337 OL AVM SSTHD0Ud) QYO IDAMMEINYD LVIHD 0LV

Advod INSINIA OL INYT AHOLOTY - M4 HLYON dvOd NOQAOHD ZECV

(N7 SMYA OL SNOYID TIH TTIN) (SSYAL LINYYE) AVM QHOHLVYM LYY

SMOTONNE JLIHM ¥VIN ANNOYLSY3 TYMINTH AVMLOOA - LZLY

1¥Z ON OL 19N02 NOLSINOD M4 189 AYOH MOOH €¥CVY

Z9 OL 9v ANV Z€ OL 71 SON 3dIS N dvOd NOANO1 vev

(@Y LY3ATND OL @Y 39aidd 14391Y) AvOoX Mdvd YaSH3L1vd S02EY

ay a13i418v4 282V ANV Y SAV10dvE ZEZY - 04 NOQAOHD Z€2Y - ANV Muvd ¢lev

I XION3ddV

Page 56




ON
oN
ON
SOA
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
SOA
ON
ON
OoN
ON
ON
ON
ON
oN
ON
ON
SOA
OoN
ON
ON
SaA
ON
ON
SBaA
ON
SBA
ON
ON
S9A
ON

Juswiysiginjeiuswese|das sulsjuel/suwn|od bunybi
Juswysiginyaipuswisoe|das sulsjue|/suwnjod Bunybi
Juswysiqunjai/juswaoe|dal suisjue/suwn|od Buiybig
juswysiginyaipuswsoe|das sulsjue|/suwnjod Bunybi
juswysiqunjalpuswaoejdas suisjuel/suwnjod bupybi
Juswysiginjaljuswsoe|dal sussjue|/suwnjod Buiybi
juswuysiginjelguswaoeldal sulsjuel/suwinjod buiybi
juswysiginjalauswsoe|dal sulsjue|/suwnjod Buiybiy
Juswysiginyaiauswace|das sulsjue|/suwnjod Bunybiq
Juswysiginjaiusweoeldal sussjuel/suwnjod buiybi
juswysiginjaiauswisoe|das sulsjue|/suwnjod bunybi
Juswysiginjaiuswaoeldal sussjuel/suwniod buybi
juswysiginjaiauswsoe|das sulsjue|/suwnjod Bunybi
Juswysiginyaipuswaoe|das sulsjue)/suwniod bunybi
Juswysiginjaiusweoe|das sussjuel/suwn|od bunybi
juswysiginjaluswaoe|dal suisjue|/suwinjod Buiybiq
Juswysiqunjaipuswaoe|dal suisjue/suwinjod Buiybig
juswysiginyaipuswasoe|das sulsjue)/suwn|od Buiybi
Juswysiginyaiuswaoeldas sussjuel/suwn|od bunybi
juswysiginjalpuswisoe|dal sussjue|/suwnjod Buiybi
juswysiqunjaluswaoe|das sulsjuel/suwn|od bupybi
juswysiginjalauswsoe|dal sulsjuel/suwnjod Buiybiy
Juswysiqinjaluswaoe|das sulsjuel/suwn|od bunybi
juswysiqinjalpuswaoe|dal suisjuel/suwinjod bunybi
juswysiginjaiauswaoe|das sulsjuel/suwn|od Bunybi
Juswysiginjaijuswaoe|das sussjuel/suwnjod bunybi
juswysiginjalusweoe|dal sulejue|/suwnjod Buybi
juswiysiqinyalausweoe|dal sussjuel/suwn|od Buiybi
Juswysiqinaiuswaseldas sussjuel/suwn|od bunybiq
juswysiginjaipuswsoe|das sulsjue|/suwn|od Buiybi
Juswysiqunjaipusweoe|dal suisjue|/suwn|od Buiyybi
juswysiginyaipuswaoe|das sulsjue|/suwniod Bunybi
juswysiqinjaipuswaoe|das suiejuel/suwn|od bupybi
juswysiginjaiuswaoeldas sussjuel/suwniod buiybiq

lcyogl

dd HLIFNVYT S LS AHEVd NTNOLONINNIY Q¥ HLYOMSANYM ONILHOIT AHOLYHAD TIVHXNVA
1S HOIH HONOYHOE OL Y SHVIYAXOV1d - ONILHOIT LIFHLS ¥HVYMHLNOS 00ZEY

ad AIAOD OL SNAD INAVHMOTIIM - AYOd NOANO1 2V

AvOd 39d1dg TVLIdSOH 85€9 OL AVOY SLIYVYOUVIN LS $00EV ‘AVOY AISLYIHD 9LEV

¥ NOANOT OL AVM NNLNVHIN - ONILHOIT AVYOd NIAHON ¥2V

SO @¥ TTVH T73M OL IONVHOEILNI ¥OOHEAIY - ONILHOIT Y 431738 AVM HILSTIHOOY 2V
a4 3INNIAY ONI @4 AOOM SNHOT 1S OL T1IH SSIDUNE - INIWIOV1d3d FHIVNINNT Y AT THONIA LY
NT dIHSAQYOT OL LS HOIH NYHJVYTO - SIND NOWIWOD HOIM1NA @Y HSIANIAVYD 502V

ANV NITHEO OL A AIAOD - ONILHOIT AYOd NOANOT ¥ev.

add 3441700Vd OL AHOLVYHAD NTMYHVYd - VO a13i4yIv4 Zezy

SIND IAY SNNVAM OL G4 ¥SINITO 'ONILHOIT A 431734 AVM ¥3ILSTHOON 2V

ONILHOIT AYMENS LNOFVYANNOY NOILVYLS 13341S dT10

QY AYNELSY OL AVM LSHNHANAT - ONILHOIT @ SNIINDO 1S HOIH WYHMO3d 202V

1S AFTMYM OL DS LNOWHVY1D - ONILHOIT @Y T13MS09D LV ad ALID a¥ ITIAOLNId LOSY,

@y INNVSNVYT OL ad LHOSNOD - ONILHOIT AvOd SNIIND Z0zZV

HO0dE AFTH3ATE OL AYTLINTD ITVA AINLN - ONILHOIT TTIVA NOLJNVYHIOH £V

1S NOLN3d OL AVM MHOA - ONILHOIT AYOd ITUANOLNId L0SY

NT3AY OL T1IH MYVIANIA - ONILHOIT L33 LS HOIH INVHMO3d 202V

TTH L3341S IMNA OL LS LNV - ONILHOIT L3TFYLS HOIH HONOYO4d £V

SINO (IONVHLNI NYILSIM) 39018 S1STHd OL IAV A¥OLHITD - ONILHOIT AVOY ONOWHOIY "d3ddn 502V
QY NOILVLS OL AVM HSIAONIAVYO - L33YLS HOIH zZgey.

SO ad AFHSNE OL @Y SN33NO - ONILHOIT AVM NIATVIN £V

INNIAV 3AISTTENY OL Y 310DTHOA - SWO AVOH 039 ONILOOL AVOY ALINIYL v12Y

dd HOYNHOLSIYHD S02V OL Y NOQTANI1D-ONILHOIT T1IH WYHLYIHLS AVOX HOIH WYHLYIHLS £2V
TTIH SH3LO0HS £02V O1 AVOY VH-VH - AvOd ANIAYIY 502V

SO QY ANOWHOIY ¥3MOT OL 3DAl¥8 MIM - ONILHOIT AVOH HVINIHIO HLNOS 502V

SIND GY NOLHOIYE OL Y NOLHOINE - ININIOVTdIY FHIVNINNT AVM ONIHLYVYL €2

Q4 NOLSVd Ol Ay SNOLS3Hd - ¥ NOQAOHD zZezY

AHOLYYHAD FTVH WYHNILLOL OL ¥ON 907V SINO AYHOIH AYMANNOY ¥O9 0LV

ONILHOIT SdITS ANV NOILONNF 3NV 39INO0D £V

HINHOO MHVd AAAH OL HOHV JTGHVIN - ONILHOIT ANV MHvVd 20ZvY

(43N ADDVND OL WYHSIMIT) AYVANNOE HONOYHOSE - AYOY WYHLTI 012V 02V

AdVANNOE HONOYO4d OL INNIAY INHOENYHO - SSVd-A9 NOLSONIM €V

a4 HLHOMSANVYM OL @d NOOTV4 - SINO ANV SINTI ININ AVOY MHVd Y3ASHIL1vd S0zZeY

I XION3ddV

Page 57




ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
S8 A
ON
ON
OoN
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
SOA
ON
ON
ON
ON
oN
ON
ON
ON
ON
OoN
ON
ON
OoN
ON

Juswysiginjaiuswae|dal suisjuel/suwniod bunybiy
JuswysiginjaiausWaoe|dal sulsjue|/suwn|oo Bunybi
Juswiysiqinaiusweoe|dal sulajuel/suwniod Bunybiy
JuswysiqnjalusWaoe|dal sulajuel/suwn|od Buiybi
Juswysiqinjaiusaoe|dal suseuel/suwn|od Bunybi
Juswysiqinialusweoe|dal suisjue|/suwn|od Bunybi
Juswysiqiniaiuswiaoe|dal sulsjuel/suwn|od Bunybiy
Juswysiginjalauswasoe|dal suiajuel/suwn|od Bunybiy
jJuswysiqiniaiuswiaoe|dal susajuel/suwn|od Bunybiy
Juswysigqinjaiiuswaoe|dal sulajuel/suwn|od Buybi
Juswysignjalauswade|dal sulajue|/suwn|od Bunybi
Juswysiqnjaiuswaoe|dal sulajuel/suwn|od Bunybiy
JuawysIqnjalusWade|del sulajuel/suwn|od Buiybi
jJuswysigqinjaiuswaoe|del sulsjue|/suwn|od Bunybi
JuswIysIqInjalusWade|dal Sulajue|/suwnjod Buiybi
jJuswiysiqiniaiuswaoe|dal suiejuel/suwn(od Bunybiy
Juswysiqinjaiiuswaoe|dal suisjuel/suwn|od Bunybiy
Juswysiqinyaiuswace|dal sussjuel/suwniod Buiybiy
JuswysiqinialausWaoe|dal Sulsjuel/suwn|od Buiybi
Juswiysiqiniaipuswiaoe|dal susajuel/suwn|od Bunybiy
JuswysiqnjalusWade|dal Sulajuel/suwn|od Buiybi
Juswysiqinjal/Juswaoe|del sulajuel/suwn|od Bunybiy
jJusWysiqnjauswade|dal sulajuel/suwn|od Buybi
JuswysiginjaiJuswace|dal suisjuel/suwn|od Bunybiy
Juswysiginalauswase|dal sulsjuel/suwniod bunybiy
JuswysiqunjalusWaoe|dal suIajuel/suwn|od Buiybi
jJuswysiginjaiuswaoe|del suiajuel/suwn|od Bunybiy
jJuswysiqiniaiuswaoe|dal susajuel/suwn|od Bunybiy
JusWwysiqinjalAusWaoe|dal sulajuel/suwn|od Buybi
Juswysiginjaiuswiaoe|dal sulsjuel/suwn|od Bunybiy
Juswysiginjalsuswade|das sulsjue|/suwn|od Bunybi
Juswiysiglnjaluswade|dal sulsjue|/suwn|od Bunybi
jJuswysiginiai/Juswaoe|dal sulsjuel/suwn|od Bunybiy

jJuswysigqinjaiusweoe|dal sulsjue|/suwn|od Bunybi

lcio vl

HOVOYddY NYIHLHON TINNNL TIVMMOVIE 2LV

INNIAY IHL OL ad ITTIGLNOW - ONILHOIT SSVYdAL dNJdIS 02V

(SSVYdYIANN MOE) HOVOUddY NYIFHLYON TINNNL TIVMMOVYE ¢LVY

INV1 SLILLId OL ¥ANHOD SMOTIVO INNIAY NHIALSVI 2LV

1S 39ardg M3N OL 30V1d I1dINTL - SHVIYAMOV1E LNFAMNVEINT VIHOLOIA L12eey
ONILHOIT 3DAIdg SHVIHAMOVId 102V

(avOod NOILIGIHX3 OL VO ¥OIMEVYM) avOod T13MINOYD vV

IAVY MVd AINLNd OL (FONVHELINI NYILSTIM) 3DAIHE SLSIHd - ONILHOIT AvOd ANOWHOIY d3ddn S0c¢v
(INTHOS SLITHULS Y1139 INSH) — LITHLS AJOJNVLS 002EY

0493d 3AIS1NO - ONILHOIT AdvOod VIANI LSIM L9ZLV

O - MHOM TVIA3INTd SIND

INIOSIHO NOSIAaV OL L9d MHVd ANVTIOH - ONILHOIT AvOd ANVTIOH 022eV

1S aIN¥d OL 1S AI99V - ONILHOIT AvOod 39d1dg J43IMOL 001V

ay AINMOVH OL NOILYLS NOILONNF NOLSTVA - ONILHOIT AVOd ANVISONIM 0LV

ad ITUANOLNId OL a¥ AISNHOH - ONILHOIT 1S ¥3ddN ad AVMOTIOH LV

N1 T1IMITHOVHS OL ¥ MHVd NIAYHD - ONILHOIT 04 NOLONIMIN IHOLS T1IH QHOHINV.LS 01V
ONILHOIT 13341S aT10

1S TVIOHININOD OL IOV1d SNITIH LS - ONILHOIT L3FHLS F1VYOSdOHSIF 0LV

ay MuVd NOLONINNIM OL NTNOLONINNIY - ONILHOIT VO NOLONINNIN €2V

ONILHOIT 39dIdg HLIFINYT €0ZEY

SAVMENS ANY SdITS ONI - ONILHOIT LNOFVYANNOY HLHOMSANVYM L2V

INTOSTHO MuVd L0ZrPY OL 30V1d ¥3LSIONOTO PV - AVOd INOEITAYVYIN LOSY
SININIAOHANI TYLNIWNOHIANT AvOod IDdIdg ¥3IMOL 001V

¥a STTYM 40 IONIHd ONI ANV OL dN aY Movd YISHILLYE - ONILHOIT Y 390148 YISy L1lvd 0ceeY
SIND Y NIAHOW OL LS HOIH - ONILHOIT ad HOYNHOLSIYHO AYM NNLNVYHIN vV

TTH LSV OL 194 d MHOA - ONILHOIT AVM NOANVMS £12V

1S HOTTIONNOD OL OY M¥¥d NOLONINNIY - ONILHOIT AVOd MAN T1IMEF8INVYO 202V

1S NOLdIWYH OL ad NOLXIHE - ONILHOIT S11NE NOLONIMIN Qd MdVd NOLONINNIM €V
00d VIANI 1S¥3 OL @y aN3 3TN - ONILHOIT dvod L13a¥Ng S0CIVY

N1 ¥NOFHYHATOD OL MIVM Mdvd TIIMMOOLS - ONILHOIT AVOH NOLXIHE €2V

HOVYOYddY NOILONNF 3NV IGO0 OL 1d AYALSHON - ONILHOIT ITVA NOLdINYHIOH €V
NOLLY.LS NOWINOD INVHAVYTO OL NOILYLS TIIMMOOLS - ONILHOIT L33HLS HOIH WYHAVO €V
avod HOYNHOLSIMHO OL Sa9 AITIVA-ONILHOIT ad AHOIdd™ LS HOIH vV

ad T1IH SSYdNA OL AVM ATTdNd €2V - QYO Ad044VLS ¢Eev

I XION3ddV

Page 58




SOA
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
SoA
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON

SOA
SOA
SOA
SOA
SOA
SO
SOA

juswysiginjalpuswaoe|dss ainjonsjselsu] olel |
juswysiginjaluswaoe|dal ainjonijselu] oel |
juswysiginjalpuswade|das ainjoniselju] diel |
juswysiginjaiusweoe|dal ainjonijselyu] ougel )
Juswiysiginjaluswaoe|dal ainjonijselyu] owel |
Juswysiginjalpuaweoeldal ainjonijselu| oiel |
juswysiginjaluawadeldal ainjonuyselsu] olel |
Juswysiginjaiauswase|dal ainjonlisesu| ouel |
Juswiysiginjaljuswasejdal ainjonijselu| oel |
Juswiysiginjalauawisde|dal ainjonujselsu] olel |
Juswiysiqinjaljuswede|dal ainjonuselu| olel |
juswysiqinjalpusweoe|dal ainjonisesu| ouyel |
juswysiginjaljuswaoe|das ainjoniselsu] oiel |
jJuswysiginjaiuswede|dal ainjoniiselu| ouel |
Juswysiqinjaljuswaoe|dal ainjonisesu| ouel |
juswysiginjaluswase|dal ainjonuselsu] ouel |
Juswysiginjaiusweoe|dal ainjoniisesu| ouel |
juswysiginjaiauswade|dal ainjonujsesu| ouel |
juswiysiginjaluswaoe|dal ainjonJselyu] ouel |
Juswysiginjaiuswase|dal ainjonijselu| olel |
Juswysiginjalpuswade|das ainjonJiselju] el |
Jusweoe|dal sia)ays sng
juswaoe|das s19)ays sng
Juswaoe|dal sia)ays sng
Juswaoe|dal sis)ays sng
Juswsoe|dal si8)ays sng
juswaoe|dal si1a)ays sng
Juswaoe|dal siayays sng
Jusweoe|dal s19)|ays shg
Juswaoe|dal siayays sng
Juswaoe|dal s19)ays sng
Juswaoe|dal siayays sng
Juswaoe|dal sia)ays sng
Juswaoe|dal sis)ays sng

Lcio gl

AVO¥ HSIANIAVYD - INNIAY FHL - IAISHLNOS NOWINOD NVHAY1D
SONIM NIAZS - NISYE AHNS

JONVHLINT ISOHLIVM - AVOYd HOIH NIZHO AH404d00M

NOILVLS NOQAOQYHD 1SV A9 133¥HLS IDHY0ID

avod TTIHNYNG A9 WVYHNIXO39 1334H1S HOIH

aNNOglsSvY3  1SVY3 AvOod A31X39 A9 AvOod SNIIND

aVOd VIHOL1JIA A9 VO AT1X3g9

avOd NOLSNHOr A9 3NV TTIN AG NIFHD AY04A0O0OM AVOH HOIH
avOod HLId3 - LSIM AVO0d IOVIdAVIN - LSYI AVOH JOVIdAVIA
AVOd AYVANVLS - AVOd NY3LSIM - QY0 TYAOY MHvd

HINYOD SAVM FAIH - LV AVM QHOSLYM - (NYNL N) LY AVM HLHON LYIHD
HIV43SHOH - 13341S JONIHV1O - 390149 NOLSONIM

avOd S1VOHO A9 VO™ MOIMNIY

31NOY SSOHD LSIM 022V Ag dITS NO ANNOILSIM 07V (NLY)
ANV MOOLLVIN A9 INNIAY AT3I4HLHON

avod 390149 AI1SHOM - INVT ANIHLNOS

avOd NOSTAN - AVOYd HOIH HOIMNIZFYO - LS HOYNHO HOIMNIFHD - VO Y3340
INIEA AYMOTIVO - AVOYH NOILYLS

avOd QHO4MOId A9 AYMAYOHd

AVM NOON3H - AvVOd AT THONIA

133418 AVMJTVH ¥1229 - vOd LSHNH 222V - AvOd NOILYLS 22zY,
0¢-610¢ INNVHOOHd H3LT1IHS SNg VIYVY HLNOS

02-610¢ INNYEO0HUd HILTIHS SNg VIHV LSv3

0¢-6102 ININYHO0Hd Y3 LTIHS SN VIV LSIM

61-810¢ INNVHOOHd Y3 LT13IHS SNd VILY HLNOS

61-810C ININVIOOHd HILTIHS SN9 VIV 1Sv3

61-810¢ INNVHOOHd JILTIHS SNT VIHVY LSIM

0¢/61 SATING-3d JOLS sSng

0¢/61 M3AN dOLS snd

02/61 STYM3INIY Y3L13HS SNng

0¢/61 ANG-3d ¥3LT73HS Sng

0¢/61 SNOILOINNOD TVOIdLO3 T3 ¥ALTIHS Snd

02/61 SAON ANV TIONNOD H¥ILTIHS Sng

02/61 NOIS3A ONIYIINIONT 43L13IHS Snd

I XION3ddV

Page 59



ON
oN
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON

JusWwysiginjalpuswace|dal ainjoniseliu| olel |
Juswysiginjalpuswiaoe|dal 81NjONIISEIU| Olel |
JusWysIgqinjaljuswaoe|dal aINjonIISelu| Olyel |
Juswysiginjalauswisoe|dal 21njoniISelu| olyel |
Juswiysiginjaluswaoe|dal a1njoniisesu] olyel |
Juswysiginjalauswiace|dal a1njoNIISeIU| Olel |
Juswysiginjeliuswace|dal ainjonseu| oel |
Juswiysiginaluswiaoe|dal aInjoniiSesu| olel |
Juswysiginjalauawace|dal a1njonseu| oel |
JusWysIginjalausWwaoe|dal SINjoNJISelu| Olel |
JusWYsIgInjalauswaoe|dal SINJoNIISelU| Olyel |
Juswysiginalusiusoe|dal a1njoniisesu| olyel |
Juswysiginjalsusiuace|dal a1njonlisesu| oel |
Juswysiginjaluswiaoe|dal a1njoniisesul olel |
Juswysiginjalauswiaoe|dal a1njonliseuu| oel |
Juswysiginjalusuisoeldal 21njoNniiSelu| Olyel |
JUBWIYSIgINal/3uUSWS0E|dal SINJONIISBIU| Olyyel |
Juswysiginjaluswasoe|dal a1njoniisesu| olel |
Juswysiginjalsuswiace|dal a1njonliselu| ol |
Juswysiginjaluswiaoe|dal ainjoniisesul olel |
JusWysIginialjuswaoe|dal aINjonIISelu| olyel |
JusWysIginjalauswWaoe|dal aInjonJSeIU| Olel |
JusWYsIgInjaljuswaoe|dal aINjonISelu| Olel |
JusLIYsIginjal/ausLIsoe|dal 81NjoNIISBAU| Olel |
Juswysiginjaluswaoe|dal 8Injoniisesu] olel |
Juswysiginjalauawace|dal ainjoniisesu| oel |
Juswiysiginjalusieoe|dal 81NjoNIISeIU| Olel |
Juswysiginaliuswace|dal aInjonISe.u| olel |
Juswiysiginjaluswiaoe|dal ainjoniiseuu| oiygel |
Juswysiginjaluswaoe|dal aInjoniiSelu| olyel |
JusWYSIgqinjalauswWaoe|dal aInjoniselu| olyel |
JusWwysIginjaluswaoe|dal ainjonJSelu| olel |
JusLIYsIginjal/jussoe|dal aInjonJSeu| Olel |

JusWYSIgINjaljuswaoe|dal SINjonIISelu| Olel |

l¢jo 9l

AVM NIGINNA Ag 3NV ONIAYIA

avod IT13IELNOIN A9 INVT NIFIO €9¢9

avod 071390140d - VO Ydvd INJINOELSIM

3S0T0 IFHL ITONVL A9 AVOd AN3 LSV

JAIEA HIONVYHO A9 AYOH NOLNNA A9 AVM YTIANVIN

MHVYd VINILDO - INVT AHNEMOH - AVOd SINVHL 90V

(TOOHDS AYVINIYd AHOANVIN ¥YAN)  HLlvd NVINAOOM A9 AYM QHOANVIN
JINNIAY 39379 Ad INVT LOdAINOH

AVM WHV4 A9 AVOd AN3 HLNOS

avod YaANMONG ANV AvOod NIAHOd Ad 3NV 3HIV LiZeY

(#90/80 AIOVIdIY)  IAOHD ATIOH A9 ANV IAY GleeY

133491S vOoudNg13HLI AG AVOY 39dIdd v3sd3Ll1lve

avod dNVHISNIN A9 INVT IHLAEM

AVM HONVIN FHL A9 QYOd NOQAOYHD cECv

NOILVLS 3did TIVMTIIN A8 VO Add341SIM

700d ONINNIMS T1ENEND A9 LSV AVOd dITSINY §5v4

INNIAY LNNLSIHO A9 AVOH NVHNIVY ¥3ddN SV

AvOd vdayV - AVM NVIAId3N G501V

AVMAYOHE A¥041VD - ANV SYINOHL - INNIAY NYIAVYNYO - d A-041VO S0V
NOILV1S ANNOYDHYIANN MdVd SNONVI Ag INNIAY ATIIHINNOA A9 ANV HOHUNHOLIHM
AVM HONOTd 9029 - AvOd M3AN FHLIHYIHLOY 8022V - AVOd ¥3MO1 002V
avod SNIIND A9 NOAITGNIM AVMAYOHE IHL 612V

INNIAY LNOWIHV1O A9 AVOH NOLN3M

avod L¥N0D SNOYVE A9 AVOd N3 HLAON Zi€9

avOod NOQT3HS - L33H1LS "3AATIS

avod 113IMazg A9 AVMANNOY IHL

INNIAY NVYHAVM A8 AVOd NYHAVM

avod AISINNY A9 AVOd T1IMMO0LS

MHVd IA0HD A ANV OVLS

IAILYA SHOLDIA A9 ANNIAY ¥VO

INV1 LSIM - QYO VOIVINVYF 002V - AVOY MdVd MHVMHLNOS

avod NY3Id4 A9 IAH WVYHMO3d

AVMAYOHd ANT HOLVH A9 AVOd 39aldaxn

INVYT NINGTIM - IA0YD IM0HEAYT - AVOH MOHHVYH

I XIAN3ddV

Page 60




ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
OoN
ON
ON
ON
ON
OoN
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
OoN

Juswysiginjaluswaoe|dal ainjoniiselu| owel |
Juswysiginjaipuswade|dal ainjoniiselu| el |
JuswysiqinyaluaLiasoe|dal ainjoniiseu] oiuel |
Juswysiginjaluawace|dal a1njonisesu| o1el |
Juswysiginjaluawace|dal ainonseu| diel |
Juswysiginjalpuswaoe|dal ainoniiselu| el |
Juswysiginjalpuawace|dal ainjonselsu] diel ]
Juawysigingaluawade|das ainjoniselsu] olel |
Juswysiginjaiuswaoe|dal ainjonnselu| duel |
Juswysiginyaiuswae|dal ainjonliseu| ouel |
Juawysiginjaluawace|dal a1njonse.u| olel |
Juswysiginjaluswace|dal ainjoniseu| ouel |
Juswysiginjaluswace|dal a1njoniselu| el |
Juswysiginjaluswaoe|dal ainjoniselu| el |
Juswysiginjalpuswaoe|dal ainjoniselu| olel |
Juswysiginjaiauswade|dal ainjonsesu| ouel |
Juswysiginjaluswace|dal ainjonlisesu| ouel |
Juswysiginyaipuswace|dal 8injonliSeliu| olel |
Juswysigingaluawae|dal ainoniseLU| duel |
Juawysiginjaiuswaoe|dal ainjoniselu| ouel |
Juswysiginjalpuswaoe|dal ainjonselu| dlel |
Juswysigingaiuswaoe|dal ainjonisesu] olel |
Juswysiginjaluswaoe|dal ainjonlisesu) ouel |
Juswysiginjaluswaoeldal ainjonlisesu| ouel |
JuaWysIginjaluawace|dal ainjonsesu| diel |

Juswysiginjaluswaoe|dal ainjoniisesul ouel] |

Juswysiginjaluswace|dal ainjoniselu| digel |
Juswysiginjalusuade|dal a1njoniiselu| el |
Juswysiginjaluswaoe|dal ainoniselu| ouel |
Juswysiginjai/auswace|dal ainjonliSelu| ouel |
Juswysiginjaluswade|dal ainjoniisesu| ouel |
Juswysiginjaipuswaoe|dal ainjoniisesu| ouel |
Juswysiqinjaiauswace|dal 8INjonIiSelu| olel |

Juswysiqingaiauawace|dal aInjoniiseu| dIuel |

Lcio Ll

(1Z€/40 SYW)  3NNIAV HLXIS A8 QYOY MOHHVH

QYoM NVOSIONVA A8 QYOY 038 ONILOOL

JOVHHIL ¥OOLSAOOM - QVOY XO0Q VIANI LSV §1V

QYO SSOYO A8 OYOY TIIMOIHO

T1H SHONHSNY AS QVOY SHYON3AIS

ANNOELSYE  QVOM QHOALYM A8 GYOY NOLNIM

M¥vd NIAVEO - AISTIIH ¥0pY - QYO QT3ILNIYE - QYOY TINGHOLYNM
3NV VIHSLVIHM AS QYOY HLIENYT HLNOS £0ZY

ANNOS LSIMHLYON  SSIDOV VNI A8 AVM FHIdINY,

JAINA ATTHIATE - INNIAVY TIVLSINIOH - INVT OIS

QVON NOLONINYIT A8 JAIHA Muvd WYNOVQ

0ZON 3AISLNO  M3IATIIH A8 3NNIAY 390071 HLNOS

QYO SYTOHOIN LS A8 AVM SYTOHOIN 1S

INNIAY SNOSVIN A8 NOTAOHO 133¥LS HOIH

QYoM AMNSTISYH A€ L33ULS ¥IATIS

1334LS NOSHVId A8 QYOY ANVISOND

133¥1S YOOuS AG 13341S N3

IAINA FTVAHSY AG INVT SAUVIN S

NOLLVLS ST TYSNIX AS QYO INAVTHIENVHO

JAISHLNOS  GvOY INOLSIAAIE AS QYOY NYINOQI YO AS OYOH NIAWYD
ONNOSLSVS  L3FWLS NOLNVO A8 QVOY %00 VIANI 1SV3

LIS e AS QVOH Mivd VISHIL1vE 5028V

SNIQHVO THOWAIM A8 QYOH AYMOTIOH

QYO ¥NOWAIS AS QY0¥ NOGNOT

ONNOSHLYMON  L3FMLS AMVANNOS A8 QVON ANIHLYON

INVT HOHNHO A8 QY0¥ HOIH 0001

QVON O0AVINTYHL A LIFULS HOIH WYHAYTO

ANNOSHLNOS VM INITIVHOD A8 AVM HONVIN MOYYVH

QVOY 133145983 A9 AVMAVYORE QOOMITHORO

ANNOEHLMON  133HLS HOIH ILYOHOIH A8 AVOY HLNON

3OV1d SNNINYA.L - SNIQHYO HONIASOHS - QY J0VIVd INVHONINONG
HLYON QVOY WYHNIVY AS NOILVLS SNE HLVAH 334.LNOO3E A8 INYT JOOM
INNIAV 3LVOITY 12V - QYO NOWNOD NOLLNS 6228 - QYO SAT3I4aT0 £12Y
QYO Y¥Vd IMVA - QYO 39aiE AINLNd

I XION3ddV




ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
OoN
N
ON
OoN
ON
ON
ON

Juswiysiginjaluswaoe|dal ainjoniiselyu] olyel |
JusWYsIgnalausWwace|dal SINJoNnIISelyu] Jlyel |
Juswysiginjalsuswaoe|dal aInjoNnJiSeyU| Olyel |
Juswysiginjaluswiaoe|dal 8INjoNIISELU| DIyl |
Juawysiginjalpuswace|dal a1njonliseu| oiyel |
Juswysiginjaluswace|dal aInjonliseyu| oiel |
Juswysiginaiauswace|dal aInjonlisesyu] oiel |
Juswysiginjaifuswace|dal aInjonlisesyu| olyel |
Juawysiginaluswaoe|dal 81njoNIISeU| dijel |
Juswysiginjaluswace|dal 8InjoNIISeLU| D1yl |
Juswysiginjaiauswace|dal aInjonLSesU] diel |
Juswysiginaiauswace|dal aInjonSesu] oiel |
Juswysiginjaluswaoe|dal aInjonliSe.yu| olyel |
uawysiginjaluswace|dal 81njoNnIISeIU| dlyel |
Juswysiginaluswace|dal a1njonlseyu| olel |
Juswysiginjaiuswace|dal aInjonliSesyu| olel |
Juswysiginjaiuawace|das a1njonlisesu] olel |
Juswysiginjalauawace|dal aInjonlisesu] olel |
JuswysIqInalausWade|dal ainjoniselju] olyel |
Juawysigingaluswaoe|dal 8INjoNIISEU| Olel |
Juswysiginaluswace|dal aInjonJiSeu] olel |
Juswysiginjal/auswWade|dal aInjonSeU] dlel |
Juswysiginjaluswisoe|dal 8InjonIiSeyu| olyel |
Juawysiginjaluswiaoe|dal aInjonIiSeU| Olel |
Juswysiginalauswase|dal aInjonIISelu| dlyel |
Juswysiginjalauswace|dal aInjonISesU] dipel |
juswysiginjaiauswace|dal aINjoNnIISeIu| Olel |
swysiginaluswaoce|dal aInjoNnIISeLU| Olyel |
Juswysiginjalauswace|dal 2INjoNnIISeu| diel |
JuswysigInjelAUsWade|dal aINJoNIISeIU| Olyel |
swysiginaluswaoe|dal aInjoniiSesu] olyel |
Juswysiginjalauswaoe|dal a1njoniisesu| ogel |
Juswysiginyelauswace|dal aInjonlsesu] diel |

Juswysiginjaljuswiaoe|dal 8InjoNIiSELU| Olel |

lciogl

avod LSaM LYIHD - dVOoY LYNO0D NOLLNS

AONNOEHLYON  avOod A3T3ATIHO A9 AVOd HLid3

avod ¥3dSNd A9 AYM STIIHNMOA

13341S HOYNHO NOLDNIMIN IHOLS #0149 - 133HLS HOIH NOLONIMAN IHOLS 0LV
SNIAYYD HNOWAIS Ag AVOH ANOWHOIY

13341S H31dVYHO A8 AYOY 39dIdg TTVYHXNVA

avOod INHOGSO A9 VO LNNLSIHO A9 AVYOH ANOWHOIY

avod NVINILNI4 A9 AVOd NVYHJY10

SSVd-Agd AQVIHUO0A - AVOY VOIVINVF 002V - 13341S A394aV ¢0cd
avod NOWIOD - avod T1TIH TN - INVT SMO0d

INOHD AYNGHOIH L0ZLY - AVOd SINVd LS 6611V

JOV1d NOLS334 - SNIAHVYO JONIASOYO - 13341S AdNdg3
NITFHO TTIMMD0LS Ag AVOd T1IMMO0LS

avod WVHOLIN A9 NOILVYLS ONILOOL A9 AVOd NOANO

AVM J3HLHOYIE A9 AVOd m_m_\,_OOm_Dn_M\/

TOOHOS L40HOSNIAVYH A9 AVOH SANVTMVO Ad INVT LANYVE
ANNO9lSYd 13341S JHVIN A9 AVOd NOLAVTO KMEOMU

avod NIHHVYM A9 AVOd wx<Ozm>m_%a

avod ITVAVINEVY A9 NOILVYLS FONVINGAY @ 3did A9 AVOd SO0V ZLEV
JHVYNOS M¥Vd VIHOLOIA A9 NOILVLS FdId AvOd NVINOY sl d
JNNIAV AHOIdd A9 AVOH AHOIdd ¥0SV

HIANYOO SAVM FAIL - AVM HLHON LVIHO PV - AVM QHO41LVM LV
IAOHD NIANIT - AY0d LHOSNOD - ANVT AVYIHNNN

133491S A4VYNO3T A9 AVOH ALID

aNNOglsvya Aavod SATFI4HOENHO A9 AVOY INVHNIMO3dG
3SOTO MOAVAN - AVMSSOHD - IAIHA ANVHEO

¥a 100434vea WVITIIM - V1 AvILSNTE - TTIH ISHOHILIHM - Avod WYHONILLONW
Mdvd W13 - AYOd HOHNHD

133418 T13ANVS Ad AVOd OO Td3LVYM

avOod Add3d Ad INV1 NOLONIdd=4d

FHLINID TVOIAIN A8 AVOH NVHNIVY d3ddNn

SN3IAYVYD LNIWINVENT A9 INIFWMNVYENT YISTIHO CleeY
JAISHLYON NOWNOD WYHAVYTO A9 AVOd ONO'

avod NOLTdVYHD Ag AvOd ¥3A0a aT1o

I XION3ddV




ON
OoN
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
OoN
OoN
ON
ON
ON
OoN
ON
ON
ON
ON
OoN
ON
ON
ON
ON
OoN
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
oN
OoN
ON
ON

Juswysiginjaluswace|dal ainjoniiselu| el |
Juswysiginjaluawae|das ainjonijseyu) oluel |
juswysiginjaiauswase|dal ainjoniselsu| oel |
Juswysiqinjalauawade|dal a1njonuseu| dlel |
Juswysiginjaluswade|dal ainjoniselu| el |
Juswysigingaipuswaoe|dal ainjonselu| el |
Juswysiqinjaluswae|dal ainjonliselu| olel |
Juswysiqinjalpuawase|dal ainjoniiseu| oiel |
Juswysiginjaluswade|dal ainjonisesu| el |
Juswysiginjaluswaoe|dal ainjoniiSeu| el |
Juswysiginjaluswace|dal ainjonselu| ouel |
juswysiqinyaluawaseldal ainjoniiselu| olel |
Juswysiginjalpuswade|dal ainjonisesu| olel |
Juawysiginjaiuswade|dal ainjoniiselu| el |
Juswysiginyaluswade|dal ainjoniiselu| dlel |
Juswysiginjaluswade|dal a1njoniselyu| olel |
Juswysiginyaiuswace|dal ainjonlisesu| ouel |
Juswysiginjaluswace|dal ainjoniselu| oel |
Juswysiginjaiuswaoe|dal ainoniselu| el |
Juswysiginjaiuswae|dal ainjonliSelu| dlel |
Juswysiginjaljuswase|dal ainjoniselu] oiel |
uswysiginjaiuswase|dal ainjoniseu| oel |
Juswysiginjaluawaoe|dal ainjoniselu| el |
Juswysiginjalpuswade|dal ainjoniiselu| el |
Juswysiginjaluawaoe|dal ainjoniselsu] olel |
Juawysiginjaiuawaoe|dal ainjoniselu] oiyel |
Juswysiginjaipuswae|dal ainjoniiselu| olel |
Juswysiginjaluswace|dal ainjoniseu| olel |
Juswysiginjaluswace|dal ainjoniseu| olgel |
Juswysiginjaiauswaoe|dal aINjonIISelU| oiel |
awysiginjaluswaoe|dal ainjoniiselu| Juel |
Juswysiqinyaluawase|dal ainjoniiselu] ogel |
uswysiqinjaluswade|dal ainjoniselu| ouel |
Juswysiginjaluswade|dal ainjoniiselu| olyel |

lcjoel

ANIHIA AINGSNYT - INNIAY TTIHSONIM

avOd 433N3IAN3F A9 YO ANOWHOIIY 43MO1

SS3JIV JLV.LST AQHVYEINOT - AVOd IDAI¥GXN 0Z0vY
SNIAYVYD 344170034 A9 AVOH MOOHENYHO

1S HOIH V3S4d311Vv4d 022€V - A4 NOOJTV4 L0ZEV - QY MHOA - QY Mdvd Y3ISHIL1vd G0ZEY
133418 T13SSVY1 A9 AVOY dVOTV4AVHL

T1IH NIAHOW A9 avOd WYHSIMIT

avOd NVINHON 8029 - AVOY HOIH HOIMNIIHEO 902V

ANV HOHUNHD - AYOH HOIH ANOLSNOLAIT LIV

avOd NVHNIAAS - AvOod AF1SIT1EIM

AvOd IHN0HEIINTd - QYO MOIMAVYM

JAIFMA SSTINVr LS €29 - AV0d INAT 1139 6229

JONVHOHILNI FOVTIIA NOLONIAAY - INV1 IDA0T
ANVYTAOOMINYENG - AYOd INAITTIE - AVOY ALINIYL

HLHYON NOWWOD WYHLVYIYHLS - YO HOIH NVHLY3YLS mNnKu
133H1S HONIASOUO HIddN - ANV M}

JNNIAY dVINTVYHE - 133H1S NOLNIVND - INY1 NIASY3IN mwov%
aNNO4LSvI 3INV13I9A01 A4 ><>>D._m_m

aNnog.lsv3a JFHIN3D SSVANOD A9 AVOYH HLvE vV

AVM 1d439NVO A8 AVOY MdVd IM00Hgdid

avod TIIHMYO A9 Av0Od 39didd AINLNd

avod AdNGT3IN A9 AVOd NOSIaay

avOd 43NOANYTT A9 ANV LSV

avOd AFHLNOS A9 AVOd NOLSONIM

CLEV AVOYd SONIX A9 LSV3 AVOY NOLONITHVH

AvOd NOLTVHSHYO A9 ANVT NOAQAOHD Z0ZevY

aVOd MdVd HONVIN A9 AvVOd aHO4INOY

avOod XV4dIv4 A9 VO NVINLHOIM

AVM d13144d1Vd A9 AVOd IAOYD ILODAO0OM LETY

AvOd VIHOLOIA A9 AvOd NOANOT LL2V

avod 0391vvd Ag9 IA0HED AYNGHOIH

ANNOEHLNOS HLNOS MYVd WYHSIM3T A9 L33HLS HOIH WYHSIMIT L2V
SNIAYVYO F44ITONIVYHM A9 AYOH SSIHdAD A€ T1IH AOOMHON HLNOS
avod VIOYVYIN A9 AvOd NOLNNA

I XION3ddV



ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
S9A
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
OoN
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
OoN
ON
ON
oN
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON

Juswiysiginialuswasoe|dal a1njoniiseu| Olel |
Juswysiginjalpusuiaoe|dal a1njoNnIiSe.yu| olyel |
Juswysiginjaluswiace|dal aInjonIISeLU| dlyel |
Juswysiginjalauswiace|dal aInjonisesu| olel |
uswysiginalauswace|dal ainjoniiselju] duel |
Juswysiginjaluswaoe|dal aInjonIiSeuu| diel |
Juswysiginjaluswiace|dal a1njoniiseu| olel |
Juswysiginjalsuswaoe|dal a1njonsesu| dlyel |
Juswysiginjaijuswaoe|dal a1njonJiSesu| olyel |
Juawysiginaluswace|dal a1njoniiselu] olyel |
Juswysiginjaiuswace|dal aInjonliseu| olyel |
Juswysiginjaiauswace|dal ainjonliselu] olel |
Juswysiginjaluswiaoe|dal a1njoniisesu| oel |
JusWysIginjaluawae|dal aINjonSelyu] olyel |
Juswysiginjalauswace|dal ainjonssesu] oiel |
Juswysiginaluswaoe|dal a1njoniiseu| oljel |
Jswysiginjaiuswaoe|dal 81njoNnIISeU| diel |
JusWYsIgINaljusaoe|dal SINJoNISeIU| Olel |
swysiginjalusuiaoe|dal 81njoNnIISeU| d1el |
Juswysiginjaiuswiace|dal a1njonlsesu| oiel |
Juswysiginjaisuswace|dal aInjonsesu] oel L
Juawysiginjalusisoe|dal a1njoniisesul olyel |
uswysiginjaluswiaoe|dal a1njonIisesu] oel |
Juswysiginjaluswiace|dal aInjoNnliSeyu] oiel |
juswiysiginialauswaoe|dal ainyoniseliu] olel |
Juswiysiginalpuswasoe|dal 81NjoNIiSeIU| Olyel |
JusWysIginjaluswace|dal aINjonIISelu] Olel |
Juswysiginjeliuawace|das ainjoniisesu] oiel |
Juswysiginjaljuswiaoe|dal aInjonIiSesu| olel |
Juswysiginjalauswace|dal ainjoniisesu| oel |
Juswysiginaluswaoe|dal ainjonIiSesu| olel |
Juswysiginjaluswace|dal a1njonISeu| oel |
Juswysiginjaiauswace|dal aInjonSesU] olel |
Juswysiginaluswaoe|dal aInjoNnIISeIu| diel |

1¢ 40 0¢

AVMAVYOHE - AVOY ANVIHOIH - AYM ©d39SNYV

13341S TvOSVYd - AvOod XOJTIM - AVOd HLHOMSANVYM 9€0EV
133418 MO0 - 13341LS S3INVA

avOod d31X0¥9D - Av0d Mdvd MOTdNHL

SS300V LNINJOTIAIA - AYOd NOTAOHD - AVM AT TdNd
390149 M3M - AVOH HOIH MOIMSIHO - AV0d 39aldd M3XM Slev
AvOod AOOMLNVHE - AvOd HOIH WVYHNILLOL 0L0LY
ONISSOHD AVMINYHL - AVOY AT3I4LHVH - AVOHd NOLSONIM
NOWWOD HOIMTNA G02V - ANV dIHSAHO1 912cV

AVM NOAAVM - AVM TVIHIdINL - AV AFTdNd €2V

HIMOL VIN - AV0d A¥VYHOHO AYYIHO - IAOHO IFINODSIAAY - AVOod 3dIN0DSIady
ANNOALlSVY3 L3IFHLS Y0344V A9 AVOd ITUANOLNIM
133491S TIVAT - L33HLS H13AVZIT3 - 3H4VYNOS NOLv3

Av0Y Ydvd IHOON A8 AvVOd AOOMHVH

3SO1D LYVYMIALS A9 INNIAVY MVO

JOOHOS SLNVANI ANV HOINNP T1IH 39N00D A9 LSIM ANV mm_\,_OOM
avod AITIIAVM Ad TTIH |_.___>_DZ_>m$

3S0710 AdVNYVd Ad IAIEA ZOm_._n_O_ma

avoyd ¥3LSIHIT A9 INNIAY 39001

INNIAY FLOJLSVYI A9 INNIAY NITFHO HLIXOH

JOV1d HONOYO0LSS3g A9 13341S HONOHOESS3d

avOod HIVNOIVED A9 T1IH 3STNL

JINNIAVY NOLJINOD A8 AVOH AOOMLINIHE d3addn

393TT0D ONIYIAVH A9 AVOH NIFHO HOIFTAAY

3SOTO NOLONITIV A9 133H1S HOIH NOA3TdNIM

ANNOELSY3 SNIAAYVYD HOANL A9 INVT ALHOAS

JA0HD IHIAIANTIG A9 L33HLS HOIH NOAITdINIM

avoyd TIVANYS A9 AvOd NIANVO

ANNOELSIM FHVYNOS SIDHO0ID LS A9 AVOd dONIASOHO
avod SINVE1V LS Ag9 NIFHO A404d00M AVOd HOIH

avod INYO0L13S A9 AVOd NIFHO SANNOd

aNNO9LlSY3  INNIAVY NHOMZLi4 A9 13341S HOIH 0001V
3dIS SYMNIT A9 AvOd 3LOONId

/M (IAISLSTIM) THVYNDS SIAYVMAI A9 13FHLS HOIH NOLONISNIM SLEV

I XIAN3ddV




lcio e

ON
oN
SBA
ON
ON
ON
SBA
ON
ON
OoN
oN
ON
SOA
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON
ON

JusWysIqIngaljusaoe|dal ainjonJiselju| diel L
JusWIYsIqIngalAusWaoe|dal aInjonselju| dljel |
JusLWYSIqINa)/AusWaoE|dal 8njonJiSelU| dlel ]
jJusLysiqinyluswaoe|dal ainjonyiseu dilel L
JusLySIqINa)usWaoe|dal anjonJiselu| dlel
Juswysiqinglpuswaoe|dal ainjoniselu| oljel |
JuswysiqInyelusWaoe|dal 81njonJiselul dljel
JuSWYSIqINaIAUSWSoe|dal SINJONIISEI4U| Jlel L
JusWYsIqINaIAUSWSoE|da) SINjoNJISEU| Dlel |
JusWysIqIngaluaWISoe|dal SINJONJISELU| Jlel |
JusWYSIqIN}aIAUaWSo.|da) SINJONIISEHU| Dljel L
JusWYSIginialAusWaoe|da) ainjoniselu| dljel L
JusWYsIqInaIuaWaoe|da) SINjoNJISeu| el |
JuBWYSIqINaIAUBWSoE|da) SINjoNJISElU| Jel |
JUBWYSIqINaIAUaWSoE|da) SINjoNJISeIU| diel L
JusWYsIqINaIAuUaWSoe|dal SINjoNIISElU| el L
JuSWYSIqINaIAUSWSoE|da) SINjoNIISeU| el |
JusLysIqInyal/jusaoe|dal 2InjonJiSeu| dijel
JuswysIqINylusWaoe|dal aInjonJiselu| dljel L
JusWYsIqIngalusWadE|dal 2injoniSelju] dljel |
JuswysIqInialuaWwaoe|dal ainjonliseyu| dljel L
JusWysiqnialAusWade|dal InjoniiSelju| Olel L
JuBWYSIqINaIAUSWSoE|da) SINjONJISeLU| el |
JuBWIYSIqINgIAUBLISoE|dal 8I1NjoNIISEl U] Dlijel |

JuswysiqinaiAusWaoe|dal ainjonyiselyu| dlel L

avod IYANIH - 1334LS 1SV - AvOod LN3IX d10 ¢V (NLY)

133418 INOd - 133418 INVOIS

SAYMIAIL - INNIAY ONINNIA - VO AHO44VLS - AVM A3 TdNd

avOH Myvd TIANANL - YO XOONXOIHE - AYOH NOILONNF - avod Ss31d04
133418 TIVHXNVA - NV NOLONINNIM

avod AOOMONITIOD - AvOd Sa1314ano Ziev

avod HONVIN NOLSOE - AvOd 1S3M LVIHD v

JONVHOYILNI IOVTTIA NOLONIAAY 40 HLNOS 3NV m_muDO%m

IAOHD HILNND 0ZZEY - AvOH NYHNYNGHSY - dVOd YIN3AV.L - avod SONIM 80€V A_>_._.<n
NITYD FOVLLOD - AVM ZO._.&_>_<I._.DO%

avod NOLY3AN 8lev - vOod NVHONINd3Y

ay SIWIM - AvOd TLOOHLHON - VO NOLJAVH - AvOd TINANIM - QYO ISHOHILIHM
avoy AINMOVH - AvOd HLYIH IDAIHgINYO - AVM SdOHSIF

avod F1dVIN AS AVOd AFTHINY

1ITH1S MHVYd NOLONITSI - 13THULS ATT1AMIE - AVO TO0dHIAIT gied

NOLLY.LS SAVND ATHHUNS A9 AVOH 10 FHLIHYIHLOY

(ONISSOYD a3d TYNOOVIA) INYTNOLONINNIM ¥0ZeY - AVOd NOLONINNIX €2V
avoy MYHSMOVTE - QYO AFTONOT - L3THLS HOIH ONILOOL eV

INVTONOT - VO VASTVYHSHVIA - LITHLS ¥IA0A LVIHO - 133491S HOIH HONOHO4d
ay L9 WYHOITT - IAY ATOHNYILS - Y HOIH WYHLYIYLS - TIIH NVHLVY3YLS

avod INOSHNYHE Ag INVT FHOV LieeY

avod YNITOO - SANV1 NIFHO S0V

IN3OSIHD NVYINLLAd - 1S HOIH Av3LSNNTd 902V - ad avaLSNid 90evY
ANNOSHLYON  AVOH MNITAg AVOY S3ANIVLS

1Z21/2Z ONIOYId3Y - AvOd WYHVHD Ag dOLS snd - avod a3idLdvH §8cd

e 65

L XION3ddV



Page 66



L340}

(ou)
r w i . F ) e o Tl 7% u&cmEm_aE‘_ 108(o.d Jolepy i [emausy ..w.?.@
(-ou) psoejdai sis)e slajeus
0S¢ 0S¢ 0S¢ 0S¢ ocl p | JI8ys pue sdojg sng
b= o N I B ~ (‘ou) paysiqinyal ‘ ‘spuejg
¢ ¢ 4 4 spuejg/suonels pue suoije)s sng
) ) R v o =
4} 6 oL Gl pasiulepow suopounp sjeubig oiyyes ]
< 4 4 l Vad) sjauunjt

paysiginjas wasAs [suun |
! ) . N (ou) paysiqunged| i
L L 4 suoels Buidwing uonels Buidwng
L l ey Slald 18A1Y

paysiginial sisld Jonry
/ e 9 g (ou) paysiginial sain)onins sain}onss
_ B _ : - s . i (ou)| E———
08S'L 00cC'| eve L 19049 A paoe|day/paysiqinsel sadig abeureaqg
¢ . ’ " ‘ i’ i (w) mwm dal/pe m_ inje E&www
LLe'L 000} ocl L 0clL'L padejaal/paysiqinjey JulenSay 29Iy
\1:. o i g ‘ i & e Amccv Umom_gm._ , m:‘_l\wﬂ
$89' 08Z'L 00¥'t 00z’ 8eL R i Laptsiacmi BuBI
000°2€ 00062 000's2 000'0L (;w) pamauay sAemjoo4
000'00¥% 000'00¢ 000°'0S¢ 000°0S¢ 000°9¢ ANEV padeunssy sAemabele)
Tt I, b T sl i , - uonuaAIy|
0z ozl MHOM [eoBuD Aisjes gden Jonn

| {ALXATA €elteoe A4 YA TA L2/020c 0c/61L0C
ndino 13ssv
Jeaj

sainbij Ue[d SSauisSng JSoje| oy} uo paseq syndjno Jolew pajedionuy

¢ XION3ddV

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 68



Agenda Item 5

GREATERLONDONAUTHORITY LONDON

Subject: Quarter 1, 2019/20 GLA Group
Monitoring Reports

Report to: Budget Monitoring Sub-Committee

Report of: Executive Director of Secretariat Date: 11 September 2019

This report will be considered in public

1. Summary

1.1 This report sets out, as appendices, the individual monitoring reports submitted by the Greater
London Authority (GLA) Group on its finance and performance issues for Quarter 1 of 2019/20.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the Sub-Committee notes the monitoring reports for Quarter 1 of 2019/20.

3. Background

3.1 At its meeting on 21 May 2019, the Budget and Performance Committee agreed to refer
automatically to the Sub-Committee for the 2019/20 Assembly year quarterly monitoring reports
from the GLA and functional bodies.

4, Issues for Consideration

4.1 The bodies submitting financial reports are: the GLA; the Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime,
(MOPAQ); the London Legacy Development Corporation (LLDC); Transport for London (TfL); the
London Fire Commissioner (LFC); and the Old Oak and Park Royal Development Corporation
(OPDQ).

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk

Page 69




4.2  The monitoring reports submitted by the GLA Group on finance and performance for Quarter 1 of
2019/20 are included as follows:

Appendices Ta-1e — GLA Q1 2019/20 Performance and Finance Pack;

Appendix 2 — LLDC Corporate Performance Report Quarter 1 2019/20;

Appendix 3 — TfL Quarterly Performance Report, Quarter 1 2019/20;

Appendix 4 — LFC Financial Position as at the end of June 2019;

Appendix 5 - OPDC Finance and Performance Monitoring Report, Quarter 1 2019/20; and
Appendix 6 - MOPAC (to follow).

5. Legal Implications

5.1 There are no direct legal implications arising from the report.

6. Financial Implications

6.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from the report.

List of annexes to this report:

Appendices Ta-1e — GLA Q1 2019/20 Performance and Finance Pack;

Appendix 2 — LLDC Corporate Performance Report Quarter 1 2019/20;

Appendix 3 — TfL Quarterly Performance Report, Quarter 1 2019/20;

Appendix 4 — LFC Financial Position as at the end of June 2019;

Appendix 5 — OPDC Finance and Performance Monitoring Report, Quarter 1 2019/20; and
Appendix 6 — MOPAC (to follow).

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers: None

Contact Officer: Lauren Harvey, Committee Assistant

Telephone:

E-mail:

020 7983 4383
lauren.harvey@london.gov.uk

Page 70




Appendix la

Chief Officer's introduction: GLA Q1 2019/20 Performance
and Finance Pack

Members of Budget & Performance Committee

| attach the GLA Q1 performance and finance pack. You will see it looks different to the pack
from previous quarters and | lay out how and why it is different.

| have spent the past few months looking more closely at performance management and
reporting across the GLA, with the objective of ensuring that we take a consistent approach to
this in all areas. At the same time, teams have been asked to profile their projected spend
across the financial year on a quarterly basis at a much greater level of detail than previously, so
that we can consider performance in delivery and financial terms in a much more integrated
way.

| have made these changes with the full support of the Mayor’s Chief of Staff to help ensure
that the Corporate Management Team are much better sighted on the detail of performance
across the GLA and therefore better able to support the Mayoral administration in the tracking
of delivery and discussions about mitigating actions when required. | am hoping that Budget &
Performance Committee members, as well as other Assembly Members, will find these refreshed
arrangements helpful too.

All of this represents quite a change from our previous arrangements and has taken some
substantial effort by teams to achieve. We are not yet quite where | want us to be and the
papers you have here for Q1 are reflective of the transition we are making. We will be fully
there by the time you see the Q2 papers. | am very happy to discuss this Q1 set with you so |
can take your views into account as we improve these reports further.

You have in this Q1 pack:

¢ 10 new performance dashboards
Between them, these ten dashboards cover the large majority of GLA activity — and
extend significantly beyond the coverage of the performance dashboards you have seen
before. They cover: Communities & Social Policy; Culture & the Creative Industries;
Education & Youth; Environment; Housing & Land; Health; Planning; Regeneration &
Economic Development; Skills & Employment; and Team London & Sport. They are
single A3 pages reporting against key aspects of 19/20 delivery and associated risks
and issues. Dashboards covering the Human Resources and Organisation Development,
Facilities Management and Technology Group units will be in the Q2 pack.

The dashboards also lay out the projected spend profiles for each area, by quarter, and
spend against these profiles for Q1. We are doing further work on these financial
pictures in the dashboards to be clearer not only about the accuracy of the profiling
(recognising that this is a new process and there will be some learnings for colleagues),
but also about the reasons for variances from projected profile which we do want to
include in the dashboards from Q2. We will soon have the right posts in the finance
team to support this work, following the changes on which | consulted the Oversight
Committee in July.

Page 71



¢ Finance report
At the moment, this remains the same as previous reports and does, as previously, lay
out where there are spend variances. As | have said above, the key variances will be
contained in the dashboards from Q2 and this finance report will then provide a higher-
level overview.

e Corporate Health Performance Indicators
This remains the same as previous reports, although we continue to refine the
indicators.

The goal in producing these new dashboards is to provide direct visibility on performance with a
focus that wasn’t possible with the large packs previously circulated; too much effort went into
production and assurance of the pack rather than considering its contents.

Necessarily, this means that static or seldom changing content such as the definition of
performance indicators and their relationship to overall objectives are not included on the
dashboards. To document this information and enable the creation of the dashboards, we have
produced new Unit Plans, to a common format across the GLA. These build on the 2019/20
budget document, of course, but contain considerably more detail. Progress (or otherwise)
against them is the responsibility of Executive Directors, with their teams, and is reported in the
dashboards. We are considering how best to make this information available in a way that
recognises the often complex relationship between the work of individual GLA Units and cross-
cutting Mayoral objectives, and without slipping back into producing the large packs we are
trying to move away from. We are happy to provide information to Assembly Members as
required to support scrutiny of the dashboards and our performance.

| hope all this is clear. As | have already said, | am more than happy to talk all this through.

Mary Harpley
Chief Officer

Page 72



Appendix 1b

Greater London
Authority (GLA)

Finance Report
Quarter 1 2019-20

Q1 2019/20 GLARAagre/Bport (version to Committee Services 16 August)



1.

1.1

Full Year

Full Year

Introduction

The revenue and capital forecasts (in gross terms) for the year are shown in the table
below. A more detailed commentary can be found at Section 2 (Revenue) and Section 3
(Capital), to which the latest reserves forecast is appended. Details at a programme level
of performance against profiled expenditure as at Q1 are included in the suite of ten
dashboards which form part of this reporting pack. The GLA’s Adult Education Budget
(AEB) for 2019-20 stands at £192.8m and comprises as much as half of the GLA’s net

revenue budget for directorates of £385.9m.

Quarter 1 Full Year Position
2019-20 Budget Forecast Variance
£m £m £m

Revenue: Directorates 385.9 376.6 9.2)
Revenue: Corporate items 104 10.0 ©.4)
Capital: Directorates 1,049.5 982.9 (66.6)
Capital: Corporate items 1,250.2 1,250.3 0.1
Total 2,696.0 2,619.8 (76.2)

Revenue: Directorates Revenue: Corporate

Forecast Outturn 376.6 Forecast Outturn 100

Full Year

Revised BUdget _ 104

11.0

Revised BUdget _ 3859

400 9.0

0 100 200 300 500 1.0 3.0 5.0 7.0

M Full Year Revised Budget Full Year Forecast Outturn M Full Year Revised Budget Full Year Forecast Outturn

Capital: Directorates Capital: Corporate

Forecast Outturn 982.9 Forecast Outturn [VALUE]
©
w
>
S
W
Revised BUdEEt _ 1015 Revised BUdgEt _ 1202
0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200 0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400

B Full Year Revised Budget Full Year Forecast Outturn B Full Year Revised Budget Full Year Forecast Outturn

Q1 2019/20 GLA ffage: féport (version to Committee Services 16 August)



2. Revenue

250 2359

230.0

200

150

100

50

Development,
Enterprise &

Communities &
Intelligence (&

Full Year: Directorate spend

60.7 591

I ] -

Housing & Land

Environment (inc  External Affairs)

AEB)

Housing & Land

W Full Year

330 339

60 6.0 . 69 7.5
I .

Mayor’s Office Chief Officer Resources

Full Year

8.0

Assembly
Secretariat

8.0

Directorate Full Year | Principal items
Variance | £m
£m
Housing & Land (H&L) (3.2) | ¢ (2.7): Move On (income received early)
e (0.5): Homebuilders Capacity Fund

2.1

The forecast variance of £3.2m arises in part from £0.5m for the Homebuilders Capacity

Fund. The Fund is a two-year programme which launched after the start of the current
financial year. Boroughs were asked to reprofile their proposals, bearing in mind that
they would not be in contract immediately. This has resulted in an adjustment of £0.5m
to the profile of expenditure for this programme. The adjusted funding will be taken up
in 2020-21. A further £2.7m variance relates to income received sooner than expected
for the externally funded Move On programme. This income has the same effect on the
forecast as a project underspend would have.

Q1 2019/20 GLARAage2port (version to Committee Services 16 August)



Development, Enterprise & Environment

Directorate Full Year | Principal items
Variance | £m
£m
Development, Enterprise & (5.9) | e (1.4): Skills & Employment

Environment

e (3.7): Regeneration & Economic
Development, comprising:
- (0.7): FE Capital
- (2.3): Skills for Londoners
- (0.7): Good Growth Fund

e (0.9): Environment

2.2

2.3

24

Skills & Employment

There is an underspend of £1.4m forecast of which £1.2m relates to the Mayor’s
Construction Academy due to delays with the Quality Mark review and application

process, which stalled the Round 2 funding prospectus.

Regeneration & Economic Development

There is a forecast underspend of £3.7m as a result of:

e £0.7m of the FE Capital programme being held back for future years’

independent monitoring services;

e £2.3m from the Skills for Londoners” programme being ring-fenced for future

developments in external applications, which in turn is dependent on
confirmation from Government of future Growth Deal grant; and

e £0.7m on the Good Growth Fund slipping due to the team prioritising the
larger, capital expenditure items in the latest round of Good Growth Fund

grant allocations.

Environment

There is a forecast underspend of £0.9m. This is mainly as a result of a revised timetable

for the Tree Delivery Programme, as set out in MD2285.

Q1 2019/20 GLA flage: féport (version to Committee Services 16 August)




Communities & Intelligence

Directorate Full Year | Principal items
Variance | £m
£m
Communities & Intelligence (1.6) | ¢ (2.7): Health, Education & Youth,
including External Affairs comprising:

- (2.6): Various items across
Education & Youth
- (0.1): Health

e 0.5: Team London & Sport,
comprising:
- (0.3): Various minor variances
- 0.8: EURO 2020

e 0.3: Culture & Creative Industries
- 0.3: Various programme items

e 0.4: External Affairs
- 0.4: Events

Health, Education & Youth

2.5 There is a £2.7m underspend forecast, which relates to a proposed re-profiling of the
Health, Education & Youth budget up to 2022-23 to reflect delivery plans.

Team London & Sport

2.6 For EURO 2020, an overspend of £0.8m is forecast, reflecting the increased budget
secured through MD2486.

External Affairs

2.7 External Affairs has a forecast overspend of £0.4m, due to £0.3m of additional
funding for Notting Hill Carnival (agreed via MD2425) for increased stewarding,
a new community stewarding programme and enhanced community engagement
and also due to £0.1m of additional funding for London Pride (agreed via
MD2251) for increased presence at the Parade, a GLA Pride reception, funding
for UK Black Pride and for other activity to support the LGBT community.

Q1 2019/20 GLARAg®e/réport (version to Committee Services 16 August)




Chief Officer

Directorate Full Year | Principal items
Variance | £m
£m
Chief Officer 0.9 | ¢ 0.4: Facilities Management
e 0.4: Technology Group

Facilities Management

2.8 Thereis a forecast overspend of £0.4m which is mainly due to:

e Unbudgeted hire costs for a mobile elevated working platform to clean the
City Hall windows (an MD is being prepared for a capital purchase); and

e Income not achieved due to large number of GLA or waivered cost events reducing
capacity for fee paying events.
Technology Group

2.9  Staffing spend is currently forecast to be over budget at year end due to the current
need to use agency temps to fill service desk and engineer positions as a result of
challenges encountered in trying to hire permanent staff.

Resources
Directorate Full Year | Principal items
Variance | £m
£m
Resources 0.6 | ¢ 0.6: Finance & Governance,
comprising:
- 0.4: Staffing
- 0.2: Procurement

Finance & Governance
2.10  The full year forecast of an overspend for the unit arises in part from agency
staffing costs. A restructuring is currently underway to address this issue.

2.11T In addition, there is a forecast overspend on the procurement budget due to increased
activity levels, comprising the following areas of GLA activity: events, marketing,
community & rough sleeping services and ESF.

Q1 2019/20 GLA flage: #éport (version to Committee Services 16 August)




2019-20 Quarter 1 REVENUE

Full Year
Forecast Year Variance
Revised Budget End (FY Revised
at Q1 Expenditure/ Budget v
Income Forecast)
£000 £000 £000
Directorate Expenditure
Chief Officer
City Ops 602 602 0
Core CMT 504 557 53
Elections 3,700 3,700 0
Facilities Management 17,819 18,214 395
HR & OD 4,124 4,124 0
Mayoral Boards 174 174 0
Standards (Monitoring Officer) 19 19 0
Technology Group 4,597 5,043 446
Transformation Fund 1,500 1,500 0
Total Chief Officer 33,039 33,933 894
Mayor's Office
Deputy Mayors” Support 1,087 1,087 0
Mayoral Support Teams 1,971 1,971 0
Mayor & Mayoral Appointees 2,222 2,222 0
Private Office & Correspondence 694 694 0
Total Mayor's Office 5,974 5,974 0
Resources
Executive Director 1,777 1,777 0
Finance and Governance 4,092 4,692 600
Group Finance 1,063 1,063 0
Total Resources 6,932 7,532 600
Development, Enterprise & Environment
Environment 16,336 15,483 (853)
EPMU 354 354 0
Executive Director 575 575 0
Growth & Infrastructure 758 708 (50)
London Economic Action Partnership (LEAP) 495 495 0
Planning 3,045 3,045 0
Regeneration & Economic Development 15,120 11,459 (3,661)
Skills & Employment 5,834 4,471 (1,363)
Transport 657 657 0
Total Development, Enterprise & Environment 43,174 37,247 (5,927)
Communities & Intelligence
City Intelligence 3,724 3,612 (112)
Communities & Social Policy 3,783 3,767 (16)
Culture 9,928 10,219 291
Executive Director 927 927 0
External Affairs 9,458 9,883 425
Health, Education and Youth 18,960 16,225 2,735)
Team London & Sport 13,919 14,459 540
Total Communities & Intelligence 60,699 59,092 (1,607)
Housing and Land
Executive Director 203 203 0
Investment and Operations 2,801 2,800 m
Programmes Policy and Services 29,930 26,741 (3,189)
Strategic Projects and Property 2,384 2,384 0
Total Housing and Land 35,318 32,128 (3,190)
AEB 192,760 192,741 (19)
Total Directorate Expenditure 377,895 368,647 (9,248)

Q1 2019/20 GLARAagre/@port (version to Committee Services 16 August)




2019-20 Quarter 1 REVENUE

Full Year
Forecast Year Variance
Revised Budget End (FY Revised
at Q1 Expenditure/ Budget v
Income Forecast)
£000 v £000 r £000
Corporate Items
Contingency 978 978 0
London and Partners 13,456 13,456 0
Museum of London 11,600 11,600 0
Net Service Expenditure 403,929 394,681 (9,248)
GLAP
L&P 1,229 1,229 0
Strategic Projects and Property 5,598 5,598 0
Tax, Interest Payable & Recharges 12,756 12,756 0
Total GLAP 19,583 19,583 0
Bank Charges and Bad Debt 0 0 0
Council Tax Maximisation Projects 0 0 0
Financing costs - Crossrail 124,745 124,745 0
Financing costs - Other (Interest Payable GLA) 6,100 6,100 0
NLE Capital Financing 19,600 19,600 0
Revenue funding LLDC 12,800 12,800 0
Strategic Investment Fund (Group Led) 108,800 108,800 0
Total Net Expenditure 695,557 686,309 (9,248)
Income
Adjustment for direct net GLAP expenditure (19,583) (19,583) 0
Crossrail Business Rate Supplement (124,745) (124,745) 0
GLAP Recharge Income (5,304) (5,304) 0
Interest Receivable GLA (13,700) (13,700) 0
Interest Receivable GLAP Loan (9,885) (9,885) 0
NLE Contributions (19,600) (19,600) 0
Total Income (192,817) (192,817) 0
Total Net Cost of Service 502,740 493,492 (9,248)
Reserves
Transfer to/(from) reserves GLA (59,339) (59,764) (425)
Utilised Strategic Investment Funds (57,500) (57,500) 0
Transfer to MDC Reserve held in Group items budget 2,400 2,400 0
Total Financing Requirement 388,301 378,628 (9,673)
Assembly & Secretariat
Executive Director 253 253 0
Committee and Member Services 4,869 4,869 0
Scrutiny 1,842 1,842 0
Special Projects 1,036 1,036 0
Total Assembly & Secretariat 8,000 8,000 0
Total Budget including A&S 396,301 386,628 (9,673)

Q1 2019/20 GLA fage:8&port (version to Committee Services 16 August)




3  Capital

1400 Full Year: Directorate spend
1,250.2  1,250.3
1200
1000
918.3 912.9
800
600
400
200 126.1
66.0
0 -
Corporate Housing & Land Development, Enterprise & Communities & Intelligence (&
Environment (inc AEB) External Affairs)
W Full Year mFull Year
Housing & Land
Directorate Full year | Principal items
Variance | £m
£m
Housing & Land (H&L) (5.4) | o (5.4): Land & Property

3.1 H&L is forecasting an underspend of £5.4m for the Land & Property programme. The
current year budget was set as part of the corporate capital strategy work in December
2018 and, since then, the expenditure profile has been adjusted to reflect the current
position on each project. The profile set in December 2018 included some headroom to
allow for additional capital programme expenditure should the need arise for new
projects. This year the Land & Property programme capital expenditure relates to three
principal projects: Barking Riverside, the London Sustainable Industrial Park and Beam
Park Station.

Q1 2019/20 GLARAagr&2Eport (version to Committee Services 16 August)



Development, Enterprise & Environment

Directorate Full year | Principal items
Variance | £m
£m
Development, Enterprise & (60.1) | ¢ (51.7): Regeneration & Economic
Environment Development comprising:

(10.5): FE Capital

(1.5): London Regeneration Fund
(11.3): Good Growth Fund
(28.4): Skills for Londoners

e (8.4): Environment comprising:
- (1.5): Energy Supply Company

- (6.5): Cleaner Heat Cashback

- (0.4): Other minor variances

3.2

33

Regeneration & Economic Development

The slippage is as a result of:

FE Capital (£10.5m); the Ada project is no longer projected to spend in 2019-20;

London Regeneration Fund (£1.5m); the proposed reallocation of budget is
awaiting approval as part of Good Growth Fund Round 3;

Good Growth Fund (£11.3m); the budget for 2019-20 was set prior to entering into
grant agreements for Good Growth Fund Rounds 1 and 2. The current forecast
reflects live project reporting and activities which are in contract. This variance may
reduce following further Good Growth Fund Round 2 projects entering into
contract; and

Skills for Londoners (£28.4m); there has been a ring-fencing of certain funds for
other purposes, including a Brexit contingency and a reserve for Round 2 projects,
which has led to a proposed reprofiling of this budget.

Environment

The slippage is as a result of:

£1.5m underspend against the Energy for London Supply Company; this capital
budget is due to be converted to revenue and this amount is being held in reserves
for that purpose; and

£6.5m underspend against Cleaner Heat Cashback; following endorsement at the
LEAP Board, an MD is being finalised which seeks approval to reallocate £9.0m of
capital funds from Cleaner Heat Cashback to other air quality programmes. As part
of that, the Energy Saving Trust will be returning £2.5m in 2019-20.

Q1 2019/20 GLA fage=8ehort (version to Committee Services 16 August)



Communities & Intelligence

Directorate

Full year | Principal items
Variance | £m
£m

Communities & Intelligence

(1.1) | « (1.0): Creative Land Trust

Culture: Creative Land Trust

3.4  Recruitment to the Board for the Creative Land Trust was undertaken during Q4 2018-
19 and Q1 2019-20. This took longer than anticipated. The funding agreement between
GLA and the Creative Land Trust can now be finalised and this element of the GLA

budget can be reprolifed accordingly.

Q1 2019/20 GLARAagrE3port (version to Committee Services 16 August)



2019-20 Quarter 1 CAPITAL

Full Year
Revised Budget Forecast e Var'l ance
at Q1 Outturn D b
Budget

£m £m £m
Housing & Land
Affordable Housing Programme 300.6 300.6 0.0)
Care & Support 24.0 24.0 0.0
Community Led Housing 28 28 0.0
Community Housing Fund 16.0 16.0 0.0
Homelessness Change and Platform for Life 6.3 6.3 0.0
Housing Zones (Grants) 123.6 123.6 0.0
Housing Zones (Loans) 106.3 106.3 0.0
Land and Property 31.0 25.6 (5.4)
Land Assembly Fund (MHCLG) 146.8 146.8 0.0
Land Fund (GLAP) 125.5 125.5 0.0
Move On 6.3 6.3 0.0
Royal Docks 23.9 239 0.0
Small Sites (H&L) 53 53 0.0
Total Housing & Land 918.3 912.9 (5.4)
Corporate
Cross-rail 905.0 905.0 0.0
Northern Line Extension (NLE) 217.0 217.0 0.0
LLDC Loan Funding 87.6 87.6 0.0
LLDC East Bank grant Funding 17.9 17.9 0.0
UCL Cultural & Education District 15.0 15.0 0.0
LLDC JV Trf to GLAP 3.4 3.4 0.0
Elephant & Castle - 0.1 0.1
Facilities Management 2.6 2.6 0.0
Technology Group 0.6 0.6 0.0
Corporate Operating Open Systems 1.1 1.1 0.0
Total Corporate 1,250.2 1,250.3 0.1
Regeneration & Economic Development (DEE)
London Regeneration Fund 1.5 - (1.5)
Mayor's Regeneration Fund/London Enterprise Fund 13 13 0.0
Growing Places Fund 7.0 7.0 0.0
Further Education 253 148 (10.5)
Skills For Londoners 47.0 18.6 (28.4)
Good Growth Fund 25.2 13.9 (11.3)
Total Regeneration & Economic Development 107.3 55.7 G1.7)
Environment (DEE)
Greener City Fund 15 15 0.0
Bunhill Smart Energy 0.2 0.2 0.0
Air Quality (GD 3) 0.2 0.2 0.0
RE:FIT for Schools 0.2 0.2 0.0
Warmer Homes 3.4 34 0.0
Energy Supply Company 15 - (1.5)
Cleaner Heat Cashback 6.5 - (6.5)
Energy Leap 0.5 0.5 0.0
E-FLEX 0.2 - 0.2)
Plastic Bottles 1.3 1.1 0.2)
Total Environment 15.5 7.1 (8.4)
Skills and Employment (DEE)
Digital Skills 15 15 0.0
Mayor's Construction Academy 1.5 1.5 0.0
Total Skills & Employment 3.0 3.0 0.0
Planning (DEE)
London Development Database 0.3 0.3 (0.0)
Total Planning 0.3 0.3 (0.0)
Total Development, Enterprise & Environment 126.1 66.0 (60.1)
Communities & Intelligence
Museum of London 0.5 0.5 0.0
A Sporting Future for London 1.0 1.0 0.0
Fourth Plinth 0.1 0.1 0.0
Creative Enterprise Zones 04 0.3 0.1)
Creative Land Trust 3.0 2.0 (1.0)
Total Communities & Intelligence 5.0 3.9 a.m)
Total Capital 2.299.7] 2,233.2] (66.5)

Q1 2019/20 GLA fage:8port (version to Committee Services 16 August)




Reserves 2019/20

GLA Reserves

Balance at 1 April
2019

£000

Reserves to support key revenue budget outcomes

Directorate Programme
Election

Environment Drainage
Major Events

New Museum Project
Planning Smoothing

Pre Application Planning
Pre-Application Planning
Rev Grants Unapp Res
Sport Unites

Young Londoners Fund Reserve
Capital Programme - revex/capex funding

Total

62,018
12,853
354
10,995
8,000
781
1,942
1,068
75,194
6,743
23,939
0
203,887

Reserves to support organisational change and transformation

Development
Mayoral Resettlement
Total

Reserves to support on-going asset management

City Hall Lease Smoothing
Estates
Total

Reserves to support on-going capital activity

Capital Programme

LLDC Capital Funding Reserve
Compulsory Purchase Orders
Total

General
General Reserve

Total GLA Reserves

Group Reserve

Group Reserve

Business Rates
Development Corporations
Strategic Investment Funds
Total Group Reserves

Third party Reserve

Third party Reserve
London & Partners

New Homes Bonus

Total Third Party Reserves
TOTAL RESERVES

Assembly Reserves

Assembly Reserves

Assembly Development & Resettlement

Total Assembly Reserves

2,408
77
2,484

3,143
7,868
11,010

52,234
126,047
1,329
179,611

10,000

406,991

Balance at 1 April
2019

188,200

3,137
111,193
302,530

Balance at 1 April
2019

2,245
5,163
7,408

716,930

Balance at 1 April

2019
1,610
1,610
718,540

FORECAST

Net Transfer

£000

(28,776)
3,175

0
(5,484)
0

1,800

0

0
(20,505)
@3,371)
0
(5,423)
(58,584)

o

(1,180)

(1,180)

(8,785)

(8,785)

0

(68,549)

Net Transfer

0
0
0
0
Net Transfer
0
0
0
(68,549)
Net Transfer
0
0
(68,549)

FORECAST
31st March 2020
Balance

£000|

33,242
16,028
354
5,511
8,000
2,581
1,942
1,068
54,689
3,372
23,939
(5,423)
145,303

2,408
77
2,484

1,963
7,868
9,830

43,449
126,047

1,329
170,826

10,000

338,442

FORECAST
31st March 2020
Balance

188,200

3,137
111,193
302,530

FORECAST
31st March 2020
Balance

2,245
5,163
7,408

648,381

FORECAST
31st March 2020
Balance

1,639
1,639

650,020

Q1 2019/20 GLARAagr&%port (version to Committee Services 16 August)




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 86



Overview: Communities & Social Policy Performance indicators Goals Appendix 1c

_c § c § c o v

19/20 > Target YTD Conf. Base F'Cast Conf.

Update the social integration dashboard; plan strategically for 01
1a London Family Fund: Families supported 150 Q3 1 what and how to improve social integration; advocate for policy 19/20 ° CG
- We will exceed our target for 50,000 Londoners with insecure status to access g 5 Gl s
information on the EU Londoners portal. 5 Design Lab: Complete a learning report & recommendations for Q4 )
- We are on track to meet our targets for the London Family Fund, advocacy on ~ 1b London Family Fund: % families reporting a benefit ~ 70% Q3 a potential year 2 19/20
insecure status for young Londoners and voter registration. 3 Recommendations for GLA funding for ESOL 'plus’ projects Q4 )
- Due to delays in recruitment, the unit will keep forecasts for business o s et (et _— based on learning from pilot 19/20
: - : orkforce Integration Network: Employers in the
engagement in the Workforce Integration Network programme under review. 2a digital & Constr%ction <ector signedF:pr 30 Q3 4 Work with up to 16 schools to reduce child poverty. Publish a Q4 i
-4/e are recruiting to fill gaps in capacity and should have a full compliment of project evaluation 19/20
<&ff in September 2019, following some staff departures in the spring/summer - . 04
2@1 9. b Workforce Integration Network: Peer ambassadors 75 03 7 5a 50,000 additional 16-24 year-old Londoners register to vote 19/20
hy engaged
5h Digital and print voter registration resources are accessed 5,000 Q4 }
times 19/20
Individuals accessing online guidance for youn
3a | doners with insgcure sta'?us SRS 5,000 759 6 ! citizen-led community-based research projects influence City Q4 )
Hall policy 19/20
o ) . Employment rights site launched with full capability and hosted Q2
F. . | . 3b :_ndnéllduals accessing the online portal for European 50,000 30,347 7a on london.gov.uk 19/20
ondoners
Inancial review Revenue 7b Evaluation report of the employment rights site with Q4 ;
8 (no capital budget) recommendations for future iterations 19/20
8a Civil Society Action Plan: Improved data skills for 4 refugee and Q2 .
Q4 o migrant orgs; & 20 attended capacity building workshops 19/20
| 8b Civil Society Action Plan: 25 Civil Society Leaders trained 12?;;0 = n
Q3 [
Q2 o Top risks and issues
| There is a risk. .. Score Trend Explanation for trend
Q1 () 1 o . . - . Continuing Brexit uncertainty, together with hate crime trends since the
The UK's exit from the EU may have a detrimental impact on social integration N e, cusrest dher 31/10 Do dhie coud o ke ot
£0m £1m £2m £3m £4m

A snap general election could lead to uncertainty or policy/funding change and impact = S € Govt funds GLA strategic immigration work; and this is likely to continue to

our ability to deliver projects (some of the unit's work is directly funded by Govt) be seen as important

YrBudget Forecast % (Variance) YTD Profile YTD Actual % (Variance) Of potential financial mismanagement of funding provided by the GLA to partners

. . o . . Sound due diligence and grant management systems are in place
involved in social integration, leading to a loss of funds >€ g g g y P

Q4 3.9 : .
Issue Rating Trend Explanation for trend
Q3 27 1 Payment of small providers is delayed affecting our reputation with civil society partners > € Backlogs have been cleared and new systems are being developed to avoid
’ and project delivery timelines future payment delays
Q2 1.6 2 Procurement delays are making it more challenging to deliver projects on time n Vo Afull procurement plan is now in place
01 39 39 99% (-0.02) 07 03 32% (-0.5) Recrultment timescales have Ield to.L.lnderstafﬁng. Th|§ issue has Iargely been resolved; > € The pace of recru!tment remains challenge but changes to corporate HR
but had impacted on the team's ability to meet some interim deadlines processes are having a positive impact

CSP Q1 2019/20 Dashboard (version provided to Committee Services 16 August)



Overview: Culture & Creative Industries Performance indicators Goals

I _

- Q1 was a s.tror.19 qu§rter for delive.ry, with all major Mayoral projects now 19/20 > Target YTD  Conf. Base F'Cast Conf.

launched. Highlights included opening round two of London Borough of Culture, T o e Ry ey e — e el B

wprking with c-ross—policy colleagues to publish the-Mayor’s response to the Night 1a London Borough of Culture: Visits to public events 0.40m Q2 3 vzl D Avards 19,20
Time Commission’s report, and launching a Night Time Enterprise Zones pilot grant
. . ] . . Publish 2 Cultural Infrastructure resources: a) how to set up; and Q2
and a new Safer Sounds Partnership. London Games Festival achieved an all-time 1b London Borough of Culture: Schools engaged 21 Q2 2a b) how to run a grassroots music venue 19/20
high of 97,000 attendances. World Cities Culture Forum secured EU URBACT T —— g
funding so that London can work with 7 EU cities to improve access, inclusion and 1c London Borough of Culture: Volunteer days 4,471 Q2 2b R N 2a |t|ona. Cultural Infrastructure resources on: the Ol =
diversity planning system; mixed-use development 20/21
- Progress has been slower than expected on finalising grant agreements for 2 Culture Seeds: Audience and participation 35,000 9,186 n 3 et Gl WVEH thle et .coniSSiofn WA K ) T o o4 - n
Creative Enterprise Zones due to borough staffing capacity challenges; and on IS0 &5 iaireriiing el Eqivalioncy of £).5 1220
recruiting the nl_‘]fW C::Ieative Land Trust board so as to ensure significant diversity of 3a Creative Enterprise Zones: Workspace created (sqm) 2,156 Q4 4 EURO 2020: Deliver a 5 week culture programme and 8 events 2(;2/321 -
trustees was achieved.
- The Culture at Risk Office continues to work at full capacity, with greater demand 3b Creative Land Trust: Creative workspaces TBC 04 5a Award the tender for a pilot ESF skills programme in Tottenham Q3 B
s Award the tender for a pilot ESF skills programme in 5 Creative Q1 .
4a Museum of London: Visitors 1.04m 0.25m n 5b EanEe 2o (i Tenem) 20/21
. . . ) . Deliver 2+ 'Unpacking the Credits' industry careers advice films, Q4 B
F|nanC|a| review 4b Museum of London: Engagement with young people 143,000 40,389 n 6 with extensive distribution 19,20
q Revenue . N . Deliver evaluation & action plan from Night Time Enterprise Q4 B
Q4 ) =10 Lo WiEsig & CRmes Fesiv(s: Areies EEGLIY | SRy n 7 Zone pilot and research into the impact of later opening hours  19/20
i Creative industries funding: Value of sales, exports . . Q4 B
Q3 | ') 5b and inward investment £380.2m Q2 n 8 Launch the New Night Time Data Observatory 19,20
Q2 ® 5c Creative industries funding: Employment 3193 02 9 Publish guidance for boroughs on creating Night Time Strategies Q4 .
. opportunities ! & support 5 boroughs to publish new Night Time Strategies 20/21
Q1 o 5d Creative industries funding: Traineeships, work 53 02 Oversee delivery of a World Cities Culture Forum summit in Q3 B
£OI £2' féll £6I EE; £1I0 experience and apprenticeships Lisbon, attracting reps from 30+ city governments 19/20
m m m m m m
Yr Budget Forecast % (Variance) YTD Profile YTD Actual % (Variance)
Y 9.9
Qm . .
o3 73 Top risks and issues
0" 48
Q1 9.9 10.2 102% (0.3) 1.6 1.0 59% (-0.7) There is a risk... Score Trend Explanation for trend
_ Capital Of delays to the Museum of London's Smithfield development from extended timescales
Q4 ® ! for: negotiations between the City & market tenants; landlord works (by the City) "> € Negotiations with traders are continuing.
Q3 | Py 2 There may be fewer or lower quality bids for round 2 of LBOC, due to the timing of the Positive conversations are taking place with at least 10 boroughs. Some
| application process boroughs are still waiting for cabinet approval to proceed
Q2 o . . . e . -
4 3 Fundraising for the Creative Land Trust from the private sector may not be successful W Trustees in plgce, 1St board meetlpg held Wl.th |nter.|m CEllE Chglr [T
01 ° by Sept. Interim Director progressing fundraising with strategy in Oct
: ; : ; Issue Rating Trend Explanation for trend
£0m £1m £2m £3m £4m . . . L -
The GLA has not yet tendered for the £1.5m ESF skills projects across the 5 CEZs N7 We have set out two workable options now set out, resulting in additional
YrBudget Forecast % (Variance) YTD Profile YTD Actual % (Variance) (excluding Tottenham) match funding. Procurement can get underway in Sept
Creative Land Trust grant agreement not finalised due to extensive board recruitment to Funding agreement will be finalised by the end Q2 when a first GLA
ensure diversity and skillsets required. May result in slower delivery payment will be made to the Creative Land Trust
Q3 24 diversi d skill ired. M [tin sl deli ill b d he Creative Land T
Q2 2.2 . . : : : , ,
01 o 59 73% (1.1) 51 0.0 0% (-2.1) 3 Two boroughs are yet to sign their CEZ agreements due to their resourcing challenges W GLA has been informed both agreements will be signed by end August
. . oL\~ I. . . 0 \~<&.

CCI Q1 2019/20 Dashboard (version provided to Committee Services 16 August)



Overview: Education & Youth Performance indicators Goals

19/20 > . Base F'Cast Conf.
1 Early Years provider organisations supported 170 94 G 1 SPGB eaf'y years campaign to increase take up 03 G
- The unit is on track against the milestones and indicators in the Unit Plan. of free early years education 13/20

Round 2 of the Young Londoners Fund (YLF) launched in May and the initial
sift of applications is taking place. Coaches have been matched with participants
on the Early Years Leader programme and applications have closed for the next
year of Getting Ahead London teachers. A new exclusions programme is being
developed as part of the Violence Reduction Unit (VRU) work programme.

90 schools recognised at a celebration event for tackling low Q2

2 Students supported by Stepping Stones 1,300 Q4 <tudent achievement 19,20

Getting Ahead London: Teachers on the leadership
- Spend is rated as green as, although there was underspend against Q1 profiles, programme

wg are confident we will spend by year end. Capability is amber as staffing
r@ource is stretched by the imperative to score and award round 2 of the YLF; 03

a8l because additional workstreams are coming through now from the VRU. 4a London Curriculum: Primary schools engaged 34% 27% n & B lzwen vpesice [emeto Cuiian Ui eseuiees (plisnce 19/20 n
5 Peer Outreach Team: Increase membership of participation Q1 .
network by 20% to 400 members 20/21

Gender Action Award pilot completed, evaluated and rolled out Q4
nationally by Institute of Physics 19/20

4b London Curriculum: Secondary schools engaged 65% 60%

London Scientist: Students achieving BSA CREST Q3

Financial review award 6,832 1,037 6 Award round 2 Young Londoners Fund grants 1920
Revenue
_ (no capital budget)
Young Londoners Fund (R1&2): Young people 70% of YLF round 1 projects achieve the London Youth Quality Q3
6 T TBC Q2 7 -
04 ® participating Mark 20/21
Exclusion and missing from school research & consultation
i . . Q4
8 underway. Response provided to next phase of Timpson 1920
consultation
Q3 [
Q2 o Top risks and issues
| There is a risk. .. Score Trend Explanation for trend
Q1 () 1 The tight timeframe to develop E&Y elements of the VRU work plan may mean spend _
is't achieved in 2019,20 =» € Emerging risk so no trend yet
£0m £5m £10m £15m 2 Alack of staffing may mean Young Londoners Fund application scoring is delayed = =>» € Allocations expected to be made in Q2
YrBudget Forecast % (Variance) YTD Profile YTD Actual % (Variance) Young Londoners Fund grant applications may not be evenly spread across London, S € Analysis of Round 2 applications to determine geographical spread will be
resulting in sub-optimal geographical coverage undertaken, allowing a clearer assessment
Q4 16.2 -
Issue Rating Trend Explanation for trend
Q3 70 1 Low application numbers mean elements of the ESF youth programme will need to be > € Staying the same until we know final information on which lots are
’ reprocured appointable
02 45 Flexi-grant portal management information sys.tem r-10t able to puIII off all Young S5 St e same il e soe s o 0T e
Londoners Fund programme level data reports in a timely manner
Q1 16.2 13.6 83% (-2.6) 2.3 0.9 37% (-1.4) 3 SEEPBi [ 7T NS (e s e AT S A s T 57 =» €& Staying the same until we see significant progress from the writer

Stage Fashion resource.

EY Q1 2019/20 Dashboard (version provided to Committee Services 16 August)



Overview: Environment

With action to reallocate/reprofile the Cleaner Heat Cashback budget, and the closing
down of License Lite, RAGs are green. Risks and issues are broadly the same as Q4, but
risk is reducing. Highlights:

- The Ultra Low Emission Zone launched in April. 9,400 fewer older, more polluting
vehicles are entering the zone daily.

- 40 applications were received for R3 community tree planting grants. Over 50,000
trees will be planted this winter.

- Following procurement and site selection, the installation phase of the Drinking Water
Fountains programme was expected to begin in July.

- Phase 1 & 2 Reduction & Recycling Plans were received from boroughs on schedule.
These are being reviewed with feedback to boroughs for amendment in some cases.

- The Mayor's Entrepreneur scheme awarded £20k to winners in 3 categories.

- The supplier of services to Energy for Londoners Supply Company was selected.
Contracts are expected to be signed on time.

- Phase 1 of Warmer Homes closed to new applicants. Installs are being completed. To
date, 762 homes have been supported.

Financial review

) Revenue
Q4 [
Q3 _ [
Q2 _ [
Q1 h [
f(;m £5Im £l bm £l I5m £2I0m

Yr Budget

Forecast % (Variance) YTD Profile YTD Actual
% 19.9

@ 10.1
o2 5.7

% (Variance)

Q1 19.9 19.1 95% (-0.9) 2.6 1.2 48% (-1.3)

) Capital
Q4 ()
Q3 o
Q2 o
Q1 @

£Om £5m £10m £15m
Yr Budget Forecast % (Variance) YTD Profile YTD Actual % (Variance)

Q4 15.5
Q3 4.0
Q2 2.8
Q1 15.5 7.1 46% (-8.4) 0.3 0.0 0% (-0.3)

Performance indicators

1 Change in NOx from 2013

2 Change in bus fleet NOx from 2016

Change in black taxi emissions from 2013 (& number
of ZEC taxis)

w

4a Greener City Fund: Trees planted

4b CGreener City Fund: Green space projects supported

Warmer Homes: Homes in which energy efficiency
improvements are installed

5b Warmer Homes Advice Service: Households assisted

6 RE:NEW extension period: Homes retrofitted
7 RE:FIT: Annual CO2 savings
Drinking fountains installed in partnership with
8
Thames Water
9 Better Futures: SMEs given intensive support

Top risks and issues

There is a risk...

19/20 > Target

Not set

-85%

-21%

50,000

78

1,151

2,000

2,000

11,450

(e
5

0
o
3
bl

o O
N N

(1,958
ZECt)

Q
5

@)
5

164

566

787
(prov)

Q2

CcG

The complexity & uncertainty inherent in installing at least 100 water fountains in
different locations in London may mean roll out is slower than expected

Delays in decision-making or in branding/marketing work for Energy for Londoners

Supply Company may delay launch

Potential low uptake of the small business and low income scrappage scheme, including

due to qualifying criteria and complexity

Issue

Goals

Base F'Cast Conf.

Transform 10 polluted locations into Low Emission

1 Neighbourhoods 19/20
Starter grants awarded to 49 schools to implement air quality Q2

2 : . =
audit recommendations 19/20

3a Installation, assessment and, if needed, removal of air filtration Q2

systems at 6 nurseries; and feasibility study 19/20

3b At least 50% of recommendations in the 20 nursery air quality Q3 .
audits delivered 19/20

4 Extend the Ultra Low Emission Zone to Inner London 21Q/322 -

Full implementation of the Non-Road Mobile Machinery Zone, Q3

> including delivering a positive recognitions scheme 20/21
6 London becomes the first National Park City, with over 300 Q2 .
events engaging 1,000s of Londoners 19/20

_ - Q4 _
7 Complete 6 large-scale green space projects 19/20
Winter

8 Energy for Londoners Supply Company launched 1920

9 London hosts its first Climate Action Week with 100 successful Q2

and well-promoted events 19/20

10 Decentralised Energy Enabling Project: Save 17,400t of carbon Q3 _
and generate 3MW of renewable energy capacity 21/22
Up to 10 performance-guaranteed, near net-zero energy home Q4

11 " =
retrofits 19/20

12 Each London borough has produced a Reduction and Recycling Q4 _
Plan 19/20
Four sectors in London (education, health, housing and retail) 03

13 . . _ : . =
receive guidance on retrofitting sustainable drainage 19/20

Score Trend Explanation for trend

n =» € No change given the programme is in its early stages

N7 Branding and marketing work is underway and to schedule. Risk of delays
remain but are reducing as milestones are passed

W The eligibility criteria for sole traders has been adjusted to increase scheme
participants

|

Achieving Mayoral environmental & climate change goals requires Govt. to devolve
more statutory powers & resources, with no clear path for this currently

Issues arising from the UK's exit from the EU cut across the Environment Strategy,
affecting policy and delivery. Programmes need to adapt to meet LES objectives

Following publication of the LES, a wider skill set and different ways of working are
required within the team to ensure delivery of a range of programmes

ating Trend Explanation for trend

i -
g

Brexit approach and recent changes in to the ministerial team have
increased uncertainty

Will require careful monitoring in light of political changes in central
Government

The range and complexity of the programmes being delivered has increased
with the incorporation of Energy for Londoners Supply Company

Env Q1 2019/20 Dashboard (version provided to Committee Services 16 August)



Overview: Health Performance indicators Goals

—
Q1

Base F'Cast Conf.

19/20 > Target YTD Conf.

Programmes to realise objectives are in delivery, with non-business critical delays in 02
a few areas. Highlights include: ; Health Early Years London: Total number settings 1330 1205 1 Publish the Child Obesity Taskforce action plan/call to action 1920
- Health and care partners are developing a Health & Care Vision. This will be signed up ’ ’
featured in October's London Health Board Conference. 2 ?OhSt treLam:jual Hela:)th{;.Early Ye:rs London and Healthy 1;2/120 -
. . . . . chools London celebration events
- The Child Obesity Taskforce is developing a call for actlgn fo.r an autumn launch. ,Healthy Schools London: Total number schools 2150 (est 193
- Healthy Early Years London and Youth Mental Health First Aid are on track. registered (% all schools) 85%) ’ 3 Undertake a process evaluation of the Healthy Workplace Award Q4 _
- 'Next Steps for London Social Prescribing' will be published in the summer 19/20
alongside other GLA commissioned reports. The roll-out of link-workers into o . A E et Sl e St Fres et el Q2 i
Primary Care Networks, part of the NHS Long-Term Plan, has begun. We are 3 éou:a]r’\:weel:lttzlr:'?:llfgnzlfﬁ ?;ﬁ-oﬁl(ic’lcl;[;?nn;; education 1,000 Q2 HBlIsh Rext Steps Tor Soclal Frescribing in London paper 19/20
developing a work plan to help partners implement and grow social prescribing. The P o .
fatus is the voluntary and community sector. 5 London to be a dementia friendly city 2022 -
“Bhe Fast Track Clt.IeS London partngrshlp is working towards HIV reduction 4 Dementia Friends: Total number of GLA staff trained 262 40 . N _ 02 o
tgets. An international conference is planned for September. 6 Publish London Health Inequalities Strategy guides 19/20 19/20 cG
- Work is ongoing on application of the Mayor's 'six texts', as outlined in the King's o <h cev oriorities in the Health o
Sl @ . ost five workshops to progress key priorities in the Healt )
P 5a E;E:E?zal/ivoogls(z:;i ﬁ;rd London: Total number of 1,000 1,033 ! 7 Inequalities Strategy 19/20
8 Convene the annual London Health Board conference 19Q/320 = n
Healthy Workplace Award London: Total number of
Ei c I - 5b emplo;ees ofzccredited SR aE TBC 608,865 [\ F4A\ 9 Support development and publication of a contemporary health Q4 ;
Inancial review T and care vision for London 19/20
y (no capital budget) With the VRU, commission a violence strategic needs assessment 03
10 & homicide review, and mobilise health care contribution to 19/20
Q4 () violence reduction
1 Pilot and apply the Mayor’s six tests to appropriate projects and Q4 ;
T schemes, and provide a Mayoral position 19/20
. : Q4
03 o 12 Publish learning from work on health super zones around schools 19/20 n
Q2 ° Top risks and issues
1 There is a risk... Score Trend Explanation for trend
Q1 () 1 The London Innovation and Transformation Architecture (LITA) review may impact on > € Risk static while the LITA review is ongoing (to be completed in September
the capacity of the health and care partnership to champion and challenge the NHS 2019)
£0.0m £0.5m £1.0m £1.5m £2.0m £2.5m £3.0m 2 The anticipated green paper on adult social care is not published during this Mayoralty -> New Prime Minister has signalled that he will have a position on adult social

care, but Brexit is likely to continue to delay this

YrBudget Forecast % (Variance) YTD Profile YTD Actual % (Variance) Potential competing views on the Child Obesity Taskforce action plan mean consensus Risk stable following implementation of mitigating actions, including
is difficult to achieve, affecting buy-in and delaying its launch support for the Taskforce's chair and vice-chair in achieving consensus
Q4 3.2 ,
ssue ating Trend Explanation for tren
[ Rating Trend Explanation for trend
Q3 2.5 1 gg;etr:)t égﬁ;ﬁ:&éﬁe&n&isrfzgﬂi:gt:;in;g:entsz oD RS TERB [FmE BT “ WV A small number of posts remain under discussion
Limited public health specialist capacity to support Mayoral commitments on health in - .
Q2 1.5 2 al policizs and health izequalitiesriiue ilo staﬂl?gurnovery n =» € Work initiated to scope capacity to support work programme
Q1 3.2 3.0 95% (-0.1) 0.5 03 52% (-0.2) 3 tﬁ;igi;z:aﬁgtﬁ éir::; Sir?f:[::crz (FGECERIEE (BN G S SOt n =>» €= Discussions with partners are continuing and work is progressing

Health Q1 2019/20 Dashboard (version provided to Committee Services 16 August)



Overview: Housing & Land Performance indicators Goals

|

_c § ¢

- We are on track to hit the Mayor's target of 116k affordable housing starts by

Base F'Cast Conf.

19/20 > Target YTD Conf.

March 2022, providing more Londoners with access to good quality homes that 3672 ; [EachInvestment and Operations Area Team to produce an QB
meet their needs and they can afford. To the end of Q1, 2,672 starts were T Affordable homes built between 2015-22 17,000 (|;rov) outline action plan on an area of focus 20
achieved against the 17,000 annual target. There have been 44,376 starts 2 Agree terms for the Land Assembly Centre of Excellence Q4 }
against the 116k target. . . 19/20
. . . . . . . . Genuinely affordable homes started by councils in 73 ] o ] o

- Dialogue with housing provider partners is ongoing to review risks such as 2 London 2,500 (prov) 3a Establish a Land Fund pipeline of projects capable of delivering Q3 .
planning delays and market uncertainty caused by Brexit. This could impact 35,000 homes 19/20
expenditure plans. 3b Deploy Land Fund investment of £250 Ol

Q q q Q Q n na invi men m -
- The Land Fund project pipeline is strong, holding proposals capable of 3 Rogue landlord and letting agent checker clicks 28,900 10,951 EPIIEETE estment o 20/21

deIivering over 30,000 homes, at least 50% affordable. We are on track to 4 Facilitate starts of 3,000 homes of all tenures on GLA land and Q4 )
commit £250m by end of 2019/20. joint venture interest 19/20

- To the end of Q1, 91% of those supported by Mayoral programmes and Mayoral services: % of those supported exiting rough . 91% —— .
services exited roudh sleeping (85% tardet) 4 ering Geai] supoeriad) 85% (498) 5 Accelerate Beam Park development by finalising funding Q4 ;
g PINg o target). package 19/20
6 Launch the London bidding round for the Private Sector Q2 ;
Cladding Fund Programme 19/20
Financial review 7 Start 500 community-led homes 22(2/23 =
- Revenue s Rough sleeping - Launch: a rapid response team; a winter QT _
Q4 o programme; a service for rough sleepers not new to the street ~ 20/21
Q3 (]
Q2 [
o Ee
£0m £20m £40m £60m £80m £100m
Yr Budget Forecast % (Variance) YTD Profile YTD Actual % (Variance)
Qd 94.0
)
& 64.1 Top risks and issues
(054 36.5
Q1 94.0 90.8 96% (-3.2) 13.7 9.7 70% (-4) There is a risk... Score Trend Explanation for trend
B Capital . Brexit & market uncertainty may impact on housing delivery due to: a still further A Government's current approach to Brexit negotiations with the EU has
Q4 ® impact on investment; affects on labour & materials supply increased the likelihood of a disorderly exit
| Affordable homes delivery may not meet targets due to: insufficient identified land; lack . L
Q3 | o of capacity of providers & in construction; rental income undermined by welfare reform 1 |Frekcsmay be ey die o planing s
Q2 ® 3 The Private Sector Cladding Remediation Fund may not be ready to launch at end Sep > € The Directorate is moving at pace to implement the London element of the
o1 'k. 19 due to a failure to implement system functionality and procure external advice PSCRF
| . . . . . Issue Rating Trend Explanation for trend
ST LR et s e e e 2 Covmmencren sposc o Bt eotaons it i 0 s
Yr Budget Forecast % (Variance) YTD Profile YTD Actual % (Variance) Supnly P ’ P g increased the likelihood of a disorderly exit
Q4 918.3 2 The number of EU-national rough sleepers is increasing, and the lack of options for this A The annual CHAIN statistics will show an increase in the number of rough
Q3 214.0 group limits the progress we can make in reducing the numbers on the streets sleepers in London during 2018/19
Q2 80.7 3 Not all boroughs or G15 housing associations are contributing their quota of properties > € Performance has stabilised and the impact of measures that have been put
Q1 9183 9129  99% (-5.4) 30.7 357 116% (5) to Housing Moves in place will be reflected over the remainder of the year

HandL Q1 2019/20 Dashboard (version provided to Committee Services 16 August)



Overview: Planning Performance indicators Goals

_C @

- The Unit is delivering against its plan for the year, scaling up to deliver new

19/20 > Target YTD  Conf. Base F'Cast Conf.

. . . . . . . . 'I
worlf areas,'lncludlng |mplement|rlg a commu'nlcatlons strategy to raise the % referred planning applications responded to in . . 1 Publish the new London Plan 2(?/21 -
profile and influence of the GLA in the planning system. v ime 80% 96%
- A reorganisation of the Unit has been embedded over the past year. A further
reorganisation of a small section of the service will need to be completed over , Implement a new back office system for Development Q3 )
the next few months to complete the transformation. Management 19/20
- The scale of the work means that the service has needed to expand and 2 Pre-application fee income secured £1.2m Q2
further resource is required on a temporary basis to ensure delivery of Mayoral 3, Havea live feed of development in the planning process (LDD QT ]
objectives. Automation) 20/21
-&Fhe Mayor is increasing his use of call-in powers to increase the delivery of
K@using; however, MHCLG is calling in applications for Secretary of State 03
cfhsideration, leading to delays to schemes. 3b Launch the Open Data Planning Constraints Map 2021
4 |mplement a new Communications Strategy Q3 =
19/20
Financial review
q Revenue 5 Launch a new GLA planning website 2(()2/121 =
Q4 o
Q3 () 6 Implement a new planning performance dashboard, which will be Q1 ;
. available to the public 20/21
Q2 [
Q1 _= ® 7 Introduce new digital tool to support project management & Q4 _
! : : : : transparency of the Unit 19/20
£0m £1m £2m £3m £4m

Yr Budget Forecast % (Variance) YTD Profile YTD Actual % (Variance)

Top risks and issues

Q1 4.4 4.4 100% (0) 1.2 0.7 61% (-0.5) There is a risk... Score Trend Explanation for trend
B Capital 1 Staffing issues within the team may be further exacerbated as top quality planners are A We are finding it increasingly hard to retain staff who are being approached
04 P in short supply for roles both inside and outside the GLA Group that offer better terms
3 i ° The Minister may not sign off the London Plan, despite it completing the planning N The change in Prime Minister and Ministers, and potential further changes
Q | inspection process at national government level, have the potential to exacerbate this risk
may call in all referable applications, undermining the ability of the Mayor to as committed to calling in all referable applications in London. The
Q2 ] MHCLG may call in all referable applicati dermining the ability of the May > & MHCLGh itted lling in all referable applications in London. Th
o1 T ° deliver housing numbers and increase the delivery of affordable housing appointment of a new Minister may change this position
. . : . . ; Issue Rating Trend Explanation for trend
£0.00m £0.05m £0.10m £O.15m £0.20m £0.25m £0.30m Staff Retention: Retaining staff is proving challenging in a market where there is a
. L AN The shortage of planners has become more acute
£m Cap YrBudget Forecast % (Variance) YTD Profile YTD Actual % (Variance) shortage of town planners. This has capacity implications for the team

2 Delays in securing comments on referable schemes from relevant teams n - €& Long-standing & impedes delivery of Mayoral priorities through planning

system. Requires renewed commitment from teams to meet deadlines

Developers are telling boroughs they have GLA support for developments, when this is A Borough chief planners say issue is trending up, especially as achieving
Q1 03 03 90% (-0.03) 0.0 0.0 - not necessarily the advice of the planning function viability becomes more challenging, GLA support becomes more crucial

Planning Q1 2019/20 Dashboard (version provided to Committee Services 16 August)



Overview: Regen & Economic Development Performance indicators Goals

_c § ¢ N KN -

Programmes remain on target, with significant strategic achievements. Spend is behind 19/20: _ Target YD __ Conf. Base FCast_Conf.
profile and amber. Highlights: 1 Good Growth: Cultural & community events 381 0 1 Launch the Good Work Standard Q2 =
- All RT Good Growth projects are in grant and underway. 18 R2 projects are in grant, 7 19/20
are with partners for signing. Review of unsigned contracts to take place. ) . ) . . . 04
~ The Mayor pledged £600k to 23 Crowdfund London campaigns, a record. 2a Good Growth: Jobs created or safeguarded 1,057 0 2 Working with L&P, deliver a Domestic Tourism Campaign 1920
- 14 Further Education projects have completed and are providing evaluation reports. . . , .
Richmond College is progressing well and spend is ahead of forecast. 2b Good Growth: Sqm public realm created or improved 19,900 0 n 3a g:r:!czg;he draft Evidence Base for London's Local Industrial 13/220 - n
- 28 Skills for Londoners projects are in delivery. 33 have completed. -
- Med(City secured funding from Research England. 2c Good Growth: Sqm commercial space created, 20,000 0 3b Finalise London’s Industrial Strategy Q4 =
- The Mayor's Technology for Business Service launched and has been recruiting improved, brought back into use ' 19720
companies to help them grow using Al. Skills for Londoners and Further Education Capital: 10,000 Q2
- Officers are in discussions with partners regrading the 2019/20 Civic Innovation 3a New learners assisted (TBO) g <) el k2 Eevee (A i 19/20
Challenge, which will deliver a scaled version of the project at a lower proportional cost. el o Lomdenams erel [ Turdher | uetien ez
b . : pital: N . . Q3
- We held 3 Techinvest events, each with over £1bn of deployable capital represented. 3b R SiEs 500 0 5 Finalise CleanTech London Strategic Partnership 19,20
4 Londion & Felitntis: Elioss Vellis Aeter seoms ey £190m  £85m 6 Launch the £100m Greater London Investment Fund Ol - CG
sectors 19/20
. . . London Growth Hub: Businesses receiving . . Q2 Q3
Financial review 5a et & culset Ghielh & mediom e 500 Q2 7a Launch Round 2 of the Small Projects and Equipment Fund 19/20 19/20
q Revenue . . . Q1
Q4 P 5b MedCity: Engagement and new customers supported 125 61 (TBQO) 7b Launch Round 3 of Skills for Londoners Capital Fund 20/21
Q3 o 5c¢ Funding London: SME jobs created and safequarded 479 Q2 n 8 Launch Round 3 of the Good Growth Fund 19Q/220 = n
Q2 ) Good Growth Fund and Skills for Londoners Capital . Q4 _
| 6 g e oy £33m Q2 9 Fully commit LEAP Growth Deal Fund 20/21
Q1 @ Civic Innovation Challenge: Companies benefitin . . . . 3
' ' ' ' ' ' ' / from codesign & access ?o markei opportunities ’ L 2 L0 Lok & omstng e (@il 15?/20 )
£0m £5m £10m £15m £20m £25m £30m )
1 Agree the Crystal Palace National Sports Centre operator Q3 .
YrBudget Forecast % (Variance) YTD Profile YTD Actual % (Variance) procurement strategy 19/20
Qg‘? 30.2 15 Complete stage 2 design development for the Crystal Palace 03 i n
: : National Sports Cent 20/21
= 175 Top risks and issues ational sports Centre /
R 10.8
Q1 30.2 26.7 88% (-3.5) 5.2 49 93% (-0.3) There is a risk... Score Trend Explanation for trend
B Capital . RED is unable to maximise the impact of its programmes due to funding not being > € 2018/19 spend met revised forecasts. Q1 spend is £0.4m below forecast.
Q4 ® allocated and/or spent within approved timescales Good progress across Good Growth Fund and SfL Capital Fund
3 i ° Of no/reduced future Growth Deal funding after 2021 due to government prioritising A Uncertainty from changes at national government level. Consultation on the
Q | investment outside of London/ GLA remit and on capital infrastructure Shared Prosperity Fund has been continually delayed
Q2 ® 3 Employers don’t engage with the Good Work Standard, because it is felt to be too hard > 34 employers accredited at launch. 49 are working through the process.
T or not useful Mayor has called for as many orgs as possible to sign u
o Y y y orgs as p gnup
| . . . ; . Issue Rating Trend Explanation for trend
£0m £20m £40m £60m £80m £100m

Project outputs are not always initially evidenced properly by partners. The data v GLA-OPS will be used to manage R3 of the GGF to enhance data capture;

YrBudget Forecast % (Variance) YTD Profile YTD Actual % (Variance) collection process needs to be made more consistent and streamlined n albeit there is some delay in OPS roll out to other areas
Q4 107.3 Ongoing Brexit uncertainty is impacting programme delivery, particularly construction No‘dee'ﬂ Brexit Iend Oct WOUId S EIETE LIS E S AU HET .
2 X - . : AN reviewing GLA's potential response to complement emergency-planning
Q3 30.4 projects, availability of labour and the broader business community work
Q2 15.5 3 Aligning the LEAP's investment priorities for the London Co-Investment Fund with A New issue. Meeting being organised between FL and LEAP Members to find
% (- % (- LEAP priorities, including diversity focus, and what Funding London can deliver way forward
Q1 107.3 55.7 51% (-51.7) 3.2 2.7 83% (-0.5) g y g y

RED Q1 2019/20 Dashboard (version provided to Committee Services 16 August)



Overview: Skills & Employment

Delivery highlights include:
- Adult Education Budget (AEB) implementation remains on track for 1 August. Both
AEB grant and procured providers have completed onboarding sessions and registered
on GLA OPS. Related policies/guidance have been published. Work is ongoing to finalise
audit approach and develop OPS reporting functionality.

- ESF 19-23 procurement is subject to some delays; but up to 22 of a likely 33 contracts
will start delivery in September. Overall ouputs over the 4-year contracts are not at risk.
Further procurement activities are planned for the autumn, over two or more rounds, to
allocate the full budget for overall 37 ESF contracts. An ESF Programme ‘Project Change
Request” was submitted in June to combine both ESF programmes, ensuring the unspent
c&mitment will be addressed in the new programme.

“Brocurement of Mayor's Construction Academy capital projects was completed and the
suncessful organisations were announced in May.

- While there are slight delays in a small number of areas, these are not critical.

Financial review

. Revenue
Q4 o
Q3 o
Q2 ()
Q1 ()
£0m £1m £2m £3m £4m £5m £6m
*excludes AEB funding
£m Rev Yr Budget Forecast % (Variance) YTD Profile YTD Actual % (Variance)
Q4 6.1
Q3 3.4
Q2 2.1
Q1 6.1 4.8 77% (-1.4) 0.8 0.1 13% (-0.7)
_ Capital
Q4 ()
Q3 ()
Q2 ()
Q1 E ()
£0.0m £0.5m £1.0m £1.5m £2.0m £2.5m £3.0m £3.5m
Yr Budget Forecast % (Variance) YTD Profile YTD Actual % (Variance)
Q4 3.0
Q3 0.7
Q2 0.6
Q1 3.0 3.0 100% (0) 0.3 0.1 22% (-0.3)

Performance indicators

1a

1b

1c

1d

3a

3b

4a

4b

4c

5a

5b

Goals

Base F'Cast Conf.

19/20 - Target

Digital Talent Programme: Start-ups and SMEs 133 03 1 Launch and publish the Mayor’s Vision for skills and employment Q2
accessing higher-level skills for Londoners 19/20
. Publish draft funding rules policy in preparation of year two of Q3 Q2
: 2 )
Digital Talent Programme: Educators supported 300 Q2 N/A AEB delivery 19/20 19,20
Digital Talent Programme: University students 250 04 N/A 3 Complete the commissioning of the Mayor’s ESF 2019-23 Q1
supported Programme 20/21
Digital Talent Programme: Young Londoners . Q4 _
el el G sruites 255 Q2 4 Complete full allocation of 2019/20 delegated AEB 19,20
. N Develop MVP 1 and 2 of GLA OPS for AEB and ESF projects Q4 .

APRIETEEERITS BB S 2y Q3 N/A 3 (various functionality for provides & analyse and reporting) 19/20
Construction Academy: Employers engaged 547 Q2 n 6 Begin delivery of the Mayor’s Apprenticeship Programme 19(2/20 n
Construction Academy: Learners into employment or 1776 02 7 Announce the Mayor's Construction Academy Hub, Capital and Q4 _
apprenticeships ’ Quality Mark providers 19/20
ESF 19-23 Priority 1: Participants entering 565 02
employment
ESF 1'9723 Priority 1: Participants entering education 648 02
or training
ESF 19-23 Priority 1: Participants sustaining EET for 156 02
26 weeks of 32
ESF 19-23 Priority 2: Gaining an L3 (or a unit of)

I ; 60 Q3
qualification or higher
ESF 19-23 Priority 2: Micro businesses and SMEs 648 03 N/A

completing projects

Top risks and issues

There is a risk...

Score Trend Explanation for trend

ﬂ WV Trend decreasing as a result of control measures in place

Close monitoring, sharing of best practice and the planned careers campaign
are reducing the risk

Issue Rating Trend Explanation for trend

The apprenticeship programme experiences further slippage due to staff shortage and
complexity of the collaboration with main pilot delivery lead

Additional staff resource has been allocated to the project, including
governance structures. Too early to determine if risk is reducing

Individualised Learner Record (ILR) data returns may not be ready in time to support a
smooth transition to GLA AEB programme delivery

Construction Academy Hub Diversity targets (Female 30% / BAME 32%) may be
achieved given current representation in the construction industry

ESF 2014-21 total budgets yet to be fully committed, pending the development of
further suitable proposals

Rolling budget from the 14-20 into 19-23 programme will ensure
underspends are utilisied

Delays to the careers campaign due to lack of staffing resource. The careers campaign is

Decision drafted. This would allow for additional resource to progress activity.
: : 2 . : > €
integral to broadening participation in construction learning and employment

Discussions with Marketing and the Hubs in train

Delays to finalising GLA AEB Supplementary Data requirements and collection
arrangements, which providers need to be aware of at enrolment

W The actions in place is seen as sufficient to reduce the probability of risk

SE Q1 2019/20 Dashbhoard (version provided to Committee Services 16 August)



Overview: Team London & Sport Performance indicators Goals

KN KN KN @

19/20: Target YTD Base F'Cast Conf.

[R]
o
3
bl
©
—

- Feedback on the new volunteering website has been positive. We are now looking to a . 7073 Deliver the EURO 2020 Host City Volunteer programme, 01
2nd development phase. However, the reporting mechanism is not working (although 1 Volunteering through GLA programmes 25,000 zertel 1 et 2000 el 20/21
data are being captured) so we are unable to quantify the new site's impact. This is . : : ;
being worked on as a matter or urgency. 2 Fgrces;'for Lort1d9q. Veterans into employment, 64 1 2 Rerc]n#tti'l'teathsndEn %mbadssador anﬂ.major evelnts Ivqunteer 21Q222 _ n
- Community Sport and Team London continue to integrate their work. This is leading to education or training cohort that matches London demographics more closely /
smoother work processes. With the approval of the new Unit structure, there will be 3 Head 2Work: Young people sustaining employment, TBC 04 N/A 3 Work with at least 10 volunteer involving organisations to Q2 .
further progress. Understaffing continues to impact on the work of Community Sport. education or training understand volunteering messaging 20/21
Recruitment can now begin to put in place a permanent team. The aim is to have new - HeadStart Action R1: Young people completing a 475 154 n Deliver at least one coordinated funding campaign/event with Q2
team members in place by October. social action project London Giving stakeholders/philanthropy community 20/21
- Community Sport spend and budgets have been validated and remodelled. Refreshed Allocate the final dof Y Lond Inspired fundi 04
budgets take into account the historic delays to Sport Unites arsing from understaffing, 5 London Enterprise Adviser Network: Volunteers active ~ 310 100 n 5 (ﬂO]Cgk(; toea In:]o;icr)::telo 150urr;gu sn oners Inspired funding 19/20 n
including funding agreements we had not been able to enter into and the delay PP y 1> group
appointing a monitoring and evaluation contractor. 6 Young Londoners Inspired: Volunteers recruited 350 142 n 6 Recruit 470 Enterprise Advisers 232/221 - n
Sport Unites Sport for Social Integration grants: To succeed LEAN, develop new partnerships with Careers & Q3
7a . 7,500 3,500 7 . . =
Participants Enterprise Company or new internal careers offer support prog 20/21
. . . . . ) - Develop a successor programme to Team London Young Q2 ;
Fina nC|a| review 7b Sport Unites Active Londoners grants: Participants 3,500 Q2 n 8 Ambassadors 20,21
q Revenue Sport Unites workforce, tech & capacity building pilot: Analyse outputs and outcomes of Sport Unites and design Phase Q2
7c . 1,500 350 9 -
Q4 o Participants 2 programme 21/22
3 i ° 10 Sports Unites funding: x3 rounds for London Together; x1 for Q1 }
Q | workforce dev; and mobilise for x3 Model City coalitions 21/22
Q2 [
Q1 [ )
£0m £5m £10m £15m
Yr Budget Forecast % (Variance) YTD Profile YTD Actual % (Variance)
Q4 14.9
= 88 Top risks and issues
% 4.7
Q1 14.9 15.4 103% (0.5) 1.7 0.9 52% (-0.8) There is a risk... Score Trend Explanation for trend
B Capital Of a low number of applications for the Head2Work procurement, or sub-standard Lessons learnt from previous procurement applied and market warming
) S -~ > €
Q4 Py responses, because the contract value is low and the social action element specialist undertaken. But now largely out of GLA hands
3 i ° 2 Forces for London may not meet targets because participants are further away from Team London is identifying suitable volunteering opportunities. Targets are
Q | employment than anticipated (take-up of vol. opportunities is well behind profile) being reprofiled
Q2 L Sport Unites' targets not met due to: staffing issues taking longer to resolve than o . . .
o1 '. 3 planned; poor data; delays in scoping the thought leadership & sport tech workstreams v VRIS S il & GUeRlEeiie) clie) EYEINERIN (e B elis I [EEE
| : : : : : . Issue Rating Trend Explanation for trend
£0.0m £0.2m £0.4m £0.6m £0.8m £1.0m £1.2m . . . . . .
1 Lower than anticipated rate of applications for the 2,000 EURO 2020 volunteer roles Work.lng to dehyer social media and press campaign. Potential to extend the
£m Cap Yr Budget Forecast % (Variance) YTD Profile YTD Actual % (Variance) recruitment period to September
Q4 1.0 5 Sport Unites Active Londoners grants have been delayed due to vacant post in the team; v The severity is reducing thanks to temporary cover and because recruitment
protracted due diligence process; and need for legal sign-off of grant agreements or roles is underwa
Q3 0.8 d due dilig d need for legal sign-off of g g for GLA roles is underway
Q2 0.8 3 No resources outside Team London to develop GLA Employer Supported Volunteering = € Issue is being managed, but remains static
1 9 - strategy to support staff volunteering. Delays due to a vacant Team London post g ged
Q 1.0 1.0 100% (0) 0.0 0.0

TLS Q1 2019/20 Dashbhoard (version provided to Committee Services 16 August)



Appendix 1d

Appendix 3: Explanation of charts, abbreviations and
traffic light ratings on unit dashboards
Charts and abbreviations used in the unit dashboards

Finance chart

Charts and figures encompass the entire gross budget/spend for the unit.

These lines show the anticipated
cumulative spend profile for the year
(the figures in the “YTD Profile’ [Year
To Date] column of the table).

Financial review

- Revenue
Q4 )
03 1 °® The lighter segment of the bar

represents the forecast provided, at the
end of the quarter in question, by the

Q2 o unit for entire year (the figures in the
. ‘Forecast” column of the table).
Q1 @

£0m £5m £10m £15m £20m £25m £30m

Yr Budget Forecast % (Variance) YTD Profile YTD Actual % (Variance)

04 30.2

Q3 17.5

02 10.8

o1 302 256 84%(-4.6) 5.2 49  93% (-0.3)
L /

The dark segment of the bar is actual o ) ,
spend for the year up to the end of the The "% (variance)” column shows the
quarter in question (the figure in the percentqge of the annual budggt the unit is
“YTD Actual’ column of the table). forecasting to spend and then, in brackets, the
difference between the forecast and the budget.

Performance indicator tables

e Targets shown are for the financial year (noting a couple of indicators relate to academic
years). Performance ("YTD’ column) is the most up to date cumulative performance
available for the financial year.

e Where ‘Q2’ or similar is displayed in the “YTD" column, this indicates data pertaining to this
financial year is not yet available but is expected to be available in ‘quarter two” and so on.

Explanation of charts @@ \Bations and traffic light ratings on unit dashboards



Goal tables

e Inthe goal table, the ‘Base” column shows the baseline target date for achieving the goal in
question.

e The ‘F'Cast” column shows the forecast date for achieving the goal; but only where it differs
from the baseline.

Risk and issue tables

e An up-arrow indicates the risk or issue is tending to increase in severity (get worse); down
the severity is decreasing. Two level arrows indicate the trend is staying about the same.

Traffic lights
Traffic light (RAG) ratings are used on unit dashboards to indicate whether performance and
delivery is on track. Ratings are subject to challenge and moderation, to ensure consistency, by

the Governance Team and Performance & Delivery Review Group (PDRG).

Overview

Objectives

Progress is on track to deliver the unit’s objectives, as set out in its unit plan, to
time, quality and budget.

Progress is broadly on track, but delivery of some objectives is currently at risk.

On current trajectory, a number of objectives — or one critical objective — will
not be delivered to time, quality or budget.

Set timescales will be met across the objectives in the unit plan and their
supporting Pls and goals.

There are some not insignificant delays, but these are not critical to overall
delivery and should not significantly affect quality or cost.

There are critical delays against one or more of the unit plan’s objectives.

Spend

Spend remains largely to profile and in all critical areas. Any variances will not
impact on time or quality. Budget is sufficient to meet agreed objectives.

There is some deviation from profile. This may affect the pace of delivery;
and/or some budgets may be insufficient to meet objectives to time, quality or
budget.

Significant deviation from profile. Delivery is being adversely impacted and/or
set budgets are no longer sufficient.

Explanation of charts, BigevR8ons and traffic light ratings on unit dashboards



Capacity & Capability

The unit continues to have sufficient capacity and capability to deliver its
objectives.

The unit is short of capacity/capability in some areas and this is having an
impact on achieving objectives to time, quality or budget.

The unit has insufficient capability to deliver its objectives and this is having a
critical impact.

Risks are not, and are not likely to, impact on time, quality or budget. Any risks
are being well managed.

There are complex/severe risks, although these are largely well managed.
Nevertheless, as things stand, there could be a not insignificant impact on time,
quality or budget.

There are complex/severe risks that are likely to be realised and to have a
critical effect on delivery of the unit’s objectives to time, quality or budget.

Performance indicators

Confidence (Conf.)

End targets and interim targets will be met in full and on time.

Some interim targets are likely to be missed. But it is likely the main target will
be hit / not missed significantly. Careful monitoring required.

As things stand, there is a high probability the main target will be missed
significantly. Action needed.

Complete. CG indicates the target was met in full or exceeded. CA that the
target was missed, but not significantly. CR means the target was missed
significantly.

It is not possible to set a traffic light. This might be because there is not yet a
target or comparator. Or it might be that there is insufficient information to
reach a reasoned judgement (see note below).

Determining traffic lights where there is no Pl data for the period in question

Given the traffic light is a measure of confidence in achieving targets, it follows that it may still
be reasonable to set a traffic light where there is no data for the period in question. In such
cases, the traffic light might be based on past progress against targets; and/or it might be
based on sound intelligence and/or ancillary data about how well delivery is going.

Traffic lights are not set where the rating is essentially guesswork. Green traffic are, similarly,
not used as a default: there must be evidence delivery is going well.

A justification for the traffic light must be given.

Explanation of chartsP@ge\8&ions and traffic light ratings on unit dashboards



Goals

Overall rating

Successful delivery to time, quality and budget is highly likely. There are no
risks or issues significantly threatening delivery.

Successful delivery is feasible. But there are serious risks/issues and these could
lead to a not insignificant delay and/or impact on quality or budget. Close
attention is required.

Successful delivery is in significant doubt as things stand. Urgent and extensive
action is required.

C Complete. CG indicates the goal was delivered in full. CA that the goal was
(G/A/R) delivered, but with a not insignificant delay and/or not the full extent
anticipated. CR means the goal was not delivered; or not in a way that realised
set ambitions, with a significant adverse impact compared with delivering it in
full.

Risk

Risks are scored as per the methodology in the GLA’s Risk Management Framework. The impact
is judged with reference to the unit’s objectives; ie. the rating flows from the question: How
likely and to what extent is the risk likely to impact on delivery of unit objectives?

4
Highly Likely

3

Probable

: L .
Improbable
L .

PROBABILITY

1 2 3 4
Moderate Significant Substantial Catastrophic

IMPAC

arts, doreViatons ana tra a dashboards




[ssues

Issues are similarly judged with reference to the impact on delivery of the unit’s objectives; ie
with reference to the question: How much of an impact is the issue having on unit objectives -
high, medium or low?

Explanation of chartsPidgevi&libns and traffic light ratings on unit dashboards



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 102



Appendix 1e

Corporate Health Performance Indicators

Quarter 1 - 2019/20

KEY

AS The Assembly Secretariat
C&l Communities & Intelligence and External Affairs
DE&E Development, Enterprise & Environment

H&L Housing & Land

MO The Mayor's Office

R&CO Resources and Chief Officer's

‘ﬁ‘ Improved performance from the previous quarter
¢> No significant change in performance

@ Deteriorating performance

Note where performance is meeting or is above target, the traffic light is green;
where performance is missing the target, a bespoke and pre-determined
threshold is used to determine whether performance is amber or red.

Page 103

Q1 2019/20 CHPI Report (version provided to Committee Services 16 August)



Q1 CHPI Report Summary

Theme Ref. Pl Title Target Performance RAG Trend
Percentage of posts moving from 'approval to fill' to o o
n advert within 10 working days 90% 85% ﬁ
An Percenta i
ge of agency staff that are covering posts o o
organisation on the establishment 80% 76% ﬁ
with eff|C|(?nt E3 Spend on temporary agency staff as a percentage of 5 59 5 6% O'
and effective total staffing costs
SUpF)OI’t Periegfage of time for which the GLA network is 99 9% 98.2% g
services avarlable
Percentage of time for which the GLA email service o 0
ﬂ is available from City Hall 99.9% 99.9% ﬁ
Percentage reduction in usage of electricity and gas 4, o
m at City Hall from a 2017/18 baseline 2% 12% &
Percentage fall in CO2 emissions from City Hall EAO 200,
m electricity, gas and travel from a 1990 baseline >0% 49% g
A greener Percentage reduction in waste produced at City Hall -13% o
et inst a 2017,/18 baseli -23%
organisation against a aseline By year-end
o}
Percentage of waste recycled 86.5% 84% ﬁ
By year-end
fChange in number of sides printed on Cjty Hall multic -10% 5.0% ﬁ
unctional devices from 2018/19 baseline .
y year end
The average number of days lost to sickness 50 3.1 ﬁ
absence per member of staff ) Yrto end O1
Leavers in the past 12 months as a percentage of 15% 16% <:>
(0]
ﬂ the total number of staff Yrto end O1
Fixed-term contracts as a percentage of all fixed- 0 o
A people n term and permanent staff in post 15% 20% ﬁ
focussed .
organisation Percentage of female staff within the workforce 46% 58% ﬁ
London
0
Percentage of BAME staff within the workforce 36% 27% <:>
London
[0)
m Percentage of disabled staff within the workforce 12% 4.5% “ <:>
London
m Percentage of all invoices paid within 30 days 90% 94% n ﬁ
Percentage of invoices from SMEs paid within ten o o ©
mworking days 90% 86%
Volume of correspondence responded to within 20 0 o
An - ﬂworking days 90% 79% g
organisation
. Percentage of Freedom of Information requests o o <:>
that is . n responded to within 20 working days 90% 94%
responsive to Th ber of data breaches within the GLA 9
. e number of data breaches within the over
the public 10 2l
the past year Yrto end Q1
The number of notifiable data breaches within the 0 0 <:>
GLA over the past year it @it Q)
Percentage of Mayoral Questions for the GLA o o
E published by the statutory deadlinePage 104 95% 96% .

Q1 2019/20 CHPI Report (version provided to Committee Services 16 August)



Ref. Pl Title Target Q1 Perf. RAG  Trend 12 Mnth Perf.

Percentage of posts moving from ‘approval
to fill' to advert within 10 working days

90% 85% 1 64%

Target
3 of 5 posts ;

AS :
8of 9 i

AN P

4 of 24

C&l
18 of 28

34 of 44

4 of 15

DE&E
11 of 28

20 of 27

4 of 10

H&L
10 of 12

46 of 59

MO
20f2

3of3

4 of 10

R&CO .
20 of 21

18 of 23

19 of 65

GLA

69 of 100

142 of 168

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%
Q2 =Q3 mQ4 mQ1

Commentary

There was a marked increase in the number of posts advertised compared to Q4. Performance continues to improve,
despite the increase in volume: there was a marked improvement between Q4 and Q1 (69% to 85%). The average
number of days to advertise a post in Q1 was 9.5.

The improved performance has been supported by HR&OD putting in place measures to speed up recruitment times for
established posts. Cohort recruitment and the streamlining of the interview stage, in particular, have both helped
significantly. The streamlining has reduced the time pressures and administrative burden of the HR Resourcing team,
allowing more time and effort to be invested in refhamyeg 168 wait times from approval to advert.

Q1 2019/20 CHPI Report (version provided to Committee Services 16 August)



Ref. Pl Title Target Q1 Perf. RAG  Trend 12 Mnth Perf.

Percentage of agency staff that are covering
posts on the establishment

80% 76% 1 65%
Avg of end each Q

Target
i  10f 1agency staff
AS 6ofs IR
19 of 20
14 of 27
Cad 15 of 23 |
24 of 28
7 of 16 :
DE&E 11 of 18
12 of 22
20f3
H&L 20f 3
3of5
Oof 1
0of 1
MO Oof 1
12 of 31
R&CO 29 of 38
33 of 44
36 of 79
Total 63 of 91
92 of 121
0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

02 mQ3 mQ4 mQ]l

_ Covering Established Post Not Covering Established Post All Temps
<ive | >=1vr | Toal | v [ >=1vr | Toal | |
20

AS 19 0 19

1 0 1
C&l 21 3 24 4 0 4 28
DE&E 11 1 12 8 2 10 22
H&L 2 1 3 2 0 2 5
MO 1 0 1 1 0 1 2
R&CO 22 11 33 7 4 11 44
GLA 76 16 92 23 6 29 121
Commentary

The number of agency staff engaged by the GLA increased to 121 by the end of Q1, compared with 91 at the end of Q4. The
increase in the establishment as the GLA takes on additional responsibilities has, over the medium term, in turn increased use of
agency staff; in particular, to cover established posts while recruitment takes place.

The proportion of agency staff covering an established post continues to increase. The GLA only uses agency staff when there is a
clear business need and Corporate Management Team closely monitors agency staffing. New measures to expedite recruitment

times (see E1) are expected to reduce the reliance on agency staff.
Page 106

Q1 2019/20 CHPI Report (version provided to Committee Services 16 August)



Ref. Pl Title Target Q1 Perf. RAG  Trend 12 Mnth Perf.

Spend on temporary agency staff as a percentage o o o
of total staffing costs 5.5% 5.6% g 5.2%

Target

AS .

: -

h r

MO
- —

h _

0% 2% 4% 6% 8% 10% 12% 14% 16% 18%
Q2 "Q3 mQ4 mQ1

Commentary

Across Q4 last year and Q1 this year, spend on agency staff remained broadly constant.

The primary contributor to the high proportion of spend on agency staff in Resources is the Finance & Governance
Unit. This has been to backfill vacancies at short notice and where specialist staff have been required.

See also commentary for E2. Page 107

Q1 2019/20 CHPI Report (version provided to Committee Services 16 August)



Pl Title Target Q1 Perf. RAG Trend 12 Mnth Perf.
Percentage of time for which the GLA network is @ 99 5%

available
0 99.9%

99.9% 98.2%

Percentage of time for which the GLA email
service is available from City Hall

99.9% 99.9%

Target

1 hrs of doiwntime

Network
2 hrs
Email
98.0% 98.5% 99.0% 99.5% 100.0%
Q2 "Q3 mQ4 mQ1
Commentary

E4 - Network reliability: During QT the GLA network experienced serious and separate problems that caused outages and
disruption to IT services. The problems have persisted and our supplier and contractors are working to resolve them.
Improved procedures have been put in place to enable TfL to reset the network link to Woking (our shared drive data store
location) more quickly and get systems back on-line. Note the figures include planned (out of working hours) as well as un-
planned downtime.

E5 - Email service reliability: The problems noted above also impacted on the email service via Outlook. Emails were,
however, available by other means during these periods.

Page 108

Q1 2019/20 CHPI Report (version provided to Committee Services 16 August)



Ref. Pl Title Target Q1 Perf. RA Trend 12 Month Perf.

Percentage reduction in usage of electricity and o o g .
gas at City Hall from a 2017/18 baseline 2% 12% 5%

1,000,000
800,000
600,000
400,000
200,000
o & o RN N ¥ %\Q,\ o o &P

o§o,o, > & & 0'?0,6? O,Q"o?‘

Utilities Usage In KwH
1,800,000

1,600,000

1,400,000

1,200,000 12% change

o

B Electricity = Gas

808,788 770,587 833,459 158,081 115,669 253,683 966,869 886,256 1,087,142

Q2 823,542 774,168 52,843 20,415 876,385 794,583

Q3 884,642 884,677 387,221 413,525 1,271,863 1,298,202

Q4 920,085 910,865 552,308 635,924 1,472,393 1,546,789

Total KwH 3,437,057 3,340,297 833,459 1,150,453 1,185,533 253,683 4,587,510 4,525,830 1,087,142
Q1 284 218 230 29 21 47 313 239 277
Q2 290 219 10 4 299 223

Q3 311 250 71 76 382 327

Q4 323 273 102 117 425 390

Total tCO2 1,208 961 230 212 218 47 1,420 1,179 277
Commentary

The data show gas consumption was more than double that in Q1 2018/19. This was due to the gas being turned on until mid-
June, later than previous years.

Electricity consumption was 8% higher than Q1 of 18/19; reflecting in part the roll-out of mobile IT equipment (meaning many
staff have both a desktop PC and a laptop). Facilities Management continues to work with TfL and external consultants to review
and develop capital investments at City Hall that will improve energy efficiency (e.g. replacing light bulbs with LEDs). Once an
energy efficiency refit plan has been approved, the current target will be updated.

gy y P PP Bage fé]ﬁ P

Q1 2019/20 CHPI Report (version provided to Committee Services 16 August)



Ref. Pl Title Target Q1 Perf. RAG  Trend 12 Month Perf.

Percentage fall in CO2 emissions from City Hall  -50%
electricity, gas and travel from a 1990 baseline

-49% J -52%

-60% by '25

CO2 Emissions In Tonnes
600

500

400
-49% change

300
-
100 I I

0

® S o ® o o ® S o ® S o
A& A& RO A&
N N N q Q q % % > > > >
Q Q Q Q! Q Q) Q Q \f Q Q Q
. Flectricity Gas Flights .-+ 2025 Target

tc02 |  Electiity | G |  Flighs |  Total |
Q1 284 230 29 21 47 409 345 336

218 95 106 59
Q2 290 219 10 4 39 78 338 301
Q3 311 250 71 76 136 40 518 366
Q4 323 273 102 117 51 14 476 404
Total 1,208 961 230 212 218 47 322 238 59 1,742 1,417 336
Commentary

There are two recommended approaches to reporting emissions: market-based, which reflects the GLA's choice of electricity
supply (and that, as of April, we have chosen a 100% renewable energy supply); and location-based, which reflects the emissions
from the UK grid. Previously our primary measure was the former; but it will now be the latter. We will, however, continue to
report the market-based emissions figure in commentary.

Using the location-based method, our carbon emissions are slightly higher than those in Q4. Given the reducing carbon intensity
of the national grid, the increase in energy consumption at City Hall (see G1a) was the main cause.

Using the market-based method, carbon emissions are now 91% lower than the baseline, meaning emissions from flights are the
GLA's only remaining source.

Note: a) electricity use at Trafalgar Square (about 10 per cent of City Hall's electricity usage) is estimated; b) flight data are not
currently available for Q1 so the average of last year's quarters has heen used as a proxy.
y Q g year's q Bage $efigs @ proxy

Q1 2019/20 CHPI Report (version provided to Committee Services 16 August)



Ref. Pl Title Target Q1 Perf. RAG Trend

Percentage reduction in waste produced at City Hall againsta -13.3% o
) -23%
2017/18 baseline .
y year-end
(o)
Percentage of waste recycled 86.5% 84.4%
By year-end

City Hall Waste and % Recycled (rolling years)

210,000 0.5% change 90%

Baseline
200,000 88%
-6.8% change
190,000 86%
180,000 84%
-14.2% change
170,000 82%
160,000 -22.9% change 80%
150,000 78%
Q417/18 Q218/19 Q318/19 Q418/19 Q119/20
= Total Waste Recycled
Commentary

G2a: The amount of waste produced in City Hall continues to fall and the March 2021 target is currently being surpassed. If this
reduction is maintained, then the target will reviewed. In addition, the Environment Team is considering introducing sub-targets for
particular categories of waste - residual waste, food waste, plastics and paper - to drive further reductions.

The quality of the data supporting this Pl has improved. From April 2019, all contractor waste trucks have onboard weighing
apparatus, negating the need to estimate elements of the data using industry standards.

G2b: The recycling rate for the quarter (88%) was above the 2019/20 target (rolling year performance was 84%). This explains the
green traffic light. City Hall performs far better than the Better Building Partnerships good practice benchmark of 52%.

Note the targets for both these Pls have been updated for 2019/20 to reflect the need to meet longer-term ambitions.

Work has progressed on a new measure to track the percentage of hot drinks served in the City Hall cafe in reusable cups. Data
shows, of the number of 'take away' coffees served in Q1, 16% were in a reusable cup. It is planned to report on this as a measure
in its own right from Q2. Performance improvement will be supported by the 10p surcharge for disposable cups.

Page 111

Q1 2019/20 CHPI Report (version provided to Committee Services 16 August)



Ref. Pl Title Target Q1 Perf. RAG  Trend

Change in number of sides printed on City Hall multi-functional -10%

_C NO 1r
devices from 2018/19 baseline 5.0%
By year end

| Target

0.5m | Total = 1.39i

0.55m | Total = 1.38m

0.54m | Total = 1.42m

Q1 0.43m | Total = 1.22m
0 200,000 400,000 600,000 800,000 1,000,000 1,200,000 1,400,000 1,600,000
mB&W  Colour
Commentary

Paper is the most common contributor to waste in offices and a major purchasing and disposal cost: it is estimated the
average office worker uses up to 45 sheets of paper per day, of which over half is considered waste.

The GLA printed 5.7m sides of paper on multi-functional devices in 2018/19 - roughly 23 pages per member of staff

per working day - which is the baseline for this PI. An aspirational target has been adopted to achieve a 30% reduction
by March 2020, with a T0% cut this year.

Note that, given uncertainties related to this indicator - the lack of timeseries data, the impact of new ways of working
and staffing levels, among others - it may be necessary to arpgbqatﬁéarget in future.

Q1 2019/20 CHPI Report (version provided to Committee Services 16 August)



Ref. Pl Title Target Q1 Perf. RAG  Trend

The average number of days lost to sickness absence per member of 50 ﬂ
staff Yrto end Q1

Target

AS

C&l

DE&E

H&L

MO

R&CO

GLA

Q2 Q3 mQ4 mQ1

Commentary

Sickness rates at the GLA continue to compare favouably to both the public and private sector (as reported in the CIPD
Health and Well-Being at Work Survey, May 2019), with a large decline is sickness absence since Q4 of 18/19.

GLA managers are responsible for recording sickness on internal systems as part of their management duties. The GLA
offers a wide range of flexible working options to support staff - for example, dependency leave - which may
contribute to the relatively low levels of sickness absence.

The target has been reduced to five days for 201 9/20 to reflect that sickness across sectors has reduced. It is currently
an average of 5.6 days in the private sector. Page 1

Q1 2019/20 CHPI Report (version provided to Committee Services 16 August)



Ref. Pl Title Target Q1 Perf. RAG  Trend

Leavers in the past 12 months as a percentage of the total number 15% 16% <:>

of staff Yrto end Q1

+ Target

29 leavers of 92 staff

AS ’
25 of 90
27 of 86
45 of 232
C&l
51 of 264
51 of 262
35 of 271 !
DE&E |
38 of 317 ;
38 of 321 !
13 of 105 !
H&L |
13 of 115 ;
120f 119 §
2 of 66
MO !
5 of 69 ;
|
27 0f 187 |
R&CO ’
30 of 171
35 of 178
151 of 953
GLA i
162 of 1026
166 of 1040
0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35%
Q2 »Q3 mQ4 mQ]
Commentary

Turnover is consistent with previous quarters. The GLA has the same turnover rate as the public sector, but a lower
turnover than the private sector (27%, XPert HR Labour Turnover Survey, 2018).

Although high turnover is problematic, some churn can be positive in order to bring in new talent. Therefore, a target
of 15% has been set for 2019/20. Page 114

Q1 2019/20 CHPI Report (version provided to Committee Services 16 August)



Ref. Pl Title Target Q1 Perf. RAG  Trend

Fixed-term contracts as a percentage of all fixed-term and o o ﬂ
permanent staff in post 15% 20%

11 FTC of 92 total staff

Target
AS i
9 of 90
7 of 86
73 of 232
C&l
72 of 264
64 of 262
72 of 271
DE&E
81 of 317
79 of 321
14 of 105
H&L
14 of 115
11 of 119
15 of 66
17 of 69
19 of 74
33 of 187
R&CO '
23 of 171 |
27 of 178
218 of 953
GLA
216 of 1026
207 of 1040
0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35%
Q02 "Q3 mQ4 mQ1
Commentary

Fixed-term contracts (FTC) have an important place in any workforce strategy, offering flexibility where employees are needed
for a specific project or where funding is uncertain. Too high a proportion of FTCs can, however, limit an organisation's ability to
retain the right skills and knowledge in the organisation and can impact engagement. Therefore, a target of 15% FTCs of the
total payroll workforce has been set.

The proportion of FTCs in Q1 was slightly lower than Q4. This was in part due to 24 fixed-term posts being converted to
permanent on 1 April. It has been agreed to convert a further 30 posts in July and this will be reflected in the Q2 data.

Note this Pl includes both Mayoral Advisors (on fixed-term contracts by law) and apprentices. It is proposed these two cohorts
are removed from figures in future. Page 115

Q1 2019/20 CHPI Report (version provided to Committee Services 16 August)



Ref. Pl Title B'mark Q1 Perf Trend

. RAG
[0)
Percentage of female staff within the workforce 46% 58% n ﬂ
London

.Benchmark
53 female staff of 92 total

AS
55 of 90

52 of 86
151 of 232
cal 173 of 264
171 of 262
154 of 271
DE&E
183 of 317
186 of 321
58 of 105
H&L ‘
63 of 115
68 of 119
| 38 of 66
MO 39 of 69
44 of 74
86 of 187 |
R&CO 75 of 171 |
810f178 [
540 of 953
GLA
588 of 1026
602 of 1040
30% 35% 40% 45% 50% 55% 60% 65% 70%
02 "Q3 mQ4 mQ1
Commentary

The GLA continues to perform well, with females making up 58% of staff compared with 46% of London's economically active
population (ONS survey). Females make up 47% of the Senior Leadership Team.

The 2019 GLA gender pay gap action plan, which was published with the GLA 2017/18 gender pay gap analysis in January 2019,
is intended to ensure we continue to perform well on gender balance. The action plan includes initiatives to strengthen
succession planning and talent management processes and to review our policies and practice around additional payments to
ensure it is fair and transparent so that women, and other groups, are not disadvantaged.

We are also helping to develop and maintain a pipeline of future senior women leaders by running a second cohort of Our Time to
support the development of women, particularly those facing mulBglegbatriebs to progression.

Q1 2019/20 CHPI Report (version provided to Committee Services 16 August)



Ref. Pl Title B'mark Q1 Perf. RAG Trend

(o)
Percentage of BAME staff within the workforce 36% 27% <:>
London
12 BAME staff of 92 total Benchmark
15 of 90
14 of 86 |
56 of 232 ;
cal
69 of 264 ;
71 of 262 i
54 of 271
DE&E |
71 of 317 ;
71 of 321 §
23 of 105 §
H&L |
25 of 115 ;
25 of 119 i
17 of 66
MO |
17 of 69 5
16 of 74 |
{ 77 of 187
R&CO ’
80 of 171
79 of 178
239 of 953 '
GLA
277 of 1026
276 of 1040
0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35% 40% 45%
Q2 Q3 mQ4 mQl
Commentary

The percentage of BAME staff within the GLA workforce remains at 27%, below the representation in London's economically
active population, which is 36%. BAME staff make up 13% of the Senior Leadership Team.

The 2019 GLA ethnicity pay gap action plan, published with the GLA 2018 ethnicity pay gap analysis in January 2019, seeks to
address under-representation and promote an inclusive culture. Some of the interventions we have already introduced include
supporting the establishment of a BAME staff network, which was instrumental in developing the action plan, and signing up to
Business In The Community’s Race at Work Charter.

In addition, Executive Directors are overseeing directorate-level action plans to support the continued development of an
inclusive GLA culture. The organisation has started rolling out the 'Inclusive GLA" programme - unconscious bias learning to all
managers and staff. Other initiatives include developing a pool of GLA BAME staff to participate in interviews at any level and
widening the use of specialist recruitment search firmsﬁ%&térﬁyore diverse candidate pools.

Q1 2019/20 CHPI Report (version provided to Committee Services 16 August)



Ref. Pl Title B'mark Q1 Perf. RAG Trend

[0)
Percentage of disabled staff within the workforce 12% 5% <:>
London
Benchmark
AS
C&l
DE&E
H&L
MO
R&CO
41 BAME staff of 953 total
GLA 47 of 1026
47 of 1040
0% 2% 4% 6% 8% 10% 12%
Q2 =Q3 mQ4 mQ1
Commentary

Representation of disabled staff at the GLA, at 5%, falls below the level of representation in London's economically active
population, which is 12%. Disabled staff make up 3% of the Senior Leadership Team.

The GLA recognises work is needed to address this as a priority; that includes improving the response rates for employee
declarations so that data is more robust. The GLA Staff Network for Disability now has an Executive and Mayoral Sponsor and has
appointed two co-chairs. The network will support the GLA's work to benchmark against Disability Confident - a DWP-sponsored
scheme that supports employers to make the most of the talents and insights disabled people can bring to the workforce. Working
towards this will enable us to improve our HR policies and processes as well as our inclusive culture.

The GLA is also taking part in TfL's Steps into Work supported internship scheme for people with learning disabilities and/or
autism, by offering three (three-month) placements due to start ip&epsemb@r. A second cohort is planned for January 2020.

Q1 2019/20 CHPI Report (version provided to Committee Services 16 August)



Ref. Pl Title Target Q1 Perf. RAG  Trend 12 Mnth Perf.

Percentage of all invoices paid within 30 days 90% 94% n 93%

. Target
142 of 147 total invoices

AS ’
134 of 137
180 of 183
| 907 of 969
C&l ;
1,140 of 1,233
912 of 957
622 of 683
DE&E ’
763 of 818
640 of 670
438 of 450
H&L
607 of 631
480 of 501
52 of 54
MO
84 of 87
(X WA
915 of 1,cf104
R&CO
924 of 1,122 .
916 of 1,014
3,076 of 3,307
GLA :
3,652 of 4,028
3,196 of 3,396
70% 75% 80% 85% 90% 95% 100%
Q2 mQ3 mQ4 mQ1
Commentary

Performance remains above target. See R1b for aqﬂgaé@i@g taken to support good performance.

Q1 2019/20 CHPI Report (version provided to Committee Services 16 August)



Ref. Pl Title Target Q1 Perf. RAG  Trend 12 Mnth Perf.

Percentage of invoices from SMEs paid within o 0 0
ten working days 90% 86% <:> 83%

, Target
17 of 19 total invoices

AS
37 of 41
53 of 61 |
114 of 137 §
cal |
261 of 300 |
163 of 188 i
69 of 87 i
DE&E ‘
169 of 134
103 of 121 |
55 of 63 '
H&L
61 of 76
49 of 57
02 of 04
04 of 06
03 of 04
115 of 158
R&CO
162 of 197

121 of 143
372 of 468
GLA
694 of 804
492 of 574
40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%
Q2 =Q3 mQ4 mQ1
Commentary

Performance in Q1 was consistent with that in Q4 of 2018/19, but better than 2018/19 as a whole. This reflects
concerted efforts since late 2018/19 to shift the traffic light from red to amber. The Technical Accountancy team will
continue to encourage teams to action SAP items/workflow promptly through:

* blog postings on the intranet

* guidance in London@work

* issuing parked invoices reports on a fortnightly basis

* individual reports for select teams Page 120

Q1 2019/20 CHPI Report (version provided to Committee Services 16 August)



Ref. Pl Title Target Q1 Perf. RAG  Trend 12 Mnth Perf.

Volume of correspondence responded to within o 0 o
20 working days 90% 79% 84%

, Target

1,694 of 1,860 items of correspondence :

C&l i

1,783 of 2,024 |

1,725 of 2,055

604 of 784

DE&E ’

625 of 683

676 of 812 !

331 of 363!
H&L

350 of 413
301 of 348
558 of 744
MO
529 of 710
493 of 701

305 of 336/

R&CO :

335 of 365

239 of 288

268 of 491
VIP
250 of 481
259 of 474
1,504 of 1,594

, 00 of 00 '

Campaigns
00 of 00
00 of 00
5,354 of 6,172

GLA

3,872 of 4,676
3,693 of 4,678

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Q2 mQ3 mQ4 mQ1

Commentary

Performance has declined somewhat since the previous quarter (based on April and May data) and is below target.
During May, the Public Liaison Unit, due to unplanned absence, was not able to provide the usual level of support to
teams. The May bank holidays and other leave meigaﬁlgsg Pg\ie had a negative impact on performance.

Q1 2019/20 CHPI Report (version provided to Committee Services 16 August)



Ref. Pl Title Target Q1 Perf. RAG  Trend 12 Mnth Perf.

Percentage of Freedom of Information requests o 0 0
responded to within 20 working days 90% 94% <:> 93%

, Target
g 3 of 3 FOIs
AS ’
3of3
150f17 |
C&l
32 of 43
26 0f 29 |
DE&E ;
68 of 71
67 of 72
32 of 36
H&L :
21 of 22
160f18 |
40of 4
MO ’
21 of 22
14 of 14
135 of 146
R&CO
148 of 152
134 of 140
215 of 235
GLA ’
293 of 313
40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%
02 mQ3 mQ4 mQ1
Commentary

Requests can be considered in-time up to 40 calendar days after they were received where an FolA deadline is extended
for considering the 'public interest test', or when an EIR request is considered to be complex.

Performance has remained broadly stable over the past year, despite an increase in requests received.
Page 122

Q1 2019/20 CHPI Report (version provided to Committee Services 16 August)



Ref. Pl Title Target Perf. RAG  Trend

The number of data breaches within the GLA over the past 10 9
year Yrto end Q1
The number of notifiable data breaches within the GLA over 0 0
the past year

Yrto end Q1

0 1 2 3 4 5

m Not notifiable Notifiable

Commentary
Two breaches were reported in Q1, neither of which required notifying the ICO:
* A member of GLA staff being copied into an internal email about staffing matters.

* An external application for a GLA scheme was accidentally forward to a third party organisation. This contained personal data
relating to professional qualifications of individuals, but no private or sensitive personal data was involved.

Article 33 of the GDPR places a duty on all organisations to notify the ICO about certain types of data breach within 72 hours of
having become aware of it. Breaches are notifiable when the breach is likely to result in a risk to the rights and freedoms of the
individuals concerned. This is assessed on a case by case basis.

The GLA has set a target of O 'notifiable’ breaches in a 12-month period. This target continues to be met, and the Information
Governance team continues to work with teams to learn lessons and to improve organisational awareness of the risks involved in
handling personal data. The GLA aims to encourage the reporting of data breaches while working towards a state where they do

not occur at all. Page 123

Q1 2019/20 CHPI Report (version provided to Committee Services 16 August)



Ref. Pl Title Target Q1 Perf. RAG  Trend 12 Mnth Perf.

Percentage of Mayoral Questions for the GLA o 0
published by the statutory deadline 95% 96% . N/A

, Target

GLA 286 of 299 Mayoral Questions

LFC 37 of 38

LLDC

MOPAC 165 of 237

TfL 146 of 307

OPDC
To All
Total 637 of 898
40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% | 100%
Commentary

This is a new CHPI for 2019/20. It measures the proportion of answers to Mayoral Questions submitted to the Assembly by the
statutory deadline. The deadline is defined as being before the end of the third working day following the date of the MQT
meeting, in accordance with the duty to do so under sections 45(4)(b) and 70(6)(b) of the GLA Act 1999. Only completed
answers, not 'hold' responses, are counted towards the percentage submitted by the statutory deadline. The intention is that
reporting publicly against this Pl will demonstrate further transparency and drive improvement within teams.

In Q1 there were two MQT meetings - 16 May and 20 June. There was no meeting in April.

For the GLA Group as a whole, 51 Priority Order (Oral) questions (including urgent updates) and 898 written Mayoral Questions
were received.

Note that while the RAG rating is green for the GLA, it is red for the Group as a whole. This is influenced heavily by TfL and
MOPAC, which re assigned a large number of questions. The challenging target is a reflection of the statutory nature of Mayor's

Question Time. Page 124

Q1 2019/20 CHPI Report (version provided to Committee Services 16 August)



Appendix 2

CORPORATE
PERFORMANCE



LLDC Corporate Performance April - June 2019

CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION AND SUMMARY

Purpose of the document
Summary of progress in Q1
Financial Performance Summary

INSPIRE

Establish successful and integrated Progress against major LIVE milestones 8
nel_ghbourhoods, where people want Commentary on key LIVE projects 11
to live, work and play

Key risks and issues 12
Retain, attract and grow a diverse Progress against major WORK measures 13
range of high quallty bpsmesses and Commentary on key WORK projects 16
employers, and maximise employment _
opportunities for local people Key risks 18
Create a diverse, unique, successful Progress against major VISIT milestones 19
and flnapCIaIIy sustainable visitor Commentary on VISIT activities 22
destination

Key risks 23

DELIVER

Establish a 21st century district
promoting cross-sector innovation,

Progress against major INSPIRE milestones 24

education, culture, sport, aspiration Commentary on INSPIRE milestones 27
and participation in east London Key risks 28
Deliver excellent value for money, and Progress against DELIVER milestones 29
champion new models and standards -

which advance the wider cause of Commentary on key projects 31
regeneration, in line with LLDC's core Key risks 33

values: Ambition, Responsibility,
Collaboration, Excellence, Accessibility,
and Sustainability

Page 126



LLDC Corporate Performance April - June 2019

INTRODUCTION
AND SUMMARY

PURPOSE OF THE DOCUMENT

This is a quarterly report that provides an
update on progress in the work areas and
against the milestones in the London Legacy
Development Corporation’s (LLDC, the Legacy
Corporation) 10 Year Plan, approved March 2016
queenelizabetholympicpark.co.uk/our-story/
the-legacy-corporation/business-plan and the
Corporation’s 2019/20 budget. It also sets out
information about the Legacy Corporation’s
financial performance https://www.london.gov.uk/
sites/default/files/mayors-final-budget-2019-20.
pdf

The first section provides information about
financial performance. Subsequent sections are
grouped by the Legacy Corporation’s strategic
objectives as set out in the five year strategy:
Live, Work, Visit, Inspire and Deliver. Each section
includes progress against milestones, commentary
on major projects and key risks. Where relevant
the sections also include monitoring information
about the Legacy Corporation’s performance
against targets; the measurement of targets
commences as projects start to be delivered.



https://www.queenelizabetholympicpark.co.uk/our-story/the-legacy-corporation/business-plan
https://www.queenelizabetholympicpark.co.uk/our-story/the-legacy-corporation/business-plan
https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/mayors-final-budget-2019-20.pdf
https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/mayors-final-budget-2019-20.pdf
https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/mayors-final-budget-2019-20.pdf

LLDC Corporate Performance April - June 2019

SUMMARY OF PROGRESS IN THE QUARTER APRIL TO JUNE 2019

LLDC's major achievements during this period

are set out below. Further details can be found in

the body of the report:

The 5-year anniversary of the Park
re-opening was celebrated with an event on
the Park.

Planning Permission for East Bank's Stratford
Waterfront was granted in this period. UCL's
Reserved Matters Application was also
approved subject to conditions.

Qutline planning permission for the Hackney
Wick masterplan was issued following GLA
stage 2 sign-off.

Design teams appointed for the Pudding Mill
Lane development.

The Tessa Jowell Boulevard was unveiled

to mark the role Tessa Jowell played in
delivering the 2012 Olympic and Paralympic
Games.

The London Stadium hosted Europe’s first
ever Major League Baseball matches; the
FINA World Diving Championships were held
at the London Aquatics Centre.

As estimated 10,000 people came to the
Great Get Together community event on the
Park.

Four local young people completed the STEP
into Smithsonian training and employment
programme in Washington DC.

Page 128

AIMS FOR NEXT PERIOD

Mark the start of East Bank Construction at
Stratford waterfront and UCL East with the
Mayor attending a Ground Breaking event.
(This took place on 2 July, details in this
report).

Continue the East Bank construction,
procurement and design works.

Hold the Muller Anniversary Games in
the London Stadium then complete seat
transitions in time for the start of the
2019/20 football season.

Active East in July including free outdoor
sports sessions on the Park and community
sport activities linked to Major league
baseball, the Muller Anniversary Games and
the launch of the South Park watersports
pontoon.

The Park retains Green Flag status.

Opening two new routes from Stratford
into the south of Park to cyclists and
pedestrians.

Completion of phase 2 construction works
at Chobham Manor.

Commence Planning phase for Training
Association on site facility.

Commence procurement to select a develop
for Hackney Wick Neighbourhood centre.

Appoint training provider for Hobs Studios
Training Academy at Here East.

Commence trial of Capri project using
autonomous pods on the Park.

Commence Local Plan public examination
hearing sessions.

Unqualified external audit of LLDC, E20 and
LS185 accounts.




LLDC Corporate Performance April - June 2019

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE SUMMARY

Quarter Jun 19

Year to Jun 19

Full Year 2019/20

Capital Income

Actual
£000

Budget
£000

Variance
£000

Actual
£000

Budget Variance

£000

£000

Forecast Budget Variance
£000 £000 £000

Development 21 (11,856) 11,877 21 (11,856) 11,877((32,268) (32,268) 0
East Bank 0 (33,500) 33,500 0 (33,500) 33,500 ((39,269) (39,269) 0
Park Operations and Venues - excl Trading 0 (13) 13 0 (13) 13 (45) (45) 0
Total Capital Income 21 (45,369) 45,390 21 (45,369) 45,390((71,582) (71,582) 0

Capital Expenditure

Construction 565 1,129 (564) 1914 3,039 (1,125) 7,126 6,526 600
Development 702 3,262 (2,560) 3,089 4749  (1,660)| 22,327 22,767 (440)
Executive Office 1 7 (6) 8 20 (12) 190 228 (38)
Finance, Commercial and Corporate Services 306 227 79 432 804 (372) 6,768 5,620 1,148
East Bank 4,564 2,723 1,841 11,971 13,570 (1,599)| 86,842 86,842 0
Park Operations and Venues - excl Trading 390 526 (136) 561 1,151 (590) | 10,161 10,389 (228)
Regeneration and Community Partnerships 8 53 (45) 100 164 64) 747 782 (35)
Stadium 3,274 3,675 (401) 7,253 12,271  (5,018)| 29,182 29,945 (763)
Contingency (Cap) 0 0 0 0 0 0 7,610 8,444 (834)
Total Capital Expenditure 9,809 11,602 (1,793) 25,328 35,768 (10,440) |170,953 171,543 (590)
Net Capital Expenditure 9,809 (33,767) 43,576 | 25350 (9,601) 34,950| 99,371 99,961 (590)

Revenue Income

Executive Office (7) 9) 2 (7) 9) 2 (29) (29) 0
Development 0 0 0 0 0 0 (120) (120) 0
Finance, Commercial and Corporate Services (118) (75) (43) (118) (75) (43) (303) (303) 0
Park Operations and Venues - excl Trading (237) (946) 709 (237) (946) 709 | (3,691) (3,791) 100
Park Operations and Venues - Trading (1,763) (1,837) 74 (1,763) (1,837) 74| (7,410) (7.502) 92
Planning Policy & Decisions (410) (400) (10) (410) (400) (10) | (1,600) (1,600) 0
Total Revenue Income (2,535) (3,267) 732 (2,535) (3,267) 732 |(13,153) (13,345) 192

Revenue Expenditure

Communication, Marketing and Strategy 391 385 6 391 385 6 1,707 1,726 (19)
Development 45 0 45 45 0 45 118 118 0
Executive Office 565 637 (72) 565 637 (72) 2,551 2,551 0
Finance, Commercial and Corporate Services 1,643 1,566 78 1,643 1,566 78 6,028 6,266 (238)
Park Operations and Venues - excl Trading 2,649 2,241 408 2,649 2,241 408 9,050 8,968 82
Park Operations and Venues - Trading 1,536 2,239 (703) 1,536 2,239 (703) 9,095 8,953 142
Planning Policy & Decisions 678 628 50 678 628 50 2,476 2515 (39)
Regeneration and Community 399 439 (40) 399 439 (40) 3,274 3,289 (15)
Partnerships

Revenue Contingency 0 0 0 0 0 0 758 972 (214)
Total Revenue Expenditure 7,906 8,134 (228) 7,906 8,134 (228) | 35,057 35,358 (301)
Net Revenue Expenditure 5,371 4,867 504 5,371 4,867 504 | 21,904 22,013 (109)

Page 129



LLDC Corporate Performance April - June 2019

Quarter Jun 19 Year to Jun 19 Full Year 2019/20
Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance |Forecast Budget Variance
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Trading
Timber Lodge Café (14) 1 (15) (14) 1 (15) (5) 3 (8)
ArcelorMittal Orbit (AMO) (66) (63) (3) (66) (63) (3) (30) (252) 222
Kiosks (5) (12) 7 (5) (12) 7 (50) (50) 0
The Podium 6 (26) 32 6 (26) 32 (105) (105) 0
London Aguatics Centre 120 331 (211) 120 331 (211) 1,324 1,324 0
Copper Box Arena (22) 203 (225) (22) 203 (225) 810 810 0
3 Mills Studio (234) 0 (234) (234) 0 (234) (300) 0 (300)
Other Trading Income 3 (29) 32 3 (29) 32 (121) (265) 144
On Park Properties (25) (105) 80 (25) (105) 80 (217) (420) 203
Off Park Properties 10 102 (92) 10 102 (92) 379 406 (27)
Total Trading Net (Surplus)/Deficit (227) 402 (629) (227) 402 (629) 1,685 1,451 234
Opening Year to Forecast Forecast Headroom Headroom
balance date in-year closing operational authorised
Borrowings from GLA (£000) 326,012 13,159 92,245 418,257 51,743 61,743
S106 & OPTEMS balance (£000) 55,609
CIL balance (£000) 5,252
Page 130



LLDC Corporate Performance April - June 2019

CAPITAL

Final planning consent for Stratford Waterfront was granted in June, with the Agreements for Lease
with V&A, Sadler's Wells and UAL expected to become unconditional in the autumn. On the execution
of the lease, LLDC will receive a lease premium payment from UAL.

Receipts due from Chobham Manor sales completed in quarter 1 of 2019/20 will be confirmed in
July and recognised in LLDC's quarter 2 accounts.

There is a forecast overspend on the 3 Mills River Wall project following the discovery of concrete
and timber obstructions. A Change Control Notice was approved to adopt an alternative design
solution and corporate contingency drawn to fund this.

Corporation Tax is expected to be higher than budgeted in 2019/20 due to higher payments for the
2018/19 charge. This was driven largely by the income from Chobham Manor sales received earlier
than planned and increased revenue grant funding from the reclassification of E20 Stadium LLP loan
funding in 2018/19.

There are currently £0.8m of draws on capital contingency including £0.6m for 3 Mills River Wall
project obstruction costs.

REVENUE

Car park income is lower than anticipated, which is due, in part, to planned work on the car parks
which has restricted customer access to these facilities.

The transfer of corporate IT services to a GLA shared service has been rescheduled for operational
reasons. There is a forecast overspend as a consequence, which is offset by anticipated underspends
on staffing budgets, driven by unfilled vacancies.

Estate charge income is behind budget in the year to date pending agreement of charging schedules
with third parties. Income to date is expected to be in line with budget by the end of the next
guarter.

In the year to date trading is ahead of budget. This is driven, in part, by higher than anticipated
income from 3 Mills Studio, where a strong order book is expected to generate a full year surplus,
despite ongoing major works.

The ArcelorMittal Orbit operator business plan is currently being reviewed to establish measures to
achieve a breakeven position for the year. Elsewhere within Trading, income from on-park properties
is expected to be lower than budget due to restrictions on interim uses pending the potential
disposal of one of the development sites. Budgeted income from a new Park attraction is anticipated
to be behind budget due to delays to the project; however, this is expected to be offset by improved
performance from 3 Mills Studios rental income.

There are currently £0.2m of draws on revenue contingency including a £0.1m drawdown for fees
relating the Park’s (non-drinking) water supply.




LLDC Corporate Performance April - June 2019

1. LIVE

ESTABLISH SUCCESSFUL AND INTEGRATED NEIGHBOURHOODS,

WHERE PEOPLE WANT TO LIVE, WORK AND PLAY

Demand for new housing in London is very high,
especially in east London. The growth boroughs
have a particular need for high-quality family
homes and affordable housing, to keep people
living in the area for longer which in turn helps
to build sustainable communities.

The vision for the Queen Elizabeth Olympic
Park programme demands that new
neighbourhoods are not islands of prosperity
and excellence but properly knitted into the
existing and developing communities. It also

requires that neighbourhoods are developed

in a way that meets high standards of design,
sustainability and accessibility, delivers all the
social infrastructure required (schools, health,
community centres), and includes evidence-
based projects to develop — at pace — the things
that make communities function effectively.
Successful neighbourhoods will be vibrant,
engaged and connected, exemplifying the future
while also preserving the best of the local
heritage.

PROGRESS AGAINST MAJOR LIVE MILESTONES

MILESTONES FOR COMPLETION IN 2019/20

Chobham Manor phase 2 construction complete
and phase 3 continues on schedule.

PERFORMANCE AND COMMENTARY

The first block of the second phase of homes is
complete and mostly occupied; the rest of Phase
2 is on schedule to complete in summer 2019.
Construction works for Phase 3 is already
underway.

Page 132



LLDC Corporate Performance April - June 2019

PROGRESS AGAINST MAJOR LIVE MILESTONES

MILESTONES FOR COMPLETION IN 2019/20

East Wick and Sweetwater construction
continues on schedule, including commencement
of phase 2.

Progress master planning for Pudding Mill Lane.

Agree delivery approach for Rick Roberts Way
with London Borough of Newham and GLA.

Progress development strategy for Bromley by
Bow.

PERFORMANCE AND COMMENTARY

Construction of Phase 1 and sitewide
infrastructure works for East Wick and
Sweetwater development continued in this
period.

Design teams have been appointed for both sites
in the development: Pudding Mill and
Bridgewater.

Work continues with joint landowners LB
Newham and with the GLA to reach agreement
on a delivery strategy and programme ahead of
aiming to agree a timeline and objectives.

LLDC is working alongside key stakeholders in
the area including local landowners and as a
result the first two planning applications
submitted to the Planning Decisions Committee
(by Lindhill and Danescroft) were approved and
have subsequently been given consent by GLA.
The site has since been acquired by The
Guinness Partnership who have increased the
percentage of affordable homes to be built to
50% and will begin construction shortly.
Dialogue also ongoing with the remaining
landowners for the north of the Bromley by
Bow area.

Page 133



LLDC Corporate Performance April - June 2019

PROGRESS AGAINST MAJOR LIVE MILESTONES

MILESTONES FOR COMPLETION IN 2019/20

Commence Stratford Waterfront Residential
Developer Procurement.

Hackney Wick Neighbourhood Centre

development partner procurement complete.

3 Mills river walls repair work completed.

PERFORMANCE AND COMMENTARY

The Stratford Waterfront site’s hybrid planning
application was approved by the Planning

Decisions Committee in April 2019, with the GLA

confirming approval for Stage 2 in June.
Procurement of a developer is expected to
commence later this year.

The procurement strategy to select a
development partner was approved by LLDC's
Investment Committee in June 2017. Following
GLA planning approval, the aim is to commence
procurement in the next period.

Construction has commenced on the river wall
repair works which are scheduled to complete
this year.

Page 134

10



LLDC Corporate Performance April - June 2019

COMMENTARY ON KEY LIVE PROJECTS

Agreement has been made with the Mayor of
London on a portfolio approach to affordable
housing across all future housing developments,
which would see 50% affordable across Hackney
Wick Central, Pudding Mill Lane and Rick Roberts
Way. Discussions are ongoing in relation to
funding and delivering these developments.

CHOBHAM MANOR

Work has continued on construction of the
Legacy Corporation’s first housing development
at Chobham Manor, providing over 850 homes.
350 homes have now been completed. Phase
One (consisting of 259 homes in blocks 1A,

1B, 1C and 1D) is now fully complete. The

first block of the second phase of homes is
complete and mostly occupied; the rest of Phase
2 is on schedule to complete in summer 2019.
Construction works for Phase 3 is underway with
piling complete.

EAST WICK AND SWEETWATER

Work has continued to create new
neighbourhoods, including up to 1,500 new
homes in East Wick and Sweetwater. Phase

1 has full Reserved Matters planning and the
development secured £78m loan funding from
Homes England in this period. Construction for
the East Wick and Sweetwater development
continued in this period, with continuation of the
main works in phase 1.

LLDC is working with the developer to ensure
that Reserved Matters Applications for later
phases are submitted on time to meet planning
deadlines.

LLDC funded infrastructure works related to the
development were granted planning permission
by the PDC at its March 2017 meeting.
Construction work on Stour Road (H16) Bridge
completed in this period. Ongoing work on North
South Highway is due to complete this summer,
this has been delayed due to utility obstructions.
For the Monier Road (H14) Bridge, hoarding has
been erected and the bridge has closed to allow
works to be undertaken for completion in the
next financial year.

HACKNEY WICK CENTRAL

The Planning Decisions Committee resolved to
grant planning permission for Hackney Wick
Central in April 2017, the masterplan covering
the area around Hackney Wick Station. Outline
planning permission for the Hackney Wick
masterplan was issued in this period following
GLA stage 2 sign-off.

The procurement strategy was approved by
LLDC's Investment Committee in June 2017, with
the aim to commence procurement in September
20109.

HACKNEY WICK STATION

The improvement works undertaken at Hackney
Wick Overground Station has won two awards
in this period, a RIBA London Award 2019 and
an ICE London Civil Engineering Award for
Community Benefit.

STRATFORD STATION IMPROVEMENTS

TfL with LLDC are working together to consider
improvements to Stratford Station in the light
of the very high usage levels it is already
experiencing. The station is a challenge at busy
times such as football match days and demands
on the station will increase significantly as the
guantum of work space, homes, schools, colleges
and leisure attractions grow. Good progress

has been made on agreeing a funding package
specifically for a new entrance at Carpenters
Estate and work is ongoing with TfL on other
potential schemes.

COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL)
COLLECTION AND ALLOCATION

The Legacy Corporation is required to prepare a
report for any financial year in which it collects
CIL. The charging authority must publish the
report on its website no later than 31 December
following the end of the reported year. Updates
will continue to be made quarterly through this
report.

The Legacy Corporation started charging its CIL
on the 6 April 2015.

In Quarter 1 2019/20 two LLDC CIL payments
were received.

Date received Amount received
May 2019 £1,136,444.95
June 2019 £160,474.93
Total £1,296,919.88

The Legacy Corporation has continued to
collect Mayoral CIL: during Quarter 1 2019/20
£1,578,221.51 was collected. This will be
transferred to Transport for London (less a 4%
administration charge retained by LLDC).

Page 135

11



LLDC Corporate Performance April - June 2019

KEY RISKS AND ISSUES

SUMMARY IMPACT MITIGATION

Risk relating to capital Financial and/ or Housing strategy, tight

and revenue income. delivery impacts. monitoring and financial
Reputational control. Close working with
impacts. the GLA.

Risk relating to future Financial and Close working with GLA in

housing development reputational particular on affordable

delivery. impacts. housing, agreeing housing

strategy, ensure attractive
propositions to market.

Risk relating to current Financial and Close work with development
housing development reputational partners, close economic and
delivery. impacts. financial monitoring.

Risk relating to the Financial and Local Plan approved and
success of off-Park reputational being implemented. Work
developments. impacts. ongoing on development

opportunities including
Hackney Wick, Pudding Mill
Lane, Bromley by Bow.

Electric capacity requires Financial impacts. Energy strategy
reinforcement. commissioned, review and
implement findings.

Risk relating to impact of Reputational and Deliver a clear communication
construction on residents financial impacts. plan which manages
and visitors. expectations and explains the

reasons for the construction
work and communicates future.

Delivery of the strategy Financial and Formalised working with
for 3 Mills Studios reputational partners and engagement with
impacts stakeholders.
Page 136

12



LLDC Corporate Performance April - June 2019

2. WORK

RETAIN, ATTRACT AND GROW A DIVERSE RANGE OF HIGH QUALITY
BUSINESSES AND EMPLOYERS, AND MAXIMISE EMPLOYMENT

OPPORTUNITIES FOR LOCAL PEOPLE

London has a growing economy: the GLA projects
that the number of jobs in London could grow by
750,000 between 2010 and 2031 across a diverse
range of sectors. Nearly half (48 per cent) of
employment growth in this period is expected to
happen outside central London and businesses are
looking east for space to grow. Queen Elizabeth
Olympic Park is perfectly positioned to support
this trend, with excellent transport links, space for
office and workshop accommodation at Here East,
and with housing and leisure on the doorstep.

The surrounding area includes business districts
including International Quarter London (IQL),
Westfield, Stratford town centre, Hackney Wick
and Here East.

Transport for London (TfL) and Financial Conduct
Authority (FCA) have re-located into IQL. Other
organisations such as Cancer Research UK, the
British Council and Unicef UK are re-locating to
IQL and it is hoped they will be joined by major
commercial companies. Westfield (Europe’s largest
urban shopping centre), Stratford town centre and
the developing Hackney Wick Neighbourhood
Centre all have existing and potential thriving
business communities including a wide range

of SMEs. The Here East development in the
former Press and Broadcast Centre buildings

on the Park is emerging as an important area

for innovation with major tenants such as UCL,
Loughborough University London, BT Sport,

Studio Wayne McGregor, Hobs Studio and Sports
Interactive already in place, and significant
activity is emerging in the key modern industrial
sectors of digital technology, creative, culture

and fashion, and the automotive industry. The
Park is becoming an innovation cluster with a
global presence to stimulate economic growth
benefiting people across the four boroughs. This
has to be done in a way that complements and
boosts existing local businesses (including SMES),
and which makes connections between businesses
(big and small) that benefit them both and LLDC

is actively encouraging the development of this
network. Similarly, over the next five years, LLDC
needs to support the development of effective
links between the growing higher education
presence on the Park and local businesses. The
Legacy Corporation will use the higher education
presence to support existing businesses and
attract and generate new enterprises, an approach
that should reach its full potential through East
Bank (formerly the Culture and Education District).

A fundamental plank of LLDC's strategy is to use
its remit as a regeneration agency to ensure that
business growth, development and construction
generate job opportunities for local people, and
that local people are supported to access these
jobs and develop the appropriate skills, through
apprenticeships and other forms of vocational
training.

PROGRESS AGAINST MAJOR WORK MILESTONES

MILESTONES FOR COMPLETION IN 2019/20

Continue to deliver the QEOP ‘East Works' jobs
and skills programme.

PERFORMANCE AND COMMENTARY

Highlights in this period include the completion
of the STEP into Smithsonian programme: 4
young people undertaking a a 3 week course in
Washington DC to help progress their career in
the cultural and creative sector.

Page 137

13



LLDC Corporate Performance April - June 2019

PROGRESS AGAINST MAJOR WORK MILESTONES

MILESTONES FOR COMPLETION IN 2019/20 PERFORMANCE AND COMMENTARY

Holding the annual East Works awards. The East Works awards are being reviewed, as
the Park enters a new phase of development,
the LLDC will continue to review the most
effective mechanism for celebrating the key rol
local communities and employers have played

e

and will continue to play in the construction and

management of the Park.

Continuing the development of the QEOP Design and planning documents for on-site
Training Association, delivering the centrally facility finalised and interim training
commissioned construction training programme. arrangements in place with the Skills Centre for

during the planning phase.

Delivering the Design..Engineer..Construct (DEC) Continuing to work with the Black Training and

Building Information Modelling (BIM) curriculum Enterprise Group to support DEC candidates wh

in five local schools. have been placed into work. Engagement plan
with industry to tailor employers’ work with
individual schools.

Delivering the Hobs Studios training academy at Training provider to be appointed in the next
Here East. period, with the Academy to open in late 2019.

Page 138

(0]

14



LLDC Corporate Performance April - June 2019

PROGRESS AGAINST MAJOR WORK MEASURES

TARGETS

Construction
« 28% of the workforce have permanent
residency in Host Boroughs

PERFORMANCE AND COMMENTARY

The most recent construction figures available
are to end of May 2019
« 31% of construction employees working on the

« 25% of the workforce are from BAME groups Park are Host Borough residents

« 5% of the workforce are women
« 3% of the workforce are disabled people
« 3% of the workforce are apprentices

End-use

« 25-85% of the workforce are from Host
Boroughs

« 25% are from BAME groups

« 50% are women

« 3-5% are disabled people

« 5% are apprentices

* Against contractural target of 30 - 42%.

« 72% of the workforce are from BAME groups
« 7% of the workforce are women

« 2% of the workforce are disabled people

« 3% of the workforce are apprentices

Copper Box Arena and London Aquatics Centre
Workforce targets as of April 2019 (these figures
are reported annually):

« 67% workforce Host Borough residents

« 47% workforce are from BAME groups

« 55% workforce are women

« 4% workforce are disabled people

« There are 6 apprentices across the two sites

Estates and Facilities
Workforce targets as of April 2019:

« 64% workforce Host Borough residents
« 60% workforce are from BAME groups
« 32% workforce are women*

« 10% workforce are disabled people

« 10 apprentices on site

Page 139
15



LLDC Corporate Performance April - June 2019

COMMENTARY ON KEY WORK PROJECTS

The LLDC continues to work with its partners to
deliver jobs, training and support to businesses
through its East Works programme. Key
highlights include:

Four young east Londoners completed the STEP
into the Smithsonian - programme with our

East Bank partner, the Smithsonian Institution,
with a three-week course in Washington

DC. The Shared Training and Employment
Programme (STEP) helps local young people

to progress their career in the cultural and
creative sectors. The four - Chess Charles

from Newham, Abondance Matanda from
Hackney, Iranga Tcheko from Tower Hamlets

and Mohammed Rahman from Waltham Forest,
visited many of the Smithsonian’s museums

and research centres, exploring a diversity of
topics including; photography and print, graphic
design, African American history, popular culture,
natural history, global art forms and much

more. One of the participants has written a

blog about the experience: https://step-interns.
com/2019/05/10/step-into-the-smithsonian-pre-
departure-reflections-part-1/

The development of the QEOP Training
Association has continued with the finalisation
of the commission for lead Training Association
provider. The Training Association will be invited
to address the Committee at its next meeting.

LLDC, in partnership with the TfL (who are the
accountable body), have secured £1m funding
from the CITB through its Construction Skills
Fund to support new entrants to the construction
sector through the provision of employer-led
training courses and brokerage support. The
project is centred on the Park and will work
closely with the boroughs of Newham, Tower
Hamlets, Waltham Forest and Hackney that
surround the Park. We have the appointed

project lead and about to go to market for
training provider for courses in late summer.

3D and Virtual reality studio: mobilisation phase
is being implemented, with interviews held for
Academy Training Manager and market-testing
for Education Partner.

Part of the funding is earmarked for the delivery
of an on-site training facility and the LLDC and
TfL have been in discussion with Eastwick and
Sweetwater Ltd. (EWS), regarding the feasibility
of locating the training facility on one of the
site’s development plots.

LLDC is also part of the TfL-led Mayor’s
Construction Hub bid that was recently approved
by the GLA.

The showcase event for Flipside was held at Bio
Agency in Hackney on 15 May. This concluded
the second delivery phase of Flipside - a three-
month digital product design immersive training
programme, co-created and co-delivered by
industry - with LLDC as one of the founding
partners. During the programme 10 young
people, all of Black and Minority Ethnic heritage,
were trained and mentored by industry as they
rotated round different agencies and worked on
client briefs. Past participants have gone on to
roles in UX/UI design, User Research, Product
Design as well as videography and freelance
creative and art direction. Flipside is gaining
more traction within the industry as a talent
pipeline programme with 11 creative agencies
participating this year - 120% increase from last
year's pilot. We will continue to build on this to
scale the programme in future years.

On 15 and 16 May 2019, LLDC hosted two
Jobs and Apprenticeship Information events to
promote LLDC's business support roles to local,
host borough candidates. The event, led by
LLDC HR, provided an overview of working for
LLDC and key points on preparing a personal
statement for a job application form.

Staff members from the recruiting teams, PPDT
and Development provided personal insights
into their own experience of working at LLDC
and their job roles. We attracted over 60 local
candidates across all 4 boroughs to the event
who were referred via the local jobs brokerages
as well as community partners such as Poplar
Harca and Bromley by Bow Centre and received
excellent feedback from attendees, many

of whom indicated they will be submitting
applications. The 6 vacancies including 1
apprentice role are now live on our website.

Page 140

16


https://step-interns.com/2019/05/10/step-into-the-smithsonian-pre-departure-reflections-part-1/
https://step-interns.com/2019/05/10/step-into-the-smithsonian-pre-departure-reflections-part-1/
https://step-interns.com/2019/05/10/step-into-the-smithsonian-pre-departure-reflections-part-1/

LLDC Corporate Performance April - June 2019

The LLDC continues to work with its partners to
understand the reasons for any underperformance
against targets and to develop solutions to address
that underperformance. Areas of focus include:

LLDC are addressing local, women and BAME
performance against target with GLL who are
currently recruiting for a number of vacancies at
both centres. LLDC have discussed this issue with
borough partners and are connecting GLL to the
Black Training & Enterprise Group and West Ham
United FC Foundation who design and deliver
LLDC's East Work - careers work, with a focus

on 15-19 year olds. GLL apprentice recruitment
is currently on hold due to the changes in
qualification prerequisites for the Leisure Team
Member apprentice standard. GLL apprentice
recruitment is currently on hold due to the changes
in qualification prerequisites for the Leisure Team
Member apprentice standard.

Current workforce performance at Stratford
Waterfront on Enabling Works is on target. The
construction figures reflect under-performance

by Taylor Wimpey at Chobham Manor. LLDC now
has an embedded Employment and Skills Manager
who is working with Taylor Wimpey to monitor the
implementation of their action plan which is being
led by Taylor Wimpey's Project Director.

KEY RISKS

SUMMARY IMPACT

Risk relating to meeting
priority theme targets and
wider regeneration
aspirations.

Reputational
impacts.

Performance on disabled people and women

as part of the workforce has been inconsistent,
fluctuating above/below target and it is to
address these issues (and others such as ensuring
consistent apprenticeship delivery) that LLDC,
Taylor Wimpey, Balfour Beatty and Mace have
agreed to be founding members of the QEOP
Training Association (TA) for construction.

The founding members of the Training Association
have all signed the Memorandum of Understanding
that sets out the principles and commitments

for its governance and delivery. In this period
Lendlease agreed that they would join the
association. In this period design and planning
documents for the on-site facility were finalised
and interim training arrangements in place with
the Skills Centre for during the planning phase
which will commence in the next period.

MITIGATION

A strong set of targets
agreed through procurement
and contracts; close working
with partners.

Page 141

17



LLDC Corporate Performance April - June 2019

3. VISIT

CREATE A DIVERSE, UNIQUE, SUCCESSFUL AND FINANCIALLY

SUSTAINABLE VISITOR DESTINATION

Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park opened fully

to the public in April 2014 and from the

outset offered ‘something for everyone’ with
new parklands and playgrounds, world-class
sporting facilities open for public use, and a
varied programme of public sporting, cultural
and community events in the venues and open
spaces. Nearly four million visitors came in the
first full year — well above expectations.

The Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park brand
already competes well against other destination
hubs, and has a broad profile that is felt to be
‘different’ to existing offers.

LLDC's objective in the next five years is that
visitor numbers should be maintained at least
at current levels, and that as the Park develops
the numbers of visitors should increase in line
with that development. The Stadium brings over
a million spectators per year and raises the
profile of the Park through a global TV audience

7k . O

of millions. A growing number of people view
the Park as their local leisure space as the new
residential developments and workspaces are
occupied, and the spaces and activities in the
Park should be a vital component in joining new
and existing communities together. Attracting
visitors to the Park is important because it
ensures the financial sustainability of the venues
and the upkeep of the Park, brings people in who
will spend in the local economy (contributing

to local jobs and wellbeing), and contributes a
critical mass of people to metropolitan Stratford.
While increasing the national and international
appeal of Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park, LLDC's
visitor strategy will also ensure that it is still
viewed — and used — positively by the local
community, and maintains its reputation as
somewhere different and exciting. It will support
the GLA's cultural tourism vision, promoting
authentic cultural opportunities outside central
London.

i & = LA
:"1} % A ‘
miiflor %'g >
e s e | 3 -
(
. #
{
|'_ = - ; - -
= & \
g |
.8
 E— ] _—— -— -—




LLDC Corporate Performance April - June 2019

PROGRESS AGAINST MAJOR VISIT MILESTONES

MILESTONES FOR COMPLETION IN 2019/20

Support the delivery of a programme of major
sporting events (including the Diving World
Series), music festivals and community events.

High ropes attraction opens.

Continue Stadium operations including football,
summer athletics and Major League Baseball.

Maintain Green Flag status for the Park.

ESTIMATED DATE AND COMMENTARY

In this period the FINA World Diving
Championships was held at the London Aquatics
Centre, where three British divers who train at
the London Aquatics Centre won gold, the
Vitality Netball Superleague final, the Street
League Skateboarding World tour, the Call of
Duty World League Tournament, and FIH Pro
League international men’s and women'’s hockey
matches at the Lee Valley Hockey and Tennis
Centre.

Construction is due to commence in the next
period for completion by the end of the financial
vear.

Stadium seats were moved successfully in this
period following the end of the football season
which allowed Muse to hold a concert at the
stadium. The second seat transition took place
for the hugely successful Major League Baseball
matches on the weekend of 29 June 2019.

It is anticipated that the Park will retain Green
Flag Status in the next period.

Page 143

19



LLDC Corporate Performance April - June 2019

TARGETS PERFORMANCE AND COMMENTARY

Achieve 6.2m visitors to the Park in the context Visitor numbers to the Park for April to June
of less event space and more construction work. 2019 are estimated at over 1.5 million.

London Aquatics Centre throughput of 1m. Visitor numbers for the London Aquatics Centre
for April to May 2019 are over 180,000.

Copper Box Arena throughput of 445,000. Visitor numbers for the Copper Box Arena for
April to May 2019 are over 95,000.

ArcelorMittal Orbit throughput of 180,000. Visitor numbers for the ArcelorMittal Orbit for
April to May 2019 are over 26,000 visitors.

* Note: The Park figures for 2019/20 are estimates. The camera based approach to collecting visitor numbers was becoming
increasingly less definitive (e.g. eight cameras but over 20 entrances) and an increasing reliance on estimates. Therefore, the means
of collecting visitor numbers on the park was revised during 2018 from the camera based system to a wi-fi based approach. While
the basis of the wi-fi figures is being refined, the park estimates for 2018/19 have been extrapolated using historical park visitor
numbers and current venue figures.

Page 144
20



LLDC Corporate Performance April - June 2019

COMMENTARY ON VISIT ACTIVITIES

The Legacy Corporation, on behalf of E20
Stadium LLP, has completed its work to transform
the London Stadium in the Park into a year-round
multi- use venue to deliver a permanent sporting,
cultural and community legacy in east London.

LLDC took control of the London Stadium
operator, LS185, through the acquisition by E20
Stadium LLP of the company.

E20 and LS185's parent company Vinci came to
the agreement so both businesses could move
forward in the direction that matches their
priorities. This ends a 25-year contract - that

had 21 years to run - which was proving difficult
for both parties as it did not deliver the right
incentives for any party to maximise returns. The
deal was completed and announced in January
20109.

The operational focus remains on safety and
security for all events, but this is also an
important step in the progress which has been
made in getting the London Stadium on a firm
financial footing. It means there will be improved
opportunities to drive costs and maximise the
fantastic potential of the venue which is one of
the biggest multi-use stadiums in Europe.

LLDC is continuing to work closely with West
Ham United: legal disputes with West Ham have
been closed and LLDC is continuing to explore
with supporters some changes to improve the
seating and experience of supporters in the
Stadium. The new claret pitch side cover was
used for the first time at West Ham United'’s
match against Leicester City on 20 April 2019.

Following the end of the football season the
retractable seats were moved successfully, which
allowed Muse to hold a concert at the stadium.
The second seat transition was then undertaken
to ensure the Stadium was ready to hold Major
League Baseball (MLB) on the weekend of 29
June 2019. This was the first time MLB had ever
been held in a venue in Europe. The weekend
was a huge success, with sell-out crowds
enjoying the Boston Red Sox facing the New
York Yankees in two matches, with television
coverage around the world. Initial feedback from
MLB is that they could not be happier with how
the event went, and a full evaluation will be
undertaken.

Following hosting the Muller Anniversary Games
on 20 and 21 July, with an accompanying
schools' programme, the Stadium will move
back to football mode for the start of West Ham
United’'s 2019/20 season in August.

Park

The vital role played by the late Tessa Jowell

in securing and delivering the 2012 Olympic
and Paralympic Games for London was marked
with a ceremony to name a walkway in the Park
‘Tessa Jowell Boulevard'. The Mayor of London
joined Tessa Jowell's family and friends to unveil
a memorial plague for the walkway, which runs
through the Pleasure Gardens in the south,
starting at the ArcelorMittal Orbit and passing
along the waterways to Carpenters Lock in the
centre of the Park. New street signs have been
placed along the length of the newly named
boulevard.

Page 145

21



LLDC Corporate Performance April - June 2019

Activities on the Park in this period include the
FINA World Diving Championships at the London
Aquatics Centre, where three British divers who
train at the London Aguatics Centre won gold,

the Vitality Netball Superleague final, the Street
League Skateboarding World tour, the Call of Duty
World League Tournament, and a schools’ opera
event at the Copper Box Arena and FIH Pro League
international men's and women's hockey matches
at the Lee Valley Hockey and Tennis Centre.

Qur free community event, the Great Get Together,
was held on 23 June, with an estimated over
10,000 people attending this hugely successful
event. Local organisations, including our East Bank
partners, provided a wider range of activities for
people of all ages to enjoy including music and
dance performances, crafts, story-telling, art and
amazing food at the free family festival.

Major events scheduled for the next period include
the Race for Life Pretty Muddy 2019 race on 27
July, the start of the new football season in August
and New Japan Pro-Wrestling's first major event

in Europe: Royal Quest at the Copper Box Arena on
31 August.

KEY RISKS AND ISSUES

SUMMARY IMPACT

Reputational,
operational and

Risk relating to security
on the Park and the threat

level. financial
implications.
Risk of unauthorised Financial and
climbers at ArcelorMittal reputational
Orbit. impacts.
Risk that the Stadium Financial and
restructuring will not reputational
sufficiently improve the impacts.

financial position of the
Stadium.

The Park will also host Active East in the next
period. This will include a range of free outdoor
sports sessions - yoga, running, basketball, cycling
and exercise classes - aimed at a range of ages,
ability levels and skills. The UK Athletics Festival
of Athletics, centred around London Stadium will
run from 18 to 21 July, and there will be free
chances to take part in canoeing and rowing and
to celebrate the opening of our pontoon in the
south of the Park as part of National Park City’s
waterways festival on 27 and 28 July.

MITIGATION

Monitoring threat levels across
the Park ensuring appropriate
security resource and
implementation of new
initiatives.

Close working with operator,
review of security measures.

E20 Stadium LLP Board and
funders considering commercial
options. In this period LLDC
completed its deal with UK
Athletics to amend the
concession agreement. This
fixes dates for athletics over
the next six years and allows
more flexibility to hold other
events in the Stadium over the
summer months.

Page 146

22



LLDC Corporate Performance April - June 2019

4. INSPIRE

ESTABLISH A 21ST CENTURY DISTRICT PROMOTING CROSS-SECTOR
INNOVATION, EDUCATION, CULTURE, SPORT, ASPIRATION AND

PARTICIPATION IN EAST LONDON

The initial legacy priority was to establish a
viable future for the Park as somewhere to live;
work and visit, and the key ingredients of this
success were laid down early on. This created
space to review the plans and seek to secure

an even greater benefit for the surrounding
community.

The ambitious vision for East Bank (formerly the
Culture and Education District) was developed
during late 2013 and 2014, and secured
government funding in December 2014. The
plans have attracted prestigious institutions and
businesses to the site to foster collaboration and
innovation, generating a projected 2,500 jobs in
the Park and an extra £1.5 billion of economic
value from the area. East Bank will create

new visitor attractions and will seek to attract
knowledge-based industries to the Stratford

site, linking to Tech City, Here East and beyond.
Building on and working closely with the existing
thriving arts and culture offer in Stratford and
Hackney Wick, it will showcase London at its
cultural and academic best.

Over the next five years, University College
London will establish a campus with academic
facilities, student and staff accommodation.
On Stratford Waterfront, University of the Arts
London’s College of Fashion, the Victoria and
Albert Museum collaborating with Smithsonian
Institution, Sadler's Wells and BBC are key
partners in the development of a culture and
education district.

PROGRESS AGAINST MAJOR INSPIRE MILESTONES

MILESTONES FOR COMPLETION IN 2019/20

Stratford Waterfront town planning approved.

Stratford Waterfront: start on site construction
of cultural and educational buildings.

UCL start on site constructing their new
university campus, UCL East (undertaken by
UCL).

PERFORMANCE AND COMMENTARY

COMPLETE

The Stratford Waterfront site’'s hybrid planning
application was approved by the Planning
Decisions Committee in April 2019, with the GLA
confirming approval for Stage 2 in June.

Enabling works are underway on site.

Enabling works are underway on site.

Page 147

23



LLDC Corporate Performance April - June 2019

PROGRESS AGAINST MAJOR INSPIRE MILESTONES

MILESTONES FOR COMPLETION IN 2019/20

Continue to work with East Bank partners to
ensure delivery of the East Bank strategic
objectives and to maximise the value of the
cluster.

Progress EAST Education, an education
engagement programme with East Bank
partners.

Deliver environmental engagement events e.g.
World Environment Day, Climate Week).

Deliver the QEOP Smart Sustainable District
programme.

Ensure community plans are in place and are
being delivered within Chobham Manor, East
Wick and Sweetwater neighbourhoods and the
London Stadium. Ensure mechanisms are in place
amongst East Bank partner institutions to engage
local communities.

PERFORMANCE AND COMMENTARY

Highlights in this period include the East Bank
Ground Breaking Event and partner content in
the Great Get Together community event.

The focus on this period has been on planning
the expanded QEOP Summer School with
partners: a free 2-week programme for 13 - 16
year olds running from the 29 July to the 9
August.

As part of 2019 Earth Hour the lights at the
ArcelorMittal Orbit were switched off for an
hour on 30 March.

Planning is underway for the trail of the Capri
project on the Park, using autonomous pods on
public roads for the first time, scheduled to
commence in September 2019.

Continued attendance at monthly Chobham

Manor Residents’ Association and support in
engaging with the developer on community

facility.

East Wick and Sweetwater: site relations
underway for infrastructure works and phase 1
construction works.

Monitoring deliverables within London Stadium’s
Community Engagement Plan.

Page 148

24



LLDC Corporate Performance April - June 2019

PROGRESS AGAINST MAJOR INSPIRE MILESTONES

MILESTONES FOR COMPLETION IN 2019/20

Deliver three successful community interim use
sites on and around the Park (Hub 67, Mobile
Garden City, Warton Road).

Deliver successful Park Champions programme,
including obtaining Investing in volunteers’
status.

Deliver youth engagement programme to enable
local young people to feed into future plans for
the Park and connect opportunities in the Park
to local young people in East London.

PERFORMANCE AND COMMENTARY

Lease extended at Hub67 to December 2021.
Regular programme activity is ongoing.
Continuing activity at Carpenters Cage including
activation by UK Wall Ball. Mobile Garden
activity at Chobham Manor completed and
garden moved from site into storage ahead of
move to a location in East Wick.

Park Champions volunteering programme
achieved the Investors In Volunteering award in
May 2018.

Refreshed Legacy Youth Board with new
membership now in place, first board meeting
held and chair appointed, new members met
with LLDC Board members.

Page 149

25



LLDC Corporate Performance April - June 2019

COMMENTARY ON INSPIRE MILESTONES

The Mayor of London broke ground at an event
held just after the end of this reporting period on
2 July to mark the start of construction on East
Bank - the country’s new powerhouse of culture,
education, innovation and growth. Work began

at the new UCL East and Stratford Waterfront
sites at Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park, which will
become the largest culture and education project
for a generation, helping to cement the capital’s
reputation as a world leader in these fields.

During the event, attended by representatives
including from East Bank partners and local
boroughs, local schoolchildren buried a time
capsule symbolising the huge impact the project
will have on the capital’s future generations. The
historic moment was accompanied by a fanfare
from a group of young east London musicians
specially commissioned by the BBC.

The Mayor also announced a £10m funding
package from Westfield Stratford City secured
by the Foundation for FutureLondon. This new
funding will help to deliver careers coaching,
mentoring, learning opportunities, internships
and apprenticeships as well as support for
entrepreneurs and new business start-ups in
the arts, culture and placemaking industries. In
addition, the City of London Corporation pledged
£1 million that will enable the Foundation for
Future London to deliver even more arts and
education programmes in east London with the
East Bank partners.

The event generated significant coverage in the
London and arts and construction media (see
Deliver section of this report).

In addition to construction work commencing,
good progress being made on East Bank
planning and design. Procurement for initial
Stratford Waterfront contracts are underway
with contracts awarded for Enabling Works,
Substructure, Tower Cranes, Carpenter’s

Land Bridge and Common Site Services, with
procurement underway for other construction
packages.

The Stratford Waterfront site’s hybrid planning
application was approved by the Planning
Decisions Committee in April 2019, with the GLA
confirming approval for Stage 2 in June.

The Stratford Waterfront consultation project
was highly commended at the Planning Awards
2019, in the Stakeholder Engagement category.
The awards celebrate excellence in planning

and placemaking and the judges commented the
Stratford Waterfront consultation programme’s
reach and scope, particularly in hard-to-reach
groups and emerging communities, as well as the
way the results of the consultation were factored
into the final application.

UCL's Reserved Matters Application was
approved by PDC on 26 March 2019, subject to
conditions relating to wind mitigation. Vinci has
been named as preferred bidder for UCL's Pool

Page 150

26



LLDC Corporate Performance April - June 2019

St West Building which will be home to student
residential units and academic and research
space.

All East Bank partners will contribute to the
return of QEOP Summer School which is an
intensive, free 2-week programme for 13 - 16
year olds running from the 29 July to the 9
August. A total of 24 different courses, creating
595 student places are available. In addition,
free lunches will be provided in response to
the holiday hunger issue and feedback from
boroughs and 2018 pilot.

This year’s school challenge is being delivered by
London College of Fashion and Westfield - “Store

of the Future”. 50 local schools attended the
launch event in March and final entries are due
in June.

KEY RISKS
SUMMARY IMPACT
Risk that the East Bank Financial

will be delayed or costs implications and
will be more than

anticipated.

Financial
implications and

Risk to East Bank funding.

programme delays.

East Bank construction Financial

interface and procurement implications

risk. and programme
delays.

programme delays.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

Our annual Family Fun Day was held at the at
the Timber Lodge Café on 17 April. This was
targeted at local residents through community
group networks and children’s centres and was
attended by over local 1,300 people.

Your Neighbourhood Talks was held at

Bobby Moore Academy on 19th March with
representation from over 25 Park stakeholders
as part of the information sharing marketplace
and was attended by over 120 local residents.

MITIGATION

Effective design management
and coordination. Cost control.
Close work with partners, GLA
and Government. Three lines of
defence assurance approach.
Planning permissions in place.

Close working with Foundation
for Future London. Full
Business Case for the project
approved securing Government
funding. Ensure best outcome
from residential development.

Experienced and well-
resourced project management
partner, LLDC team and
assurance. Initial procurements
gone well.

Page 151

27



LLDC Corporate Performance April - June 2019

5. DELIVER

DELIVER EXCELLENT VALUE FOR MONEY, AND CHAMPION NEW MODELS AND
STANDARDS WHICH ADVANCE THE WIDER CAUSE OF REGENERATION, IN LINE
WITH LLDC'S CORE VALUES: AMBITION, RESPONSIBILITY, COLLABORATION,

EXCELLENCE, ACCESSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY

Work in this area includes functions to support
the delivery of the Legacy Corporation’s
objectives through services including

finance, human resources, IT and information
management, programme management, legal
and procurement. This section also covers

the Communication, Marketing and Strategy

directorate which is responsible for the external
reputation of the Legacy Corporation and Queen
Elizabeth Olympic Park, and defines the way
we manage all of our external activity and
relationships. In addition, it is responsible for
shaping the long-term organisational goals and
ambitions, through its strategy work.

PROGRESS AGAINST DELIVER MILESTONES

MILESTONES FOR COMPLETION IN 2019/20

Work towards improved financial sustainability
Ongoing delivery of the restructuring plan of the
Stadium.

Health and safety

Construction undertaken without a fatal accident
on site; to prevent any life-changing injury or
occupational ill-health for any individual; and to
minimise reportable accidents to a rate below
0.17 per 100,000 hours worked.

Conclude finalisation of revised Local Plan.

PERFORMANCE AND COMMENTARY

In January 2019 E20 Stadium LLP (E20)
completed a transaction to bring the London
Stadium Operator, LS185, in house. E20 and
LS185’s parent company VINCI Stadium came to
the agreement so both businesses could move
forward in the direction that matches their
priorities. LLDC and E20 is working with LS185
to maximise the fantastic potential of the venue
and ensure that progress continues to be made
in getting the London Stadium on a firm financial
footing.

There have been no reportable accidents in this
period, representing a rate of 0.0.

The revised Local Plan and Community
Infrastructure Levy were submitted to the
Planning Inspectorate for examination in March
2019, and questions from the inspector were
received in this period. Hearing sessions for the
public examination are programmed to
commence in September 2019.

Page 152

28



LLDC Corporate Performance April - June 2019

PROGRESS AGAINST DELIVER MILESTONES

MILESTONES FOR COMPLETION IN 2019/20

Unqualified annual accounts for LLDC and E20
for 2018/109.

Deliver an effective and responsive planning
service. At least 70% of applications determined
in time.

Number of planning enforcement cases closed
per month.

Annual Environmental Sustainability Report
published.

YOUR PARK,
OUR PLANET

Develop and agree high-level LLDC Transition
strategy.

PERFORMANCE AND COMMENTARY

The draft unaudited LLDC Annual Report and
Accounts was published on LLDC's website at the
end of May, in line with the statutory deadline.
Audits of LLDC, E20 and LS185 accounts have
commenced for approval by Audit Committee
and Board in July 2019.

This has been exceeded each month in this
quarter, with 94% of applications determined in
time in June 20109.

Three enforcement case have been closed in this
period. 28 cases are open at the end of the
period.

The 2017/18 Annual Environment Sustainability
Report is due to be published in the next period.

Transition roadmap produced and discussed
with Board. A strategy is being developed for
completion later in 2019/20.

Page 153

29



LLDC Corporate Performance April - June 2019

COMMENTARY ON KEY PROJECTS

PLANNING

Hackney Wick

Site remediation works on the Telford Homes
site in Wallis Road in LB Hackney ceased in
late 2018 under instruction from LLDC and the
LB Hackney, the Local Authority, following the
release of unpleasant odours during excavation
of contaminated material. Testing has been
undertaken and an updated methodology for the
management and removal of site contaminants
has been agreed with LLDC and LB Hackney
and Telford Homes resumed on site on 7 May
2019 under heavily controlled conditions.
These include removal works only during
times when there is no pick up and drop off

at the local schools and a daily site presence
from LB Hackney's Environmental Health
Officers, monitoring of odour levels and on-
line publication of monitoring reports. We are
continuing to engage with the local community
on this issue.

QOutline planning permission for the Hackney
Wick masterplan was issued in March following
GLA stage 2 sign-off, Work is ongoing to prepare
to select a developer for LLDC's land in this area
later this year. For other sites coming forward

in Hackney Wick Neighbourhood Centre, the
Planning team is either holding pre-application
discussions with landowners or is processing
applications which have already been submitted,
for example for Queen’s Yard.

Local plan review

The revised Local Plan and Community
Infrastructure Levy were submitted to the
Planning Inspectorate for examination in
March and LLDC has received guestions from
the inspector. Hearing sessions for the public
examination are programmed to commence

in September 2019. The Greater Carpenters
Neighbourhood Plan was submitted to the
Corporation in mid-June and in accordance with
Neighbourhood Planning Regulations, LLDC is
required to formally consult on the Plan and
then appoint an independent examiner to hold
and Examination into the Neighbourhood Plan.
Consultation commences on 3 July.

Development Management

Madison Square Garden Company submitted

a Planning application in March 2019 for MSG
Sphere London, a music and entertainment venue
in Stratford. Public consultation completed in
June 2019 including meetings with the resident
and the business community. The application is

being reviewed for determination which is likely
to be towards the end of 2019.

Work has continued with landowners at Bow
East relating to the concrete batching plant. |
have written to operators, Network Rail, the local
Borough and the Bobby Moore Academy setting
out our concerns around site management.
Network Rail have set up a Management
Committee to look at improving site impact and
installing measures to manage and mitigate

the impact of dust and reduce the height of
stockpiles. LLDC are meeting Network Rail in the
next period to discuss both current operations
and the long-term future of the site. LLDC have
also met with the Head of the Bobby Moore
Academy to discuss their concerns.

International Quarter London (IQL):
pre-application discussions are continuing about
the revised masterplan for the northern part

of the IQL South estate, with applications for
additional office and residential development
expected in late summer 2019.

SUSTAINABILITY

Smart mobility update: Capri project

This project aims to build passenger, regulatory
and market confidence in autonomous pods as

a practical, safe and affordable way to travel.
The project will achieve this by demonstrating
an on-demand autonomous pod service that will
see pods using public roads for the first time.
The proposed trial of the pods on the Park has
been rescheduled from May to September 2019
to allow technical requirements to be addressed.
The trial will see three PODs operating on the
paths within the Park providing an on-demand
service across both the north and the south of
the Park. Members of the public will be able to
book a pod to take them to a stop in the Park.

[t is the first time this on demand and point to
point service has been trialled. More information
can be found on the Capri Mobility website:
https://caprimobility.com/

Smart Mobility Living Lab

This aims to build the UK’'s most advanced
environment for developing future transport
technologies, services and business models. The
project legacy will be a permanent driverless
vehicle test environment in the Park. The main
focus of this project currently is the roadside
build so the installation of the equipment
needed to create the test bed and securing
garage and office space on the Park, followed by
commissioning and a small number of vehicles

Page 154

30


https://caprimobility.com

LLDC Corporate Performance April - June 2019

Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park will soon be home to one of the world's
largest and most ambitious cultural and education districts:

Stratford Waterfront

Here East

using the route. Once the test bed is operational
it will be operated by Smart Mobility Living

Lab: London Limited testing a whole range of
use cases and technologies. To start with the
main things people will see are extra CCTV
cameras and other boxes on light columns

which are starting to install now and then for
commissioning there will be an electric vehicle
with sensors on followed by CAVs later this year.

Both projects are being supported by academics
from Loughborough University London and other
University partners. LLDC is working with Here
East and Plexal regarding their involvement in
the projects. More information can be found

on the Smart Mobility website: https://www.
smartmobility.london/

COMMUNICATIONS, MARKETING AND STRATEGY
LLDC continued its marketing campaigns to
encourage visitors to the Park and its venues.
Marketing campaigns in this period highlighted
that the Park is free to enter through an
integrated campaign using high impact platforms.
Qut of home advertising across town (the tube
and train network and a creative adapt for local
bus routes across the boroughs), impacts are
over 20 million. Communications have focussed
on ongoing activities such as Parkland walks,
food and drink and swan pedalos and specific
school holiday activities like Aqua Splash at
London Aguatics Centre cycling sessions at Lea
Valley Velodrome and extended hours at the
ArcelorMittal Orbit.

The CMS team has promoted a number of very
successful events on the Park generating good
publicity including the Great Get Together, the
5 year anniversary of the Park re-opening, the
unveiling of the Tessa Jowell Boulevard and
Major League Baseball at the stadium. Details
about these events can be found elsewhere in
the report.

Timeline

BBE [ uval:moo- ET W ¢

MAYOR OF LONDON

The East Bank programme continues to be a
major focus of our marketing work, information
boards have been installed on the site so that
people could understand more about future
works and temporary branding is now up on the
Stratford Waterfront site. An East Bank special
pull-out was included in the recent edition of
Park News written in conjunction with Mace.
Plans completed for the East Bank ground
breaking event to mark start of construction
work at both East Bank sites (see inspire section),
with a positive leader piece appearing in the
Evening Standard (scroll down to the second
article on this webpage): https://www.standard.
co.uk/comment/comment/evening-standard-
comment-don-t-blame-the-civil-service-when-
politics-fails-a4180391.html

Promotion for
other future
events and —
activities on
the Park is
underway,
including
promoting the
QEOP Summer
School.

LLDC continued
to make
presentations
to promote our
work and the
opportunities
provided

by the Park
relationships
with Stadium partners have been promoted
through media and local publications and
national media.

FREE fashion, dance, spoken word, game design, theatre,
filmmaking, engineering and architecture experiences
for 13 - 16 year olds

Page 155

31


https://www.smartmobility.london/
https://www.smartmobility.london/
https://www.standard.co.uk/comment/comment/evening-standard-comment-don-t-blame-the-civil-service-when-politics-fails-a4180391.html
https://www.standard.co.uk/comment/comment/evening-standard-comment-don-t-blame-the-civil-service-when-politics-fails-a4180391.html
https://www.standard.co.uk/comment/comment/evening-standard-comment-don-t-blame-the-civil-service-when-politics-fails-a4180391.html
https://www.standard.co.uk/comment/comment/evening-standard-comment-don-t-blame-the-civil-service-when-politics-fails-a4180391.html

LLDC Corporate Performance April - June 2019

HEALTH AND SAFETY

LLDC's health, safety and security is overseen by
its Health, Safety and Security Committee and led
at the executive level by Mark Camley, Executive
Director of Park Operations and Venues. The
Board receives a report back from each Health,
Safety and Security Committee meeting, the
Committee meets at least three times a year (the
report back from the last meeting is a separate
item on the agenda). The standing item in the
Chief Executive's Report to Board focusses on a
summary on accidents and any major incidents,
with more detailed information provided through
the Committee as appropriate. This will include
information around safeguarding; the Chair of
the Health Safety and Security Committee, Simon
Blanchflower, has been confirmed as LLDC's
safeguarding champion. It has also been agreed
that Modern Slavery will now be included within
LLDC's Safeguarding Policy.

KEY RISKS

SUMMARY IMPACT

Risk about successful
implementation of the
Local Plan including
sufficiency of community
infrastructure.

Reputational
impacts

Risk relating to the
potential impact of policy
change on the
Corporation, including
leaving the EU.

budget impacts.

Risk about the impacts of
Health and Safety failures,
including East Bank.

The possibility of
Serious injuries or
fatalities, the
consequences of
which may include
significant delays
and reputational
damage.

Programme delays,

The period from April to June 2019 has seen three
major event days in Stadium:; Fed Cup Tennis in
the Copper Box Arena Hackney Half Marathon and
various other smaller events in the public realm
Accidents remained low at 41 across the three
months, proportionate to the visitor numbers.
There have been no major incidents to report.

Two H&S reports have been received on East Bank
as part of the planned series of reviews. These
were on the subjects of design and substructure
and there were no non-conformances. An
additional report was commissioned into the
corrective actions taken following a cable strike
incident on Stratford Waterfront. This found

one issue of non-conformance which is being
addressed.

MITIGATION

RAG

Progress reporting including
annual monitoring report,
review of local plan including
population forecasts.

Continue political engagement
work and briefings. Work
through implications of
withdrawal from the EU.

A comprehensive Health and
Safety programme is in place,
designed to identify and
manage the construction risks
and led actively by LLDC and
its project management
partner. Oversite through
Health, Safety and Security
Committee.

Page 156

32



LLDC Corporate Performance April - June 2019

KEY RISKS

SUMMARY IMPACT

Financial and
reputational
impacts.

Risk relating to failure to
embed fraud and
assurance processes.

Future transition of LLDC Negative impacts

activities. on regeneration of
the area.
Ensuring that staff Missed

opportunities
against LLDC's
objectives.

resourcing is sufficient for
delivering against LLDC
objectives.

Risk relating to
information security
non-compliance.

or corruption of
data with
reputational and
financial impacts.

Risk that HMRC rules
against LLDC's
Corporation Tax
application.

Financial impact.

Potential loss, theft

MITIGATION RAG

New finance system
implemented; anti-fraud policy
updated; financial and
procurement controls;
assurance from internal and
external audit; ongoing fraud
awareness briefings.
Mandatory fraud workshop
held for finance practitioners.

Transition strategy being
developed, updates presented
to Board. Close working with
key stakeholders.

High quality recruitment and
communications. Remuneration
package including benefits.
Staff development.

Information security gap
analysis complete, action plan
being implemented. Ongoing
information security briefings.

Tax and legal advice,
engagement with HMRC, submit
application in Q2 2019/20.

Page 157

33



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 158



Appendix 3
S O S O O S O S O O O «
> O o 0 © 0 0 ¢ O o O < O &
0O S O O 0 S O S O S O S ¢
r © O © 0 S 0 O O S O <c O

6 06 06 5 6065 08060658 65 O 4
> 6 © 6 6660660606 6s

606606666 6666660660 6«
) 5 © © 0 6 0 5 0 5 05 e c o
SO 5 05 005 e s e s o«
& © 0 © 0 5 0 e 5 e e c
0505050650565 0 o ¢
) 5 © 5 05 65 05 05 05 e
50 5 05 050505 05 o«
- & 5 0 5 05 05 05 e s e s
O 5 05 065650565 05 ¢
) 5 O © 0 56 6 6 6 o

N —

Transport for London
quarterly performance report KX
Quarter [ (I April 2019 - 22 June 2019) =

2,
=

o O o 0 o O o O S O <c O S
6@6@6@6@9@6@9@

N
=
=
[ J

TRANSPORT
MAYOR OF LONDON Page 159 FOR LONDON




About Transport for London (TfL)

Part of the Greater London Authority
family led by Mayor of London Sadiq
Khan, we are the integrated transport
authority responsible for delivering the
Mayor’s aims for transport.

We have a key role in shaping what

life is like in London, helping to realise
the Mayor’s vision for a ‘City for All
Londoners’. We are committed to
creating a fairer, greener, healthier and
more prosperous city. The Mayor’s
Transport Strategy sets a target for 80
per cent of all journeys to be made on
foot, by cycle or using public transport
by 204I. To make this a reality, we
prioritise health and the quality of
people’s experience in everything we do.

We manage the city’s red route strategic
roads and, through collaboration with
the London boroughs, can help shape
the character of all London’s streets.
These are the places where Londoners
travel, work, shop and socialise.

Making them places for people to walk,
cycle and spend time will reduce car
dependency and improve air quality,
revitalise town centres, boost businesses
and connect communities.

We run most of London’s public
transport services, including the London
Underground, London Buses, the DLR,
London Overground, TfL Rail, London
Trams, London River Services, London
Dial-a-Ride, Victoria Coach Station,
Santander Cycles and the Emirates Air
Line. The quality and accessibility of these
services is fundamental to Londoners’
quality of life. By improving and expanding
public transport, we can make people’s
lives easier and increase the appeal of
sustainable travel over private car use.

We are moving ahead with many of
London’s most significant infrastructure
projects, using transport to unlock growth.
We are working with partners on major
projects like Crossrail 2 and the Bakerloo
Line Extension that will deliver the new
homes and jobs London and the UK need.
We are in the final phases of completing the
Elizabeth line which, when open, will add
[0 per cent to central London’s rail capacity.

Supporting the delivery of high-density,
mixed-use developments that are
planned around active and sustainable
travel will ensure that London’s growth is
good growth. We also use our own land
to provide thousands of new affordable
homes and our own supply chain
creates tens of thousands of jobs and
apprenticeships across the country.

We are committed to being an employer
that is fully representative of the
community we serve, where everyone
can realise their potential. Our aim is to
be a fully inclusive employer, valuing and
celebrating the diversity of our workforce
to improve services for all Londoners.

We are constantly working to improve the
city for everyone. This means freezing TfL
fares so everyone can afford to use public
transport, using data and technology to
make services intuitive and easy to use,
and doing all we can to make streets and
transport services accessible to all. We
reinvest every penny of our income to
continually improve transport networks
for the people who use them every day.

None of this would be possible without
the support of boroughs, communities
and other partners who we work with
to improve our services. We all need

to pull together to deliver the Mayor’s
Transport Strategy; by doing so we can
create a better city as London grows.




Contents

4 Introduction 20 Buses

6 Business at a glance 22 Streets

8 Financial summary 24 Rail

I0 Financial trends 26 Other operations

12 Debt and cash

28

Major projects

14 Passenger journeys 30 Property
16 Underground 32 Media
I8 Elizabeth line 34 Appendices

The financial information included in the report is unaudited and does not constitute
TfL's statutory accounts. TfL's last audited Statement of Accounts for the year ending
31 March 2018 was published in July 2018. TfL's draft unaudited Statement of Accounts
for the year ending 31 March 2019 was published in May 2019.

Page 161



4

Introduction

We had a strong first quarter, with
net operating surplus ahead of
budget and last year.

Passenger income is £29m above
budget with strong performance
on the London Underground.
London Buses revenue is above
budget, with a lower than expected
decline in off-peak journeys.

Other income is close to budget
but significantly up on last year
due to the launch of the Ultra Low
Emission Zone (ULEZ) on 8 April
2019. Compliance rates are higher
than originally modelled, which

is encouraging, although does
result in a considerable income
pressure to the budget.

Operating costs for Ql are £8Im, or
five per cent, below budget and are
down on last year. Variances against
Budget are from a combination of
lower costs than expected, as well
as timing differences on projects
and restructuring costs.

Key highlights in the capital
investment programme in Ql
include the completion of track
installation for the Northern Line
Extension, and the removal of both
the Old Street roundabout and

Simon Kilonback
Chief Finance Officer

Highbury Corner Gyratory as the
first stage in transforming both
these junctions.

Following the announcement

in April by the new Crossrail
management team of the six-
month opening window for the
central operating section, work
continues on the detailed delivery
programme and associated final
cost forecast.

The underlying business
performance remains strong.
Year-on-year income is up and
like-for-like operating costs are
down, despite a tough external
environment and delays to the
Crossrail project.

The Budget was written in

January on the expectation that
the UK would leave the EU on

29 March 2019. Our demand and
cost assumptions were cautious
reflecting uncertainty in the wider
economy. We are now seeing
significant out-performance against
our Budget, despite continuing
economic uncertainty. As a result,
we are reviewing our budgetary
assumptions and will report back
to the Board.

Sarah Bradley
Group Financial Controller

Page 162

Introduction




Page 163



Business at a glance

Keeping London moving, working and
growing to make life in our city better

How we report on our business

©

TRANSPORT
FOR LONDON

London Underground

Elizabeth line

/ \

=

/ \ / \

London Buses

Rail

S

=

/ \ / \

Streets

Other operations

®

===

2B
A 5o A

Mo

Major projects

Property

A

‘\Hjl

P

((K)

6 Business at a glance

Page 164

Facts and figures

945 TfL network
[ = @@

/ \ / \N [/ \N /4 \ [/ \

0 @ dhddd

/ \ /4 \N [/ \ /4 \ [/

580km
highaye / n\

720km

TflL-operated Rail
and London
Underground routes

9,330 BE
SIS
SISISISISK:

HEHEHA!
6,365

Traffic signals operated
by TfL

Trains on the

Buses on the
TfL network




Budget at a glance

Use of
borrowing,
working capital

and cash Other Passenger Crossrail
% Grants ﬁ reserves income ! income funding
£2.2bn £0.9bn £1.2bn £4.9bn / \ £1.2bn

Sources of funds

25%

spent renewing
and improving the
network through
one of the largest
capital investment

£10.3bn

75%

spent on running

)

and operating the programmes
network every day in Europe
Total passenger income Total costs
£0.5bn
£0.1bn (5%)
(2%)
£2.8bn £0.lbn £6.8bn ' £l.4bn
(58%) / ), (2%) (65%) (14%)
£l.4bn
(29%)
£1.2bn
(12%)
; £0.5bn
(5%)
£0.4bn
(8%)
Total: £4.9bn Total: £10.3bn
B | ondon Underground  ® Rail B Operating cost B New capital investment
® Buses TfL Rail  m Other ® Capital renewals Crossrail  ® Net financing

Page 165



Financial summary

Performance in the year to date

Operating account

TfL Group Ql Budget Ql
(£m) 2019/20 2019/20 Variance 2018/19 Variance
Passenger income [,I08 1,079 29 1,096 12
Other operating income 213 214 (1 183 30
Total operating income 1,321 1,293 28 1,279 42
Business Rates Retention 258 258 = 256 2
Other revenue grants 24 23 | [0 4
Total income 1,603 1,574 29 1,545 58
Operating cost (1,426) (1,507) 8l (1,406) (20)
Net operating surplus 177 67 1o 139 38
Capital renewals (88) (110) 22 (92) 4
Net cost of operations before financing 89 (43) 132 47 42
Net financing cost (102) (106) 4 (102) =
Net cost of operations (13) (149) 136 (55) 42
Capital account
TfL Group Ql Budget Ql
(Em) 2019/20 2019/20 Variance 2018/19 Variance
New capital investment (249) (320) 7 (350) o]
Crossrail (260) (339) 79 (351) 9l
Net capital expenditure (509) (659) 150 (701) 192
Financed by:
Investment grant 24| 24| - 264 (23)
Property and asset receipts 17 21 (4) - 17
Borrowing (66) 278 (344) 235 (301)
Crossrail funding sources 245 376 (131) 47 198
Other capital grants 44 62 (18) 40 4
Total 481 978 (497) 586 (105)
Net capital account (28) 319 (347) (115) 87
Page 166

8 Financial summary



Cash flow summary

TfL Group Ql Budget Ql
(Em) 2019/20 2019/20 Variance 2018/19 Variance
Net cost of operations (13) (149) 136 (55) 42
Net capital account (28) 319 (347) (115) 87
Working capital movements (90) (171) 8l 3l (121)
Decrease in cash balances (131) (1) (130) (139) 8
Passenger journey analysis
TfL Group Ql Budget Ql
(Em) 2019/20 2019/20 Variance 2018/19  Variance
Number of passenger journeys (millions) 909 892 17 922 (13)
Average yield per passenger journey (£) [.22 .21 0.0l 119 0.03
Operating cost per journey (£) (1.57) (1.69) 0.12 (1.52) (0.05)
We have made a strong start to 2019/20, Total capital renewals and new
with the year-to-date net cost of investment are £93m lower than budget.
operations being £136m better than This is from a combination of timing and
budget and £42m lower than last year. re-phasing, as well as genuine savings.
Some are linked to how we historically
Total income is £29m higher than budget accounted for risk and we are reviewing
owing to stronger than expected demand our budgetary assumptions.
on both London Underground and
London Buses. Other operating income At the end of QI, cash balances are £130m
has grown by £30m compared to the below budget. Favourable movements in
same quarter last year owing to the the operating account are offset by the
launch of the ULEZ in April 2019. timing of new borrowings. During Ql our
level of borrowing decreased by £66m
Operating costs are £8Im lower than following the repayment of debt and no
budget. Around 50 per cent of this new borrowing has been undertaken.
saving relates to timing differences from
restructuring projects and maintainance
costs. The rest represents savings which
we expect to carry through to the end of
the year.
Page 167



Financia

l trends

Total income
Quarterly (Em)

Year on year (Em)

2,131

1,545 (444 1,596 250 1,603 1,607 1,536 [,545 1,603 1,574

183 - 190 213 164 62 183 213 214

240

266 -ﬂ) t 1,517 295 266 282 28|
1,075 1,079 1,079
QI 2018/19 Q2 2018/I19 Q32018/19 Q4 2018/I19* QI 2019/20 QI 2016/17 QI 2017/18 QI 2018/19 QI 2019/20 2019/20
Budget

B Passenger income
® Grants
Other income

Total income
£29m above budget

4% A year on year

Total income is better than budget, largely owing to higher passenger
income. This is a result of increased demand on London Underground
and upturn in off-peak demand on London Buses.

Total passenger income
Quarterly (Em)

Year to date (Em)

1166
1,096 5 1,075 | Ve 1108 L102 079 1096 1108 . 1079
13 5 o 10 13 23
—— | / 23 R —_— 25 < 14 e 14
NS o N [ 95 Bl oo MEN oo B 25 2
338 337 ol 335 356 338 338 335 326
625 637 612 625 637 62!
QI 2018/19 Q22018/I19 Q32018/19 Q4 2018/I19* QI 2019/20 QI 2016/17 QI 2017/18 QI 2018/19 QI 2019/20 2019/20
Budget

B London Underground
M Buses
B Rail
B TfL Rail
Other operations

Passenger income
£29m above budget

I% A year on year

Passenger income continues to grow compared to 2018/19. Overall customer
demand has increased for London Underground, TfL Rail and some areas
of Rail.

* Q4 is longer than Ql to Q3 (16 weeks and one day vs 12 weeks)

|0 Financial trends

Page 168



Total cost

Quarterly (Em) Year on year (Em)
2,247
144
1,613
1,528 ’
1,507 1,502 1,493 2103 1,528 1,409 1,458 1,507 N
102 102
102 103 105 94 96 102 —
1405 [ 1399 [ 1388 1426 - 2 1,507
QI2018/19  Q22018/19 Q32018/19 Q4 2018/19% QI 2019/20 QI2016/I7 QI 2017/18 Q1201819 QI 2019/20  2019/20
Budget
B Operating cost Operating costs IO/
B Net financing cost £8Im below budget (o] A year on year

Lower than budgeted operating costs are owing to all areas performing
ahead of budget.

Total capital expenditure (incl. Crossrail)

Quarterly (Em) Year to date (Em)
809 807 816 809 769
710 697 714
597 597
35l 380 400 35| 430
318 340 338
260 260
458 <7 o 416 458 430
357 337 376 337
QI 2018/19 Q22018/19 Q32018/19 Q4 2018/19* QI 2019/20 QI 2016/I7 QI 2017/18 QI 2018/19 QI 2019/20 QI 2019/20
Budget
W Capital investment £3.1bn 260/
and renewals full year budget o v year on year
B Crossrail

Capital expenditure is significantly below budget. The in-year
rescheduling of projects currently has no impact on overall milestones.

Page 169



Debt and cash

Total value of debt (Em)

14000
1726 (500 The Budget assumes that our borrowing
’ will grow by £845m by 3l March 2020,
12000 401 within the limits agreed with the
9,799 Government. At the end of Ql, our
10000 | 03! borrowing had decreased by £66m, owing
. to £16m long-term debt repayments and
9,148 a £50m reduction in our outstanding
8000 commercial paper balance. No new
borrowing was undertaken during Ql.
6000 We are planning to raise new borrowing
later in the year to meet our incremental
4000 borrowing target.
The total nominal value of borrowing
2000 outstanding at the end of the quarter was
£11,109m, of which £10,42Im was long term.
2015/l6  2016/17  2017/18 201819 QI 2019/20
B Borrowing B Finance leases

Financing costs (% of total income)*

’ The ratio of financing costs to total
income, including operating grants,
helps TfL to monitor the affordability

of its debt.
6 6.2% 6.2% Financing costs and income (Em)
Ql Ql
5 Year to date 2019/20 Budget Variance
Interest income 5 4 |
Financing costs (96) (100) 4

205/16  2016/I7  2017/18  20I8/19 QI 2019/20
PFl interest payable (1) (1) =

* Financing costs include interest costs for borrowing and finance leases

Page 170
|2 Debt and cash



Cash balances (Em)

2,500
1,882
2,000 ’
1,793 1,751
419
1,500
1,276
,208
1,374
195
1,000
1,013
500

0
QI 2018/19 Q2 2018/19 Q3 2018/19 Q4 2018/19 QI 2019/20

W TfL cash balances
M Crossrail

£13Im

Decrease in cash

1%V

Cash balances

Cash balances have decreased by £13Im
since the start of the year to stand at
£1,75Im at the end of Ql. Of the total
balance, £132m is ring-fenced to deliver
the Crossrail project. In addition, we
aim to hold a prudent minimum Llevel
of cash for TfL (excluding Crossrail) for
exceptional circumstances and to retain
a high credit rating, in line with our
liquidity policy approved by the TfL
Board. This level of cash reserves —
currently around £560m —is driven by
the size of our operating costs and the
level of our debt.

We expect to continue to use our
balances to fund the improvements
outlined in our Business Plan and in
our Budget.

Credit ratings

We are rated by the three leading
international rating agencies. Our rating
with Fitch is currently on Rating Watch
Negative, reflecting the Rating Watch
Negative on the UK Government due to
the ongoing uncertainty over Brexit and
the likely impact on the UK economy.

Credit ratings

Moody’s Aa3 stable outlook

Standard & Poor’s  AA- negative outlook

Fitch AA- Rating Watch Negative

Page 171



Passenger journeys

Ql, year to date

009m 892m 922m

total journeys budget prior year

@ London Underground | Buses
™ 3I5m 505m

2.9%a 0.5%a [.4%a 2.8%v

budget prior year budget prior year

Q 28m ;\ 42m

[.3%a [.5%v 0.2%a  3.5%v
budget prior year budget prior year
ﬁ London Trams Q TfL Rail
/ \ 6 m / \ I 3 N |
[.4%v 2.8%v 52%a  |15%a
budget prior year budget prior year
Page 172

14 Passenger journeys



Quarterly (millions)

1,400

1,211

|7
978 m

1,200

1,000

800

600

400

200

0
QI 2018/19 Q2 2018/19 Q3 2018/19 Q4 2018/19* QI 2019/20

B London Underground M Buses B Rail

London Underground passenger
volumes are two million better than
last year, showing positive growth
despite this quarter having one less day
and an extra bank holiday compared to
Ql 2018/19.

Bus passenger journeys in the quarter
are seven million higher than budget
owing to an unexpected increase in
off-peak demand.

Year to date (millions)

1,400

1,200

960

93|
1,000 922 909 892

L 10 ’
[ 80 | - 12

800

600

400

200

0 ;
QI 2016/17 QI 2017/18 QI 2018/I19 QI 2019/20 QI 2019/20
Budget

B TfL Rail

Overall rail passenger journeys are
broadly in line with budget, with
increases in DLR and Overground
offsetting a decrease in London Trams.

* Q4 is longer than Ql to Q3 (16 weeks and one day vs 12 weeks)
Page 173



Underground

London Underground @

Financial summary

London Underground has benefited from increased passenger demand and lower costs
due to the timing of non-critical maintenance spend.

London Underground Ql Budget Ql

(Em) 2019/20 2019/20 Variance 2018/19 Variance
Passenger income 637 62| 16 625 12
Other operating income [l 8 3 7 4
Total operating income 648 629 19 632 16
Direct operating cost (456) (479) 23 (479) 23
Direct operating surplus 192 150 42 153 39
Indirect operating cost (83) (102) 19 (82) (1
Net operating surplus 109 48 6l 71 38
Capital renewals (63) (73) 10 (60) (3)
New capital investment (14) (13) (1) (7) (7)
Net capital expenditure (77) (86) 9 (67) (10)

Total operating income is £19m higher
than budget and £16m better than last
year. This reflects an improvement in
customer demand of 2.9 per cent
against budget and compared to last
year improved underlying demand of
2.| per cent.

Direct operating costs are £23m lower
than both budget and last year. This is due
to the delayed start of the Victoria line
overhaul programme and the timing of
non-critical maintenance costs which are
planned to be completed later in the year.

Capital expenditure is £9m lower than
budget but £/0m higher than last year.
The year-to-date underspend is owing
to operational delays to the planned
completion of the Track Maintenance
Unit Workshop, and slippage on capital
programmes on the Bakerloo and
Central lines.

Page 174

16 Divisional review| London Underground



Passenger journeys analysis

Ql Budget Ql
2019/20 2019/20 Variance 2018/19  Variance
Number of passenger journeys (millions) 315 306 9 313 2
Average yield per passenger journey (f) 2.02 2.03 (0.01) 1.99 0.03
Operating cost per journey (£) (1.71) (1.90) 0.19 (1.79) 0.08

Passenger journeys

Passenger journeys are nine million
better than budget and two million
higher than last year as underlying
demand is showing positive growth on
last year. This year we had an extra Easter
bank holiday and one less day compared
to QI last year reducing demand.

Average yield per passenger journey
Underlying passenger income per
journey has increased compared with the
equivalent period last year. This is partly
due to the impact of average National
Rail fares increasing in January 2019,
which has an impact on a proportion

of TfL tickets, for example, Travelcards.

Operating cost per journey

Operating cost per journey is significantly
below budget and last year due to
increased passenger journeys and savings
delivered while maintaining a safe and
reliable network.

Underlying passenger journeys
year-on-year change (%)

00
2.1%a

U
0.2%v

U
0.9%a

Compares underlying year-to-date passenger
journey numbers with those in the previous year.
Actual journey numbers are adjusted for one-
off events (such as strike days), timing of Easter
holidays and the number of days in each quarter.

Page 175



Elizabeth line

Currently operating as TfL Rail =

Financial summary

The focus is on successfully introducing Elizabeth line services.

Elizabeth line Ql Budget Ql

(Em) 2019/20 2019/20 Variance 2018/19 Variance
Passenger income 25 23 2 2l 4
Other operating income 2 2 - 7 (5)
Total operating income 27 25 2 28 (1)
Direct operating cost (78) (83) 5 (41) (37)
Direct operating deficit (51) (58) 7 (13) (38)
Indirect operating cost (2) (3) I (2) =
Net operating deficit (53) (61) 8 (15) (38)
New capital investment (5) (1) 6 (125) 120
Crossrail construction cost (260) (339) 79 (351) 9l
Net capital expenditure (265) (350) 85 (476) 211

An increase in passenger journeys has
resulted in passenger income being £2m
more than budget. The £4m increase
compared to last year is mainly owing to
the start of the Paddington to Hayes &
Harlington and Heathrow services, which
began in May 20I9.

The £5m reduction in other operating
income compared to last year relates
to one-off third party income received
in 2018/19.

Operating costs are lower than budget
mainly owing to a reduction in train
maintenance and concession costs.
Operating costs are £37m higher
compared to last year owing to the
introduction of train lease costs
following the sale and lease back of
the rolling stock fleet, charges paid to
Network Rail and concession costs.

New capital investment is £6m lower than
budget, mainly owing to the acceleration
of stations improvement costs into
2018/19. New capital expenditure in 2018/19
included stock production costs prior to
the sale of the fleet.

Page 176

18 Divisional review | Elizabeth line



Passenger journeys analysis

Ql Budget Ql
2019/20 2019/20 Variance 2018/19  Variance
Number of passenger journeys (millions) 13.1 2.5 0.6 1.4 I.7
Average yield per passenger journey (£) 191 |.84 0.07 |.84 0.07
Operating cost per journey (£) (6.11) (6.91) 0.80 (3.77) (2.34)

Passenger journeys

Passenger demand is five per cent
better than budget owing to underlying
demand growth. This year had a full
quarter of the Paddington to Hayes &

Harlington and Heathrow services as well

as one extra Easter bank holiday, and one
less day compared to QI last year.

Average yield per passenger journey
Passenger income per journey is 3.2 per
cent better than budget and 3.8 per cent
better than last year. This increase is
mainly driven by a higher yield from the
Paddington to Hayes & Harlington and
Heathrow services.

Operating cost per journey

Operating cost per journey is |2 per cent
lower than budget mainly owing to train
maintenance and concession savings.
The increase from last year is mainly
owing to Class 345 train lease costs and
Network Rail charges.

Underlying passenger journeys
year-on-year change (%)

U
18.2% a

U
0.8%a

=
4.8%a

Compares underlying year-to-date passenger
journey numbers with those in the previous year.
Actual journey numbers are adjusted for one-
off events (such as strike days), timing of Easter
holidays and the number of days in each quarter.

Page 177



Buses

London Buses B

Financial summary

Higher passenger income has contributed to the net operating deficit being £/0m lower
than budget. Total operating costs have increased compared to last year due to the
annual contract price inflation in our bus contracts.

Buses Ql Budget Ql
(Em) 2019/20 2019/20 Variance 2018/19 Variance
Passenger income 335 326 9 338 (3)
Other operating income 2 2 = 3 (1
Total operating income 337 328 9 34| (4)
Direct operating cost (491) (492) I (485) (6)
Direct operating deficit (154) (164) 10 (144) (10)
Indirect operating cost (5) (6) I (6) I
Net operating deficit (159) (170) ] (150) (9)
Capital renewals - (1 I - -
New capital investment (2) (7) 5 - (2)
Net capital expenditure (2) (8) 6 - (2)
Passenger income is £9m higher than improved year on year. This is primarily
budget, primarily as a result of a lower owing to the annual contracted price
year-on-year reduction in demand than inflation within the bus operators’
previously assumed. The lower reduction contracts, which is estimated will drive
in demand is mainly due to an upturnin a cost increase of £56m in the full year.
off-peak demand. Underlying year-on- We are partly offsetting the higher cost
year demand shows around a I.| per cent by continuing to deliver savings in our
decline in the year to date, |.4 per cent contracting activities.

above budget.
Capital expenditure is £6m under budget

Direct operating costs are slight better as we have rescheduled some of our
than budgeted and have marginally capital works to later in the financial year.
Page 178

20  Divisional review | Buses



Passenger journeys analysis

Ql Budget Ql
2019/20 2019/20 Variance 2018/19  Variance
Number of passenger journeys (millions) 505 498 7 519 (14)
Average yield per passenger journey (f) 0.66 0.65 0.0l 0.65 0.0l
Operating cost per journey (£) (0.98) (1.00) 0.02 (0.95) (0.03)

Passenger journeys

Total passenger journeys are one per
cent higher than budget and three per
cent lower than the previous year. This
was mostly due to the quarter having
one less day than the previous year. On
a normalised basis, passenger journeys
were one per cent lower.

Average yield per passenger journey
The average yield per passenger journey
is one pence higher than budget.
Compared to the same period last year

average yield has increased by two pence.

This is primarily due to fares increase on
travel cards in January 20I9.

Operating cost per journey

Operating cost per journey is two
pence lower than budget due to higher
passenger journeys. It is three pence
greater than last year primarily due to
a decrease in passenger journeys.

Underlying passenger journeys

year-on-year change (%)
I S I /O v
Ql
2018/19
Ql (o
2017/18 o A
L 2
Compares underlying year-to-date passenger
Actual journey numbers are adjusted for one-
off events (such as strike days), timing of Easter

Ql
2019/20
S 3 /O y
journey numbers with those in the previous year.
holidays and the number of days in each quarter.

Page 179



Streets

Transport for London Road Network (TLRN)

@B A & =P

Financial summary

Operating performance is tracking ahead of budget as a result of improved income.

Streets Ql Budget Ql

(Em) 2019/20 2019/20 Variance 2018/19 Variance
Passenger income - - - - -
Other operating income 8l 72 9 76 5
Total operating income 8l 72 9 76 5
Direct operating cost (100) (99) (1) (107) 7
Direct operating deficit (19) (27) 8 (31) 12
Indirect operating cost (17) (19) 2 (17) =
Net operating deficit (36) (46) 10 (48) 12
Capital renewals (5) (9) 4 (1 6
New capital investment (24) (27) 3 (17) (7)
Net capital expenditure (29) (36) 7 (28) (n

Other income is up £9m against budget
and £5m against 2018/19. This is due

to changes made to the Congestion
Charge scheme to reduce the use of
cars in central London, and the removal
of the Private Hire Vehicle exemption.
Continuation of our improved efficiency
in Road Network Compliance is also
increasing our income.

Our operating costs are in line with
budget and £7m better than last year.
This is owing to transformation costs
recognised in QI last year and the
continuation of staff cost savings.

Capital costs are broadly in line with
budget and continue at previous years’
levels. However, we have paused our
programme of proactive capital renewals
on highways assets. This reduction has
been offset by an increase in delivery of
cycling and other road schemes, where
the focus is on reducing the number of
people killed or seriously injured while
using London’s road network.

Page 180

22  Divisional review | Streets



Volume analysis

Ql Budget Ql
2019/20 2019/20 Variance 2018/19  Variance
Congestion Charge volumes (thousands) 3,415 3,165 250 3,344 71
Congestion Charge and enforcement 573 526 47 539 34
income (Em)
Traffic volumes — all London (index) 97.0 - - 96.8 0.2
Cycling growth in CCZ (%)* 18.8 6.5 - 14.3 -

Cycling

A daily average of 477,994 kilometres
were cycled in central London during

Ql, which is a four per cent increase
compared to last year. This is the highest
level of cycling on record for Ql since
monitoring began in 2014. Weather
conditions can affect levels of cycling.
This year has been warmer and drier than
the same quarter last year, which was
affected by the ‘beast from the east’.

Traffic flow

The general trend of growth continued
in Ql, but softened, with outer London
growing more modestly and central
and inner London showing drops.

* Cycling data is based on calendar quarters
rather than financial quarters ie, Ql is January
to March and is the latest available data. It is
presented as a percentage change from the
previous year

Traffic flow (volume) year-on-year
change (%)

Ql (o)
2019/20 ‘3 /o A

Ql (o)
2018/19 ‘0 /o A

Ql o
2017/18 O . I A) v

Compares traffic flow volumes for the
year-to-date with the corresponding quarters
in the previous year.

Page 181



Rail

DLR, London Overground and London Trams

m=Na)

/ \ [/ \ 7\

Financial summary

Year-to-date passenger journeys are higher than planned, and total operating income
is higher than the same period last year.

Rail Ql Budget Ql

(Em) 2019/20 2019/20 Variance 2018/19 Variance
Passenger income 97 97 - 99 (2)
Other operating income 8 10 (2) 5 3
Total operating income 105 107 (2) 104 I
Direct operating cost (106) (114) 8 (98) (8)
Direct operating surplus/(deficit) (1) (7) 6 6 (7)
Indirect operating cost (4) (5) I (5) I
Net operating surplus/(deficit) (5) (12) 7 l (6)
Capital renewals (11) 9) (2) (5) (6)
New capital investment (1) (1) - (6) (5)
Net capital expenditure (22) (20) (2) (1) (1n

Passenger income is in line with budget,
but slightly below last year due to one

less operating day this year.

The continued compensation from

Bombardier for the delayed delivery
of the new trains has contributed to
other operating income being higher

than last year.

24  Divisional review | Rail

Operating costs are lower than budget
as the roll out of new trains on the
Overground is slower than expected.
There have also been contract savings
on DLR.

Total capital expenditure is £2m higher
than budget mainly owing to expenditure
moving from 2018/19 into 2019/20. This
has been offset by the re-profiling of
Sandilands programme, which includes
alterations to the on-tram emergency
lighting system and control room
upgrades to support the installation

of new safety software.

Page 182



Passenger journeys analysis

Ql Budget Ql

2019/20 2019/20  Variance 2018/19  Variance
London Overground
Number of passenger journeys (millions) 419 41.8 0.l 43.4 (1.5)
Average yield per passenger journey (£) [.25 1.24 0.0l [.22 0.03
Operating cost per journey (£) (1.72) (1.87) 0.15 (1.46) (0.26)
DLR
Number of passenger journeys (millions) 279 27.5 0.4 28.4 (0.5)
Average yield per passenger journey (f) .42 |.44 (0.02) [.42 -
Operating cost per journey (£) (1.05) (1.10) 0.05 (1.06) 0.0l
London Trams
Number of passenger journeys (millions) 6.4 6.5 (0.1) 6.5 (0.1)
Average yield per passenger journey (f) 0.83 0.82 0.0l 0.8l 0.02
Operating cost per journey (£) (1.25) (1.31) 0.06 (1.23) (0.02)

Underlying passenger journeys year-on-year change (%)

o3| 0.8%y

Ql
2017/18

2.4% a

2018/19 O . 7% v

Compares underlying year-to-date passenger
journey numbers with those in the previous year.
Actual journey numbers are adjusted for one-
off events (such as strike days), timing of Easter
holidays and the number of days in each quarter.

Page 183



Other operations

London Dial-a-Ride, London River Services,
London Taxi and Private Hire, Santander
Cycles, Victoria Coach Station, Emirates
Air Line and others M <& & d% @

Financial summary

As well as the operations names above, we include the costs of the Crossrail 2 project

team and the Planning team, together with certain group items, in this category.

Other operations Ql Budget Ql

(Em) 2019/20 2019/20 Variance 2018/19 Variance
Passenger income 4 12 2 13 |
Other operating income 54 65 (I1) 30 24
Total operating income 68 77 (9) 43 25
Direct operating cost (54) (71) 17 (50) (4)
Direct operating surplus/(deficit) 14 6 8 (7) 2l
Indirect operating cost (12) (14) 2 (12) =
Net operating surplus/(deficit) 2 (8) 10 (19) 2l
Capital renewals (3) 9) 6 (10) 6
New capital investment (21 (31) 10 (20) -
Net capital expenditure (24) (40) 16 (30) 6

Other operating income is significantly
higher than last year due to the
introduction of the ULEZ. The ULEZ is a
central part of the Mayor’s far-reaching
plan to improve the health of Londoners’
by reducing air pollution. Most vehicles,
including cars and vans, need to meet the
ULEZ emission standards or their drivers
must pay a daily charge to drive within
the zone. Initial high compliance rates

have contributed to income being £/lm
below budget.

New capital investment is lower

than budget, owing to in-year timing
differences on the Emergency Services
Network project, the mobile network
project and other tech and data

work streams.

Page 184

26 Divisional review | Other operations



Volume analysis

Ql Budget Ql

2019/20 2019/20  Variance 2018/19  Variance
Santander Cycles
Number of hires (millions) 2.6 2.8 (0.2) 2.8 (0.2)
Average income per hire (£) .24 1.25 (0.01) 1.23 0.0l
Operating cost per hire (£) (2.11) (2.21) 0.10 (2.33) 0.22
Victoria Coach Station
Number of coach departures (thousands) 51.0 53.0 (2.0) 53.0 (2.0)
Average income per departure (£) 37.18 38.93 (1.75) 34.49 2.69
Operating cost per departure (£) (50.63) (51.16) 0.53 (38.47) (12.16)
London River Services
Number of passenger journeys (millions) 2.7 2.8 (0.1) 2.8 (0.1)
Average income per journey (£) 0.25 0.29 (0.04) 0.24 0.0l
Operating cost per journey (£) (0.99) (0.85) (0.14) (2.01) 1.02
London Dial-a-Ride
Number of passenger journeys (thousands) 223.0 230.5 (7.5) 240.4 (17.4)
Operating cost per trip (£) (40.90) (32.19) (8.71) (49.34) 8.44
Taxi and Private Hire
Number of private hire vehicle drivers 106,472 - - 112,002 (5,530)
Taxi drivers 23,030 - - 23,710 (680)
Total income (Em) 7.7 7.5 0.2 7.5 0.2
Total costs (Em)* (7.2) (7.9) 0.7 (8.2) 1.0
Emirates Air Line
Number of passenger journeys (thousands) 327.0 338.0 (11.0) 345.0 (18.0)
Average income per journey (£) 4.02 4.55 (0.53) 3.88 0.14
Operating cost per journey (£)** (2.53) (2.32) (0.21) (2.22) (0.31)

* Operating costs exclude depreciation and the management fee, which are also charged to the licence fee

** Costs of Emirates Air Line are shown net of sponsorship income

Page 185



Major projects

A

N
A

Financial summary

Major Projects is responsible for our largest and most complex projects. It comprises

line upgrades, network extensions and major stations.

Major projects Ql Budget Ql

(Em) 2019/20 2019/20 Variance 2018/19 Variance
Passenger income - - - - -
Other operating income I - | - |
Total operating income | - I - |
Direct operating cost (3) (2) (1) (5) 2
Direct operating deficit (2) (2) > (5) 3
Indirect operating cost (7) (7) - (7) =
Net operating deficit 9) (9) = (12) 3
Capital renewals (6) (10) 4 (6) =
New capital investment (150) (186) 36 (159) 9
Net capital expenditure (156) (196) 40 (165) 9

Four Lines Modernisation

ALl 59 S8 trains for the Metropolitan line
have been fitted with the automatic train
control system and is on schedule for
go-live. A change in contractor on some
of our infrastructure works has led to a
year-to-date underspend of £/10m, which
is forecast to be caught up by year end.
Following detailed management reviews
of the estimated final cost (EFC) we are
forecasting an increase of £33m, but still
within overall spend authority.

Piccadilly Line Rolling Stock

Following the award of the Piccadilly line
trains contract, Siemens are developing
a concept design and the supporting
activities remain on target.

Northern Line Extension

Track installation across the Northern
line is complete, enabling deliveries by
engineering trains to be made deeper
into the extension. Successful test trains
concluded that signalling cables can be
permanently installed directly to the
track bed, which will improve safety
and save both time and money. We are
forecasting a reduction of £83m in the
EFC, reflecting a reduced risk profile.

Page 186

28 Major projects



Year-to-date capital spend by programme (£Em)

Four Lines

Modernisation
£8 due to change in contractor
and £2m train fitment

Northern Line
Extension 44
In-year re-phasing from main

works and late sub-contractor
tender awards

Major stations
£5m from re-phasing of
Camden station and £4m
from Victoria projects

Piccadilly Line
Rolling Stock

Re-phasing into future years

Others

(1 NO
g B 8
(ON

Silvertown Tunnel

The Silvertown Tunnel will tackle the
significant issues of traffic congestion
and unreliability at Blackwall Tunnel.
We are forecasting the deferral of some
works from this year into next and there
remains pressure on the EFC.

Major stations

At Bank station, the breakthrough
between the new entrance on Cannon
Street and the newly constructed
Northern Lline tunnel will make further
construction work easier, helping

M Year-to-date spend
B Variance to Budget

to ensure the important upgrade is
delivered by 2022. During Ql, the EFC
increased by £8m owing to a changed
risk profile. TfL continue to work
collaboratively with the main contractor
to identify and realise potential savings,
with a view to reduce the EFC back to
Business Plan levels or below.

DLR Rolling Stock and System Integration
Following an extensive review, the
contract for the supply of DLR trains
was awarded to Construccionesy
Auxiliar de Ferrocarriles in June 2019.

Page 187



Property

Eian

Financial summary
Net operating surplus is slightly higher than budget and last year due to lower
operating costs.

Property Ql Budget Ql

(Em) 2019/20 2019/20 Variance 2018/19 Variance
Passenger income - - - - -
Other operating income 2! 23 (2) 23 (2)
Total operating income 2 23 (2) 23 (2)
Direct operating cost (5) (8) 3 (7) 2
Direct operating surplus 16 15 | 16 =
Indirect operating cost (2) (2) = (3) [
Net operating surplus 14 13 I 13 |
New capital investment (16) (31) 15 (1 (5)
Property receipts 17 2| (4) - 17
Crossrail over site development - 18 (18) 16 (16)
Net capital expenditure l 8 (7) 5 (4)

Other operating income is lower than
budget and last year. During Ql, our

new outsourced property management
provider experienced some billing issues
during invoicing, which had an impact

Operating costs are lower than expected

due to reduced scheme feasibility activity

on the timings of some payments. Year-

on-year we have reduced rental income,
mainly arising from the planned disposal
of Kingbourne House in Holborn at the

end of March 2019.

30 Divisional review | Property

and lower property costs. These are
currently forecast later in the year, but
will be kept under review.

Property receipts and Crossrail over site
development income are impacted by
the short-term re-phased disposal of

the Crossrail site at 65 Davies Street. A
number of project costs have also been

re-phased until later in the year.

Page 188



Property income (Em)
Quarterly

30

‘H 3

0
QI 2018/19 Q22018/19 Q32018/I19 Q4 2018/19 QI 2019/20

B Property
W Car parking

Compared to QI last year, property
income is down by £1.3m caused by

the disposal of Kingsbourne House in
March 2019. Other income is down by a
further £0.6m with the main driver being
a reduction in cash machine income

due to contractual terms changes post
November 2018.

* Q4 is longer than Ql to Q3 (16 weeks and one day vs |12 weeks)

Continuing to deliver homes on

our land

We continue to work with communities
and boroughs to identify the needs

of the area and create places and
neighbourhoods where people want

to live. We are currently engaging with
communities across Barnet, Enfield and
Southwark to talk about our emerging
proposals for over 1,200 homes,
commercial space and improvements
for the local areas.

Site preparation works for 350 homes
at our .8 acre site in Blackhorse Road in
Waltham Forest began, creating up to
300 jobs and local apprenticeships. Half

of the homes on site will be affordable
and the site will generate much
needed revenue to invest back into the
transport network.

We have also unveiled our proposals to
restore and improve South Kensington
Tube station and the surrounding
streets, respecting the heritage of the
area with our joint venture partner
Native Land. We are proposing to
create around 40 additional homes, a
new range of shops, restaurants and
workspaces, and step-free station access
to the ticket hall and District and Circle
line platforms via a new entrance on
Thurloe Street.

Page 189



Media
% ((K)

Financial summary

Overall performance in Ql is broadly in line with budget and last year.

Media Ql Budget Ql

(Em) 2019/20 2019/20 Variance 2018/19 Variance
Passenger income - - - - -
Other operating income 33 32 | 32 |
Total operating income 33 32 I 32 |
Direct operating cost (1) (1) - (1) =
Direct operating surplus 32 31 | 3l |
Indirect operating cost - - - - -
Net operating surplus 32 3l I 31 |
Capital renewals - - - - -
New capital investment (6) (3) (3) (5) (1)
Net capital expenditure (6) (3) (3) (5) (1)

Operating income is broadly in line with
budget, driven by advertising income on

the rail estate.

32 Divisional review | Media

New capital investment is higher than

budget due mainly to the phasing

of delivery, with activity and spend
being pushed into 2019/20 from 2018/19.

The capital programme overall is

within budget.

Page 190



Advertising income (£m)
Quarterly

47

15

50

40

40

30

W

20

BE -
N

ol N ENEED EEER TS S
QI 2018/19 Q2 2018/19 Q3 2018/19 Q4 2018/19* QI 2019/20

B Underground and Rail
B Buses
m Other

Advertising income is higher in Q3 due

to Christmas trading. Q4 sees a further
increase due to the extra weeks and the
receipt of annual volume incentives from
the two main advertising contracts.

* Q4 is longer than Ql to Q3 (16 weeks and one day vs |2 weeks)

During the first quarter of 2019/20, we
delivered a wide range of new assets
across the rail advertising estate. New
runs of digital escalator panels were
delivered at Waterloo, Liverpool Street
and Leicester Square and our new digital
ribbons (end-to-end continuous escalator
screens) were delivered at Waterloo,
South Kensington and Oxford Circus.

A brand new digital landmark format

was delivered at both Bank and London
Bridge. The digital landmarks provide
very large format digital advertising on
the headwall above key escalators. All

of these assets will increase the digital
footprint of advertising across our estate,
which will result in a drive for increased
revenues for investment back into the
transport system.

Page 191



- l_n!!h PTERT uh .
e L mw TN W




Appendices

TfL Group balance sheet

Balance sheet 22 June Ql 31 March

(Em) 2019 Budget Variance 2019  Variance
Intangible assets 07 102 5 13 (6)
Property, plant and equipment 41,193 41,389 (196) 40,815 378
Investment property 492 492 - 492 -
Investment in associate entities 234 235 (1) 233 I
Long-term derivatives 6 7 (1 7 (1)
Long-term finance lease receivables 35 42 (7) 39 (4)
Long-term debtors 95 Il (16) 13 (18)
Long-term assets 42,162 42,378 (216) 41,812 350
Stocks 62 6l | 6l |
Short-term debtors 619 694 (75) 697 (78)
Assets held for sale 122 122 - 122 -
Short-term derivatives 9 12 (3) 12 (3)
Short-term finance lease receivables 17 13 4 13 4
Cash and short-term investments 1,75l 1,88l (130) 1,882 (131)
Current assets 2,580 2,783 (203) 2,787 (207)
Short-term creditors (1,96l) (1999) 38 (2,167) 206
Short-term borrowings (687) (746) 59 (746) 59
Short-term finance lease liabilities (59) (61) 2 (70) Il
Short-term derivatives (1) (3) (8) (3) (8)
Short-term provisions (335) (341) 6 (346) Il
Current liabilities (3,053) (3,150) 97 (3,332) 279
Long-term creditors (229) (208) (21) (194) (35)
Long-term borrowings (10,392) (10,677) 285 (10,399) 7
Long-term finance lease liabilities (342) (343) I (348) 6
Long-term derivatives (46) (45) (1) (46) -
Long-term provisions (56) (53) (3) (55) (1)
Pension provision (5,369) (5,371) 2 (5,371) 2
Long-term liabilities (16,434) (16,697) 263 (16,413) (21)
Net assets 25,255 25,314 (59) 24,854 401
Reserves

Usable reserves 1,611 1,706 (95) 1,627 (16)
Unusable reserves 23,644 23,608 36 23,227 417
Total reserves 25,255 25,314 (59) 24,854 401

Page 193



Headcount

Full-time equivalents (FTEs) including non-permanent labour (NPL)

31 March 2019 YTD net End of QI

Actual (leavers)/joiners Actual

London Underground 18,442 (159) 18,283
Elizabeth line 263 2 265
Buses 465 14 479
Rail 274 (4) 270
Streets 1,307 35 1,342
Other operations 1,380 (30) 1,350
Professional services* 3,825 14 3,839
Property 140 9 149
Crossrail 54| 90 63|
Major projects 614 (10) 604
Media 29 - 29
Total 27,280 (39) 27,241

TfL's organisational change programme is central to reducing cost and raising more
revenue to hit the target of achieving a surplus on net cost of operations by 2022/23.
The next phase of savings will come from delivering efficiencies, including reducing
the cost of back and middle offices by 30 per cent.

* Professional Services comprises functions within TfL including Legal, Finance, Human Resources,
Ticketing, Procurement and Customer, and Communications & Technology where services are

provided on a shared basis across all TfL divisions.

Page 194

36 Headcount



NPL

We continue to make use of the
flexibility offered by NPL, particularly
through this time of change and
temporary peaks in demand, such

as in recruitment resulting from our

transformation programme. It is equally
important that we do not limit our
ability to hire talent in areas where skills
are scarce.

Reduction since December 2015

Number Weekly cost Number Weekly saving
Date of NPL (£) of NPL (£)
I5 December 2015 3,092 5,249,002
31 March 2017 [,742 2,544,009 1,350 2,704,993
31 March 2018 [,422 1,874,029 1,670 3,374,973
31 March 2019 192 1,688,494 1,900 3,560,509
22 June 2019 1,217 1,717,174 1,875 3,534,829

The above table shows the cost reduction made from actions taken to reduce NPL
costs. The weekly cost assumes seven hours a day and five days a week worked.

NPL by length of service

31 March 2019 YTD net End of QI
Length of service Actual (leavers)/joiners Actual
0-6 months 342 57 399
6-12 months 183 3 186
[-2 years 282 (41) 24|
2-3 years 220 5 225
3-5 years 100 [ 10l
5+ years 65 - 65
Total 1,192 25 1,217

There remain a large number of non-permanent contractors who have been working at
TfL for more than two years. Many of theses are working on large construction projects,
but we continue to seek to reduce reliance on theses resources to the extend that

is possible.

Page 195



July 2019

tfl.gov.uk PUBI9_029 QPR _Ql

Page 196




AEE

LONDON FIRE BRIGADE

Report title

Financial Position as at the end of June 2019

Report to Date

Corporate Services DB 23 July 2019
Commissioner's Board 317 July 2019
Fire and Resilience Board 06 August 2019
Report by Report number
Assistant Director, Finance [LFC-0000]

Protective marking: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED
Publication status: Published in full

Summary
This report presents the London Fire Commissioner's (LFC) financial position as at the end of June
2019 and provides information on financial performance against revenue and capital budgets.

Recommendation
1. That the financial position as at the end of June 2019 be noted.

2. Toapprove the transfer of £3.1m in additional grant income for Firefighter's Pension Cost
increase into the Budget Flexibility Reserve (BFR).

3. To approve reserve movement set out at Table 2.

4. To approve the capital budget slippage of £6.8m to future years budgets and the re-profiling of
£2.4m from the 2020/21 capital budget to 2019/20.

Background
1. This report presents the current revenue and capital expenditure position for June 2019 and the
forecast outturn position at March 2020.

2. All departments review their actual income and expenditure on a regular basis, and provide an
updated forecast of outturn and explanation of variances, against all their budgets, to the Finance
Department. These returns then form the basis of reporting to the Corporate Services
Directorate Board and to the Commissioner's Board and from there on to the Greater London
Authority.

Background to 2018/19 Budget

3. The 2019/20 budget was approved by the London Fire Commissioner's (LFC) on 27 March 2019
(LFC-0133-D) with a net revenue budget of £392.3m, being made up of net expenditure of
£447 .3m with £23.9k funding from earmarked reserves and £31.1m from specific grants.

Page 197

The London Fire Commissioner is the fire and rescue authority for London 10f37



4. This report sets out a summary position on both the revenue and capital budgets, and then
provides more detailed explanations of variances.

Revenue

5. The forecast outturn position for 2019/20 on the revenue budget is for an overspend of £1,325k,
which is 0.3% of the net revenue budget. The variance is mainly due to forecast overspends on
the following items:

operational staff of £1,076k, due to an increase to the provision for a backdated
London Weighting claim of 4.6% from July 2017 and 3.4% from July 2018 and
additional one off payment to consolidate this into basic pay,

energy costs of £473k based on forecast increases of about 17% in the electricity
contract cost from April 2019 and 20% forecast increase in gas based on notification
received from the Crown Commercial Services,

communications of £267k due to increased capacity on the Core Network, internet
connectivity and increased maintenance cost due to the delay in replacement of the
Fireground radio, whilst its relationship to the requirements of the Respiratory
Protective Equipment (RPE) project is being explored, to improve firefighter safety,
rents of 188k due to the lease on the Brigade Distribution Centre (BDC) which is now
required until March 2020,

other pension payments of £137k based on expected cost of not abating pensions for
some Fire Safety Inspecting Officers, and

clothing & laundry of £78k due to additional PPE (Personal Protective Equipment)
spend expected for specialist teams.

6. The above overspends are offset by underspending of £632k on the following items:

property rates of £172k due to an anticipated exemption being achieved at the new
Operational Support Centre whilst the site is being fitted out,

professional services of £324k on the Control and Mobilising Solution (CAMS)
contract based on service credits, abatements and inflation, being lower than
expected, and

vehicle and equipment costs of £136k due to lower accident repair costs.

7. The above overspends are also offset by income budgets forecast to over recover by £390k,
largely due to additional customer and client receipts of £409k as a result of Operational
Resilience staff seconded to the Cabinet Office, Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea and
Babcock and additional training income for running smoke filled environment and National
Interagency Liaison Officer (NILO) courses; offset by expected under recovery of £198k as
insurance claims relating to disclosure costs are clarified. Interest income is forecast to over
recover by £180k, which reflects the 2018/19 outturn position and that cash balances are being
held at a higher level for longer due to re-profiling of capital expenditure.

8. The key variances are explained in more detail from paragraph 10 below.

Tables and Appendices to this report
9. A number of appendices provide additional detail on the financial position, as follows:

e Table 1 provides a summary of the financial position for the revenue budget;
e Table 2 provides the latest position on reserves;

Page 198
2 of 37



e Appendix 1 provides additional detail on the forecast outturn financial position for the
revenue budget;

e Appendix 2 contains the financial position for the capital budget;

e Appendix 3 shows the changes in the use of reserves from March Budget Report;

e Appendix 4 discuss the risks to the revenue and capital position that have not been
quantified;

e Appendix 5 provides an analysis of outstanding debt relating to charges for Shut in Lift
attendances;

e Appendix 6 meets the requirement to disclose all budget virements within the quarter
under the LFC Scheme of Governance;

e Appendix 7 provides an update on expenditure approved in the Additional Resilience
Requirements report (FEP2763);

Table 1. Summary Financial Position

Current Current | Current | Revised | Forecast Ié;)l::ttisr:‘
Budget Spend | Variance | Budget | Outturn .
Variance
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Operational staff 67,698 66,484 (1,213) 270,252 271,327 1,076
Other staff 13,986 15,654 1,668 59,945 59,924 (22)
Employee related 17,080 17,091 11 22,010 22,179 169
Pensions 5,490 5,550 60 20,769 20,769 0
Premises 16,501 16,802 301 39,523 40,030 506
Transport 14,393 15,331 938 19,035 18,913 (122)
Supplies and services 13,795 16,456 2,661 29,567 29,605 38
Third party payments 885 534 (350) 1,762 1,863 101
Capital financing costs 400 206 (194) 9,775 9,775 0
Central contingency against
inflation 0 0 0 (25) (56) (32)
Total revenue expenditure 150,227 | 154,108 3,881 | 472,614 | 474,330 1,716
Other income (2,887) (3,566) (679) | (40,571) | (40,962) (390)
Net revenue expenditure 147,339 | 150,542 3,202 | 432,043 | 433,368 1,325
Use of earmarked reserves (150) 0 150 (4,429) (4,429) 0
Financing Requirement 147,189 | 150,542 3,352 | 427,614 | 428,939 1,325
Financed by:
Specific grants (25,853) | (22,238) 3,615 | (35,308) | (35,308) (0)
GLA funding 0 0 0 | (392,305) | (392,305) 0
Net Financial Position 121,336 | 128,304 6,968 0 1,325 1,325
Page 199

30f37



Reasons for the Revenue Position

Staff

10.

11.

12.

The budget for operational staff is forecast to overspend by £1,076k. This is largely due to
increases to the provision for a backdated London Weighting claim (£2,822k) of 4.6% from July
2017 and 3.4% from July 2018 and additional one off payment to consolidate London Weighting
into basic pay, a forecast overspend (£2,496k) on overtime and direct standby budgets which is
reducing as the Brigade moves towards full establishment, and a forecast overspend on
firefighter trainee budgets (£284k). This is offset by a forecast underspend (£3,628k) due to
vacancies and (£861k) on operational allowances due to delays to payments under new
arrangements.

The variances on operational staff discussed above reflect the improvement in the overall
operational staff position as a result of reducing vacancy numbers. This work has reduced the
underspend on operational staff and also reduced spend on overtime compared with last year.
Monthly spend on overtime is expected to continue to reduce until full establishment is
achieved.

FRS staff are forecast to underspend by £22k. The FRS staff budget includes an additional £1m
vacancy margin to reflect the level of vacancies at the start of the year. Control staff are forecast
to be on target at the end of June. Six additional Control Officer posts were added to the
establishment from April, funded from reserves and a growth bid will be submitted for this as
part of the budget process for 2020/21.

Employee Related

13.

There is an overspend of £137k on other pension payments based on expected cost of not
abating pensions for some Fire Safety Inspecting Officers, offset by a £55k underspend due to
medical and welfare budgets, resulting from a lower forecast number of childcare claims,
medical appeals and drug and alcohol tests in this financial year.

Premises
14. There is forecast overspend on energy costs of £473k based on forecast increases of about 17%

15.

in the electricity contract cost from April 2019 and 20% forecast increase in gas based on
notification received from the Crown Commercial Services. This will be addressed as part of the
budget setting process for 2020/21.

Rents are forecast to overspend by £188k due to the lease on the Brigade Distribution Centre
(BDC) which is now required until March 2020. Approval for an extension to the lease for the
BDC to cover this additional time was obtained from LFEPA in January 2018, however this did
not provide additional funding beyond the first year. The BDC had been scheduled to close in
March 2019, when the new Operational Support Unit (OSU) was scheduled to be operational,
but this was not achieved due to unexpected delays in obtaining landlord consent for the
proposed works at the OSU, resulting in slippage in tendering the works. This is offset by a
£172k underspend on rates due to an anticipated exemption being achieved at the new OSU
whilst the site is being fitted out, and new rateable value for Dockhead fire station (applicable
from April 2017) being assessed at a lower value than forecast.

Transport
16. Transport budgets are forecast to underspend by £122k, made up of a forecast underspend on

the vehicle and equipment contract of £63k based on forecast abatement levels, and on vehicle
passthroughs of £136k due to lower accident repair costs, which will be considered as part of

Page 200
40f37



the budget process. This is offset by £79k forecast overspend on running costs due to
continued high diesel prices. Pump prices are up 13% compared to the same period in 2017 and
the increase is also due to the ongoing replacement of pumping appliances, with the
introduction of Euro 6 engines that require ad-blue fluid to reduce the emissions of nitrous
oxides.

Supplies and Services

17

. There is a forecast overspend of £38k on Supplies and Services budgets mainly on

Communications (£267k) due to increased capacity on the Core Network, internet connectivity
and increased maintenance cost due to the delay in the replacement of the Fireground radios
whilst the relationship to the requirements of the Respiratory Protective Equipment (RPE)
project is being explored, there is also a forecast overspend on Clothing & Laundry (£78k) due
to additional PPE spend expected to be made for the specialist entry recovery team (SERT) and
Urban Search And Rescue (USAR). This is offset by £324k underspend on Professional Services
due to the CAMS contract based on service credits, abatements and inflation being lower than
expected.

Income

18

19.

20.

. Income budgets are forecast to over recover by £390k. This includes additional customer and

client receipts of £409k as a result of Operational Resilience staff seconded to the Cabinet
Office, Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea and Babcock, and additional training income
for running smoke filled environment and NILO courses, offset by expected under recovery of
£198k due to the forecast that disclosure costs claims may not be covered under our Insurance
Policy.

Interest income is forecast to over recover by £180k, which reflects the 2018/19 outturn
position and that cash balances are being held at a higher level for longer than previously
expected due to reprofiling of capital expenditure. These items will be reviewed as part of the
budget setting process for 2020/21, and any savings incorporated into the 2020/21 budget.

Appendix 5 includes an update on the position on outstanding shut in lift debt.

Grant Income - Firefighter Pensions

21.

The LFC has also received additional one off grant income of £3,111k to help meet the additional
employer contributions costs for the Fire Pension Schemes from April 2019. This additional
income was notified to the LFC after the budget for 2019/20 had been set. It is proposed that a
budget should be set up for this income to allow for it to be paid into the Budget Flexibility
Reserve. The forecast overspend of £1,325k assumes a budget adjustment for the grant income,
without this, the overspend would have been considerably more.

Capital

22.

23.

The original budget for the 2019/20 capital programme was £40,876k, as per the Capital
Strategy (LFC-0134) report. The budget was revised down to £38,988k following the capital
outturn position report for 2018/19 financial year (LFC-0179), which saw £2,029 brought
forward into 2018/19 following the earlier progress on the delivery of pumping appliances and
other schemes, plus slippage from 2018/19 to 2019/20 of £306k and savings identified of
£553k. In addition, a sum of £1,000k has been brought forward from 2020/21 mainly in respect
of the Operational Support Centre and £612k deferred to 2020/21.

The table below shows the summary capital budgets for 2019/20 and the proposed budget
changes for Quarter 1.

Page 201
5o0f37



Budget Year 2019-20 | Forecast | Variance Savings Re-phasing | New/
(to)/ from
LFC-0179 | Quarter later years | Increased
12019 Budget

ICT 4,886 291 (1,975) 0 (1,975) 0
Fleet 22,501 20,359 (2,142) (304) (1,888) 50
Property 11,220 9,956 (1,264) (20) (1,244) 0
New Training Centre 381 1,039 658 0 658 0
Disposal costs 0 0 0 0 0 0
Capital Programme 38,988 34,265 (4,723) (324) (4,449) 50

24.

The current capital forecast for 2019/20 is £34,265k. This is £4,723k less than the revised capital
budget of £38,988k. The main changes in the programme are summarised below with detailed
explanations set out from paragraph 32 and in Appendix 2.

Budget slippage to 2019/20 - (£6,822k)

Budgets brought forward from 2019/20 - £2,373k
New/Increased Budgets - £50k

Budget Savings — (£324k)

Position on Reserves

25.

26.

27.

28.

Based on the forecast financial position, the forecast balance on the general reserve is £12,608k.
This is £2,514k below the minimum general reserve position of £15,121k, which is 3.5% of
revised net revenue expenditure for 2019/20.

The forecast overspend and resulting impact on the general reserve will be addressed by a draw
from the Budget Flexibility Reserve (BFR). The 2019/20 Budget Report agreed a draw of £3.6m
from the BFR to support revenue expenditure in 2019/20. However, assuming approval of the
recommendation to pay the additional £3.17m grant income relating to firefighter pensions into
the BFR the net draw on the BFR would then reduce to £0.5m for 2019/20. The consideration of
the backdated London Weighting claim, at £2.8m, was recognised as requiring a draw from the
BFR, however the overall forecast outturn position allows the impact on the BFR in 2019/20 to
be lower than that originally agreed in the 2019/20 budget.

The current forecast outturn would require a draw of £2,514k from the BFR to bring the general
reserve up to its stated minimum level. This additional draw when added to the £0.5m outlined
above, would bring the forecast reduction in the BFR to £3,014k. This is not currently reflected
in reserves position set out below, as the movement on the BFR will be confirmed later in the
year as part of the outturn report.

Table 2 below sets out the position on the financial reserves.

Page 202
6 of 37



Table 2. Position on Reserves

Opening Approved Unapproved Anticipated

£000s Balance at Movements in Use of Balance at

01/04/19 Q418/19 Reserves 31/03/20
Additional Resilience Requirements 767 68 (337) 498
Capital Expenditure Reserve 11,745 11,745
Central Programme Office 0 250 542 792
Community Safety Investment Fund 0 11 (11) 0
Compensation 1,000 (250) 750
Commanisaton Frogramme ens 345 ©9) A0
Emergency Medical Response 294 294
Fire Safety and Youth Engagement 715 273 42 1,031
HMICFRS inspection regime 21 65 (63) 22
Hydrants 462 (95) 367
ICT Development Reserve 1,851 150 (208) 1,793
LFC Control Centre 959 (209) 750
LFB Museum Project 210 (70) 140
London Resilience 1,015 38 (150) 203
London Safety Plan Initiatives 4,178 76 (499) 3,755
New Governance Arrangements 0 148 148
Organisational Reviews 505 316 (355) 466
Recruitment/ Outreach 370 370
Sustainability 235 (235) 0
Vehicle & Equipment Reserve 2,865 244 (1,965) 1,143
Budget Flexibility 23,110 7,287 (467) 29,930
General 23,204 (9,271) (1,325) 12,608
Total 75,434 (0] (5,754) 69,680

29. The reserves table above includes transfer of £542k from the forecast underspend on the

Central Programme Office budgets. Total funding for the year is £2,600k and the forecast spend
is £2,058k, although subject to increase should the project workload increase. This will continue

30.

to be reviewed as part of the normal monitoring process.
The table above includes £4,504k of planned draws on other earmarked reserves including:

£1,965k from the vehicle and equipment reserve that includes £1,235k for the Ultra Low
Emission Fleet programme and £670k for Ultra Low Emission Zone enhancements.

£499k from the London Safety Plan Reserve including £185k for the fire safe and well pilot,
£146k for Local Intervention Fire Education (LIFE) and cadet programmes and £167k for the
Unwanted Fire Signals project.

£355k from the Organisational Review reserve to fund the Watch Structure project team
(£330k) and the Building Safety Team (£25k),

£337k from the Additional Resilience Reserve to fund the Investigation Team and one off
training costs,

£250k from the compensation reserve to meet the cost of Counsel Fees in relation to
compensation claims,,

Page 203

7 of 37



e £235k from the sustainability reserve to fund improvements to appliances,

e £209 from the control centre reserve to fund the temporary increase to the control
establishment,

e £208k from the ICT development reserve for Emergency Services Mobile Communication
Programme - the Home Office project to update the emergency services network across fire,
police and ambulance services.

e £150k from the London Resilience reserve funding additional costs related to Brexit reporting,

e £99k to fund the Emergency Services Mobile Communication Programme,

e £95kto fund invest to save initiatives to improve hydrants maintenance,

e £70k to fund the LFB Museum Project,

e £63kto fund the project team working on the Her Majesty's Inspectorate of Constabulary and
Fire & Rescue Services (HMICFRS) inspection,

e £11k for the remaining proposal from the Community Safety Investment Fund,

e The Fire Safety and Youth Engagement reserve is showing a net payment of £42k. This includes
the transfer of the second year of funding from the Mayor for cadets (£438k), offset by £396k to
support youth engagement schemes.

31. The forecast movement on the reserves in 2019/20 was included as part of the Budget Report
2019/20, and the movements set out above are compared to the original forecast in a table
provided at Appendix 3. This shows the anticipated balance on reserves at 31st March 2020
presented in the March Budget, and the revised forecast balance included in this report, with
explanations of any variances. The forecast balance in reserves has increased from £51,637k to
£69,680k, an increase of £18,044k largely as a result of finalising the accounting treatment of
the funding that lead to the creation of the Capital Expenditure Reserve (£11,745k), and the
additional pension funding (£3,111k).

Capital
32. The current capital forecast for 2019/20 is £34,265k. This is £4,723k less than the revised
budget of £38,988k (LFC-0179). The main changes in the programme are detailed below and a
full breakdown of the future capital programme is detailed in Appendix 2.

Budget re-phased from 2019/20 - £2,373k

e Aerial Appliances -£1,646k - due to updated profile of stage payments

e LFB Training Centre - £658k — rephrased due to updated project timescales

e Minor Works - £69k — to cover Fire Station requests for priority accommodation changes
and urgent mechanical and electrical asset replacements.

Re-phased to 2019/20 - (£6,822k):
Property

e Appliance Bay Door Replacements (£290k) — This includes Soho, £40k, due to planning
issues relating to design, Erith, £100k, for accidental damage work, Wimbledon, £150k
because of the complexities relating to completing the work whilst keeping the Fire
Station operational and also a long lead in time for the manufacture of the appliance bay
doors.

e Replacement of Heating Systems (£703k) — This includes Wimbledon, £403k, due to
internal resource levels being stretched and the delivery of the appliance bay door
project above, Acton, £200k, and Surbiton, £100k, with both schemes delayed due to
design technical complexities

Page 204
8 of 37



e West Hampstead Cottages Refurbishment (£100k), where potential delays are foreseen
in receiving listed planning consent from the Camden

e Other rephasing (£177k), including £77k for Roof Replacement at Clapham due to design
issues due to roof mounted mechanical plant and relocation of Fire Safety Team and
£100k for the Plumstead and Lambeth River Fire Station Refurbishments due to forecast
lower consultancy costs during 2019/20.

ICT

e |CT —Computer Terminals (£100k), a review of requirements highlighted the terminals
would not be needed until 2021/22.

e |CT - Fire Ground Radios (£1,800k), the scheme is paused for three months to allow the
Respiratory Protective Equipment (RPE) project to come to a conclusion on the
equipment that will be used therefore scheme unlikely to be delivered in 2019/20.

e |CT - Business Intelligent Solution (£75k), the expenditure profile has been updated
after a review of work to be completed during 2019/20.

Fleet and Operational Equipment

e Fleet Equipment — (£784k), the FRU equipment expenditure is deferred one year to allow
for the planning of the requirements this financial year.

e Fleet Vans - (£450k), the delivery of vans to be BDC is now expected to be in 2020/21.

e Respiratory Protective Equipment (BARRIE) — (£2,300k), has been deferred due to a
review of equipment requirements.

e Otherslippage (£43k).

New Budget Requirement/Increased Budget - £50k

e Purchase of vans — increased budget £50k — (LFC-0124). The cost of purchasing the
vans is £750k, the increase budget requirement relates to an increase in contract price
compared to the initial estimate.

Budget savings — (£324k)

e Fleet Equipment Savings (£304k), including a £284k saving on replacement of 9m ladders
due to asset life review on the asset register which has now been confirmed at 15 years
and £23k of other equipment savings.

e Other savings (£20k).

Update on significant scheme changes during the first quarter:

33. LFB Training Centre - £658k has been brought forward from 2020/21 budget - The budget has
been re-profiled to reflect the latest programme. The project is now programmed to complete in
June 2021 (construction completed) and to be operational from September 2021. This timetable
accords with the programme for the Operations Support Centre project, and is in line with the
Protective Equipment Groups (PEG's) move out from their current Croydon site (which is a
dependency of the LFB Training Centre Croydon project).

34.ICT - Fire ground Radios - £1,800k slippage to 2020/21. This project has been paused for three
months to allow the Respiratory Protective Equipment (RPE) project to come to a conclusion on

Page 205
90f37



the equipment that will be used, particularly in respect of intrinsically safe radios. It is therefore
very unlikely that the money will be spent in this financial year.

Debtors

35. Ananalysis of debtors relating to Shut in Lift is provided in Appendix 5. This includes a chart that
shows the decrease in Shut in Lift debts over the past 18 months of shut in lift charges. The total
number of shut in lift debts has been falling gradually over the last two years, after its peak, with
the overall balance reduced from £300k at the end of September 2015 to £98k at the end of June
2019.

Additional Resilience Requirements

36. Appendix 7 provides detailed information on the additional resourcing costs agreed (FEP2763)
following the Grenfell Tower fire and terrorist incidents in 2017. This includes the forecast spend
for 2019/20 and the budget requirement for 2020/21 and future years.

Finance comments
37. This report is presented by the Assistant Director, Finance and there are no further comments.

Workforce comments
38. No staff-side consultations have been undertaken on this report.

Legal comments

39. The reportis a financial performance update, presented for information only. It is submitted in
accordance with Part 6 (Financial Regulations) of the London Fire Commissioner's (“LFC")
Scheme of Governance that sets out detailed rules covering financial planning, monitoring,
control, systems and procedures and insurance.

40. This report fulfils the obligations of section 8 (f) of the Financial Regulations which stipulates that,
"Following consultation with the relevant Heads of Service the Director of Corporate Services
will present budget monitoring reports to the relevant Board regularly.

41. The Director of Corporate Services has responsibility for the administration of the LFC's financial
affairs under section 127 of the Greater London Authority Act 1999, and is required to ensure
arrangements for all financial and accounting matters, the security of money, and other assets are
economic, efficient and effective.

Sustainability implications
42. There are no direct sustainable implications.

Equalities implications
43. This report has no equality implications.

List of Appendices to this report

Detailed Financial Position

Capital Programme 2019/20

Changes in use of reserves from March Budget Report
Risks to the revenue and Capital Position

Outstanding LIFT debtors

Scheme of Governance — Budget Virements
Additional Resilience Requirements

NoOWVAWN =

Page 206
10 of 37



Consultation

Name/role Method consulted

Heads of Department Departmental finance returns

Page 207
11 of 37



80¢ abed

Appendix 1 — Detailed Financial Position

Current Current Current Variance Original Revised Forecast Forecast Outturn
Budget Spend Budget Budget Outturn Variance
£ £ £ % £ £ £ £ %
Operational Staff 67,148,930 65,645,192 | (1,503,737) (2.2%) 270,798,421 268,057,149 268,870,709 813,560 0.3%
Trainee Firefighters 548,600 839,098 290,498 53.0% 1,590,569 2,194,401 2,456,724 262,323 12.0%
Total Operational Staff 67,697,530 66,484,291 (1,213,239) (1.8%) | 272,388,990 | 270,251,550 | 271,327,433 | 1,075,883 0.4%
FRS Staff 12,623,389 14,275,297 1,651,908 13.1% 53,080,258 54,401,771 54,380,255 (21,516) (0.0%)
Control Staff 1,362,376 1,378,240 15,864 1.2% 5,299,147 5,543,503 5,543,504 0 0.0%
Total Other Staff 13,985,765 15,653,537 1,667,772 11.9% 58,379,405 59,945,274 59,923,758 (21,516) (0.0%)
Other Pension Payments 220,000 77,689 (142,311) | (64.7%) 880,000 880,000 1,017,000 137,000 15.6%
Severance 0 0 0 0.0% 0 8,060 8,060 0 0.0%
Professional Development 16,117,370 16,400,292 282,923 1.8% 18,353,950 17,934,408 17,957,854 23,446 0.1%
Recruitment 45,290 26,096 (19,194) | (42.4%) 181,159 181,159 183,459 2,300 1.3%
Employee Related Insurance 0 50,879 50,879 0.0% 215,000 215,000 276,777 61,777 28.7%
Compensation 201,453 69,153 (132,300) | (65.7%) 805,814 805,814 805,814 0 0.0%
Medical and Welfare Expenses 496,270 467,342 (28,928) (5.8%) 2,279,081 1,985,081 1,930,017 (55,064) (2.8%)
Total Employee Related 17,080,383 17,091,451 11,068 0.1% 22,715,004 22,009,522 22,178,981 169,459 0.8%
Firefighter Pension Scheme 5,489,815 5,549,852 60,037 1.1% 20,769,276 20,769,276 20,769,276 0 0.0%
Building Maintenance 1,956,666 1,056,241 (900,425) | (46.0%) 8,512,832 8,612,578 8,612,578 0 0.0%
Grounds Maintenance 24,238 11,905 (12,332) | (50.9%) 120,984 120,984 120,984 0 0.0%
Premises Security 512,752 542,537 29,785 5.8% 547,752 547,752 547,752 0 0.0%
Energy Costs 338,066 463,535 125,469 37.1% 2,271,205 2,271,205 2,744,205 473,000 20.8%
Rents 3,605,096 4,103,129 498,033 13.8% 8,256,016 8,283,856 8,471,675 187,819 2.3%
Property PFI Contract 5,635,202 5,650,979 15,776 0.3% 5,635,202 5,635,202 5,635,202 0 0.0%
Property Rates 2,368,678 2,320,290 (48,388) (2.0%) 8,936,853 8,795,117 8,622,785 (172,332) (2.0%)
Water & Sewerage Rates 46,675 11,105 (35.570) | (76.2%) 271,515 271,515 271,515 0 0.0%
Fixtures & Fittings 21,992 16,415 (5,577) | (25.4%) 97,969 87,969 87,969 0 0.0%
Cleaning and Domestic Supplies 360,541 307,062 (53.479) | (14.8%) 2,101,297 2,065,597 2,065,597 0 0.0%
Premises Insurance 35,420 109,934 74514 | 210.4% 322,000 322,000 340,000 18,000 5.6%

12 of 37




60¢ abed

Appendix 1 — Detailed Financial Position

Current Current Current Variance Original Revised Forecast Forecast Outturn
Budget Spend Budget Budget Outturn Variance
£ £ £ % £ £ £ £ %
Other Property Services 1,595,398 2,208,666 613,268 38.4% 2,573,583 2,509,537 2,509,537 0 0.0%
Total Premises 16,500,724 16,801,800 301,075 1.8% 39,647,207 39,523,311 40,029,798 506,487 1.3%
Running Costs 1,295,269 1,762,911 467,642 36.1% 2,486,164 2,486,164 2,564,926 78,762 3.2%
Vehicle and Equipment Contract 11,281,465 11,792,242 510,777 4.5% 11,282,867 11,277,260 11,214,190 (63,070) (0.6%)
Vehicle Passthroughs 656,849 587,875 (68,973) | (10.5%) 658,889 667,407 531,819 | (135,588) | (20.3%)
Maintenance and Repairs 241,250 39,718 (201,532) | (83.5%) 2,200,000 2,200,000 2,200,000 0 0.0%
Contract Hire & Operating Leases 640,879 704,146 63,267 9.9% 1,157,462 1,153,263 1,190,991 37,728 3.3%
Travel 277,036 443,631 166,594 60.1% 975,583 1,251,143 1,211,129 (40,014) (3.2%)
Total Transport 14,392,747 15,330,523 937,776 6.5% 18,760,965 19,035,237 18,913,055 | (122,182) (0.6%)
Hydrants 477,042 651,045 174,002 36.5% 496,055 420,004 420,004 (0) (0.0%)
Operational Equipment 396,802 422,984 26,182 6.6% 2,767,692 1,638,592 1,639,926 1,334 0.1%
Smoke Alarms 181,660 194,508 12,849 7.1% 700,000 726,638 726,640 2 0.0%
Equipment Furniture and Materials 73,609 188,928 115318 | 156.7% 294,441 294,441 342,602 48,161 16.4%
Lost & NFWT Operational Equipment 116,871 170,544 53,673 45.9% 116,871 116,871 116,871 0 0.0%
Catering 79,984 126,774 46,791 58.5% 303,636 334,936 335,728 792 0.2%
Clothing & Laundry 2,641,400 2,999,728 358,328 13.6% 3,271,629 3,424,429 3,502,811 78,382 2.3%
General Office Expenses 200,787 188,366 (12,421) (6.2%) 619,245 632,745 575,514 (57,231) (9.0%)
Professional Services 7,052,753 7,094,801 42,048 0.6% 9,615,198 10,092,156 9,767917 | (324,239) (3.2%)
Postal Services 13,446 56,330 42,884 | 318.9% 61,055 61,055 61,055 0 0.0%
Communications 962,048 960,549 (1,499) (0.2%) 3,982,950 4,025,118 4,292,054 266,936 6.6%
Hardware and Software 1,444,813 3,099,342 1,654,529 | 114.5% 6,345,135 6,935,824 6,973,991 38,167 0.6%
Staff Reimbursements 60,628 59,260 (1,368) (2.3%) 248,721 242,521 242,283 (238) (0.1%)
Grants and Subscriptions 51,443 130,301 78,858 | 153.3% 205,771 205,771 204,675 (1,096) (0.5%)
Other Insurance 0 68,560 68,560 0.0% 250,000 250,000 233,267 (16,733) (6.7%)
Advertising 28,965 30,410 1,445 5.0% 105,861 115,861 120,341 4,480 3.9%
Other Supplies and Services 12,542 13,127 585 4.7% 45,170 50,170 49,593 (577) (1.2%)
Total Supplies and Services 13,794,793 16,455,558 2,660,765 19.3% 29,429,429 29,567,131 29,605,272 38,140 0.1%

13 of 37




0Tz abed

Appendix 1 — Detailed Financial Position

Current Current Current Variance Original Revised Forecast Forecast Outturn
Budget Spend Budget Budget Outturn Variance
£ £ £ % £ £ £ £ %
Other Agencies 333,097 2,614 (330,484) | (99.2%) 321,700 333,097 333,097 0 0.0%
Other Local Authorities 470,294 530,699 60,405 12.8% 1,406,894 1,340,594 1,442,266 101,672 7.6%
Audit & Bank Charges 81,400 1,049 (80,351) | (98.7%) 88,600 88,600 88,000 (600) (0.7%)
Total Third Party Payments 884,791 534,361 (350,430) | (39.6%) 1,817,194 1,762,291 1,863,363 101,072 5.7%
Debt Repayment 0 0 0 0.0% 6,357,000 6,357,000 6,357,000 0 0.0%
External Interest 400,000 206,412 (193,588) | (48.4%) 3,418,000 3,418,000 3,418,000 0 0.0%
Total Capital Financing Costs 400,000 206,412 (193,588) | (48.4%) 9,775,000 9,775,000 9,775,000 0 0.0%
Budget for Non Staff Inflation 0 0 0 0.0% 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Central Contingency 0 0 0 0.0% 100,841 (19,367) 1 19,367 | (100.0%)
Savings to Be Achieved 0 0 0 0.0% (173,287) (115,836) (97,061) 18,775 | (16.2%)
Savings done by DA 0 0 0 0.0% 120,997 110,463 40,642 (69,821) | (63.2%)
Contingency 0 0 0 0.0% 48,551 (24,740) (56,418) (31,678) | 128.0%
Total revenue expenditure 150,226,549 | 154,107,785 3,881,236 2.6% | 473,731,021 | 472,613,853 | 474,329,518 | 1,715,665 0.4%
MFB Act Income 0 (585,302) (585,302) 0.0% | (29,137,291) | (29,137,291) | (29,137,291) 0 0.0%
Customer and Client Receipts (2,887,230) (2,982,807) (95,576) 3.3% (9,008,762) | (11,113,801) | (11,324,279) | (210,478) 1.9%
Interest Receivable 0 882 882 0.0% (320,000) (320,000) (500,000) | (180,000) 56.3%
Bad Debts 0 1,178 1,178 0.0% 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Total Other Income (2,887,230) (3,.566,049) (678,818) 23.5% | (38,466,052) | (40,571,091) | (40,961,570) | (390,478) 1.0%
Net revenue expenditure 147,339,318 | 150,541,736 3,202,418 2.2% | 435,264,969 | 432,042,762 | 433,367,949 | 1,325,187 0.3%
Use of Earmarked Reserves (150,000) 0 150,000 | (100.0%) | (12,401,066) (4,429,253) (4,429,253) 0 0.0%
Financing Requirement 147,189,318 | 150,541,736 | 3,352,418 2.3% | 422,863,903 | 427,613,509 | 428,938,696 | 1,325,187 0.3%
Financed by:

14 of 37




TT¢ abed

Appendix 1 — Detailed Financial Position

Current Current Current Variance Original Revised Forecast Forecast Outturn
Budget Spend Budget Budget Outturn Variance
£ £ £ % £ £ £ £ %
Specific grants (25,852,978) | (22,237,542) 3,615,436 | (14.0%) | (31,608,903) | (35308,427) | (35,308,427) (0) 0.0%
GLA Grant 0 0 0 0.0% | (391,255,000) | (392,305,082) | (392,305,082) 0 0.0%
Net Financial Position 121,336,341 | 128,304,194 | 6,967,853 5.7% 0 0 1,325,187 | 1,325,187 0.0%

15 of 37




Appendix 2 - Capital Programme

2019/20 | Quarter 1 Variance | Notes
FUTURE CAPITAL PROGRAMME BUDGET Status | Budget | Forecast
Quarter 1 2019-20, FORECAST LFC-
0179
ICT Projects £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s
Records Management Operating System Amber 98 98 0
. . . Slipped to
Business Intelligent Solution Green 454 379 (75) 2020/21
Control & Mobilisation System (CAMS) Amber 100 100 0
Mobile Data Terminals Replacement Green 71 71 0
. : Slipped to
Fire ground Radios 1,800 0 (1,800) 2020/21
ICT - Virtual Desktop Technology (Citrix) Amber 250 250 0
New telephone system equipment Green 150 150 0
Netscaller Replacement Green 200 200 0
Wireless Access Points Green 853 853 0
. i . Slipped to
New computer terminals - Fat Client Green 100 0 (100) 2021/22 year
Multi Agency Incident Transfer (MAIT) - 195 195 0
Business Management System (PMF) Amber 215 215 0
Farynor (linked to Home Fire Safety) Green 100 100 0
New Finance System Green 100 100 0
New HR System Green 100 100 0
New Payroll System Green 100 100 0
ICT PROJECTS 4,886 2,911 (1,975)
ESTATE PROJECTS
Workplace Improvement Plan Union St Green 60 60 0
. . Creen c/fwd to
Plumstead Fire Station Redevelopment 100 50 (50) 2020/21
LFB Museum - Fit out Amber 30 30 0
. . . Creen c/fwd to
Heating at various stations 1,634 931 (703) 2020/21
Window replacement at various stations Amber 215 215 0
. N : Creen c/fwd to
Rewiring of property at various fire stations 598 555 (43) 2020/21
. Green b/fwd from
Minor Improvement Programme 2,164 2,233 69 2020/21
Amber c/fwd to
Roof Replacements 624 547 (77) 2020/21
. Amber c/fwd to
Appliance Bay Doors (Phase 3) 1,002 712 (290) 2020/21
Brigade wide Survey for Asbestos Removal Green 50 30 (20) | Savings
. Amber c/fwd to
West Hampstead Accommodation Refurb 663 563 (100) 2020/21
- Green b/fwd from
New Training Centre 381 1,039 658 2020/21
Operations Support Centre Project (IELP) Green 3,980 3,980 0
. . Creen c/fwd to
Lambeth River Station Redevelopment 100 50 (50) 2020/21
Page 212

16 of 37




Appendix 2 - Capital Programme

2019/20 | Quarter 1 Variance | Notes
FUTURE CAPITAL PROGRAMME BUDGET Status | Budget | Forecast
Quarter 1 2019-20, FORECAST LFC-
0179
ESTATE PROJECTS 11,601 10,995 (606)
FLEET & EQUIPMENT PROJECTS
Green New £50k &
Fleet and Operational Equipment 17,711 16,223 (1,488) | slippage £1,234k
. savings £304k.
Respiratory Protective Equipment (BARRIE) - 2,300 0 (2,300) %%‘jzt?
Early Replacement of ALP & HP* Green 1,800 3,446 1,646 ;’é‘;vcv)‘/jzfgom
CCTV on Pumping Appliances * Green 99 99 0
Early Replacement of Fire Boat* Amber 500 500 0
Portable Hygiene Units Green 91 9 0
FLEET & EQUIPMENT PROJECTS 22,501 20,359 | (2,142)
CAPITAL EXPENDITURE TOTAL 38,988 34,265 | (4,723)
Page 213

17 of 37




Appendix 2 - Capital Programme

yT¢ abed

201 ?/20 2018/19 Nev.v Slippage | 2019/20 T
FUTURE CAPITAL PROGRAMME BUDGET, Quarter 12019-20 g:‘r':'tt:;y g:‘;‘;’é‘e ::’I’ii‘;:/ 2021 :z‘é';::’ g g 3 g § g g V:-; . g .

LFC- N T N T N T 35 |S535

0134 S | 88 | 8a | &5 |22 &
ICT Projects £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s | £'000s £'000s | £'000s | £'000s | £/000s | £000s
Records Management Operating System 98 0 0 0 98 0 0 0 2,091 2,189
Business Intelligent Solution 454 0 0 (75) 379 435 465 0 531 1,810
Control & Mobilisation System (CAMS) 100 0 0 0 100 100 0 2,800 9,013 9,213
Mobile Data Terminals Replacement 71 0 0 0 71 0 0 1,486 2,029 2,100
Fire ground Radios 1,800 0 0] (1.800) 0 1,800 0 0 0 1,800
ICT - Virtual Desktop Technology (Citrix) 235 15 0 0 250 0 0 0 0 250
New telephone system equipment 150 0 0 0 150 0 0 0 164 307
Netscaller Replacement 200 0 0 0 200 0 0 0 0 200
Wireless Access Points 853 0 0 0 853 0 0 0 0 853
New ISP 0 0 0 0 0 500 0 0 0 500
New WAN 0 0 0 0 0 500 0 0 0 500
VM Server Environment Hosts 0 0 0 0 0 500 0 0 0 500
Replacement of laptops 0 0 0 0 0 563 0 0 0 563
New computer terminals - Thin Client 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,150 0 0 1,150
New audio visual equip for Stations 0 0 0 0 0 100 0 0 0 100
New computer terminals - Fat Client 100 0 0 (100) 0 0 100 0 0 100
Audio Equipment for Union St 0 0 0 0 0 0 220 0 0 220
Data transfer system for Joint Emergency Services Interoperability Programme 120 75 0 0 195 0 0 0 71 266
Business Management System (PMF) 215 0 0 0 215 0 0 0 0 215
Farynor Replacement (linked to Home Fire Safety) 100 0 0 0 100 450 200 0 0 750
Home Fire Safety Database 0 0 0 0 0 70 60 0 0
New Finance System 100 0 0 0 100 586 1,080 453 0 1,766
New HR System 100 0 0 0 100 624 0 0 0 724

18 of 37




GTz abed

Appendix 2 - Capital Programme

201 i/fo 3)0‘1t8/1 9 Ir;lev.v ) Slippage | 2019/20 T -
apital utturn rojects/ | to Revised 9 T 0
Eg';légiSCTAPITAL PROGRAMME BUDGET, Quarter 1 2019-20 f:::rgt-egy Slippage Savjings 2020/21 | Budget g go § go g go é tg- : g‘g %go
0134 8 | 8o | 8a | €2 |22 8] <4
ICT Projects £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s | £'000s £'000s | £'000s | £'000s | £'000s | £000s | £'000s
New Payroll System 100 0 0 0 100 231 0 0 0 331 TBA
ICT PROJECTS 4,796 20 0| (1,975) 2,911 6,459 | 3,275 [ 4,739 | 13,969
ESTATE PROJECTS
Workplace Improvement Plan (WIP) Union Street 60 0 0 0 60 0 0 0 106 167 240
Plumstead Fire Station Redevelopment 100 0 0 (50) 100 2,550 2,500 350 0 5,100 TBA
LFB Museum — Fit out 30 0 0 0 30 0 1,200 1,152 18 1,248 2,400
Refurbishment of Edmonton Fire Station 0 0 0 0 0 80 220 1,500 0 300 TBA
Heating at various stations 1,634 0 0 (703) 931 1,598 50 925 n/a n/a n/a
Window replacement at various stations 215 0 0 0 215 360 50 540 n/a n/a n/a
Rewiring of property at various fire stations 575 23 0 (43) 555 318 25 300 n/a n/a n/a
Minor Improvement Programme 2,164 0 0 69 2,233 2,012 2,040 1,496 n/a n/a n/a
Roof Replacements 624 0 0 (77) 547 817 60 680 n/a n/a n/a
Appliance Bay Doors (Phase 3) 981 21 0 (290) 712 704 0 400 n/a n/a n/a
Brigade wide Survey for Asbestos & Removal 50 0 (20) 0 30 50 50 50 n/a n/a n/a
West Hampstead Single Person's Accommodation Refurbishment 705 (42) 0 (100) 563 100 0 0 57 720 720
Improve Security at all Fire Stations, Offices & HQ 100 0 0 (100) 0 1,350 1,255 0 0 2,605 TBA
New Training Centre 300 81 0 658 1,039 8,049 6,046 0 366 8,846 | 15,500
Operations Support Centre Project (IELP) 3,196 (116) 0 900 3,980 0 0 0 342 4,322 4,322
Lambeth River Station Redevelopment 0 0 0 50 50 1,050 1,200 0 0 1,100 TBA
ESTATE PROJECTS 10,734 (33) (20) 314 | 10,995 19,038 | 14,696 | 7,393
FLEET & EQUIPMENT PROJECTS
Replacement of Fleet and Operational Equipment 20,094 (1.871) (254) | (1,746) | 16,223 14,000 8,796 2,276 | 19,979 | 61,746 TBA
Respiratory Protective Equipment (BARRIE) 2,300 0 0| (2,300) 0 2,300 0 0 0 2,300 TBA
Breathing Apparatus (Standard duration) 0 0 0 0 0 5,000 0 0 0 5,000 TBA

19 of 37




9T¢ abed

Appendix 2 - Capital Programme

201 9/?0 3)01 8/19 Ir;lew y Slippage | 2019/20 T -

. . . [7) o
FUTURE CAPITAL PROGRAMME BUDGET, Quarter 12019-20 fggtt:gy 5|:;|to::e S:’,’iﬁ‘;: 2021 :z‘é';::’ g g § g § g g § _ g . g 5

0134 52 | R2 |2 | £8 |p85| <2

ICT Projects £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s | £'000s £'000s | £'000s | £'000s | £'000s | £'000s | £000s
Early Replacement of ALP & HP 1,800 0 0 1,646 3,446 1,834 0 0 0 5,280 5,280
CCTV on Pumping Appliances 100 0 (1) 0 99 0 0 0 137 248 501
Early Replacement of Fire Boat 500 0 0 0 500 1,750 250 0 20 2,520 2,500
22mm Water Hose and Reel for Appliances 507 0 (507) 0 0 0 0 0 582 582 1,500
Vehicle Security * 45 0 (45) 0 0 0 0 0 101 101 1,389
Portable Hygiene Units 0 9 0 0 9 0 0 0 0 9 9
FLEET & EQUIPMENT PROJECTS 25,346 | (1,780) (807) | (2,400) | 20,359 24,884 | 9,046 | 2,276 | 21,128 | 77,868 | 11,261
CAPITAL EXPENDITURE TOTAL 40,876 | (1,723) (827) | (4,061) | 34,265 50,381 | 27,017 | 14,408

20 of 37




Changes in Use of Reserve from March Budget Report Appendix 3

Appendix 3 shows the anticipated balance on reserves on 31st March 2020 in the March Budget, and
the revised forecast balance included in this report. The total amount of reserves has increased from
£51,637k to £69,680k, an increase of £18,044k.

Anticipated
Balance Anticipated | Movement
£000s March 2020 Balance from
(March March 2020 Previous
Budget) (Q1 Report) Report Comments

Additional Resilience 0 498 498 | Funds set aside for USAR

Requirements equipment and wicking t-
shirts. Amount to be spent
in 2019/20 TBC - some
will be carried forward to
2020/21.

Capital Expenditure Reserve 0 11,745 11,745 | Reserve created after
finalising accounting
treatment of the funding
from GLA following the
sale of Southwark Training
Centre.

Central Programme Office 0 792 792 | Underspend on
programme

Compensation 750 750 0

Emergency Services Mobile 1,725 2,174 449 | Additional grant and

Communication Programme spend has been re-
profiled.

Emergency Medical 0 294 294 | Carried forward to

Response 2020/21

Fire Safety and Youth 731 1,031 300 | Additional contribution

Engagement receipts

HMICFRS inspection regime 0 22 22 | Underspend in 2018/19

Hydrants 367 367 0

ICT Development Reserve 891 1,793 902 | Delay in NOG
implementation

LFC Control Centre 729 750 21

LFB Museum Project 140 140 0

London Resilience 0 903 903 | Planned spend against
Command Unit
replacement and MCR
equipment not forecast in
2019/20

London Safety Plan 2,755 3,755 1,000 | Spend on new firefighter

Initiatives technology delayed to
2020/21 (£773k) and
funding for IPMO (£132k)
and Blue Light Secondary
School project (£237k) yet
to be established.

Page 217

21 of 37




Changes in Use of Reserve from March Budget Report

Appendix 3

Anticipated
Balance Anticipated | Movement
£000s March 2020 Balance from
(March March 2020 Previous
Budget) (Q1 Report) Report Comments

New Governance 0 148 148 | Underspend in 2018/19

Arrangements

Organisational Reviews 0 466 466 | Spend plans for Building
Safety Programme,
Training and Property
Reviews to be confirmed.

Recruitment/ Outreach 0 370 370 | Spend plans for
Recruitment Review
Outreach to be confirmed

Vehicle & Equipment 759 1,143 385 | Spend plans on Ultra Low

Reserve Emissions Fleet (ULEF) to
be reviewed.

Budget Flexibility 19,532 29,930 10,398 | £7,287k payment from
2018/19 underspend and
£3,111k from additional
firefighter pension grant

General 23,257 12,608 (10,649) | Transfer to budget
flexibility (£7,287k),
reductionin 18/19
underspend (£1,887k)
and 2019/20 overspend
(£1,325k) and transfer for
the property services
review (£150k)

Total 51,637 69,680 18,044

Page 218

22 of 37



Risks to the Revenue and Capital Position Appendix 4

1.2.

1.3.

2.1

3.2.

Firefighter and Local Government Pension Schemes

The results of the 2016 valuation of the firefighters pension scheme have now been
implemented with new pension contribution rates from 2019/20.This also shows that there
are significant additional financial pressures in future years which will be reviewed as part of the
budget setting process for 2020/21. The Home Office have agreed a one year grant of £115m
for all Fire and Rescue Authorities in respect of the additional employer pension contributions
in 2019/20. In addition, the Chancellor announced in his 2018 Budget that the additional
pension costs would be settled as part of the upcoming spending review. This may mean that
this pressure is materially reduced in subsequent financial years.

The Fire Brigade Union notified LFC, along with 49 other Fire and Rescue Authorities, of a
discrimination claim in connection with the transitional arrangements applicable to the 2015
Firefighters Pension Scheme, as explained in FEP2506. The tribunal ruled in favour of the
claimants. The Government and Fire and Rescue Services sought permission from the Supreme
Court to appeal the Court of Appeal's decision, however this has now been denied, with the
case backed to the Employment Tribunal for a remedy to be determined. The potential cost
implications for the LFC are not possible to forecast at present, but may lead to a material
budget pressure. The remedy is potentially made more complex as it will need to address the
issue on a range public sector pensions, including the LGPS.

The LFC completed a pensions auto re-enrolment exercise on 1st June 2019. There where
475 staff (404 operational and 71 FRS) that were not in a pension scheme and were enrolled
into one. It is currently assumed that 40% of staff who are enrolled in this way will remain in the
scheme, with additional employer pension contributions of £1,069k. Any variation to this
forecast may have a budget impact for LFC. The re-enrolled members are entitled to
reimbursement of their contributions if the out of again within three months, so it is expected
that the impact on the LFC will be confirmed in Q2.

London Pensions Fund Authority (LPFA) Pensions Administration

. The strategic partnership between the London Pensions Fund Authority (LPFA) and Lancashire

County Pension Fund established in April 2016, and that created the Local Pensions
Partnership (LPP), to manage pension fund investments and pensions administration services,
continues to develop. It was agreed (FEP2644) that the LFC should continue the current shared
service arrangement with the LPFA for the administration of the FPS but with the LPFA then
sub-contracting to the LPP. The LPP implemented its new operating model from April 2018
which saw the service move from a dedicated LFB pension team to a generic team for all their
clients. Officers have ben reviewing this arrangement, and this will include meeting the newly
appointed LPP Pensions Director in Q2. It is planned to reach conclusions on the best long
term administration solution for the administration of LFC's pension schemes by the end of this
financial year. This could lead to change in the cost of the service. The LFC currently pays the
LPP £293k pa under a shared service arrangement to provide administration services for the
firefighter pension scheme.

GT Legal Investigation Costs

The position on the legal costs continues to develop as more information becomes available,
and these will be updated as required. It is expected that £1,895k of costs related to Grenfell
Investigation would be recovered under LFCs insurance. Any variation to this forecast may
further increase the current overspending position.

The disclosure costs are an area of particular attention with further upward cost pressure.
Discussions are ongoing with insurers to confirm what costs will be recovered through this
route. Work is continuing in this area.

Page 219
23 of 37



Risks to the Revenue and Capital Position Appendix 4

4.2.

4.3.

5.2.

6.1.

6.2.

Pay and Inflation

In March 2019, the national employers made a three-stage offer to the FBU totalling 13.57% up
to June 2022, based on broadening the firefighter role, but also contingent on securing
additional Government funding. The FBU rejected this offer following a consultation with their
membership, but are also expecting an increase in pay to be applied from 1 July (both the
2017/18 and 2018/19 pay settlements were ‘interim’' pending agreement on broadening the
firefighter role). These national negotiations on broadening the firefighter role have been
paused, with this possibly being considered as part of the Government's Spending Review.
Both sides are still committed to the principles of broadening the firefighter role.

The London Region FBU Executive and Regional Committee have endorsed the latest offer
from the Brigade, which includes consolidation of London Weighting in return for a lump sum
payment. This will be going out to a ballot of London Region FBU members, and the outcome
of this is expected in Q2.

The protracted Brexit process continues to cause significant economic uncertainty. The impact
of this is currently unclear, and so preparing forecasts for increases in general inflation remains
difficult.

Premises Budgets

The security budget is likely to overspend if the disposal of Clerkenwell fire station is not
completed during 2019/20. The budget available to fund this services will be exhausted by the
end of September. It has also been assumed that disposal of 8 Albert Embankment will not be
completed in 2019/20, so any disposal before March 2020 will have a positive impact on the
security spend.

There is £100k included in 2019/20 budget for potential dilapidation costs at the Brigade
Distribution Centre. This is an estimate advised by the Estates Consultant. The actual cost will
be subject to negotiations with the landlord which cannot commence until the landlord has
been given formal notice to terminate the lease. This is currently not scheduled to happen until
later in the year and is dependant on the Operations Support Centre (OSC) project.

POTENTIAL RISKS/CHANGES TO THE CAPITAL PROGRAMME

The capital budget is an evolving entity which is subject to change throughout the year. Initial
project specification is key as it is important to keep variations to projects to a minimum, as
change, once a project has been agreed and commenced will invariably result in additional
costs. However even the best managed projects can be subject to re-phasing or deferral due to
a number of unforeseen issues, such as contractor capacity/failure, bad weather and revised
operational need. This can also impact on funding requirements that in turn have a debt charge
(cost of borrowing) revenue impact.

All capital projects will require third party collaboration to varying degrees over the project life.
The following major projects that make up about 80% of the programme depend heavily on
external parties actions and therefore can be subject to variation with the potential for delays in
project delivery and revised cash flow requirements. Specific risks:

Vehicle Replacement Programme

6.3.

Key risks relate to the contractor sourcing appropriate vehicle build options within a timeframe
that meets fleet replacement requirements and which may in turn impact the LFC's cash flow.
The forecast cash expenditure for 2019/20 and future years is based on the current assessment
of the stage payment requirements for the pump replacement programme and other vehicle
replacements which represents 80% of the forecast Vehicles and Equipment expenditure. Any
delay in the programme and delivery timings for the fleet replacement items, may effect the
actual spend position and be a variance against the approved budget for the year.

Page 220
24 of 37



Risks to the Revenue and Capital Position Appendix 4

Command Units
6.4. The initial specification for the Command Unit vehicles was for a standard box lorry which
resulted in a budget provision of £3.24m to replace the nine vehicles. It is now proposed that a
fully electric solution be implemented which will result in additional costs. Until prices are
obtained for the new electric vehicle it is not possible to assess what the increase would be. In
addition, there will be a new budget requirement for the ICT equipment for the vehicles circa
£1m.The additional budget requirement could be around £1.8m-£2m.

Fireboats
6.5. The tenders have now been received by Babcock for the two new fireboats. Initial indications
are that the cost of replacing the fireboats will be higher than the existing budget provision of
£2.5m. The budget and phasing of the spend will be amended once the tender assessments
have been completed and the final contract prices are known.

Control and Mobilising Solution (CAMS)

6.6. The current mobilising solution (Vision) was implemented in November 2015, however a
number of other work streams within the project are still to be delivered. Update releases have
been implemented in the period since go-live and other functionality will continue to be
deployed during 2019/20 (e.g. BOSS mobile), hence the continuing capital requirement. This
budget line is separate from any project to replace the current mobilising solution, as it comes
to the end of its 10 year useful life, which will kick off later in 2019/20, following governance
approvals.

Replacement of the Fire Safety ICT System
6.7. The start of the replacement fire safety system project has been delayed as it is prudent to

await, following the Grenfell Tower fire, (a) the government's response to recommendations of
the independent Review of Building Regulations and Fire Safety made by Dame Judith Hackitt;
and (b) the recommendations from phase 1 of the Grenfell Tower Inquiry. The government has
recently consulted on its proposals to respond to the Hackitt recommendations and this
consultation ended on 31 July 2019. The phase 1 recommendations from the Grenfell Tower
Inquiry are now expected in Autumn 2019. Plans are progressing develop this project into a
'One Risk System' that would embrace the whole range of building related risks, including fire
safety and operational risks.

Incident-ground radios
6.8. £1.8m was in the capital programme for 2019/20 for the replacement of incident-ground

radios. The current radios are reaching the end of their useful life and repairs are becoming
more frequent and costly. The supplier has also indicated that they may stop production of
these radios. This project has dependencies on the RPE replacement project, with decisions
required on compatibility with any new breathing apparatus (BA) sets. It is now not likely that
the full provision in the capital programme will be spent, given normal procurement time-lines.
An interim procurement, to provide a continuing stock of radios to replace those that fail, may
need to be considered.

Modernisation of LFB Applications
6.9. Estimates have been provided for long term capital strategy for the replacement of a number of
key business and back-office systems. These estimates were based on the expected life of the
deployed systems, and the need to re-tender systems (e.g. finance/purchasing, payroll and
human resources). However, these sums have not been included in the published strategy as
the values are somewhat uncertain given the changing nature of the ICT environment and its

Page 221
25 of 37



Risks to the Revenue and Capital Position Appendix 4

evolution (e.g. the move to cloud-based systems), the emergence of new technologies and
ways of working.

LFB Training Centre
6.10. The LFB Training Centre project has a dependency on PEG moving out of Croydon and any
delay to the Operations Support Centre (OSC) Project may have a knock on effect on the
delivery of the Training Centre programme. The programme for OSC project is on track with
PEG/BDC relocating to the new site in the first quarter of 2020, supporting the planned start
date for the works for the Training Centre in March 2020.

Operations Support Centre Project (formally IELP)

6.11. The contractors are currently on site and the project is proceeding to plan. Discovery of
unexpected ground conditions, which led to further works to install foundations has been
contained with the budget contingency. The risk of further budget slippage has reduced and
the forecast capital budget is expected to be achieved.

Plumstead Redevelopment
6.12. A decision has been made to undertake a new feasibility study into refurbishing the existing
listed building and extending the fire station, due to lack of available and suitable alternative
sites. It is possible that the costs advised by the feasibility report could exceed the current
allocated budget of £5.45m.

Edmonton Fire Station
6.13. A feasibility study is being undertaken to look at potential options to re-build or refurbish the
existing premises. A risk to the project is the recent local listing of the fire station by the London
Borough of Enfield, without consultation with the LFC. This is currently being investigated.

Security at fire stations
6.14. This project is on hold pending the outcome of the Special Operations Group security policy.
The business case for this project will need to be re-validated based on the new requirements.

West Hampstead Single Persons Accommodation Refurbishment
6.15. The project has reached a point of contract award, however the issue of listed planning
consent is still in discussion with London Borough of Camden (LBC). Discussions are ongoing
with LBC, Dron & Wright (project managers), Nexus and Heritage Consultants.

Redevelopment of 8 Albert Embankment
6.16. The re-provision of Lambeth fire station and new LFB museum - the costs associated with the
provision of the museum remain unclear as the design and specification of the fit out remain
uncertain. LFC s in the process of applying for National Lottery Heritage Grant to support the
project, however until the outcome is known of both the grant funding and design/fit out
costings, it remains unclear as to whether the current £2.4m capital budget allocation will be
sufficient.

Refurbishment of Lambeth River Pontoon
6.17. Afeasibility exercise is currently being undertaken for the refurbishment of the river station ,
until the outcome of a feasibility exercise is known, it is unclear whether the current budget
allocation of £2.3m will be sufficient for this project.

Page 222
26 of 37



Risks to the Revenue and Capital Position Appendix 4

Capital Receipts
6.18. The 2019/20 capital programme includes the sale of the former fire station at Clerkenwell. If
this sale is delayed, it will impact on the financing of the capital programme and will result in
additional borrowing and revenue costs. The level of required borrowing will be dependant on
the timing of the capital receipts and the level of actual capital expenditure incurred during the
year.

Page 223
27 of 37



Outstanding Lift Debtors

Appendix 5

The chart below shows the amount of outstanding LIFT debts over the last 18 months, with £98k
outstanding at the end of June 2019.

£160k

£140k

£120k

£100k

£80k

£60k

£40k -

£20k -

£0k

Sep-17

Oct-17
Nov-17 -
Dec-17 A

Jan-18 -

Feb-18 -

Mar-18 -

Apr-18 -

Jun-18 -
Jul-18 A

May-18 -

Aug-18 -

Sep-18 -
Oct-18
Nov-18 -

Dec-18 -

Jan-19 -

Feb-19 -
Mar-19 -

Apr-19 -

May-19 -
Jun-19 -

The table below shows the top five (worst) outstanding debtors for LIFT income.

£ Average No of
outstanding | Ageindays | invoices
PEABODY TRUST 6,436 147 16
METROPOLITAN 6,418 186 16
LB OF HACKNEY 5,288 4 13
BAXTER LAMBERT 4,772 304 12
LONDON & QUADRANT 4,469 64 11
Grand Total 27,374 144 68

Review of the top five debtors

Peabody Trust:

A final reminder letter has been sent to Peabody Trust and the debts are currently in the process of
being referred to General Counsel.

Metropolitan:

These have been referred to General Counsel for further action

LB of Hackney:

Invoices are within 30days period and are not yet overdue for payment.

Baxter Lambert:

These have been referred to General Counsel for further action

Page 224

28 of 37



Outstanding Lift Debtors Appendix 5

London & Quadrant:

Payment of some invoices has been received, efforts are being made to assist L&Q with information
so they can settle the remaining invoices.

Page 225
29 of 37



Scheme of Governance - Budget Virements Appendix 6

Financial Regulation 9:

“(b) With the agreement of the Director of Corporate Services, a Head of Service may transfer up to
£50,000 from a budget head within that department's approved budget to a budget head within
another department’s approved budget, but if those budget heads are in different Directorates the
agreement of the appropriate Director or Commissioner is also required.

(c) With the agreement of the Director of Corporate Services, Directors may transfer up to £150,000
from a budget head within that department's approved budget to a budget head within another
department’s approved budget.

(e) The Director of Corporate Services shall report all transfers under (b) and (c) to the Commissioner
as part of the quarterly Financial Position reports.”

No transfers were processed in Quarter 1 that require reporting

Page 226
30 of 37



Appendix 7

Additional Resilience Requirements

Summary of changes from March 2019/20 Budget Report
Outturn 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
Capital 600,000 5,963,000 0
Revenue 5,063,727 4,799,894 5,409,894
Reserve Funded 219,000 241,612 0
Total 5,882,727 11,004,506 5,409,894
Forecast Spend in March Report
Capital 600,000 5,963,000 0
Revenue 5,241,894 5,181,394 5,409,894
Reserve Funded 562,000 0 0
Total 6,403,894 11,144,394 5,409,894
Movement from previous (521,167) (139,888) 0
Items that have changed
R1 - Ongoing maintenance for (75,000) (385,500) 0
capital items
R2 - USAR Items (155,000) 4,000 0
R3 - Wicking T Shirts (190,000) 190,000 0
R6 - Investigation Team 171,264 0 0
R7 - Legal Costs 245,569 0 0
R9 - Fire Safety Resources (350,000) 0 0
R12 - Training (168,000) 51,612 0
Total Movement (521,167) (139,888) 0

Key Movements from March Report

R1 - On-going maintenance for capital purchases has been delayed based on current profile of

purchases.

R2 - reduction in forecast spend on half masks.

R3 - reprofiling of expenditure on wicking t-shirts.

R6 —Increase in forecast spend on investigation team that will be funded from the earmarked reserve

Page 227



Additional Resilience Requirements Appendix 7

R7 — Legal Costs for 19/20, net of expected insurance income has increased by £171k. Disclosure
costs are still in dispute but it is anticipated some of those costs will also be recovered from our
insurers but these have not been included in the forecast in this report.

R9 — the majority of the additional Fire Safety support posts have now been filled, but due to
recruitment occurring later in the year spend has reduced from the previous forecast. All posts are
expected to be filled in Q2.

R12 — The last report included £172k of one off funding from reserves for training costs in 2019/20.
This has now been revised down to £4k in 2019/20 and increased to £52k in 2020/21.

Page 228



6¢¢ abed

Additional Resourcing Requirements

Appendix 7

Ref

Department

Expenditure Item

Actual
Spend in
2017/18

£

Actual
Spend in
2018/19

£

Forecast

Spend in

2019/20
£

Forecast

Spend in

2020/21
£

Forecast

Spend in

2021/22
£

Al

Procurement/
Technical &
Service Support

Extended Height Aerial Appliances x3

Aerial appliances are used for a range of tasks at incidents which
include providing a means of escape for firefighters working inside a
building, as water towers, lighting and observation platforms and
rescues, as just several examples. Greater height ladders have now
become available on a similar size chassis to the Brigade's current fleet
that could be effectively utilised at certain incidents within London. As
part of the Brigade's existing plan to upgrade its aerial appliance fleet,
there is a benefit to procuring such vehicles at this time.

600,000

3,150,000

c2

Procurement/
Technical &
Service Support

Drones

There is not expected to be any capital costs related to drones, and all
costs are included in item R3 Improved USAR Kit below.

a

Procurement/
Technical &
Service Support

Extended Duration Breathing Apparatus Sets

LFB Standard Duration BA has a working duration of 31 minutes.
Extended Duration BA has a working duration of 45 minutes.

A 'Prior information notice' has been sent out via the emergency
services blue light portal letting the market know of our intention to
replace our Respiratory Protective Equipment provision which includes
both standard duration and extended duration breathing apparatus and
inviting manufacturers to record an expression of interest. 6 companies
registered their interest and preliminary meetings to outline our
timescales and the outline of our requirements have been completed.

We are continuing to research the market by meeting suppliers. This
will be followed by the Project Initiation Document (PID) with the user
requirement projected to be sent out to suppliers. Stakeholders for the
working group are currently being identified and the first meeting of
this group will be convened when we have a working draft of the PID.
In the interim we are reviewing how we can deliver our current EDBA
provision to incidents at an earlier stage via both Fire Rescue Units and
EDBA support pumps as well as the Operational Support Units.

2,813,000

R1

Multiple
Departments

Ongoing Maintenance for Capital Items above

75,000

763,000




0geg abed

Additional Resourcing Requirements

Appendix 7

Ref

Department

Expenditure Item

Actual
Spend in
2017/18

£

Actual
Spend in
2018/19

£

Forecast

Spend in

2019/20
£

Forecast

Spend in

2020/21
£

Forecast

Spend in

2021/22
£

R2

Operational
Policy

Improved USAR Kit

USAR specific drones: To map the area and conduct localised or
wide area search/casualty search. Can also enter danger areas and
structures to minimise risk to crews.

WASPs: Early Warning safety device for structural stability. Can also be
used for Trench rescue and confined space working.

Pop-Up Tents: To provide welfare/shelter for crews/command team
in both inclement or sunny weather.

Half Masks: For crew welfare over long periods of use compared to
full face, which can cause crews to overheat.

22,600

74,000

24,000

24,000

R3

Operational
Policy

Wicking T-Shirts

A shirt which has the ability to breathe and keep the user's skin dry from
sweat. The initial cost is based on estimate of £10 per shirt and
allocation of five each for all firefighter and crew manager roles.

An appropriate wicking t-shirt has been identified and staff group
entitlement now agreed for USAR teams. Further work is on-going for
the remainder of station based staff.

15,000

5,000

247,000

57,000

R4

People Services

Additional resources - Counselling and Wellbeing Team

Changes in the nature of the Brigade's work have increased the
workload of the C&W Team. The unprecedented nature of the Grenfell
Tower fire has increased workloads on a significant and sustained basis.
In addition to supporting colleagues who were impacted by the fire in
the immediate aftermath, the team are supporting the collection of
witness statements by the police and will be required to support
individuals for months and years to come, up to and including the
Public Inquiry.

Four additional Counsellor posts (FRS E) are now in place.

68,836

244,894

244,894

244,894

244,894




Tz abed

Additional Resourcing Requirements

Appendix 7

Ref

Department

Expenditure Item

Actual
Spend in
2017/18

£

Actual
Spend in
2018/19

£

Forecast

Spend in

2019/20
£

Forecast

Spend in

2020/21
£

Forecast

Spend in

2021/22
£

Also, to operate effectively the expanded C&W team requires
administrative support. A FRS B post to support the team and maintain
critical and confidential records is now in place.

R5

Fire Stations

Increase in officer levels

An increase in the Deputy Assistant Commissioner (DAC)
establishment from 12 to 16 is required to provide greater resilience
within the operational top management group. DACs provide strategic
support at incidents that require eight or more fire engines. They are
also integral to the Brigade's wider strategic response arrangements
including to Major Incidents. The additional posts will support the
ongoing day to day resilience within existing departments and provide
the necessary level of managerial responsibility to the Brigade's Grenfell
Investigation Team.

Four additional DAC posts are now in place.

238,500

424,000

424,000

424,000

424,000

R6

Commissioner's
& Directors'

Costs of the Investigation Team

The establishment of this team was set out in the report on the Grenfell
Tower Inquiry — Proposed Terms of Reference (FEP 2747). The team is
now in place to support work on the investigation. The number and
make of the establishment is changing to meet organisational need.

705,506

1,812,732

1,806,264

858,000

858,000

R7

General
Counsel

Grenfell - Legal Support (External Legal Advisors)

The Grenfell fire has led to the instigation of a Public Inquiry of which
the Authority is expected to be a core participant. Additionally, a
parallel criminal investigation into the fire is being carried out by the
Metropolitan Police with support from the Authority and HSE. The
Authority may be required to play an extensive role in each. This
growth bid is twofold. Firstly, the costs in backfilling posts of staff
required to work on the Grenfell Tower case and secondly for external
legal advice and representation. Secondly, this growth bid relates to
the requirement of a dedicated IT solution to enable effective
management of the review and disclosure of documents for the
purpose of disclosure in the legal proceedings noted above.

The costs here represent the actual cost to LFC after reimbursement

600,288

1,825,410

478,569

78,000




zeez abed

Additional Resourcing Requirements Appendix 7
Ref | Department Expenditure Item Actual Actual Forecast Forecast Forecast
Spend in Spend in Spend in Spend in Spend in
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
£ £ £ £ £
from the brigades insurers.
R8 Fire Stations Overtime Support for Specialist Teams 0 103,000 103,000 103,000 103,000
This is based on a 30 per cent increase in operational overtime at FRU
and FRU/USAR Stations alongside overtime costs for Regulatory Fire
Safety in relation to cladding inspections.
R9 Fire Safety Fire Safety resources to support and enhance the inspection 0 224,590 1,150,000 1,500,000 1,500,000
programme
The ongoing costs are for an additional resources to support the
inspection programme. Recruitment process is on-going.
R10 | Legal & Review of staff support for Chair 0 0 0 0 0
Democratic This was to consider whether additional support is required for the
Services Deputy Mayor for Fire and Rescue. This has been assessed as no longer
being required.
R11 Fire Stations Potential cost of increased sickness 371,000 371,000 371,000 371,000 371,000
It is anticipated that the aftermath of recent incidents will see an
increase in sickness rates for operational staff, in particular. This sets out
the overtime cost that will be expected to be incurred in covering the
resulting gaps.
R12 | Development Training 0 7,000 441,000 488,612 437,000
and Training This includes additional training requirements for:
* Extended Height Appliances
* Drone Piloting
* Extended Duration Breathing Apparatus Sets
* Improved USAR Kit
* Smoke Evacuation Hoods
R13 | Finance Additional Borrowing Costs 0 0 0 608,000 608,000
Services Items funded through the capital programme will increase the overall
level of external borrowing required over the current four year planning
period and increase capital financing costs.
R14 | Operational Improved Communications for Breathing Apparatus 0 0 TBC TBC TBC
Policy A BA replacement project is underway to examine the next generation




cez abed

Additional Resourcing Requirements Appendix 7
Ref | Department Expenditure Item Actual Actual Forecast Forecast Forecast
Spend in Spend in Spend in Spend in Spend in
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
£ £ £ £ £
of BA and how this can be delivered to the LFB. Whilst telemetry is
being identified as a consideration any additional communications
requirements over an above the current (BARIE) sets can be included
for consideration. Outline costs have yet to be determined. BA
communications is now in scope of the Repertory Protective Equipment
replacement project and will consider this requirement.
R15 | Operational Fire Escape Hoods 0 89,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
Policy This budget was used to purchase smoke hoods for all front line
appliances.
Total additional resilience requirements 1,984,130 5,139,226 5,882,727 | 11,004,506 5,409,894




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 234



OPDC

OLD OAK AND
PARK ROYAL
DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION

2019-20

Finance and Performance Monitoring Report

Quarter 1

1. Introduction

Appendix 5

1.1 This report sets out the budget monitoring position for the Corporation as at the end of

the first quarter (June 2019).

1.2 A summary of the forecast Outturn position is provided in the table below and projects
that the Corporation will have a net underspend at the year-end of £0.836m, subject to
the outcome of a review of the Corporation’s Delivery Plan.

Table 1 - Financial Performance Summary

Expenditure
Outturn )
Budget Variance
Forecast
Directorate £'s £'s £'s
Chief Executive's Office 315,000 139,398 (175,602)
Corporate Operations 1,138,000 1,138,000 0
Development 1,767,000 1,767,000 0
Land Assembly 563,000 563,000 0
Planning 896,000 1,030,873 134,873
Projectsand Infrastructure 2945000 2945000 0
Establishment 4,472,000 3,605,755 (866,245)
Total Expenditure 12,096,000 11,189,026 (906,974)
Income
Revised Outturn )
Variance
Budget Forecast

MCIL (55,000) (55,000) 0
Pre Application (141,000) (129,900) 21,100
Statutory (150,000) (100,192) 49,809
Total Income (346,000) (275,092) 70,909
Total 11,750,000 10,913,934 (836,066)

Page 235



1.3

14

15

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

This assumes additional grant funding of £2.25m, as detailed in MD2493 to support the
Corporation in securing the Government’s Housing Infrastructure Fund (HIF) allocation
of £250m for Old Oak North. This was on account of OPDC’s budget for 2019/20 being
set prior to confirmation that its HIF bid had been successful and so contained provision
only for its core activities, with no additional provision made for HIF related activity.

A further £8.2m may be drawn down by the end of the financial year, subject to approval
by the Mayor's Chief of Staff in consultation with the GLA’s Executive Director of
Resources.

There is currently a forecast underspend against the establishment budget due to the
organisation holding a number of vacant posts, with a Resourcing Plan being developed
in line with the revised Delivery Plan to identify and schedule the resources needed to
deliver the Corporation’s priorities.

Summary of Progress to Q1
Chief Executive Office

All projects and activities within the Directorate work towards meeting the objectives
outlined in the OPDC Communications Strategy, approved by OPDC Board and
championed by local resident and business Board Members. Key objectives include
creating and building relationships, gathering intelligence from all stakeholders and
conducting audience mapping work; connecting the corporate brand with different
audience groups, using suitable channels at the right time, to build profile and reputation
and to set a benchmark for evaluation; and supporting communities and the corporation’s
statutory planning and consultation processes, including setting benchmarks for levels
and quality of public involvement.

Work commissioned in the first quarter has included supporting;

e Corporate communications, Mayoral briefings and the production and
implementation of a 3-year Corporate Communications and Engagement Strategy;

e The Local Plan Examination in Public and public hearings process and production
and implementation of a draft Engagement Strategy that is currently live for public
consultation alongside OPDC’s updated Statement of Community Involvement;

e The land referencing process and the production and implementation of a Land
Assembly Communications and Engagement Strategy

The team also continues to build awareness, understanding and raise the profile of
OPDC through targeted communications and engagement activities including hosting
Old Oak site tours, Community Conversation coffee mornings, working with OPDC
colleagues to deliver early activation/public realm projects, consultations and surveys
and coordinating engagement and local events that build community cohesion and social
integration to meet project priorities and Mayoral policies.

Plans for the year ahead are being developed and will be reflected in the forecast
expenditure for subsequent quarters but will include the use of digital, e-communications
and social media channels to continue effective communications and engagement with
the public and stakeholders alike (e.g. for the OPDC Local Plan public consultation and
Great Place Scheme).

Page 236



2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

29

Corporate Operations

The Corporate Operations Directorate supports the organisation with financial planning,
governance, programme assurance, HR&OD, IT, FM, legal, procurement and internal
audit either directly or through shared service arrangements across the GLA Group and
is forecast to spend to budget at the year-end.

Delivery (Development, Land Assembly and Projects & Infrastructure)

The key priorities for the Directorate in the first quarter have included undertaking
referencing and due diligence on land at Old Oak, defining the Land Assembly
requirements for OPDC and establishing policies for assembling land and rights.

Deliverables for the following quarter will include;

Completing the analysis of returns from “Section 5A” requisition notices to develop
OPDC'’s knowledge of title, ownership and occupation of land in Old Oak North
Engagement with owners and occupiers of land relevant to further develop OPDC’s
knowledge of land, its use, operations of business occupiers etc.

Review of property cost estimates for land relevant to OPDC’s scheme

Planning

Progression of the Local Plan Examination: OPDC’s Local Plan Examination in Public
hearings commenced on 3 April and were adjourned on 16 April. The Planning Inspector
subsequently scheduled two additional hearing sessions on 6 June and 18 July to further
consider issues relating to the Integrated Impact Assessment and deliverability of the
Cargiant Site Allocation. This has resulted in a delay to the original Examination
programme of approximately three months and OPDC has undertaken further evidence
work to support these hearings.

Progression of Supplementary Planning Documents and supporting studies: First phase
Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD) on Planning Obligations, Passive Energy
Performance, Daylight and Overheating in High Density Development and Waste
Management in High Density Development were further progressed following a review
of consultation comments. Supporting studies for the Public Realm and Green
Infrastructure SPD were also progressed in relation to biodiversity and wayfinding.

2.10 Implementation of OPDC’s “In The Making” Programme: The ‘Made in Park Royal

commission (part of the Great Place Scheme Programme) has commenced, which will
result in the creation of a unique set of products made in Park Royal. The first 6 grants
were awarded as part of the Small Grants Scheme. OPDC has launched the 2nd annual
artist commission. The commission winner will be announced later in the summer. The
first artists in industry residency commenced — an artist is being placed within McVities.

2.11 Good Growth projects: Design work for the Willesden Junction public realm

enhancements continues. Land Use consultants have been commissioned as the design
and delivery team for the Wormwood Scrubs public realm enhancements.

Page 237



The commission is a joint commission with LB Hammersmith and Fulham, who will be
using the team to also deliver ecological enhancements to the Scrubs.

2.12 Planning applications: Two planning committee meetings were held within the Q1
period. At April's Planning Committee, committee members considered a scheme for
Land East of Victoria Centre in Park Royal Centre. The committee resolved to grant the
planning application, which would result in the delivery of over 100 new homes. In June,
the Planning Committee considered a planning application for a new industrial
warehouse on Brunel Road in Old Oak. The committee resolved to grant permission for
the application. 4 planning applications were also considered under delegated authority
and all four were granted planning permission.

2.13 Funding bids: In April 2019, OPDC submitted a bid to the HS2 Business and Local
Economy Fund to support the delivery of an Employment and Skills Hub for Old Oak and
Park Royal. HS2 are considering the bid and will confirm the outcome during Q2. OPDC
are working with the London Boroughs of Brent and Ealing on a bid for transport
improvements in Park Royal funded through TfL’s Liveable Neighbourhoods Fund.
OPDC has commissioned a consultants Urban Movement to support the production of a
compelling bid. OPDC are also working with the local councils and West London
Business to draw up a bid for the third round of the Mayor of London’s Good Growth
Fund.

2.14 Work in the following quarter will continue to support the Local Plan Examination
hearings and finalising the first phase of Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs).

Page 238



Agenda Item 6

GREATERLONDONAUTHORITY LONDONASSEMBLY

Subject: Q1 2019-20 Review

Report to: Budget Monitoring Sub-Committee

Report of: Executive Director of Secretariat Date: 11 September 2019

This report will be considered in public

1.1

2.1

2.2

3.1

4.1

4.2

5.1

Summary

This report provides information on the Sub-Committee’s consideration of borrowing by the Greater
London Authority (GLA) Group.

Recommendations

That the Sub-Committee notes the report as background to putting questions to invited
guests, and notes the subsequent discussion.

That the Sub-Committee delegates authority to the Chairman, in consultation with party
Group Lead Members, to agree any output from the discussion at the meeting.
Background

The investigation will look at the key issue arising out of the Quarter 1 2019-20 functional body
reports and explore how the current financial performance will impact the 2020-21 Budget and
Business Planning process.

Issues for Consideration

The following guests has been invited to attend the meeting:

e (Oana Ford-McNicol, Head of Financial Planning and Analysis, Transport for London.
Additional guests are to be confirmed.
Legal Implications

The Sub-Committee has the power to do what is recommended in this report.

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SET 2AA
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk

Page 239




6. Financial Implications

6.1 There are no direct financial implications to the GLA arising from this report.

List of appendices to this report:
None

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers: None

Contact Officer: Gino Brand, Senior Policy Advisor
Telephone: 0207983 5792
Email: Gino.Brand@l ondon.gov.uk

Page 240



mailto:Gino.Brand@London.gov.uk

Agenda Item 7

GREATERLONDONAUTHORITY LONDON

Subject: Mayor’s Decision Lists:
3 May 2019 to 4 July 2019

Report to: Budget Monitoring Sub-Committee

Report of: Executive Director of Secretariat Date: 11 September 2019

This report will be considered in public

1.1

2.1

3.1

3.2

33

Summary

The report sets out the Mayor’s Decision Lists published since the last meeting of Sub-Committee,
and asks, following any discussion, that the Sub-Committee decide if there are any issues with the
lists that should be referred to the Budget and Performance Committee for detailed consideration.

Recommendation

That the Sub-Committee discusses any issues arising from the Mayor’s Decision Lists for
the period 3 May 2019 to 4 July 2019 (previously made available as background papers to
the relevant Mayor's Reports to the Assembly), and decides whether to refer any issues to
the Budget and Performance Committee for detailed consideration.

Background

The Mayor’s Decision Lists record both the decisions taken by the Mayor and the Directors of the
Authority, through the Authority’s formal approval processes. These lists, which relate to a specified
period, are made available as background papers to each Mayor’s Report to the London Assembly.

The Sub-Committee’s Term of Reference state that the Sub-Committee is:

To consider the quarterly monitoring reports provided by the GLA and its functional bodies as
referred to it by the Budget and Performance Committee, and any other reports falling within
the terms of reference of the Budget and Performance Committee which that Committee
considers appropriate, and to report back its findings to the Budget and Performance
Committee as necessary.

At its meeting on 21 May 2019, the Budget and Performance Committee agreed to refer the
Mayor’s Decision Lists to the Sub-Committee for consideration as a matter of course for the
remainder of the Assembly year.

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk

Page 241




4.1

5.1

6.1

Issues for Consideration

The Mayor’s Decision Lists, as previously published on London Assembly (Mayor’s Question Time)
agendas are attached as follows:

e Mayor’s Decision List for 3 May 2019 to 6 June 2019, attached at Appendix 1; and
e  Mayor’s Decision List for 7 June 2019 to 4 July 2019, attached at Appendix 2.

Legal Implications

There are no direct legal implications arising from the report.

Financial Implications

There are no direct financial implications arising from the report.

List of appendices to this report:
Appendix 1 — Mayor’s Decision List for 3 May 2019 to 6 June 2019
Appendix 2 — Mayor’s Decision List for 7 June 2019 to 4 July 2019

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers: None

Contact Officer: Lauren Harvey, Committee Assistant
Telephone: 020 7983 4383
E-mail: lauren.harvey@london.gov.uk

Page 242




Mayor’s Report to the Assembly

Background Document - List of decisions published between 3 May 2019 and 6 June 2019.

Appendix 1

The Part 1 of Mayoral Decisions (from 6 April 2009), Executive Director Decisions (from 1 November 2010), Assistant Director Decisions (from 18 April
2013) and the non-confidential facts and advice supporting those decisions, are published on the GLA website here within one working day of approval,
unless deferred. * = previously deferred publication.

o7 abed

Ref Decision Date Approved by/ | Financial Implications (summarised
Signed Mayoral where long)
Advisor
MD2247* | Notting Hill Carnival 2018 29/03/18 | Sadig Khan/ The total cost of this proposal to the GLA
Leah Kreitzman | is £710,000 and will be funded from the
Approved: Events for London Programme budget for
2018-19 (£355,000) and a drawdown
1. Expenditure of up to £565,000 in grant funding as a from the Authority’s Major Events
contribution to thee Carnival Village Trust’s costs of Reserve (£355,000).
stewarding provision at the 2018 event;
As detailed within the main body of this
2. Expenditure of up to £145,000 to implement a report, the £710,000 budget allocation
community steward training programme, and provision earmarked for Notting Hill Carnival will be
of expert stewarding advice on carnival; and administered by way of grant funding to
the “Carnival Village Trust” of up to
3. An exemption from the normal procurement £565,000 and the procurement of
requirements in the Contracts and Funding Cod, in ‘McKenzie Arnold’, a stewarding provider
order to appoint directly McKenzie Arnold as the for £145,000. Payments on both the
provider of the community steward training programme proposed funding agreement and contract
set out in decision 2 above. for services will be dependent on specific
milestones being met following robust
monitoring by the GLA.
MD2341* | Housing Infrastructure Fund - Marginal Viability Fund 11/10/18 | Sadiq Khan/ The decision is seeking approval for the

Programme Management

The Mayor:

James Murray

GLA to accept up to £110.7m Marginal
Viability Funding (MVF) from MHCLG.
The fund is expected to be received
during 2018-21 and will fund the cost of



https://www.london.gov.uk/about-us/governance-and-spending/good-governance/decision-making

7z abed

1. Approved the GLA receiving up to £110.7m from
Government, noting the GLA will enter into an
associated Memorandum of Understanding with
Government to fund the delivery of infrastructure
schemes capable of unlocking the delivery of up to
18,000 new homes under the Marginal Viability
Funding part of the Government’s Housing
Infrastructure Fund (the MVF HIF); and

2. Delegated authority to the Executive Director of
Housing and Land to:

- Approve, via director decisions, the detailed
expenditure profiles and terms of contractual
commitments with successful boroughs, as
announced by Government on 1 February 2018 and
subsequently confirmed through the validation and
clarification process;

- Agree appropriate substitute schemes with
Government, and subsequently the relevant
borough, where an approved scheme is no longer
able to deliver within the timescales of the
programme and approve via director decision; and

- Transfer underspends between approved schemes
within the financial year.

physical infrastructure to get additional
sites allocated or unblocked for housing.
The Fund will be used to finance capital
expenditure only, restriction on the use of
the fund is set out in paragraph 1.4 of
this decision and the fund has been
allocated to 9 London Boroughs, see
paragraph 1.7.

Grant payments from the MVF will be
paid to Boroughs bi-annually, based on
their cashflows and delivery forecasts, and
signed-off by the Borough’s s151 officer.
Programme expenditure is expected to be
completed by 2021. However, where
milestones are not delivered by the
relevant project backstop date, MHCLG
reserve the right to recover any unspent
grant.

The profiling of grants receivable and
expenditure are still to be finalised.

MD2460*

Fares for two small-scale 12-month research and
development demand responsive bus trials in outer
London

Approved:

1. The proposed parameters for the fares to be
implemented on these 12-month trial services; and

29/04/19

Sadiq Khan/
Heidi Alexander

The 12-month research trials will be
funded between TfL and the procured
operators. In addition to sharing costs,
the revenues will also be shared between
TfL and the operator, with TfL taking
50% and the operator taking 50%.
Separately TfL will pay the operator for
the Freedom Pass and ENCT trips
undertaken. Revenues collected are not




2. The Direction to TfL issued pursuant to the power in
section 155 (1) (c) of the Greater London Authority Act
1999 to implement these fares.

anticipated to fully off-set costs incurred
by either TfL or the Operator.

There are no financial implications of this
decision for the GLA.

ciy7 abed

MD2469 | London’s Underground Asset Register Pilot 02/05/19 | Sadiq Khan/ The proposed receipt of funding from the
Jules Pipe Cabinet Office totalling £2.43m and the
Approved: associated expenditure for this project will
be accounted for within the Development,
Receipt of £2.43m funding from the Cabinet Office and Enterprise & Environment Directorate
expenditure of these funds to implement the initial phase of subject to the terms of the funding being
their underground asset mapping programme in London: acceptable to the GLA.
London’s Underground Asset Register pilot.
As noted above all associated expenditure
will comply with the Authority’s protocol
for seeking additional staffing resources
and the contracts & funding code
(wherever applicable). Any future
expenditure beyond this initial pilot phase
will be subject to further approval via the
Authority’s decision-making process.
MD2350 | Bishopsgate Goodsyard Planning Performance 13/05/19 | Sadiq Khan/ Approval is sought for expenditure of up
Agreement Jules Pipe to £185,000 on the engagement of a

Approved:

1. Receipt of up to £185,000 from Bishopsgate Goodsyard
Regeneration Limited;

2. Expenditure by the GLA of up to £102,000 on the
engagement of a Planning Officer (including agency
costs), noting the remaining £83,000 will cover GLA
staffing and overhead costs required to oversee the
Bishopsgate Goodsyard planning application through to
a Mayoral Representation Hearing and completion of

designated Planning Officer (including
agency costs) and necessary consultancy
advice to oversee the Bishopsgate
Goodsyard planning application through
to a Mayoral Representation Hearing and
completion of any necessary section 106
legal agreement. The costs associated
with the consideration and determination
of the planning application will be
reimbursed in full by the Applicant.




section 106 legal agreement; and

3. A delegation to the Assistant Director of Planning, to
be exercised via Assistant Director Decision Forms, to
approve additional:

- Recovery of costs of up to £50,000 for any further
staffing costs that may be incurred;

- Recovery of costs for the commissioning of further
studies related to this planning application.

a7z abed

MD2461

Communities and Social Policy Programme Budget 2019-
20

Approved:

1. Expenditure of £1,148,000 as follows: Social
Integration - £694,000; Equality and Fairness -
£94,000; Community Engagement - £220,000; Social
Evidence Base - £140,000;

2. Receipt and expenditure of a further £154,000 of Home
Office grant funding for social integration work
including a particular focus on the resettlement of
refugees in London; and

3. Delegation of authority to the Executive Director,
Communities and Intelligence and Assistant Director,
Communities and Social Policy to approve expenditure,
through subsequent decision forms, of £677,000 as
follows: Social Integration - £461,000; Equality and
Fairness - £196,000; Community Engagement -
£20,000.

The total request for approval in 2019/20 (including Home
Office grant funding of £154,000 and in-principle delegated

15/05/19

Sadiq Khan/
Debbie
Weekes-
Bernard

Approval is sought for expenditure of up
to £1.825m on the Communities and
Social Policy Unit work programme for
2019-20.

The total cost of £1.825m will be funded
from the Communities and Social Policy
Unit’s 2019-20 budget. Further
breakdown is contained within the
decision form.

Approval is also sought for receipt and
expenditure of £154,000 in Home Office
grant, to fund the work streams
associated with the London Strategic
Migration Partnership.




decisions of £677,000) is £1,979,000.

)z abed

MD2441 London & Partners Events Limited 29/05/19 | Sadiq Khan/ There are no direct financial implications
David Bellamy | to the GLA arising from this report as the
The Mayor: GLA will not be making any financial
contribution towards the set-up costs of
Exercises rights reserved to him under London & Partners’ the proposed subsidiary nor its day to day
articles of association and consents to London & Partners’ operational activities (including via the
establishment of a new subsidiary company called London & annual GLA Grant to L&P).
Partners Events Limited, subject to matters reserved to the
Mayor in relation to London & Partners also applying to
London & Partners Events Limited.
MD2472 | Mayoral Decision-Making in the GLA and GLA Financial | 29/05/19 | Sadiq Khan/ Financial issues are integral to the content
Regulations David Bellamy | of the two documents covered by this
decision.
Approved:
The updated Mayoral Decision-Making in the GLA and GLA
Financial Requlations documents, as appended to this decision
form.
DD2259* | London Plan Consultation Database — further 30/08/18 | Juliemma Approval is being sought for expenditure
development work McLoughlin (on | of up to £50,000 for IT development
behalf of Lucy | consultant CTI Digital to make
Approved: Owen) improvements to the public search of the

Expenditure of up to £50,000 on external services to improve
the public search of comments submitted to the database —
taking total expenditure on the database to a possible
maximum of £140,000.

comments submitted as part of the
consultation on the Draft New London
Plan. The costs will be funded from the
2018-19 London Plan Programme
budget. This work will take the total
spend on London Plan consultation
response system to £140,000 (DD2152
approved £90,000 spend).




DD2320*

London Technology Acceleration Service
Approved:

Expenditure of £75,000 on supplies and services required to
deliver the London Technology Acceleration Service.

29/01/19

Lucy Owen

The estimated cost of £75,000 for this
project will be funded from the LEAP
Strategies budget for 2019-20 subject to
the 2019-20 budget process currently
underway.

Officers will seek match funding to scale
the project in terms of content and
outreach to companies in London,
including sponsorship income where
applicable. If secured, this and the
associated expenditure will be subject to
further approval via the Authority’s
decision-making process.

Q7 abed

DD2354*

Skills for Londoners Capital Fund - Round 2
Approved:

Up to £73.35m on SfL Capital Fund of which an extra decision
to ringfence £12m for the purpose set out in part 2 and
expenditure of up to £61.35m, comprising:

1. £57.6m in the form of contributions to projects
selected to form part of Skills for Londoners Capital
Fund Round 2, of which £7.2m is Mayor’s Construction
Academy funding;

2. £3.75m for the second round of Small Projects and
Equipment Fund.

Also approved:

The establishment of an approved list of reserve projects
subject to additional funding becoming available.

30/04/19

Debbie Jackson

This decision authorises expenditure of up
to £73.35 million of the Skills for
Londoners capital budget of £114 million
approved by the Mayor under cover of
MD2142. Projects proposed for approval
have undergone a rigorous due diligence
process and will be subject to funding
agreements in which any remaining
clarification issues are addressed.

An estimated £20.5 million of the grant
allocated in this decision is anticipated
will be spent after March 2021. Although
the Government has acknowledged the
commitment of project spend beyond the
end of the current Growth Deal there
remains an element of risk whilst its
formal position on spend after March
2021 is uncertain.

The necessary funding is not in place at
this stage of project development to
deliver those recommended for reserve




approval and these would be subject to a
further Director Decision following
approval by the LEAP Investment
Committee if they were to be progressed.

The £61.35 million proposed expenditure
on projects and the £12 million
contingency recommended for approval in
part 2 of this decision means that taken
together there would be £8.65 million
uncommitted of the £114 million Skills for
Londoners budget approved in MD2142.
If it can be demonstrated that the
contingency is required for the delivery of
projects, a methodology will need to be
put in place to ensure this is drawn down
consistently.

617z abed

DD2357* | Resourcing and implementing a Resolution Policy at the | 09/05/19 | Mary Harpley Approval is being sought for expenditure
GLA of up to £100,000 over a three-year
period to fund the procurement of
Approved: consultancy and training services as part
of the new Resolution Policy to replace
Expenditure of up to £100,000 on consultancy and training the current Grievance Procedure. The
services for staff over a three-year period to resource and costs will be met from the Chief Officer’s
implement a Resolution Policy at the GLA. Transformation Fund.
DD2356 Talent Management Consultancy Support 21/05/19 | Mary Harpley Approval is sought for expenditure of

Approved:

1. Expenditure of £95,000 to commission Deloitte to
provide the GLA with a talent management approach.
Through piloting and interventions, Deloitte will
identify lawful positive action strategies which will help
ensure the GLA’s workforce reflects London’s diversity
at all levels, including senior leadership.

£95,000 to commission Deloitte to
undertake talent management
consultancy support. The expenditure will
be funded from the 2019-20
Transformation budget held in the Chief
Officer’s directorate.




2. An exemption from the requirement of the GLA

Contracts and Funding Code to procure competitively
and commission Deloitte using a single source
procurement process. This is based on the requirement
to ensure that the programme we develop will be
complementary to and comparable with the existing
Our Time programme which Deloitte have previously

been procured to develop.

0Gz abed

ADD2311*

Growth Hub Business support research
Approved:

Commitment of £25,000 to commission research for the
Growth Hub on existing business support provision.

08/01/18

Debbie Jackson

Approval is being sought for up to
£25,000 for the delivery of the business
support project. The project will map
business support provision (private, public
and third sector) across London and
identify how provision of business support
could be achieved in terms of business
stages

The costs will be spread across two
financial years, 2018/19 and 2019/20 as
shown below:

Cost
£20,000
£5,000

Year
2018-19
2019-20

The costs for this project will be funded
from the existing LEAP Growth Hub (WBS
GE.0302.004). All necessary budget
adjustments will be completed.

ADD2262*

Register of specialist older persons and accessible
housing project

Approved:

03/09/18

Juliemma
McLoughlin

Assistant Director’s approval is sought for
expenditure of £40,000 to fund the
development of a register of specialist
older persons and accessible housing. This
work is to be phased over 2 phases where




Expenditure of £40,000 to fund the development of the
register of specialist older persons and accessible housing.

phase 1 is expected to cost £30,000 and
is to be completed by November 2018.
Phase 2 is to cost £10,000 and will be
delivered by November 2019. Planning
team’s London Plan Programme budget
for 2018-19 (£30,000) and 2019-20
(£10,000) will fund the cost of this
register.

167 abed

ADD2291* | Sharing Cities (H2020) - Facilitation of Smart Use Case 30/10/18 | Jeremy Skinner | The expenditure of up to £20,000 will be
Workshops funded from the 2018-19 H2020
Programme budget within the Intelligence
Approved: Unit, where a full reimbursement of costs
will be submitted and reclaimed from the
The use of up to £20,000 of Sharing Cities programme funds to European Commission (EC).
procure facilitation expertise to support the delivery of four
workshops.
ADD2344 | Pay and Grading Review 15/05/19 | Charmaine De | Approval is being sought for expenditure

Approved:

1.

Expenditure of £18,275 to commission QGC to carry
out data collection and analysis to identify what the
pay and grading requirements should be at the GLA.
This will include the following:

o A full data gathering exercise to test the current
pay and grading approach;

e Areview of the current pay strategy to identify

whether the current pay and grading approach fits

with the GLA’s objectives and aspiration to be an
exemplary employer, recognising that pay is one

element of the total package offered to staff; and

e The development of options for securing specialist

support to undertake the review if it is concluded

Souza

up £18,275 to commission QGC to carry
out data collection and analysis to review
the case for a GLA pay and grading review
and to ensure that the GLA fulfils its
objective to be an exemplary employer.
The expenditure will be incurred during
the 2019-20 financial year and will be
meet from the Chief Officer’s
Transformation Fund.




that a review is appropriate.

2. An exemption from the requirement in the Contracts

and Funding Code to procure competitively and to
appoint QGC without a competitive process (i.e. a
single source exemption). This is based on QCG being
pay and grading specialists. We have consulted with the
GLA family and QCG have provided consultancy
support to TFL and have extensive experience in
reviewing pay and grading structures in public and
private sector organisations and as a result hold
essential comparator data. Therefore, it is proposed
that an exemption from the Contracts and Funding
Code is applied allowing this to be commissioned using
a single source procurement process.

zGz abed

ADD2345

Purchase of population count data from a mobile phone
company

Approved:

1.

Expenditure of up to £45,000 for the purchase of
population count data from Citi Logik to support
demographic projections, air quality modelling, and a
range of borough economic and transport planning
projects; and

. An exemption from the requirement in the Contracts

and Funding Code to procure competitively and to
purchase the data from Citi Logik without a formal
tender process on the basis that a full research process
has been completed identifying and examining all
possible service providers with only one demonstrating
the ability to fulfil the requirements.

30/05/19

Jeremy Skinner

Approval is being sought for expenditure
of up to £45,000 for the purchase of
population count data. This expenditure
will be funded by the 2019-20
Demography and Policy Analysis Team’s
budget held within the Intelligence unit.




Mayor’s Report to the Assembly

Background Document - List of decisions published between 7 June 2019 and 4 July 2019.

Appendix 2

The Part 1 of Mayoral Decisions (from 6 April 2009), Executive Director Decisions (from 1 November 2010), Assistant Director Decisions (from 18 April
2013) and the non-confidential facts and advice supporting those decisions, are published on the GLA website here within one working day of approval,
unless deferred. * = previously deferred publication.

egz abed

Ref Decision Date Approved by/ | Financial Implications (summarised
Signed Mayoral where long)
Advisor
MD2294* | Information Services Shared Service 13/07/18 | Sadiq Khan/ Approval is sought for expenditure of up
David Bellamy | to £468,000, to enter into a shared
The Mayor: service agreement with the London Fire
Brigade (LFB) for the provision of the
1. Approved the GLA’s entry into a shared service GLA’s information services, with costs
arrangement, under section 401A of the Greater incurred over 4 financial years in 2018-19
London Authority Act 1999, with the LFB, for the (£117k), 2019-20 (£117k), 2020-
provision of information services on a cost recovery 21(£117k), and 2021-22 (£117k).
basis. It is anticipated that the contract will be entered
into for four years, with an anticipated value of The 2018-19 costs will be funded from
£468,000, with an option to extend for a further two the Information Services budget within
years. the Intelligence Unit. Future years’
budgets are indicative and subject to the
2. Delegated authority to the Executive Director of GLA’s annual budget setting process.
Resources to prepare, finalise and subsequently execute
on behalf on the GLA documentation putting into place
the arrangements under section 401A.
MD2456 Excel Centre (Plots WE4A and WE4B) 11/06/19 | Sadiq Khan/ This decision seek approval to increase

Approved:

1. Anincrease in the level of affordable housing on two
plots (WE4A and WE4B) on the Excel estate from 35 to
40 per cent; and

James Murray

the affordable housing on three plots of
land at the Excel Centre. There will be a
reduction in the GLAP land receipt from
the development of the land to
compensate the developer. The payment
to GLAP will also be delayed.



https://www.london.gov.uk/about-us/governance-and-spending/good-governance/decision-making

2. A consequent adjustment in the terms of the
commercial agreement with Excel, and their Joint
Venture (JV) with Mount Anvil, regarding the
development these plots (as set out in Part 2 of this

Gz abed

MD).
MD2464 | Royal Docks DLR station improvements 11/06/19 | Sadiq Khan/ This decision requests the approval of the
James Murray | Mayor for £3.75m of capital expenditure
Approved: to be granted to TfL to fund the detailed
design and management of Docklands
Payment of a capital grant of up to £3.75m to TfL under Light Railway improvements set out in
section 120(1) of the GLA Act 1999, to be paid in relation to DD2297.
costs incurred in financial year 2019-20.
The expenditure will be funded from the
Connectivity theme of the Delivery Plan
set out in MD2338.
MD2473 | Hindmans Way road infrastructure upgrade (pursuant to | 11/06/19 | Sadiq Khan/ This decision requests approval for

EastPlus development agreement)
Approved:

1. Entering into a deed of variation to an existing
development agreement with SEGRO Development
Properties Ltd, so that the delivery of the proposed
highway works, and a construction oversight
methodology can be included;

2. Expenditure of up to £4.89m in 2019-2020 for the
upgrade of Hindmans Way in Dagenham Dock, in the
London Borough of Barking & Dagenham, to be funded
from an adjustment to the GLA Land and Property
Limited (‘GLAP’) capital receipt from their EastPlus
development agreement with SEGRO; and

3. GLAP entering into an agreement under s.38 of the
Highways Act (or a similar legal arrangement) for the

James Murray

expenditure of £4.89m for the upgrade of
Hindman’s Way in Dagenham Dock to
improve access to underused brownfield
land. The road will then be adopted by
the London Borough of Barking and
Dagenham.

The expenditure will be funded from
GLAP receipts from the sale of land in the
EastPlus portfolio. There is provision in
the EastPlus development agreement with
SEGRO, who will be upgrading the road,
for the cost of it to be deducted from sale
receipts. However the last land receipt
was paid to GLAP gross, before deduction
of the costs of the work set out in this
decision. The work will therefore be
funded from GLAP.




adoption of Hindmans Way by the local highway
authority, and providing a bond (or refundable deposit)
designed to ensure completion of the works to an
adoptable standard.

cgz abed

MD2475 Development Management Review of External Fees and 11/06/19 | Sadiq Khan/ The implementation of a new bespoke
Charges Jules Pipe Planning Performance Agreement for
complex major strategic planning
Approved: applications and the proposed increases
to existing service charges set out in this
1. The implementation of bespoke Planning Performance report reflect a full cost recovery model.
Agreements (PPAs) for complex schemes; The new charges will be published on the
GLA website and come into effect on 10
2. Astanding delegation to the Assistant Director of June 2019.
Planning to enter into such schemes up to a cap of
£250,000 on a cost recovery basis from the developer As outlined within the Local Government
to cover GLA officer and, if required, consultant costs; Act 2003, income derived from charging
with the delegation to be exercised via an ADD decision fees cannot exceed the costs of providing
form for each individual Planning Performance the service but allows the budget to be
Agreement; balanced over a period of time.
Consequently, and in-line with previous
3. Anincrease to the charge from £65,000 + VAT to financial years any surplus income
£95,000 + VAT for fixed price PPAs for all applications received beyond expenditure from pre-
that have been recovered by the Mayor; application charges and Planning
Performance Agreements will be placed in
4. Anincrease to the charge from £7,500 + VAT to the Authority’s Pre-application and
£10,000 + VAT for Level 2 Pre-Application Advice Smoothing reserves at the end of the
meetings for users of the service to reflect full cost financial year (in-line with Section 93 of
recovery under 5.93 of the Local Government Act 2003; the Local Government Act which allows
and the GLA to establish a reserve to ensure
all income generated is utilised on the
5. The new charges and arrangements coming into effect service).
on 10 June 2019.
MD2477 | Commitment of the European Regional Development 11/06/19 | Sadiq Khan/ Approval is being sought for the
Fund to applications under London Call 7 Rajesh Agrawal | commitment and award of ERDF up to a

total of £26.61 million.




Approved:

The commitment and award of up to £26.61million ERDF to
applicants of the seventh call for proposals to support jobs and
growth, as set out in Part 2.

Should changes in the sterling/euro
exchange rate result in fluctuations in
individual claims, and in turn the overall
total level of funding required, EPMU
officers should ensure variations are
authorised in line with the financial
delegation limits laid out in MD1583. Any
gains or losses in sterling/euro exchange
rate fluctuations will be contained and
manged by MHCLG.

qGz abed

MD2478 | London & Partners — Domestic Tourism Consortium 21/06/19 | Sadiq Khan/ The proposed funding of £600,000 for
David Bellamy | this initiative was identified during the
Approved: GLA Group’s 2019/20 budget process
and placed in the Authority’s earmarked
£600,000 of funding to London & Partners to coordinate an reserves. It will be drawn down and
industry-led public-private ‘Domestic Tourism Consortium’” to administered by way of grant funding to
help promote London to a UK audience over two financial London & Partners (L&P), spanning two
years: financial-years as follows:
e 2019-20 - £320,000 e 2019-20 - £320,000
e 2020-21 - £280,000 e 2020-21 - £280,000
It should be noted that this funding is to
support L&P’s work for the Domestic
Tourism Consortium and is separate from
their core funding of £13.136m for 2019-
20, approved by MD2449.
MD2488 East Bank - Power Lines Underground Asset Protection 24/06/19 | Sadiq Khan/ The APAs require LLDC to have minimum
Agreements David Bellamy | insurance in place to cover costs that

Approved that LLDC proceed to:

Enter into APAs with UKPN and National Grid to enable pilling
works to commence on the Stratford Waterfront Site at East
Bank, noting the indemnities to be provided by LLDC in favour
of UKPN and NG under such APAs (as described in Part 2 of

could potentially arise to rectify any
damage to the tunnels during the piling
works and/or any consequential losses.
LLDC has confirmed that it has the
required insurance cover in place and will
only incur minor expenses within existing
budgetary provision to put the required




this form).

agreements in place, and in allowing the
Corporation to proceed this would not
increase GLA financial support for LLDC.
LLDC would retain risk if any claims were
not covered by insurance or could not be
passed down to the relevant contractor or
designer. However, although LLDC
regards the risk of damage occurring as
low this is a contingent liability. As the
agreements have a 12-year liability limit
for contractual claims, this liability would
fall directly to the GLA if LLDC is wound
up before this expired and could not be
passed on to a successor body.

)Gz abed

DD2288* | Homes for Londoners Conference 2019 20/11/18 | David Lunts The above expenditure will be funded
from the Housing and Land Management
Approved: and Consultancy budget with £46,850
incurred in 2018-19, and £98,150 in
1. The single source procurement of New London 2019/2020.
Architecture (NLA) with expenditure of up to £95,000
to provide event design and programme curation
services;
2. Expenditure of up to £50,000 to hire a venue for the
event and all associated costs; and
3. An exemption from the requirement of section 9 of the
GLA Contracts and Funding Code to procure services
competitively for the procurement of NLA and hire of
an event venue.
DD2316* | Team London Volunteer Portal 2019-2022 06/02/19 | Sarah Mulley Approval is sought for expenditure of up

Approved:

Expenditure of up to £115,000 on a volunteer portal for the
Team London Ambassador and Major Events Programme.

to £115,000 towards a volunteer portal
for the Team London Ambassador and
Major Events Programme, with costs to be
incurred over 3 financial years in 2019-20
(£50k), 2020-21 (£45k) and 2021-22




(£20k).

The 2019-20 costs will be funded the
Visitor Welcome Programme budget with
The Team London and Sport Unit.

Future years” budgets are indicative and
subject to the GLA’s annual budget
setting process.

qQGz abed

DD2332* | Bridport Road Enfield (North Middlesex Stage 1) 27/03/19 | David Lunts The decision is seeking approval for GLAP
to purchase the Bridport Road site in
Approved: Enfield and take over the management of
the leaseback arrangement by March
Following the agreement of the Investment Committee and as 2019 for residential development. The site
per the delegation in MD2396, expenditure from the Land is contained within the grounds of the
Assembly Fund budget for the purchase of the Bridport Road North Middlesex University Hospital and
site in Enfield and the costs of subsequent preparatory work to owned by MHCLG through its agent,
facilitate the disposal of the site via the GLA’s London LocatED (an operational agency for the
Development Panel 2, up to the amounts as set out in section 3 Department of Education).
of Part 2 of this Director’s Decision and agrees receipt of any
incomes arising from tenancies or other uses taking place The purchase will be funded from the
within the site. Land Assembly Fund Budget and includes
the cost of subsequent preparatory work
to facilitate future disposal via the GLA’s
London Development Panel.
There are further financial comments in
Part 2, including tax comments.
DD2352 Good Growth Fund - Additional projects at Round 2 06/06/19 | Debbie Jackson | Capital budget of £2,215,000 is to be

Stage 2
Approved:
Capital expenditure of £2,183,379 to support the delivery of

Better Bankside’s ‘Crossing the Line” project and the London
Borough of Redbridge’s “The Forge — Hainault Country Park’

transferred from the Small Sites
programme underspend in 2018/19 to
fund two Good Growth Fund reserve
projects costing £2,183,379, the
remaining balance of £31,621 will be
available to use in future application
rounds of the Good Growth Fund. Both




project. This will take total approved capital expenditure
through the Good Growth Fund to £60,855,085.

the Good Growth Fund and Small Sites
are funded as part of the LEAP’s Growth
Deal 3 programme. The transfer of Small
Sites underspends was approved in
principle by MD2133.

aGz7 abed

DD2358 Riverside Energy Park Examination legal and consultant | 06/06/19 | Debbie Jackson | Approval is sought for the Executive
costs Director of Development, Enterprise and
Environment to approve expenditure of
Approved: up to £90k on legal representation and
consultancy services to support GLA
1. Expenditure of up to £90,000 on legal representation officers in the development, collation and
and consultant input to support GLA and TfL officers in refinement of submission material for the
expanding on and presenting the Mayor’s opposition to Examination.
the proposed development at the forthcoming
Examination for the Nationally Significant Infrastructure This work is to be funded by a draw-down
Project. on the Authority’s earmarked reserves.
2. In relation to services to be procured from SLR consult
for up to £20,000, a related exemption from the
requirement in the Contracts and Funding Code to
procure such services competitively on the grounds set
out in para 1.9.
DD2360 Rough Sleeping and Mental Health Pilot — Evaluation 06/06/19 | David Lunts The above expenditure will be funded

and Monitoring Framework and Programme Coordinator

Approved:

Expenditure comprising:

A further £4,500 expenditure under Imperial College
Health Partners” existing agreement with the GLA
(taking the total value to £29,500) to develop an
evaluation and monitoring framework for the Mental
Health Pilot and an attendant exemption from the
requirements of the Contracts and Funding Code; and

from within the £400,000 receipts from
the Ministry for Housing, Communities
and Local Government (MHCLG) and
£1.25m funding allocated to this initiative
by the Mayor. The breakdown of
expenditure by year is as follows:

e 2019/20: £68,000 (MHCLG funding)

e 2020/21: £78,500 (Mayoral
allocation).




- £142,000 for external services to coordinate and
evaluate the project.

09z abed

DD2363 Local Implementation Plan approvals 2019 - Batch 2 06/06/19 | Debbie Jackson | There are no financial implications of this
decision for the GLA.
Approved:
In accordance with section 146 of the Greater London
Authority Act 1999, the Local Implementation Plans submitted
by the London borough councils listed in Appendix A, on the
basis that they are consistent with the Mayor’s Transport
Strategy and adequate for the purposes of implementing the
Mayor’s Transport Strategy.
DD2366 | Agreement to transfer funding from Transport for 06/06/19 | Debbie Jackson | This decision recommends that the
London (TfL) to the Greater London Authority (GLA) for Director agrees to a transfer of £60,000
GLA support on implementing the Mayoral Community from TfL for the GLA’s Planning Team’s
Infrastructure Levy (MCIL) costs incurred on MCIL in 2018-19. This
payment is to be funded from the annual
Approved: 1% administrative fee TfL are entitled to
levy against MCIL receipts. As the GLA
1. Transport for London’s transfer of £60,000 to the will be receiving virtually all MCIL receipts
Greater London Authority (with TfL’s expenditure paid from TfL from 2019-20 onwards, this year
for from the revenue it retains from the MCIL to cover and future year costs arising to the GLA"s
administrative costs); and Planning Team will be paid by the GLA.
2. The use of this funding to cover the cost of GLA officer
time spent supporting TfL in connection with the MCIL.
DD2362 Development of Design District, Greenwich Peninsula 10/06/19 | David Lunts/ This decision requests the Executive

Approved:

1. The granting of a lease to Knight Dragon under the
terms of the Land Disposal Agreement to enable
development of the Design District project. The

Martin Clarke

Director of Housing and Land and
Executive Director of Resources to
approve the grant of a lease to Knight
Dragon. The lease is for Plot 11 of the
Peninsula Central District and will be used
to develop workspace for small and




proposed lease length and value of the premium are set
out in Part 2 of this paper.

2. That GLAP’s investment in this project will take the
form of an equity stake in proportion to its Minimum
Land Value, payable to GLAP under the terms of the
LDA. GLAP will recover its land value through rental
payments from occupiers once operational costs have
been deducted. Land value will be recovered in full
(with annual value indexation) within 25 years.

medium enterprises. The rents for the
space will be at a blended affordable rate,
indexed for ten years. After ten years
25% will continue at the indexed blended
rate with flexibility over the remaining
75%.

The investment by GLAP will be an equity
stake in the venture equal to its Minimum
Land Value due under the Land Disposal
Agreement. Rents, after paying for
operational costs, will be split between
GLAP and Knight Dragon in proportion to
their equity stakes. The Minimum Land
Value, with indexation, will be recovered
by GLAP through rents, with a lump sum
payment by KD making up any shortfall
no later than year 25 of the project.

197 abed

DD2372

Corporate gifts
Approved, following consultation with the Monitoring Officer:

The GLA’s approach for dealing with corporate gifts as set out
in this decision form.

01/07/19

Martin Clarke

Finance officers will ensure that corporate
gifts are securely stored while held by the
GLA and that they have valuations
attached to them for insurance purposes.

There are no budget implications for the
GLA as no income from corporate gifts is
budgeted for and so there are no financial
implications arising from corporate gifts
being donated to a charity.

Any additional insurance costs arising
from holding corporate gifts are marginal.

DD2369

City Operations team - data platforms

Approved:

02/07/19

Emma Strain

This decision seeks approval to spend up
to £150,000 in 2019-20 on licences for
the City Operations team which will be
funded from the Directorate Programme
reserve.




Expenditure of up to £150,000 for ten licences for access to
data platforms for the City Operations team.

Funding for licences for future years will
be secured via the forthcoming GLA
budget-setting process.

Z97 abed

ADD2270*

Safer Nights Partnership (working title)
Approved:
One off grant funding of up to £35,000 to the Safer Business

Network as a contribution to its costs incurred in starting up
the Safer Nights Partnership.

17/12/18

Shonagh
Manson

A contribution of £35,000 is required
from the Authority to fund the creation of
a Safer Sounds Network. The Safer
Business Network will work with the music
industry to secure the remaining match
funding.

This contribution will be issued as one-off
grant during 2018/19 with no plans for
future funding.

To mitigate any risk, payment will be
made in arrears once key milestones have
been met.

The expenditure will be met from within
the Culture and Creative Industries
2018/19 budget and subsequently
managed by the Unit.

ADD2339*

Voluntary and Community Sector housing forum
Approved:

A grant of £30,000 to Trust for London to deliver its VCS
housing forum project.

18/03/19

Jamie Ratcliff

This decision seeks approval for
expenditure of £30,000 in 2018/2019 to
award a grant to Trust for London to
deliver the Voluntary and Community
Sector housing forum project. Trust for
London will be responsible for running the
forum and will provide match funding of
£20,000 to meet the total project cost of
£50,000.

The expenditure will be funded from the




cgz abed

H&L Management & Consultancy budget
and will be spent in 2018/19 financial
year.

ADD2348

Victoria Place Plan
Approved:

A one-off grant of £50,000 in 2019/20 to Victoria Business
Improvement District to enable the commissioning and delivery
of the Victoria Place Plan comprising:

- £25,000 from the Good Growth Fund research and
evidence budget (DD2181); and

- £25,000 income from Westminster City Council,
repurposed from the West End Good Growth Study,
receipt of which was approved under ADD2281.

11/06/19

Patrick Dubeck

The cost of £25,000 for this project will
be funded from the £6.088 million
revenue funding allocated as part of the
overall Good Growth Fund total of
£61.095 million in MD 2163. This total for
revenue funding has been identified for
expenditure on costs to support
applicants in the development of their
project proposals and to provide for
associated operational expenditure and
programme support costs to enable the
delivery of the programme. Included
within the revenue funding total is a
specific indicative allocation for research
of £240,000. This project would meet the
definition of research to be funded from
this budget and sufficient funding is
available.

The remaining £25,000 will be funded
utilising a receipt of funding from
Westminster City Council for the West End
Good Growth Study. Previously £50,000
had been allocated from the Strategic
Investment Fund, for this study, as
approved in ADD 2281. However, this
receipt of funding means the net
contribution from the GLA to the West
End study is only £25,000 enabling the
receipt to be re-allocated and applied to
the Victoria Place Plan.




97 abed

DMFD21*

London Fire Brigade — Portable Hygiene Unit Provision
The Deputy Mayor for Fire and Resilience:
Consented to the London Fire Commissioner’s decision to

spend up to £470,321 on services from Site-Equip Limited for
the provision of two portable hygiene units.

18/06/19

Fiona Twycross

LFC-0096x to the London Fire
Commissioner sets out four different
options with regard to the future
provision of Portable Hygiene Units and
recommends Option 4 — to purchase two
PHUs built to LFB specification, hosted
with a third-party supplier.

The total cost of the proposal is up to
£470,321 comprising of an annual
revenue cost of approximately £126,400
for three years and a one-off capital cost
for the two custom Portable Hygiene
Units at £91,000, which will be incurred in
2019/20 financial year. If the capital
purchase is funded by external borrowing,
the annual debt charges would be
£32,000 per annum, being £30,000 debt
repayment based on a three-year life and
£2,000 interest payable based on an
interest rate of 2%.

DMFD22

Payment of the Ultra-Low Emission Zone charge for
personnel based in the charging zone

The Deputy Mayor for Fire and Resilience:

Consents to the implementation of the recommendations
above, which have been fully consulted on with the
representative bodies, for the temporary reimbursements of the
Ultra-Low Emission Zone charges at an estimated one-off cost
of £234.5k in 2019/20, within the parameters described in the
recommendations to the London Fire Commissioner in report
LFC-0178z and outlined in paragraph 2.1 below.

21/06/19

Fiona Twycross

The expenditure is to be funded through
sums available to the Commissioner.
There are no direct financial implications
for the GLA.




g9z abed

DMFD26 | Procurement of Travel and Accommodation Services 06/06/19 | Fiona Twycross | The new contract is expected to
streamline processes and also provide a
Approved: savings on transaction fees. The current
annual spend of £240k includes
The expenditure of circa £1m by the London Fire Commissioner transaction fees of approximately 3-4%,
for the purpose of awarding a contract with Corporate Travel i.e., £7.2k — £9.6k. Based on an average
Management Limited for the delivery of travel and savings of 37% on transaction fees, it is
accommodation services. expected that there would be a savings of
£2.7k — £3.6k per annum that can be
incorporated into the budget process.
DMFD29 | Fuel Cards and Associated Services: Contract Award 10/06/19 | Fiona Twycross | Report LFC-0167 to the London Fire

The Deputy Mayor for Fire and Resilience:

Consented to the commitment of £6.5m by the London Fire
Commissioner for the award of a fuel card and associated
services contract with Allstar Business Solutions.

Commissioner recommends the award of a
five-year contract for the provision of
Fuel Cards and Associated Services. The
report notes that spend on this service
over the last five years was £5.3 million
and that the annual contract spend going
forwards will depend on vehicle use and
inflation. For 2018/19 the annual budget
for this was £1.2million with an outturn
spend of £1.3 million. The budget
provision for this will be considered as
part of the budget process for 2020/21
to assess any inflationary requirements.
The expenditure is to be funded through
sums available to the Commissioner.
There are no direct financial implications
for the GLA.




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 266



Agenda Item 8

GREATERLONDONAUTHORITY LONDON

Subject: Payments over £250

Report to: Budget Monitoring Sub-Committee

Report of: Executive Director of Resources Date: 11 September 2019

This report will be considered in public

1.1

2.1

3.1

4.1

4.2

Summary

This report provides information on payments over £250 during the period 1 April 2019 to
20 July 2019 (inclusive) for the Greater London Authority (GLA) and its subsidiary,
GLA Land & Property Ltd.

Recommendation

That the Sub-Committee notes the report.

Background

The Local Government Transparency Code sets out key principles for local authorities in creating
greater transparency through the publication of public data. One of the requirements under the
Code is the requirement to publish details of each individual item of expenditure that exceeds £500.
The Greater London Authority has lowered this threshold and publishes all expenditure data that
exceeds £250.

Issues for Consideration

Appendix 1 shows the total by supplier, analysed by expense code, of all the payments over £250
(excluding VAT), that have been made during the above-mentioned period. Payments are listed by
supplier and a short description is provided for all payments. For the first quarter of the year, these
totalled £164 million.

If Members require further details on any of these suppliers or payments, they should notify the
contact officer in advance of the meeting if possible. The individual transactions reflected in these
totals are published each period on the GLA website at: https://www.london.gov.uk/about-
us/greater-london-authority-gla/spending-money-wisely /our-spending

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk

Page 267



https://www.london.gov.uk/about-us/greater-london-authority-gla/spending-money-wisely/our-spending
https://www.london.gov.uk/about-us/greater-london-authority-gla/spending-money-wisely/our-spending

5. Legal Implications

5.1 There are no direct legal implications arising out of this report. The payments themselves have not
been legally reviewed for the purposes of this report.

6. Financial Implications

6.1 This report is entirely concerned with financial matters and relates to expenditure from existing
approved budgets.

List of appendices to this report:
Appendix 1 — Transactions over £250 by Supplier - Report for the period 1 April 2019 to 20 July 2019

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers: None

Contact Officer: Yen Dang
Telephone: 020 7983 4863
E-mail: yen.dang@london.gov.uk

Page 268


mailto:yen.dang@london.gov.uk

Appendix 1

Transactions over £ 250.00

Reporting Period : Quarter 1
Start Date: 01 April, 2019
End Date: 20 July, 2019
Financial Year : 2019/20
Appendix 1

Total Spend > £250 (blank)

Vendor Name

Expenditure Account Code Description

Sum of Amount

2CL COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED FURNITURE & EQUIPMENT 425.00
2CL COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED Total 425.00
2CV RESEARCH CONSULTANCY EVALUATION ASSESSMENT 18,100.00
MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT CONSULTANCY 25,600.00

2CV RESEARCH Total 43,700.00
ADAPT-IT COMPUTER SOFTWARE 652.30
ADAPT-IT Total 652.30
AFFINITY HEALTH AT WORK LTD CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 22,662.51
AFFINITY HEALTH AT WORK LTD Total 22,662.51
AFFINITY HOMES GROUP LIMITED HSG GRANTS TO REGISTERED PROVIDERS 490,000.00
AFFINITY HOMES GROUP LIMITED Total 490,000.00
AHREND LIMITED FURNITURE & EQUIPMENT 478.00
AHREND LIMITED Total 478.00
AIR QUALITY CONSULTANTS LTD MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT CONSULTANCY 24,597.12
AIR QUALITY CONSULTANTS LTD Total 24,597.12
ALL CLEAN GROUP OFFICE CLEANING 26,740.00
ALL CLEAN GROUP Total 26,740.00
ALLEN LANE FINANCIAL RECRUITMENT AGENCY STAFF 128,364.72
RECRUITMENT AGENCY FEES 101,386.88

ALLEN LANE FINANCIAL RECRUITMENT Total 229,751.60
AMAS LTD COMMERCIAL PROPERTY RENT 1,988,077.00
AMAS LTD Total 1,988,077.00
AMAZON.COM INC. MANAGE IT SERVICES 79,221.57
AMAZON.COM INC. Total 79,221.57
ARC SEVEN COMMUNICATIONS MARKETING STRATEGY AND CONSULTANCY 1,250.00
PHOTOGRAPHY & VIDEO 1,666.66

ARC SEVEN COMMUNICATIONS Total 2,916.66
ARGUS SOFTWARE (UK) LTD SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 512.04
STAFF TRAINING 800.00

ARGUS SOFTWARE (UK) LTD Total 1,312.04
ASPERITY EMPLOYEE BENEFITS LTD CHILDCARE VOUCHERS 32,446.55
CYCLE TO WORK BIKES 8,628.02

ASPERITY EMPLOYEE BENEFITS LTD Total 41,074.57
BENENDEN HEALTHCARE SOCIETY LTD STAFF WELFARE BENEFITS 2,060.25
BENENDEN HEALTHCARE SOCIETY LTD Total 2,060.25
BENUGO EXTERNAL EVENTS ROADS SHOWS AND FACE TO FACE 907.65
BENUGO Total 907.65
BERKELEY CATERING LIMITED CATERERS SERVICE CHARGES 250.45
BERKELEY CATERING LIMITED Total 250.45
BERWIN LEIGHTON PAISNER LEGAL FEES 191,936.00
BERWIN LEIGHTON PAISNER Total 191,936.00
BIG ISSUE INVEST LIMITED GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 100,000.00
BIG ISSUE INVEST LIMITED Total 100,000.00
BLISS EVENTS MANAGEMENT LIMITED EVENT MANAGEMENT FEE 319,348.63
BLISS EVENTS MANAGEMENT LIMITED Total 319,348.63
BLOOMBERG LP PUBLICATIONS & PERIODICALS 8,700.75
BLOOMBERG LP Total 8,700.75
BLOSSOMS HEALTHCARE LLP STAFF WELFARE BENEFITS 4,795.00
BLOSSOMS HEALTHCARE LLP Total 4,795.00
BOP CONSULTING CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 6,000.00
BOP CONSULTING Total 6,000.00
BOW TIE COMPUTER HARDWARE 6,268.36
EVENT MANAGEMENT FEE 600.00

EXTERNAL AUDIT FEES 512.00

OFFICE CLEANING 6,770.00

PHOTOGRAPHY & VIDEO 154,534.00

EQUIPMENT HIRE & RENTAL 1,694.25

Page 269

Page 1




Transactions over £ 250.00

Reporting Period : Quarter 1
Start Date: 01 April, 2019
End Date: 20 July, 2019
Financial Year : 2019/20
Appendix 1

Total Spend > £250 (blank)

Vendor Name

Expenditure Account Code Description

Sum of Amount

BOW TIE Total 170,378.61
BRITISH FASHION COUNCIL GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 498,573.90
BRITISH FASHION COUNCIL Total 498,573.90
BRITISH GAS BUSINESS ELECTRICITY 1,250.66
BRITISH GAS BUSINESS Total 1,250.66
BRITISH RED CROSS SOCIETY STAFF TRAINING 359.00
BRITISH RED CROSS SOCIETY Total 359.00
BROMLEY COLLEGE OF FURTHER & HI GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 42,500.00
BROMLEY COLLEGE OF FURTHER & HI Total 42,500.00
BROWSER LONDON LTD OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 41,659.00
BROWSER LONDON LTD Total 41,659.00
BT CONFERENCING TELEPHONY FIXED 3,272.33
BT CONFERENCING Total 3,272.33
BT GLOBAL SERVICES TELEPHONY FIXED 7,902.36
BT GLOBAL SERVICES Total 7,902.36
BT SERVICE AGILITY TELEPHONY FIXED 17,966.37
BT SERVICE AGILITY Total 17,966.37
BUCKHILL LTD DATA HOSTING EMAIL DESIGN AND TRANSMISSION INC SMS 774.53
BUCKHILL LTD Total 774.53
BURGES SALMON LLP LEGAL FEES 31,728.00
BURGES SALMON LLP Total 31,728.00
BURNING GLASS TECHNOLOGIES, INC. IT CONSULTANCY 18,750.00
BURNING GLASS TECHNOLOGIES, INC. Total 18,750.00
BURO HAPPOLD LTD MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT CONSULTANCY 45,000.00
BURO HAPPOLD LTD Total 45,000.00
BYTES SOFTWARE SERVICES COMPUTER SOFTWARE 474,780.19
BYTES SOFTWARE SERVICES Total 474,780.19
CAMWAY FACILITIES MAINTENANCE LTD PROPERTY MANAGEMENT FEES 65,148.00
CAMWAY FACILITIES MAINTENANCE LTD Total 65,148.00
CAPITA BUSINESS TRAVEL HOTEL ACCOMMODATION 4,193.84
STAFF TRAVEL (BUSINESS FARES) 7,073.03

CAPITA BUSINESS TRAVEL Total 11,266.87
CAPITA LEARNING & DEVELOPMENT STAFF TRAINING 10,887.50
CAPITA LEARNING & DEVELOPMENT Total 10,887.50
CAPP & CO LTD STAFF TRAINING 336.60
CAPP & CO LTD Total 336.60
CARBON CREDENTIALS ENERGY SERV LTD CONSULTANCY-COMMISSIONED REPORT 3,175.00
CARBON CREDENTIALS ENERGY SERV LTD Total 3,175.00
CARBON FOOTPRINT LTD OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 1,016.50
CARBON FOOTPRINT LTD Total 1,016.50
CASTLE WATER LIMITED WATER 14,684.76
CASTLE WATER LIMITED Total 14,684.76
CAUSEWAY TECHNOLOGIES LTD STATIONERY 7,977.41
CAUSEWAY TECHNOLOGIES LTD Total 7,977.41
CAVALIER COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED PHOTOGRAPHY AND VIDEO DESIGN AND PRODUCTION 23,253.92
CAVALIER COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED Total 23,253.92
CENTRE FOR LONDON RESEARCH & STUDY FEES 10,000.00
CENTRE FOR LONDON Total 10,000.00
CHALLENGE PARTNERS CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 35,000.00
CHALLENGE PARTNERS Total 35,000.00
CIPFA PUBLICATIONS & PERIODICALS 6,190.00
CIPFA Total 6,190.00
CITY OF LONDON DOCUMENT ARCHIVE & STORAGE 1,966.25
EXTERNAL EVENTS ROADS SHOWS AND FACE TO FACE 3,250.00

GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 175,000.00

INCOME MAXIMISATION EXPENSES 75,300.00

CITY OF LONDON Total 255,516.25

Page 270

Page 2




Transactions over £ 250.00

Reporting Period : Quarter 1
Start Date: 01 April, 2019
End Date: 20 July, 2019
Financial Year : 2019/20
Appendix 1

Total Spend > £250 (blank)

Vendor Name

Expenditure Account Code Description

Sum of Amount

CITY OF WESTMINSTER INCOME MAXIMISATION EXPENSES 5,643.50
CITY OF WESTMINSTER Total 5,643.50
CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP LEGAL FEES 12,008.33
CLIFFORD CHANCE LLP Total 12,008.33
COIN STREET COMMUNITY BUILDERS EXTERNAL MEETING ROOM HIRE & EXPENSES 4,147.50
COIN STREET COMMUNITY BUILDERS Total 4,147.50
COMPUTACENTER COMPUTER CONSUMABLES 7,941.98
COMPUTER HARDWARE 305,349.91

COMPUTER SOFTWARE 11,467.21

MANAGE IT SERVICES 21,249.34

SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 8,078.29

TELEPHONY MOBILE 958.62

COMPUTACENTER Total 355,045.35
CONTINENTAL DRIFTS LTD EVENT MANAGEMENT FEE 3,891.13
CONTINENTAL DRIFTS LTD Total 3,891.13
COPYRIGHT LICENSING AGENCY LTD SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 15,503.40
COPYRIGHT LICENSING AGENCY LTD Total 15,503.40
CORONA ENERGY RETAIL 4 LTD GAS 12,920.57
CORONA ENERGY RETAIL 4 LTD Total 12,920.57
CORPORATE DOCUMENT SERVICES LTD DATA HOSTING EMAIL DESIGN AND TRANSMISSION INC SMS 1,548.75
OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 2,042.25

PRINTING 2,607.15

PRODUCTION ARTWORK AND DESIGN FOR MARKETING 11,466.47

PROMOTIONS INCENTIVES MERCHANDISE GIVE-AWAYS 1,849.58

PUBLICATIONS & PERIODICALS 765.87

STORAGE AND DISTRIBUTION OF PUBLICITY MATERIALS 813.75

STATUTORY ADS NOTICES COMMUNICATIONS & CONSULTATIO 1,603.85

CORPORATE DOCUMENT SERVICES LTD Total 22,697.67
CRITICAL MENTION INC OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 5,122.65
CRITICAL MENTION INC Total 5,122.65
DENTONS UKMEA LLP LEGAL FEES 31,552.63
DENTONS UKMEA LLP Total 31,552.63
DEVONSHIRES SOLICITORS LEGAL FEES 8,035.00
DEVONSHIRES SOLICITORS Total 8,035.00
DOCUMENT SOS LIMITED POSTAGE 500.00
DOCUMENT SOS LIMITED Total 500.00
DODS PARLIAMENTARY COMMS LTD CONFERENCES & SEMINARS 255.00
STAFF TRAINING 945.00

DODS PARLIAMENTARY COMMS LTD Total 1,200.00
DOTTED EYES OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 5,000.00
DOTTED EYES Total 5,000.00
DRON & WRIGHT PROP CONS COMMERCIAL PROPERTY RENT 369,687.51
DRON & WRIGHT PROP CONS Total 369,687.51
EDF ENERGY ELECTRICITY 49,241.08
EDF ENERGY Total 49,241.08
EDUCATION DIRECT CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 542.00
DATA HOSTING EMAIL DESIGN AND TRANSMISSION INC SMS 800.00

OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 1,342.00

EDUCATION DIRECT Total 2,684.00
ELITE TELECOM TELEPHONY FIXED 2,814.32
ELITE TELECOM Total 2,814.32
ENGLAND HOCKEY GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 34,869.16
ENGLAND HOCKEY Total 34,869.16
ERICA BOLTON & JANE QUINN LTD OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 3,000.00
ERICA BOLTON & JANE QUINN LTD Total 3,000.00
ESRI (UK) LIMITED DATA PURCHASE 35,000.00
ESRI (UK) LIMITED Total 35,000.00

Page 271

Page 3




Transactions over £ 250.00

Reporting Period : Quarter 1
Start Date: 01 April, 2019
End Date: 20 July, 2019
Financial Year : 2019/20
Appendix 1

Total Spend > £250 (blank)

Vendor Name

Expenditure Account Code Description

Sum of Amount

ESSENTRA SECURITY FURNITURE & EQUIPMENT 1,240.50
ESSENTRA SECURITY Total 1,240.50
ETC VENUES LTD EXTERNAL MEETING ROOM HIRE & EXPENSES 2,682.00
ETC VENUES LTD Total 2,682.00
EXPENSES PAID TO THIRD PARTIES MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT CONSULTANCY 2,160.00
MARKETING EXHIBITIONS & EVENTS 11,618.03

NON-GLA BUSINESS FARES 1,102.80

OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 1,820.00

NON-GLA STAFF-MEALS 450.00

EXPENSES PAID TO THIRD PARTIES Total 17,150.83
FILM LONDON LTD GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 670,000.00
FILM LONDON LTD Total 670,000.00
FUTURE OF LONDON 2011 LIMITED STAFF TRAINING 1,400.00
FUTURE OF LONDON 2011 LIMITED Total 1,400.00
GERALD EVE COMMERCIAL PROPERTY RENT 45,945.57
GERALD EVE Total 45,945.57
GIGL GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 2,892.00
GIGL Total 2,892.00
GOOD HOTEL LONDON EXTERNAL MEETING ROOM HIRE & EXPENSES 1,023.49
REFRESHMENTS/MEALS AT MEETINGS 633.51

GOOD HOTEL LONDON Total 1,657.00
GORT SCOTT CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 3,160.00
RESEARCH & STUDY FEES 16,558.50

GORT SCOTT Total 19,718.50
GREATER LONDON VOLUNTEERING GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 28,500.00
OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 4,400.00

GREATER LONDON VOLUNTEERING Total 32,900.00
GREENWICH & DOCKLANDS FESTIVALS CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 2,500.00
GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 120,100.00

GREENWICH & DOCKLANDS FESTIVALS Total 122,600.00
GREENWICH LEISURE LTD ELECTRICITY 120,000.00
EXTERNAL BUILDING MAINTENANCE 32,617.00

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT FEES 9,527.41

GREENWICH LEISURE LTD Total 162,144.41
GROUNDSWELL GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 10,000.00
GROUNDSWELL Total 10,000.00
GROUNDWORK LONDON CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 65,395.00
GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 547,730.14

MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT CONSULTANCY 42,624.00

OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 9,116.44

RESEARCH & STUDY FEES 11,658.50

GROUNDWORK LONDON Total 676,524.08
HARINGEY COUNCIL GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 385,828.00
HSG GRANTS TO LOCAL AUTHORITIES 5,036,932.65

INCOME MAXIMISATION EXPENSES 168,800.00

HARINGEY COUNCIL Total 5,591,560.65
HARROW COLLEGE GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 902,645.75
HARROW COLLEGE Total 902,645.75
HAVAS PEOPLE LIMITED IT CONSULTANCY 13,000.00
HAVAS PEOPLE LIMITED Total 13,000.00
HEXAGON HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED HSG GRANTS TO REGISTERED PROVIDERS 1,161,075.00
HEXAGON HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED Total 1,161,075.00
HIGGINSON PR MARKETING STRATEGY AND CONSULTANCY 3,000.00
HIGGINSON PR Total 3,000.00
HUNTERS CONTRACTS FURNITURE & EQUIPMENT 2,868.80
HUNTERS CONTRACTS Total 2,868.80
HYDE HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED HSG GRANTS TO REGISTERED PROVIDERS 3,832,886.00

Page 272

Page 4




Transactions over £ 250.00

Reporting Period : Quarter 1
Start Date: 01 April, 2019
End Date: 20 July, 2019
Financial Year : 2019/20
Appendix 1

Total Spend > £250 (blank)

Vendor Name

Expenditure Account Code Description

Sum of Amount

HYDE HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED Total 3,832,886.00
14C PUBLICITY LIMITED UNIFORMS 1,037.50
14C PUBLICITY LIMITED Total 1,037.50
ICM RESEARCH LIMITED CONSULTANCY EVALUATION ASSESSMENT 15,660.00
ICM RESEARCH LIMITED Total 15,660.00
IDOX MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT CONSULTANCY 25,533.25
IDOX Total 25,533.25
INDEPENDENT LIVING ALTERNATIVES STAFF WELFARE BENEFITS 2,905.44
INDEPENDENT LIVING ALTERNATIVES Total 2,905.44
INDIGO2 EVENT MANAGEMENT FEE 9,250.00
INDIGO2 Total 9,250.00
INSIGHT DIRECT UK LIMITED COMPUTER HARDWARE 21,099.12
CONTRACTORS 1,400.00

IT CONSULTANCY 76,931.01

MANAGE IT SERVICES 134,182.87

OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 2,945.00

SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 20,025.00

HARDWARE MAINTENANCE 31,944.43

INSIGHT DIRECT UK LIMITED Total 288,527.43
ISLINGTON COUNCIL GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 63,542.00
ISLINGTON COUNCIL Total 63,542.00
JACK MORTON WORLDWIDE EVENT MANAGEMENT FEE 996,931.52
JACK MORTON WORLDWIDE Total 996,931.52
JAMES O JENKINS EVENT MANAGEMENT FEE 350.00
PHOTOGRAPHY & VIDEO 2,100.00

PHOTOGRAPHY AND VIDEO DESIGN AND PRODUCTION 6,600.00

JAMES O JENKINS Total 9,050.00
JENNY HASTINGS CONSULTANCY-COMMISSIONED REPORT 2,100.00
JENNY HASTINGS Total 2,100.00
JO RICHARDSON COMMUNITY SCHOOL GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 25,000.00
JO RICHARDSON COMMUNITY SCHOOL Total 25,000.00
KINGS COLLEGE LONDON CATERERS SERVICE CHARGES 477.50
CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 112,490.00

GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 15,000.00

KINGS COLLEGE LONDON Total 127,967.50
KIWI POWER GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 28,497.05
KIWI POWER Total 28,497.05
LAMBERT SMITH HAMPTON CONSULTANCY EVALUATION ASSESSMENT 8,648.00
CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 13,572.00

LAMBERT SMITH HAMPTON Total 22,220.00
LAND REGISTRY DATA PURCHASE 20,000.00
LAND REGISTRY Total 20,000.00
LATINOLIFE GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 9,000.00
LATINOLIFE Total 9,000.00
LAURENCE TAYLOR CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 5,000.00
LAURENCE TAYLOR Total 5,000.00
LB TOWER HAMLETS HSG GRANTS TO LOCAL AUTHORITIES 3,250,000.00
LB TOWER HAMLETS Total 3,250,000.00
LIVE ENTERTAINMENT DIRECTIVE EVENT MANAGEMENT FEE 2,050.00
LIVE ENTERTAINMENT DIRECTIVE Total 2,050.00
LIZA MONKS ART AND POETRY INSTALLATIONS AND PROGRAMMES 364.00
PRODUCTION ARTWORK AND DESIGN FOR MARKETING 360.00

LIZA MONKS Total 724.00
LONDON & PARTNERS EXTERNAL MEETING ROOM HIRE & EXPENSES 950.00
SECONDED STAFF - NON GROUP 35,650.50

LONDON & PARTNERS Total 36,600.50
LONDON & PARTNERS LIMITED GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 7,065,000.00

Page 273

Page 5




Transactions over £ 250.00

Reporting Period : Quarter 1
Start Date: 01 April, 2019
End Date: 20 July, 2019
Financial Year : 2019/20
Appendix 1

Total Spend > £250 (blank)

Vendor Name

Expenditure Account Code Description

Sum of Amount

LONDON & PARTNERS LIMITED Total

7,065,000.00

LONDON AND QUADRANT HOUSING TRUST HSG GRANTS TO REGISTERED PROVIDERS 1,485,949.00
LONDON AND QUADRANT HOUSING TRUST Total 1,485,949.00
LONDON BOROUGH OF WALTHAM FOREST GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 5,000.00
INCOME MAXIMISATION EXPENSES 68,833.00

LONDON BOROUGH OF WALTHAM FOREST Total 73,833.00
LONDON BOROUGH OF BARKING GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 150,000.00
HZ CONTINGENT GRANT LA 11,300,000.00

LONDON BOROUGH OF BARKING Total 11,450,000.00
LONDON BOROUGH OF BARKING AND DAGEI GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 168,000.00
LONDON BOROUGH OF BARKING AND DAGEN Total 168,000.00
LONDON BOROUGH OF BARNET GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 100,619.00
LONDON BOROUGH OF BARNET Total 100,619.00
LONDON BOROUGH OF BRENT INCOME MAXIMISATION EXPENSES 35,000.00
LONDON BOROUGH OF BRENT Total 35,000.00
LONDON BOROUGH OF CAMDEN GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 259,713.71
STAFF TRAINING 725.00

INCOME MAXIMISATION EXPENSES 82,500.00

LONDON BOROUGH OF CAMDEN Total 342,938.71
LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 3,173.07
INCOME MAXIMISATION EXPENSES 53,400.00

LONDON BOROUGH OF CROYDON Total 56,573.07
LONDON BOROUGH OF EALING HSG GRANTS TO LOCAL AUTHORITIES 376,901.00
INCOME MAXIMISATION EXPENSES 80,430.80

HZ CONTINGENT GRANT LA 5,582,551.54

LONDON BOROUGH OF EALING Total 6,039,883.34
LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 90,000.00
GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 1,088,550.59

LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD Total 1,178,550.59
LONDON BOROUGH OF HACKNEY GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 65,000.00
HSG GRANTS TO LOCAL AUTHORITIES 209,000.00

LONDON BOROUGH OF HACKNEY Total 274,000.00
LONDON BOROUGH OF HAVERING INCOME MAXIMISATION EXPENSES 20,842.50
LONDON BOROUGH OF HAVERING Total 20,842.50
LONDON BOROUGH OF HOUNSLOW GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 300,000.00
LONDON BOROUGH OF HOUNSLOW Total 300,000.00
LONDON BOROUGH OF ISLINGTON GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 2,388.50
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT CONSULTANCY 8,431.25

INCOME MAXIMISATION EXPENSES 44,825.97

LONDON BOROUGH OF ISLINGTON Total 55,645.72
LONDON BOROUGH OF LAMBETH GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 722,706.15
INCOME MAXIMISATION EXPENSES 86,300.00

LONDON BOROUGH OF LAMBETH Total 809,006.15
LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 635,095.07
LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM Total 635,095.07
LONDON BOROUGH OF NEWHAM GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 44,044.00
GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 40,000.00

SECONDED STAFF - NON GROUP 21,283.20

INCOME MAXIMISATION EXPENSES 142,912.00

LONDON BOROUGH OF NEWHAM Total 248,239.20
LONDON BOROUGH OF REDBRIDGE GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 781,366.08
HSG GRANTS TO REGISTERED PROVIDERS 6,678,000.00

INCOME MAXIMISATION EXPENSES 93,968.00

LONDON BOROUGH OF REDBRIDGE Total 7,553,334.08
LONDON BOROUGH OF SOUTHWARK RATES 50,000.00
LONDON BOROUGH OF SOUTHWARK Total 50,000.00
LONDON BOROUGH OF WALTHAM FOREST ~ GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 289,000.00

Page 274

Page 6




Transactions over £ 250.00

Reporting Period : Quarter 1
Start Date: 01 April, 2019
End Date: 20 July, 2019
Financial Year : 2019/20
Appendix 1

Total Spend > £250 (blank)

Vendor Name

Expenditure Account Code Description

Sum of Amount

LONDON BOROUGH OF WALTHAM FOREST HSG GRANTS TO LOCAL AUTHORITIES 1,002,999.07
LONDON BOROUGH OF WALTHAM FOREST Total 1,291,999.07
LONDON BOROUGH SOUTHWARK GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 5,000.00
LONDON BOROUGH SOUTHWARK Total 5,000.00
LONDON FESTIVAL OF ARCHITECTURE LTD  CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 9,500.00
GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 14,000.00

LONDON FESTIVAL OF ARCHITECTURE LTD Total 23,500.00
LONDON IRISH CENTRE EVENT MANAGEMENT FEE 1,500.00
LONDON IRISH CENTRE Total 1,500.00
LONDON LEGACY DEVELOPMENT CORPORAT GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 64,000.00
LONDON LEGACY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATI Total 64,000.00
LONDON TRAVEL WATCH MISCELLANEOUS COSTS 518,000.00
LONDON TRAVEL WATCH Total 518,000.00
LONDON WILDLIFE TRUST GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 20,000.00
LONDON WILDLIFE TRUST Total 20,000.00
LSE ENTERPRISE CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 1,140.00
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT CONSULTANCY 9,488.00

LSE ENTERPRISE Total 10,628.00
LUISA SIEIRO DESIGN PRODUCTION ARTWORK AND DESIGN FOR MARKETING 6,825.00
LUISA SIEIRO DESIGN Total 6,825.00
MAINTEL EUROPE LTD IT CONSULTANCY 15,030.00
MAINTENANCE OF TELECOMMUNICATIONS EQUIPMENT 8,000.00

MAINTEL EUROPE LTD Total 23,030.00
MAJESTIC WINE CATERERS SERVICE CHARGES 308.60
MAIJESTIC WINE Total 308.60
MARTIN ARNOLD ASSOCIATES LLP PROPERTY MANAGEMENT FEES 737.00
MARTIN ARNOLD ASSOCIATES LLP Total 737.00
MEDCITY LTD GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 73,750.00
MEDCITY LTD Total 73,750.00
MEDIA TRAINING LTD STAFF TRAINING 350.00
MEDIA TRAINING LTD Total 350.00
MG 1996 LTD OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 1,000.00
MG 1996 LTD Total 1,000.00
MIME CONSULTING CONSULTANCY-COMMISSIONED REPORT 6,000.00
MIME CONSULTING Total 6,000.00
MOPAC INTERNAL AUDIT FEES 44,400.00
MOPAC Total 44,400.00
MOTT MACDONALD LIMITED CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 53,582.19
MOTT MACDONALD LIMITED Total 53,582.19
MPLC LTD STATIONERY 3,245.97
MPLC LTD Total 3,245.97
MUSEUM OF LONDON EXTERNAL MEETING ROOM HIRE & EXPENSES 250.00
GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 3,850,000.00

RECRUITMENT AGENCY FEES 29,464.00

MUSEUM OF LONDON Total 3,879,714.00
NATWEST CORPORATE CREDIT CARD COMPUTER SOFTWARE 1,461.42
Conferences/Seminars 1,884.13

Equip Hire & Rental 446.40

PHOTOGRAPHY & VIDEO 2,139.98

Publications & Perio 12,913.94

STAFF TRAINING 10,588.50

STATIONERY 295.00

Recruitment Expenses 300.00

Bank Charges -495.00

NATWEST CORPORATE CREDIT CARD Total 29,534.37
NEOPOST LTD EQUIPMENT REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 745.17
NEOPOST LTD Total 745.17

Page 275

Page 7




Transactions over £ 250.00

Reporting Period : Quarter 1
Start Date: 01 April, 2019
End Date: 20 July, 2019
Financial Year : 2019/20
Appendix 1

Total Spend > £250 (blank)

Vendor Name

Expenditure Account Code Description

Sum of Amount

NORTH LONDON PARTNERSHIP LTD GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 90,000.00
NORTH LONDON PARTNERSHIP LTD Total 90,000.00
NSPCC STAFF TRAINING 450.00
NSPCC Total 450.00
02 UK LIMITED COMPUTER HARDWARE 4,090.00
TELEPHONY MOBILE 63,760.54

02 UK LIMITED Total 67,850.54
OCS CATERING CATERERS SERVICE CHARGES 61,004.76
REFRESHMENTS/MEALS AT MEETINGS 6,607.05

OCS CATERING Total 67,611.81
OFFICE DEPOT UK LTD STATIONERY 6,724.49
OFFICE DEPOT UK LTD Total 6,724.49
OFFICE FOR NATIONAL STATISTICS DATA PURCHASE 47,692.50
OFFICE FOR NATIONAL STATISTICS Total 47,692.50
ORBIT HOUSING GROUP LTD HSG GRANTS TO REGISTERED PROVIDERS 521,000.00
ORBIT HOUSING GROUP LTD Total 521,000.00
OVE ARUP & PARTNERS LTD CONSULTANCY-COMMISSIONED REPORT 128,986.36
CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 75,097.31

MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT CONSULTANCY 22,745.00

OVE ARUP & PARTNERS LTD Total 226,828.67
PARAGON COMMUNITY HOUSING GROUP LT HSG GRANTS TO REGISTERED PROVIDERS 16,000.00
PARAGON COMMUNITY HOUSING GROUP LTD Total 16,000.00
PAYMENT CARD SOLUTIONS (UK) LTD OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 46,000.00
PAYMENT CARD SOLUTIONS (UK) LTD Total 46,000.00
PERSONAL CAREER MANAGEMENT LTD OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 5,000.00
STAFF TRAINING 6,116.00

PERSONAL CAREER MANAGEMENT LTD Total 11,116.00
PIPERS PROJECTS LTD CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 27,112.50
EVENT MANAGEMENT FEE 37,500.00

PIPERS PROJECTS LTD Total 64,612.50
POPLAR HARCA GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 1,015,350.96
POPLAR HARCA Total 1,015,350.96
PORT OF LONDON AUTHORITY LAND/GROUND RENTS -15,626.95
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT CONSULTANCY 1,306.57

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT FEES 39,634.78

PORT OF LONDON AUTHORITY Total 25,314.40
PRECISE MEDIA MONITORING LTD MONITORING OF PR AND SOCIAL MEDIA 15,432.22
PRECISE MEDIA MONITORING LTD Total 15,432.22
PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP CONFERENCES & SEMINARS 250.00
STAFF TRAINING 750.00

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP Total 1,000.00
PROBRAND LTD COMPUTER SOFTWARE 23,590.00
MANAGE IT SERVICES 19,252.96

MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT CONSULTANCY 32,997.00

SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 37,957.97

PROBRAND LTD Total 113,797.93
PURE DATA HOSTING EMAIL DESIGN AND TRANSMISSION INC SMS 8,337.00
PURE Total 8,337.00
PUREPRINT PRINTING 648.00
PUREPRINT Total 648.00
QDOS CONTRACTOR OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 537.00
QDOS CONTRACTOR Total 537.00
QUAY OFFICE FURNISHERS LTD OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 1,185.00
QUAY OFFICE FURNISHERS LTD Total 1,185.00
R B KINGSTON UPON THAMES GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 192,066.28

R B KINGSTON UPON THAMES Total 192,066.28
REED BUSINESS INFORMATION OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 14,445.00

Page 276

Page 8




Transactions over £ 250.00

Reporting Period : Quarter 1
Start Date: 01 April, 2019
End Date: 20 July, 2019
Financial Year : 2019/20
Appendix 1

Total Spend > £250 (blank)

Vendor Name

Expenditure Account Code Description

Sum of Amount

REED BUSINESS INFORMATION PUBLICATIONS & PERIODICALS 8,800.00
REED BUSINESS INFORMATION Total 23,245.00
REED IN PARTNERSHIP LIMITED OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 130,277.26
REED IN PARTNERSHIP LIMITED Total 130,277.26
REPOWERING LONDON GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 4,433.00
REPOWERING LONDON Total 4,433.00
RICHMOND UPON THAMES COLLEGE GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 6,265,667.73
RICHMOND UPON THAMES COLLEGE Total 6,265,667.73
ROADMUNK SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 8,602.54
ROADMUNK Total 8,602.54
ROCKET SCIENCE UK LTD CONSULTANCY-COMMISSIONED REPORT 7,829.00
CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 9,270.00

GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 741,077.53

ROCKET SCIENCE UK LTD Total 758,176.53
RODMA PROPERTY MANAGEMENT FEES 249,705.00
GENERAL INSURANCE 41,156.85

RODMA Total 290,861.85
ROYAL BOROUGH OF GREENWICH GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 239,923.05
INCOME MAXIMISATION EXPENSES 22,700.00

ROYAL BOROUGH OF GREENWICH Total 262,623.05
ROYAL BOROUGH OF KENSINGTON&CHELSEA GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 3,475.00
ROYAL BOROUGH OF KENSINGTON&CHELSEA Total 3,475.00
SECUREDATA EUROPE LIMITED SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 1,127.00
SECUREDATA EUROPE LIMITED Total 1,127.00
SENATOR INTERNATIONAL LTD FURNITURE & EQUIPMENT 5,896.00
SENATOR INTERNATIONAL LTD Total 5,896.00
SERVOCA SECURE SOLUTIONS SECURITY SERVICES (GUARDS) 41,707.39
SERVOCA SECURE SOLUTIONS Total 41,707.39
SETON LTD COMPUTER CONSUMABLES 743.20
SETON LTD Total 743.20
SILVERTOWN HOMES LIMITED CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 450,000.00
SILVERTOWN HOMES LIMITED Total 450,000.00
SLR CONSULTING LIMITED CONSULTANCY EVALUATION ASSESSMENT 5,000.00
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT CONSULTANCY 4,450.00

SLR CONSULTING LIMITED Total 9,450.00
SOUTHERN HOUSING GROUP LIMITED HSG GRANTS TO REGISTERED PROVIDERS 11,000.00
SOUTHERN HOUSING GROUP LIMITED Total 11,000.00
SPROUT SOCIAL INC SOCIAL MEDIA AND DIGITAL ADVERTISING SPACE 472.63
SPROUT SOCIAL INC Total 472.63
ST MUNGOS GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 4,102.50
HSG-ROUGH SLEEPING 2,988,691.46

ST MUNGOS Total 2,992,793.96
STONEWALL STAFF TRAINING 1,017.00
STONEWALL Total 1,017.00
SUSTAIN GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 20,660.00
OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 5,000.00

SECONDED STAFF - NON GROUP 14,058.30

SUSTAIN Total 39,718.30
TATTERSALL TRAINING STAFF TRAINING 4,003.83
TATTERSALL TRAINING Total 4,003.83
TEMPLE GROUP LTD CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 14,802.28
TEMPLE GROUP LTD Total 14,802.28
TEST PARTNERS LTD IT CONSULTANCY 78,319.96
TEST PARTNERS LTD Total 78,319.96
TFL GROUP PROPERTY PROPERTY MANAGEMENT FEES 4,000.00
TFL GROUP PROPERTY Total 4,000.00
THAMES REACH GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 44,836.92

Page 277

Page 9




Transactions over £ 250.00

Reporting Period : Quarter 1
Start Date: 01 April, 2019
End Date: 20 July, 2019
Financial Year : 2019/20
Appendix 1

Total Spend > £250 (blank)

Vendor Name

Expenditure Account Code Description

Sum of Amount

THAMES REACH HSG-ROUGH SLEEPING 826,724.17
THAMES REACH Total 871,561.09
THE BRITISH LIBRARY GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 15,000.00
THE BRITISH LIBRARY Total 15,000.00
THE CONNECTION AT ST MARTIN'S GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 26,004.50
THE CONNECTION AT ST MARTIN'S Total 26,004.50
THE FINANCIAL REPORTING COUNCIL OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 3,768.00
THE FINANCIAL REPORTING COUNCIL Total 3,768.00
THE HOUSING FORUM LTD PUBLICATIONS & PERIODICALS 11,700.00
THE HOUSING FORUM LTD Total 11,700.00
THE PRESS ASSOCIATION LTD MONITORING OF PR AND SOCIAL MEDIA 1,696.50
THE PRESS ASSOCIATION LTD Total 1,696.50
THIRTEEN DESIGN LTD PRODUCTION ARTWORK AND DESIGN FOR MARKETING 5,565.00
THIRTEEN DESIGN LTD Total 5,565.00
TIMEWISE SOLUTIONS LIMITED STAFF TRAINING 4,075.00
TIMEWISE SOLUTIONS LIMITED Total 4,075.00
TIMOTHY STRAKER QC LEGAL FEES 68,850.00
TIMOTHY STRAKER QC Total 68,850.00
TMP (UK) LTD CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 116,440.97
RECRUITMENT ADVERTISING 145,007.61

TMP (UK) LTD Total 261,448.58
TRANSPORT FOR LONDON CONSULTANCY-COMMISSIONED REPORT 30,000.00
CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 40,000.00

GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 74,894.69

LEGAL FEES 100,000.00

MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT CONSULTANCY 114,553.00

OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 22,500.00

PRODUCTION ARTWORK AND DESIGN FOR MARKETING 1,050.00

SHARED SERVICES FEES 107,097.00

NLE - GRANT PMT TO TFL 23,216,643.00

FUNCTIONAL BODIES GRANT PAYMENTS 61,750.00

TRANSPORT FOR LONDON Total 23,768,487.69
TRANSPORT TRADING LTD GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 160,000.00
LEGAL FEES 738,450.00

OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 3,020.00

PRINTING 34,374.74

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT FEES 1,000.00

SHARED SERVICES FEES 980.00

TRANSPORT TRADING LTD Total 937,824.74
TREES FOR CITIES GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 475.00
TREES FOR CITIES Total 475.00
TROWERS & HAMLINS LLP CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 3,996.40
LEGAL FEES 50,159.31

TROWERS & HAMLINS LLP Total 54,155.71
TUBE LINES LTD NON RECYCLABLE WASTE DISPOSAL/REFUSE COLLECTION 14,585.19
TUBE LINES LTD Total 14,585.19
TURNER & TOWNSEND PROJECT MAGAG CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 2,791.10
MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT CONSULTANCY 314,421.44

TURNER & TOWNSEND PROJECT MAGAG Total 317,212.54
UCL CONSULTANTS LIMITED CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 17,000.00
DATA PURCHASE 31,650.00

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT CONSULTANCY 4,043.00

UCL CONSULTANTS LIMITED Total 52,693.00
UNITED BUSINESS MEDIA DATA PURCHASE 6,494.00
UNITED BUSINESS MEDIA Total 6,494.00
UNIVERSITY COLLEGE LONDON MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT CONSULTANCY 9,045.01
UNIVERSITY COLLEGE LONDON Total 9,045.01

Page 278

Page 10




Transactions over £ 250.00

Reporting Period : Quarter 1
Start Date: 01 April, 2019
End Date: 20 July, 2019
Financial Year : 2019/20
Appendix 1

Total Spend > £250 (blank)

Vendor Name

Expenditure Account Code Description

Sum of Amount

VEOLIA ES (UK) PLC EVENT MANAGEMENT FEE 6,107.58
NON RECYCLABLE WASTE DISPOSAL/REFUSE COLLECTION 10,378.68
OFFICE CLEANING 2,473.52
PROPERTY MANAGEMENT FEES 105,257.26
VEOLIA ES (UK) PLC Total 124,217.04
VITAL ENERGI UTILITES LTD GAS 96,762.64
GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 5,498.00
VITAL ENERGI UTILITES LTD Total 102,260.64
WALTHAM FOREST COLLEGE GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 58,788.32
WALTHAM FOREST COLLEGE Total 58,788.32
WE MADE THAT CONSULTANCY EVALUATION ASSESSMENT 2,700.00
CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 2,500.00
OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 4,212.50
WE MADE THAT Total 9,412.50
WYG MANAGEMENT SERVICES CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 1,200.00
HEALTH & SAFETY SYSTEMS & ASSURANCE 6,550.00
WYG MANAGEMENT SERVICES Total 7,750.00
XEROX (UK) LTD MANAGE IT SERVICES 779.80
PRINTING 14,104.87
XEROX (UK) LTD Total 14,884.67
YOUGOV LTD CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 61,455.00
OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 2,100.00
RESEARCH & STUDY FEES 24,850.00
YOUGOV LTD Total 88,405.00
ZURICH MUNICIPAL GENERAL INSURANCE 149,769.18
ZURICH MUNICIPAL Total 149,769.18
(blank) (blank)
(blank) Total
Vendor Name Expenditure Account Code Description 0.00
Vendor Name Total 0.00
THE LONDON DESIGN FESTIVAL LTD GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 62,500.00
THE LONDON DESIGN FESTIVAL LTD Total 62,500.00
KEYTREE LIMITED CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 422,884.36
KEYTREE LIMITED Total 422,884.36
FREE THE CHILDREN GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 144,000.00
FREE THE CHILDREN Total 144,000.00
WSP UK LTD CONSULTANCY-COMMISSIONED REPORT 39,999.00
CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 13,348.02
MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT CONSULTANCY 137,077.90
WSP UK LTD Total 190,424.92
NEWSWHIP MEDIA LTD MONITORING OF PR AND SOCIAL MEDIA 30,000.00
NEWSWHIP MEDIA LTD Total 30,000.00
DRIVE FORWARD FOUNDATION GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 14,142.77
DRIVE FORWARD FOUNDATION Total 14,142.77
EQUALITY WORKS LIMITED MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT CONSULTANCY 7,675.00
STAFF TRAINING 12,100.00
EQUALITY WORKS LIMITED Total 19,775.00
TSIP CONSULTANCY EVALUATION ASSESSMENT 5,000.00
GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 9,737.00
TSIP Total 14,737.00
ACUMEN FIELD LTD CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 2,800.00
ACUMEN FIELD LTD Total 2,800.00
PROSUS CONSULTING LTD MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT CONSULTANCY 6,175.00
PROSUS CONSULTING LTD Total 6,175.00
ANNE STUDD QC LEGAL FEES 800.00
ANNE STUDD QC Total 800.00
RAINBOW TRANSCRIPTIONS RESEARCH & STUDY FEES 406.64

Page 279

Page 11




Transactions over £ 250.00

Reporting Period : Quarter 1
Start Date: 01 April, 2019
End Date: 20 July, 2019
Financial Year : 2019/20
Appendix 1

Total Spend > £250 (blank)

Vendor Name

Expenditure Account Code Description

Sum of Amount

RAINBOW TRANSCRIPTIONS Total 406.64
HUNTRESS SEARCH LTD AGENCY STAFF 110,509.26
RECRUITMENT AGENCY FEES 2,655.00

HUNTRESS SEARCH LTD Total 113,164.26
INTEROUTE NETWORKS LTD MANAGE IT SERVICES 2,311.76
INTEROUTE NETWORKS LTD Total 2,311.76
ELEANOR BENTALL PHOTOGRAPHER OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 260.00
PHOTOGRAPHY & VIDEO 800.00

PHOTOGRAPHY AND VIDEO DESIGN AND PRODUCTION 560.00

PRODUCTION ARTWORK AND DESIGN FOR MARKETING 265.00

STAFF TRAINING 265.00

ELEANOR BENTALL PHOTOGRAPHER Total 2,150.00
ARTHUR J GALLAGHER GENERAL INSURANCE 422,124.95
ARTHUR J GALLAGHER Total 422,124.95
A NEW DIRECTION LONDON LTD GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 62,092.56
A NEW DIRECTION LONDON LTD Total 62,092.56
THINK BEYOND GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 5,691.15
THINK BEYOND Total 5,691.15
OPEN CITY ARCHITECTURE GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 22,500.00
OPEN CITY ARCHITECTURE Total 22,500.00
BRITISH SCIENCE ASSOCIATION GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 21,000.00
BRITISH SCIENCE ASSOCIATION Total 21,000.00
ESTUARY HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED ~ HSG GRANTS TO REGISTERED PROVIDERS 1,191,335.00
ESTUARY HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED Total 1,191,335.00
THE AUDIENCE AGENCY OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 15,750.00
THE AUDIENCE AGENCY Total 15,750.00
FRAME PROJECTS LTD CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 1,500.00
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT CONSULTANCY 7,050.00

FRAME PROJECTS LTD Total 8,550.00
LONDON SUSTAINABILITY EXCHANGE CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 2,254.00
GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 12,260.00

LONDON SUSTAINABILITY EXCHANGE Total 14,514.00
ORDNANCE SURVEY DATA PURCHASE 1,500.00
ORDNANCE SURVEY Total 1,500.00
HOUSE OF COMMONS SECONDED STAFF - NON GROUP 10,489.74
HOUSE OF COMMONS Total 10,489.74
KOIS MIAH PHOTOGRAPHY AND VIDEO DESIGN AND PRODUCTION 2,000.00
KOIS MIAH Total 2,000.00
UNIVERSITY OF WESTMINSTER GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 5,000.00
STAFF TRAINING 2,500.00

UNIVERSITY OF WESTMINSTER Total 7,500.00
SUSTAINABLE BRIDGES CIC GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 7,360.78
SUSTAINABLE BRIDGES CIC Total 7,360.78
POPLAR HARCA LTD HSG GRANTS TO REGISTERED PROVIDERS 633,693.00
POPLAR HARCA LTD Total 633,693.00
HACKNEY CO-OP. DEVELOPMENTS CIC GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 316,080.45
HACKNEY CO-OP. DEVELOPMENTS CIC Total 316,080.45
AGILE IMPRESSIONS LTD GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 8,330.91
AGILE IMPRESSIONS LTD Total 8,330.91
INSTITUTE OF PHYSICS (IOP) GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 30,000.00
INSTITUTE OF PHYSICS (IOP) Total 30,000.00
SUSTAINABLE VENTURE DEVELOPMENT GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 16,338.22
SUSTAINABLE VENTURE DEVELOPMENT Total 16,338.22
SUSTAINABLE HOME SURVEY CO. C.I.C. GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 3,635.11
SUSTAINABLE HOME SURVEY CO. C.I.C. Total 3,635.11
SOUTHWARK CATHEDRAL (CONFERENCING) EXTERNAL MEETING ROOM HIRE & EXPENSES 1,540.00
GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 5,506.00

Page 280

Page 12




Transactions over £ 250.00

Reporting Period : Quarter 1
Start Date: 01 April, 2019
End Date: 20 July, 2019
Financial Year : 2019/20
Appendix 1

Total Spend > £250 (blank)

Vendor Name

Expenditure Account Code Description

Sum of Amount

SOUTHWARK CATHEDRAL (CONFERENCING) Total 7,046.00
CIVIL SERVICE COLLEGE LIMITED STAFF TRAINING 3,785.00
CIVIL SERVICE COLLEGE LIMITED Total 3,785.00
5TH STUDIO LTD CONSULTANCY EVALUATION ASSESSMENT 85,397.50
5TH STUDIO LTD Total 85,397.50
A1 PRO ENTERTAINMENTS BUSINESS ENTERTAINING 390.00
A1l PRO ENTERTAINMENTS Total 390.00
NETWORK HOMES LTD GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 1,773,300.00
NETWORK HOMES LTD Total 1,773,300.00
RETROFIT WORKS GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 2,425,000.00
RETROFIT WORKS Total 2,425,000.00
SIRIUS IT CONSULTANCY 3,200.00
MANAGE IT SERVICES 34,467.50

SIRIUS Total 37,667.50
ZOOLOGICAL SOCIETY OF LONDON GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 25,622.80
ZOOLOGICAL SOCIETY OF LONDON Total 25,622.80
ENTERPRISE NATION GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 33,000.00
OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 6,000.00

ENTERPRISE NATION Total 39,000.00
LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS ~ GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 74,265.28
LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS Total 74,265.28
AXA ICAS LIMITED STAFF WELFARE BENEFITS 1,427.19
AXA ICAS LIMITED Total 1,427.19
COMMUNITY LINKS SECURITY EQUIPMENT 308.00
COMMUNITY LINKS Total 308.00
PEABODY TRUST HSG GRANTS TO REGISTERED PROVIDERS 1,394,885.00
LLITE-ELECTRICITY DEFICIT (TOP UP) 9,083.81

PEABODY TRUST Total 1,403,968.81
GREENWOOD STRATEGIC ADVISORS AG CONSULTANCY-COMMISSIONED REPORT 40,000.00
GREENWOOD STRATEGIC ADVISORS AG Total 40,000.00
FREUDS PR COST PRODUCT COST & PR FEES 10,000.00
FREUDS Total 10,000.00
RFEA THE FORCES EMPLOYMENT CHARITY ~ GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 18,302.65
RFEA THE FORCES EMPLOYMENT CHARITY Total 18,302.65
BAME RECRUITMENT RECRUITMENT ADVERTISING 28,599.64
BAME RECRUITMENT Total 28,599.64
YOU PRESS GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 6,000.00
YOU PRESS Total 6,000.00
HIGH TREES COMMUNITY DEV. TRUST GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 75,545.00
HIGH TREES COMMUNITY DEV. TRUST Total 75,545.00
GAUTIER DEBLONDE PHOTOGRAPHY & VIDEO 5,000.00
GAUTIER DEBLONDE Total 5,000.00
LONDON BOROUGH OF MERTON GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 350.64
SECONDED STAFF - NON GROUP 16,726.74

INCOME MAXIMISATION EXPENSES 18,400.00

HZ CONTINGENT GRANT LA 20,000.00

LONDON BOROUGH OF MERTON Total 55,477.38
UK BUSINESS ANGELS ASSOCIATION GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 15,000.00
UK BUSINESS ANGELS ASSOCIATION Total 15,000.00
URBAN DESIGN LONDON PUBLICATIONS & PERIODICALS 12,000.00
URBAN DESIGN LONDON Total 12,000.00
MHR INTERNATIONAL UK LTD IT CONSULTANCY 385.64
MHR INTERNATIONAL UK LTD Total 385.64
SUPPLIES TEAM COMPUTER CONSUMABLES 4,084.70
COMPUTER HARDWARE 760.50

SUPPLIES TEAM Total 4,845.20
ONE HOUSING GROUP LIMITED HSG GRANTS TO REGISTERED PROVIDERS 1,841,562.00

Page 281

Page 13




Transactions over £ 250.00

Reporting Period : Quarter 1
Start Date: 01 April, 2019
End Date: 20 July, 2019
Financial Year : 2019/20
Appendix 1

Total Spend > £250 (blank)

Vendor Name

Expenditure Account Code Description Sum of Amount

ONE HOUSING GROUP LIMITED Total

1,841,562.00

LB HOUNSLOW HSG GRANTS TO REGISTERED PROVIDERS 633,606.00
LB HOUNSLOW Total 633,606.00
INQUILAB HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITE ~ HSG GRANTS TO REGISTERED PROVIDERS 359,650.00
INQUILAB HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITE Total 359,650.00
FAMILY MOSAIC HOUSING ASSOCIATION HSG GRANTS TO REGISTERED PROVIDERS 390,000.00
FAMILY MOSAIC HOUSING ASSOCIATION Total 390,000.00
AGUDAS ISRAEL HOUSING ASSOCIATION L HSG GRANTS TO REGISTERED PROVIDERS 312,000.00
AGUDAS ISRAEL HOUSING ASSOCIATION L Total 312,000.00
NEWLON HOUSING TRUST HSG GRANTS TO REGISTERED PROVIDERS 3,948,732.00
NEWLON HOUSING TRUST Total 3,948,732.00
MISSING PEOPLE LTD GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 6,266.00
MISSING PEOPLE LTD Total 6,266.00
CENT & NORTH WEST LONDON NHS FT GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 21,000.00
CENT & NORTH WEST LONDON NHS FT Total 21,000.00
REVEALING REALITY CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 9,570.00
RESEARCH & STUDY FEES 5,000.00

REVEALING REALITY Total 14,570.00
CAPITAL ENTERPRISE GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 39,669.49
CAPITAL ENTERPRISE Total 39,669.49
ALTAIR LTD CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 6,128.57
ALTAIR LTD Total 6,128.57
PUBLICA ASSOCIATES LIMITED PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT CONSULTANCY 15,624.00
PUBLICA ASSOCIATES LIMITED Total 15,624.00
FORWARD ACTION LTD DATA HOSTING EMAIL DESIGN AND TRANSMISSION INC SMS 13,320.00
MARKETING STRATEGY AND CONSULTANCY 15,000.00

FORWARD ACTION LTD Total 28,320.00
JULIE'S BICYCLE LTD OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 5,000.00
JULIE'S BICYCLE LTD Total 5,000.00
AZEUS UK LIMITED PUBLICATIONS & PERIODICALS 9,450.00
AZEUS UK LIMITED Total 9,450.00
ALEHM GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 10,000.00
ALEHM Total 10,000.00
NHS ENGLAND SECONDED STAFF - NON GROUP 18,993.04
NHS ENGLAND Total 18,993.04
AVENUES YOUTH PROJECT GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 2,000.00
AVENUES YOUTH PROJECT Total 2,000.00
RIO FERDINAND FOUNDATION GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 1,978.00
RIO FERDINAND FOUNDATION Total 1,978.00
LEWISHAM YOUTH THEATRE GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 1,900.00
LEWISHAM YOUTH THEATRE Total 1,900.00
AFRO-BRAZILIAN A&C EX. INST. ABACEI GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 1,300.00
AFRO-BRAZILIAN A&C EX. INST. ABACEI Total 1,300.00
IMAGINATORS EVENT MANAGEMENT FEE 8,018.00
PRODUCTION ARTWORK AND DESIGN FOR MARKETING 556.00

IMAGINATORS Total 8,574.00
CAMDEN TOWN UNLIMITED GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 20,000.00
CAMDEN TOWN UNLIMITED Total 20,000.00
THRIVE TRAINING LIMITED PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT CONSULTANCY 3,000.00
THRIVE TRAINING LIMITED Total 3,000.00
GOLDSMITHS COLLEGE CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 4,000.00
GOLDSMITHS COLLEGE Total 4,000.00
CABINET OFFICE SECONDED STAFF - NON GROUP 56,544.75
STAFF TRAINING 390.00

CABINET OFFICE Total 56,934.75
ADDISON LEE PLC STAFF TRAVEL (BUSINESS FARES) 2,659.85
ADDISON LEE PLC Total 2,659.85

Page 282

Page 14




Transactions over £ 250.00

Reporting Period : Quarter 1
Start Date: 01 April, 2019
End Date: 20 July, 2019
Financial Year : 2019/20
Appendix 1

Total Spend > £250 (blank)

Vendor Name

Expenditure Account Code Description

Sum of Amount

SECURITY FORCE MANAGEMENT LTD SECURITY SERVICES (GUARDS) 363.50
SECURITY FORCE MANAGEMENT LTD Total 363.50
MUSEUM OF LONDON (TRADING) LIMITED  STAFF TRAINING 1,263.33
MUSEUM OF LONDON (TRADING) LIMITED Total 1,263.33
VETERANS AID GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 909.09
VETERANS AID Total 909.09
WATERSIDE PLACES HZ CONTINGENT GRANT-EXT ORG 103,877.75
WATERSIDE PLACES Total 103,877.75
NEWHAM COLLEGE LONDON GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 100,000.00
NEWHAM COLLEGE LONDON Total 100,000.00
NHS LAMBETH CCG GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 256,480.00
NHS LAMBETH CCG Total 256,480.00
LIVING UNDER ONE SUN GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 10,000.00
LIVING UNDER ONE SUN Total 10,000.00
FIVIUM IT CONSULTANCY 6,300.00
FIVIUM Total 6,300.00
ENGLAND AND WALES CRICKET BOARD GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 35,000.00
ENGLAND AND WALES CRICKET BOARD Total 35,000.00
THE LORD MAYOR'S APPEAL GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 10,000.00
THE LORD MAYOR'S APPEAL Total 10,000.00
GATENBYSANDERSON LIMITED AGENCY STAFF 77,249.00
GATENBYSANDERSON LIMITED Total 77,249.00
LONDON BUSINESS PARTNERSHIP LIMITED  OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 5,000.00
LONDON BUSINESS PARTNERSHIP LIMITED Total 5,000.00
CARAS GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 11,214.80
CARAS Total 11,214.80
PARTNERSHIP FOR YOUNG LONDON GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 11,173.20
PARTNERSHIP FOR YOUNG LONDON Total 11,173.20
LET'S GO OUTSIDE AND LEARN CIC GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 2,000.00
LET'S GO OUTSIDE AND LEARN CIC Total 2,000.00
WESTMINSTER HOUSE YOUTH CLUB GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 1,872.00
WESTMINSTER HOUSE YOUTH CLUB Total 1,872.00
THE GREENBANK PARTNERSHIP GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 1,786.25
THE GREENBANK PARTNERSHIP Total 1,786.25
POWER UP NORTH LONDON GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 1,161.00
POWER UP NORTH LONDON Total 1,161.00
URBAN THINKERS PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT CONSULTANCY 1,600.00
URBAN THINKERS Total 1,600.00
GENSLER & ASSOCIATES INTERNATIONAL PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT CONSULTANCY 400.00
GENSLER & ASSOCIATES INTERNATIONAL Total 400.00
SOCIAL JUSTICE & HUMAN RIGHTS EXTERNAL MEETING ROOM HIRE & EXPENSES 465.00
SOCIAL JUSTICE & HUMAN RIGHTS Total 465.00
BSI GROUP CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 424.00
BSI GROUP Total 424.00
LONDON LGBT+COMM PRIDE CIC EVENT MANAGEMENT FEE 90,000.00
LONDON LGBT+COMM PRIDE CIC Total 90,000.00
MORLEY COLLEGE LONDON GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 20,416.00
MORLEY COLLEGE LONDON Total 20,416.00
GROUNDWORK UK GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 678,311.78
OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 10,000.00

GROUNDWORK UK Total 688,311.78
BSIX BROOKE HOUSE SIXTH FORM COLL. GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 76,630.00
BSIX BROOKE HOUSE SIXTH FORM COLL. Total 76,630.00
TEAMKINETIC OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 3,166.64
TEAMKINETIC Total 3,166.64
JENNIFER KAVANAGH OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 2,100.00
JENNIFER KAVANAGH Total 2,100.00

Page 283

Page 15




Transactions over £ 250.00

Reporting Period : Quarter 1
Start Date: 01 April, 2019
End Date: 20 July, 2019
Financial Year : 2019/20
Appendix 1
Total Spend > £250 (blank)
Vendor Name Expenditure Account Code Description Sum of Amount
TBOS CS AGENCY STAFF 9,752.28
TBOS CS Total 9,752.28
COMPASS CATERERS SERVICE CHARGES 2,068.75
COMPASS Total 2,068.75
OFFICE PERFORMANCE INTERPRETING LTD  EVENT MANAGEMENT FEE 540.00
OFFICE PERFORMANCE INTERPRETING LTD Total 540.00
GOVNET COMMUNICATIONS CONFERENCES & SEMINARS 395.00
STAFF TRAINING 2,520.00
GOVNET COMMUNICATIONS Total 2,915.00
EASY-READ-ONLINE LIMITED CONSULTANCY-COMMISSIONED REPORT 500.00
EASY-READ-ONLINE LIMITED Total 500.00
SPORTSAID GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 116,939.80
SPORTSAID Total 116,939.80
LONDON YOUTH GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 19,978.00
LONDON YOUTH Total 19,978.00
ENERGY UNLOCKED MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT CONSULTANCY 34,999.00
ENERGY UNLOCKED Total 34,999.00
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION MARKETING STRATEGY AND CONSULTANCY 20,324.92
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION Total 20,324.92
STRIPE PARTNERS CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 20,000.00
STRIPE PARTNERS Total 20,000.00
LEVITT BERNSTEIN ASSOCIATES LIMITED RESEARCH & STUDY FEES 800.00
LEVITT BERNSTEIN ASSOCIATES LIMITED Total 800.00
REMARK! LTD TRANSLATION SIGN LANGUAGE 425.00
REMARK! LTD Total 425.00
CATALYST COMMUNITIES HOUSING HSG GRANTS TO REGISTERED PROVIDERS 1,400,000.00
CATALYST COMMUNITIES HOUSING Total 1,400,000.00
GBM SERVICES LTD FURNITURE & EQUIPMENT 314.48
HEALTH & SAFETY PEST CONTROL 12,384.06
OFFICE CLEANING 192,695.72
PROPERTY MANAGEMENT FEES 5,969.56
GBM SERVICES LTD Total 211,363.82
AECOM LIMITED CONSULTANCY-COMMISSIONED REPORT 9,037.00
MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT CONSULTANCY 190,159.46
AECOM LIMITED Total 199,196.46
L B BEXLEY EVENT MANAGEMENT FEE 8,880.79
L B BEXLEY Total 8,880.79
SECTOR TREASURY SERVICES LTD MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT CONSULTANCY 26,000.00
SECTOR TREASURY SERVICES LTD Total 26,000.00
MEDIAEDGE:CIA EXTERNAL MEETING ROOM HIRE & EXPENSES 327.25
MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT CONSULTANCY 6,651.00
MONITORING OF PR AND SOCIAL MEDIA 7,750.00
RESEARCH FOR MARKETING CAMPAIGNS AND ACTIVITIES 27,739.15
SOCIAL MEDIA AND DIGITAL ADVERTISING SPACE 233,554.19
MEDIAEDGE:CIA Total 276,021.59
ELEMENT ENERGY MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT CONSULTANCY 21,700.00
ELEMENT ENERGY Total 21,700.00
EVERSHEDS BUILDING MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS 10,000.00
LEGAL FEES 94,065.66
EVERSHEDS Total 104,065.66
LONDON FIRE & EMERGENCY PLANNING PAYROLL SERVICES FEES 32,968.75
POSTAGE 2,287.75
LONDON FIRE & EMERGENCY PLANNING Total 35,256.50
STUDIO TILT CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 9,784.45
STUDIO TILT Total 9,784.45
SOCIAL MARKET FOUNDATION CONSULTANCY EVALUATION ASSESSMENT 15,120.00
SOCIAL MARKET FOUNDATION Total 15,120.00

Page 284

Page 16



Transactions over £ 250.00

Reporting Period : Quarter 1
Start Date: 01 April, 2019
End Date: 20 July, 2019
Financial Year : 2019/20
Appendix 1

Total Spend > £250 (blank)

Vendor Name

Expenditure Account Code Description

Sum of Amount

STREET IMPACT LONDON LIMITED GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 65,000.00
HSG-ROUGH SLEEPING 78,100.00

STREET IMPACT LONDON LIMITED Total 143,100.00
THE SCHOOLS ENERGY CO-OPERATIVE LTD ~ GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 29,700.00
THE SCHOOLS ENERGY CO-OPERATIVE LTD Total 29,700.00
ENERGY SAVING TRUST CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 57,563.00
MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT CONSULTANCY 14,195.00

ENERGY SAVING TRUST Total 71,758.00
SELCE GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 17,988.32
SELCE Total 17,988.32
TIMOTHY PITT-PAYNE LEGAL FEES 396.00
TIMOTHY PITT-PAYNE Total 396.00
HAYS ACCOUNTANCY PERSONNEL AGENCY STAFF 996,823.92
CONTRACTORS 8,911.76

MANAGE IT SERVICES 42,949.67

RECRUITMENT ADVERTISING 1,656.60

RECRUITMENT AGENCY FEES 115,853.21

HAYS ACCOUNTANCY PERSONNEL Total 1,166,195.16
WORDWAVE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED TRANSCRIPTION 11,749.00
TRANSLATION SIGN LANGUAGE 910.00

WORDWAVE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED Total 12,659.00
NORLAND MANAGED SERVICES LIMITED BUILDING MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS 617,761.83
ELECTRICITY 695.40

FURNITURE & EQUIPMENT 9,295.59

OFFICE CLEANING 649.04

NORLAND MANAGED SERVICES LIMITED Total 628,401.86
WRAGGE & CO LEGAL FEES 2,704.60
WRAGGE & CO Total 2,704.60
MEDIAEDGE:CIA UK LTD MARKETING STRATEGY AND CONSULTANCY 36,293.82
PHOTOGRAPHY & VIDEO 0.00

SOCIAL MEDIA AND DIGITAL ADVERTISING SPACE 56,955.13

MEDIAEDGE:CIA UK LTD Total 93,248.95
DEEPSTORE LIMITED DOCUMENT ARCHIVE & STORAGE 4,332.92
DEEPSTORE LIMITED Total 4,332.92
LONDON COUNCILS EXTERNAL MEETING ROOM HIRE & EXPENSES 572.00
GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 496,398.66

LONDON COUNCILS Total 496,970.66
BROOMFIELD PHOTOGRAPHY & VIDEO 600.00
BROOMFIELD Total 600.00
KEEP BRITAIN TIDY PROPERTY MANAGEMENT FEES 325.00
KEEP BRITAIN TIDY Total 325.00
GL HEARN PROPERTY CONSULTANTS PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT CONSULTANCY 10,000.00
VALUATION FEES 72,500.00

GL HEARN PROPERTY CONSULTANTS Total 82,500.00
MAYORS OFFICE OF POLICING AND CRIME ~ GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 2,475,000.00
MAYORS OFFICE OF POLICING AND CRIME Total 2,475,000.00
CGI IT UK LTD OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 2,157,871.56
CGI IT UK LTD Total 2,157,871.56
RESI HOUSING LTD HSG GRANTS TO REGISTERED PROVIDERS 952,000.00
RESI HOUSING LTD Total 952,000.00
OPTIVO HSG GRANTS TO REGISTERED PROVIDERS 1,033,764.00
OPTIVO Total 1,033,764.00
LONDON BOROUGH OF BARKING & DAGENH; HZ CONTINGENT GRANT LA 570,668.67
LONDON BOROUGH OF BARKING & DAGENHA Total 570,668.67
LONDON BOROUGH OF HILLINGDON HSG GRANTS TO LOCAL AUTHORITIES 266,000.00
LONDON BOROUGH OF HILLINGDON Total 266,000.00
L B OF HARINGEY GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 575,962.19

Page 285

Page 17




Transactions over £ 250.00

Reporting Period : Quarter 1
Start Date: 01 April, 2019
End Date: 20 July, 2019
Financial Year : 2019/20
Appendix 1

Total Spend > £250 (blank)

Vendor Name

Expenditure Account Code Description

Sum of Amount

L B OF HARINGEY Total 575,962.19
RURAL URBAN SYNTHESIS SOCIETY LTD HSG GRANTS TO REGISTERED PROVIDERS 316,160.00
RURAL URBAN SYNTHESIS SOCIETY LTD Total 316,160.00
COVENT GARDEN MARKET AUTHORITY GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 163,033.94
COVENT GARDEN MARKET AUTHORITY Total 163,033.94
PLANNING INSPECTORATE EXTERNAL AUDIT FEES 132,476.34
PLANNING INSPECTORATE Total 132,476.34
NAT CENTRE FOR SOCIAL RESEARCH RESEARCH & STUDY FEES 104,223.50
NAT CENTRE FOR SOCIAL RESEARCH Total 104,223.50
AN ARTIST INFORMATION COMPANY OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 100,000.00
AN ARTIST INFORMATION COMPANY Total 100,000.00
EMCOR FACILITIES SERVICE LIMITED CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 80,776.84
EMCOR FACILITIES SERVICE LIMITED Total 80,776.84
BRITISH SWIMMING GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 65,000.00
BRITISH SWIMMING Total 65,000.00
NEW HORIZON YOUTH CENTRE GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 54,846.00
NEW HORIZON YOUTH CENTRE Total 54,846.00
NOW ADVERTISING LTD MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT CONSULTANCY 133,960.00
NOW ADVERTISING LTD Total 133,960.00
VOLUNTEER IT YOURSELF CIC GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 50,042.42
VOLUNTEER IT YOURSELF CIC Total 50,042.42
NPOWER LTD LLITE-ELECTRICITY DEFICIT (TOP UP) 286,801.86
NPOWER LTD Total 286,801.86
CHANGE PLEASE GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 40,000.00
CHANGE PLEASE Total 40,000.00
MERTON VOLUNTARY SERVICE COUNCIL GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 39,900.00
MERTON VOLUNTARY SERVICE COUNCIL Total 39,900.00
EUSTON TOWN BID GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 38,943.00
EUSTON TOWN BID Total 38,943.00
ECOLOGY CONSULTANCY LTD MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT CONSULTANCY 35,276.50
ECOLOGY CONSULTANCY LTD Total 35,276.50
BTCV GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 31,800.00
BTCV Total 31,800.00
SELBY TRUST GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 29,400.00
SELBY TRUST Total 29,400.00
HACKNEY CVS GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 29,400.00
HACKNEY CVS Total 29,400.00
EALING COMMUNITY VOLUNTARY SERVICE GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 29,400.00
EALING COMMUNITY VOLUNTARY SERVICE Total 29,400.00
COMMUNITY LINKS BROMLEY GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 28,398.00
COMMUNITY LINKS BROMLEY Total 28,398.00
ADVICE SERVICES ALLIANCE RESEARCH & STUDY FEES 26,000.00
ADVICE SERVICES ALLIANCE Total 26,000.00
SOMETHING & SON LTD. OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 40,000.00
SOMETHING & SON LTD. Total 40,000.00
IMPERIAL CLG HEALTH CARE PARTERNS HSG-ROUGH SLEEPING 25,000.00
IMPERIAL CLG HEALTH CARE PARTERNS Total 25,000.00
SSE HEAT NETWORKS LTD LLITE-ELECTRICITY DEFICIT (TOP UP) 35,145.36
SSE HEAT NETWORKS LTD Total 35,145.36
CONSTRUCTION YOUTH TRUST GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 24,000.00
CONSTRUCTION YOUTH TRUST Total 24,000.00
THE NATIONAL YOUTH AGENCY CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 23,975.00
THE NATIONAL YOUTH AGENCY Total 23,975.00
OASIS WATERLOO GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 23,875.00
OASIS WATERLOO Total 23,875.00
KATE MOON CONSULTANCY-COMMISSIONED REPORT 23,526.70
KATE MOON Total 23,526.70

Page 286

Page 18




Transactions over £ 250.00

Reporting Period : Quarter 1
Start Date: 01 April, 2019
End Date: 20 July, 2019
Financial Year : 2019/20
Appendix 1

Total Spend > £250 (blank)

Vendor Name

Expenditure Account Code Description

Sum of Amount

CAPITA SYMONDS CONTRACTORS 48,741.64
CAPITA SYMONDS Total 48,741.64
STEER EVENT MANAGEMENT FEE 46,941.75
STEER Total 46,941.75
EXCEL EXHIBITION CENTRE EXTERNAL MEETING ROOM HIRE & EXPENSES 21,285.00
EXCEL EXHIBITION CENTRE Total 21,285.00
SODEXO LTD EXTERNAL MEETING ROOM HIRE & EXPENSES 24,882.50
SODEXO LTD Total 24,882.50
SKYWAY CHARITY GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 20,000.00
SKYWAY CHARITY Total 20,000.00
KOREO GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 20,000.00
KOREO Total 20,000.00
SWECO UK LIMITED MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT CONSULTANCY 18,532.75
SWECO UK LIMITED Total 18,532.75
BOC GASES CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 18,000.00
BOC GASES Total 18,000.00
SAVILLS (L&P) LTD SECONDED STAFF - NON GROUP 17,998.75
SAVILLS (L&P) LTD Total 17,998.75
CHILD POVERTY ACTION GROUP RESEARCH & STUDY FEES 17,500.00
CHILD POVERTY ACTION GROUP Total 17,500.00
OLYMPIA LIMITED EXTERNAL MEETING ROOM HIRE & EXPENSES 16,649.99
OLYMPIA LIMITED Total 16,649.99
E-BOOSTER LIMITED OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 15,000.00
E-BOOSTER LIMITED Total 15,000.00
RUSHEY GREEN TIME BANK GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 15,000.00
RUSHEY GREEN TIME BANK Total 15,000.00
IPSOS MORI RESEARCH & STUDY FEES 14,040.00
IPSOS MORI Total 14,040.00
INTERACT CONSULTING LIMITED MANAGE IT SERVICES 12,600.00
RECRUITMENT AGENCY FEES 32,200.00

INTERACT CONSULTING LIMITED Total 44,800.00
CITY LITERARY INSTITUTE GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 25,952.00
CITY LITERARY INSTITUTE Total 25,952.00
HATCH REGENERIS CONSULTANCY-COMMISSIONED REPORT 42,930.50
MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT CONSULTANCY 12,669.00

HATCH REGENERIS Total 55,599.50
LIFT. & ENGINEERING SERVICES LTD BUILDING MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS 23,231.11
LIFT. & ENGINEERING SERVICES LTD Total 23,231.11
WOODWARD ENERGY CONSULTING MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT CONSULTANCY 29,600.00
WOODWARD ENERGY CONSULTING Total 29,600.00
ANEEMO GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 11,824.00
ANEEMO Total 11,824.00
RED PENCIL MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT CONSULTANCY 18,050.00
RED PENCIL Total 18,050.00
TIM AND BARRY LTD PHOTOGRAPHY AND VIDEO DESIGN AND PRODUCTION 8,333.34
TIM AND BARRY LTD Total 8,333.34
KARMARAMA LIMITED RESEARCH FOR MARKETING CAMPAIGNS AND ACTIVITIES 10,000.00
KARMARAMA LIMITED Total 10,000.00
GOSPEL OAK PRIMARY & NURSERY SCHOOL GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 10,000.00
GOSPEL OAK PRIMARY & NURSERY SCHOOL Total 10,000.00
LORDSHIP LANE PRIMARY SCHOOL GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 10,000.00
LORDSHIP LANE PRIMARY SCHOOL Total 10,000.00
ART FRANKLIN PRIMARY SCHOOL GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 10,000.00
ART FRANKLIN PRIMARY SCHOOL Total 10,000.00
JOHN KEBLE CoE PRIMARY SCHOOL GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 10,000.00
JOHN KEBLE CoE PRIMARY SCHOOL Total 10,000.00
MERTON ABBEY PRIMARY SCHOOL GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 10,000.00

Page 287

Page 19




Transactions over £ 250.00

Reporting Period : Quarter 1
Start Date: 01 April, 2019
End Date: 20 July, 2019
Financial Year : 2019/20
Appendix 1

Total Spend > £250 (blank)

Vendor Name

Expenditure Account Code Description

Sum of Amount

MERTON ABBEY PRIMARY SCHOOL Total 10,000.00
THE WILLIAM HOGARTH SCHOOL GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 10,000.00
THE WILLIAM HOGARTH SCHOOL Total 10,000.00
ST ANNE'S CoE PRIMARY SCHOOL GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 10,000.00
ST ANNE'S CoE PRIMARY SCHOOL Total 10,000.00
ST PAUL'S CoE PRIMARY SCHOOL GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 10,000.00
ST PAUL'S CoE PRIMARY SCHOOL Total 10,000.00
LONDON BOROUGH HAMMERSMITH & FULH GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 10,000.00
LONDON BOROUGH HAMMERSMITH & FULHAM Total 10,000.00
SPOTLESS INTERACTIVE RESEARCH & STUDY FEES 9,985.00
SPOTLESS INTERACTIVE Total 9,985.00
KMATRIX DATA SERVICES LIMITED CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 9,980.00
KMATRIX DATA SERVICES LIMITED Total 9,980.00
CLIMATE-KIC HOLDING B.V. MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT CONSULTANCY 9,858.03
CLIMATE-KIC HOLDING B.V. Total 9,858.03
2B UK OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 14,775.61
2B UK Total 14,775.61
CRAYON LTD SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 9,050.00
CRAYON LTD Total 9,050.00
JON DAVIS OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 8,400.00
JON DAVIS Total 8,400.00
ONI PLC MANAGE IT SERVICES 8,000.00
ONI PLC Total 8,000.00
BREADWINNERS GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 8,000.00
BREADWINNERS Total 8,000.00
ST MARY'S SECRET GARDEN GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 8,000.00
ST MARY'S SECRET GARDEN Total 8,000.00
TONIC LIVING CIC RESEARCH & STUDY FEES 8,000.00
TONIC LIVING CIC Total 8,000.00
INNOVATIVE VISION ORGANISATION IVO GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 8,000.00
INNOVATIVE VISION ORGANISATION IVO Total 8,000.00
PAUL BRAGMAN C&E REGEN CONSULT. LTD CONSULTANCY EVALUATION ASSESSMENT 9,900.00
PAUL BRAGMAN C&E REGEN CONSULT. LTD Total 9,900.00
E-SAFETY TRAINING AND CONSULTANCY MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT CONSULTANCY 11,550.00
E-SAFETY TRAINING AND CONSULTANCY Total 11,550.00
CARERS SUPPORT MERTON GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 7,733.60
CARERS SUPPORT MERTON Total 7,733.60
KINGSTON VOLUNTARY ACTION GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 15,000.00
KINGSTON VOLUNTARY ACTION Total 15,000.00
GEOLYTIX LTD PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT CONSULTANCY 7,500.00
GEOLYTIX LTD Total 7,500.00
CALOREM LTD CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 10,895.49
CALOREM LTD Total 10,895.49
EUNOMIA CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 12,220.00
EUNOMIA Total 12,220.00
CHOCOLATE FILMS LIMITED OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 6,710.00
PHOTOGRAPHY & VIDEO 635.50

CHOCOLATE FILMS LIMITED Total 7,345.50
PRAXIS SUSTAINABILITY CONSULTING MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT CONSULTANCY 26,400.00
PRAXIS SUSTAINABILITY CONSULTING Total 26,400.00
SHIPRA OGRA OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 5,775.00
SHIPRA OGRA Total 5,775.00
ROYAL BRITISH LEGION INDUSTRIES EXTERNAL EVENTS ROADS SHOWS AND FACE TO FACE 5,100.00
ROYAL BRITISH LEGION INDUSTRIES Total 5,100.00
ALLY EVENTS EVENT MANAGEMENT FEE 8,500.00
ALLY EVENTS Total 8,500.00
PLINTH OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 5,000.00

Page 288

Page 20




Transactions over £ 250.00

Reporting Period : Quarter 1
Start Date: 01 April, 2019
End Date: 20 July, 2019
Financial Year : 2019/20
Appendix 1

Total Spend > £250 (blank)

Vendor Name

Expenditure Account Code Description

Sum of Amount

PLINTH Total 5,000.00
LONDON RECLAIMED GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 5,000.00
LONDON RECLAIMED Total 5,000.00
COMMUNITY & REHABILITATION SOLN CIC  GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 5,000.00
COMMUNITY & REHABILITATION SOLN CIC Total 5,000.00
YOUNG LEWISHAM PROJECT GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 5,000.00
YOUNG LEWISHAM PROJECT Total 5,000.00
GOLDEN OPPORTUNITY SKILLS AND DEVT GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 5,000.00
GOLDEN OPPORTUNITY SKILLS AND DEVT Total 5,000.00
THE FILM AND VIDEO WORKSHOP GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 5,000.00
THE FILM AND VIDEO WORKSHOP Total 5,000.00
ST MARYS CENTRE COMMUNITY TRUST LTD GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 5,000.00
ST MARYS CENTRE COMMUNITY TRUST LTD Total 5,000.00
WIPERS YOUTH GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 5,000.00
WIPERS YOUTH Total 5,000.00
BARNET REFUGEE SERVICE GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 5,000.00
BARNET REFUGEE SERVICE Total 5,000.00
EUROPEAN FEDERATION OF GREEN ROOF AS: GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 5,000.00
EUROPEAN FEDERATION OF GREEN ROOF ASSOCIATIONS Total 5,000.00
MAPLANGO CONTRACTORS 4,980.00
MAPLANGO Total 4,980.00
LATIN AMERICAN WOMEN'S RIGHTS SERV ~ GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 4,940.00
LATIN AMERICAN WOMEN'S RIGHTS SERV Total 4,940.00
NEW EUROPEANS GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 4,870.00
NEW EUROPEANS Total 4,870.00
WORLD UNION OF OLYMPIC CITIES GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 8,618.00
WORLD UNION OF OLYMPIC CITIES Total 8,618.00
LONDON GENERAL TRANSPORT SERV LTD EXTERNAL EVENTS ROADS SHOWS AND FACE TO FACE 4,250.00
LONDON GENERAL TRANSPORT SERV LTD Total 4,250.00
SOMERS TOWN COMMUNITY ASSOC. CAMDE GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 4,200.00
SOMERS TOWN COMMUNITY ASSOC. CAMDEN Total 4,200.00
COMMUNITYRENEWABLEENERGYWANDSWC GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 8,246.88
COMMUNITYRENEWABLEENERGYWANDSWORTH Total 8,246.88
LEO TEXTILES LIMITED FURNITURE & EQUIPMENT 3,975.50
LEO TEXTILES LIMITED Total 3,975.50
CONNECT SPORT UK LIMITED GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 3,307.50
CONNECT SPORT UK LIMITED Total 3,307.50
AOC PARTICIPATION PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT CONSULTANCY 1,800.00
RESEARCH & STUDY FEES 3,088.00

AOC PARTICIPATION Total 4,888.00
CATHERINE MAX CONSULTING CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 6,000.00
CATHERINE MAX CONSULTING Total 6,000.00
DISCOVER GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 3,000.00
DISCOVER Total 3,000.00
JONES CLIMATE & SUSTAINABILITY CSLT CONSULTANCY EVALUATION ASSESSMENT 3,000.00
JONES CLIMATE & SUSTAINABILITY CSLT Total 3,000.00
ANTONY TRAVERS MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT CONSULTANCY 2,700.00
ANTONY TRAVERS Total 2,700.00
FOR JIMMY OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 2,674.50
FOR JIMMY Total 2,674.50
DEHAVILLAND INFORMATION SERVICES LT ~ MONITORING OF PR AND SOCIAL MEDIA 10,333.32
DEHAVILLAND INFORMATION SERVICES LT Total 10,333.32
CLAIRE CROWLEY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT CONSULTANCY 3,360.00
CLAIRE CROWLEY Total 3,360.00
METRO BROADCAST LTD OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 2,502.00
METRO BROADCAST LTD Total 2,502.00
EMPATHY MUSEUM OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 2,436.00

Page 289

Page 21




Transactions over £ 250.00

Reporting Period : Quarter 1
Start Date: 01 April, 2019
End Date: 20 July, 2019
Financial Year : 2019/20
Appendix 1

Total Spend > £250 (blank)

Vendor Name

Expenditure Account Code Description Sum of Amount

EMPATHY MUSEUM Total 2,436.00
FUTURE FACULTY LTD CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 2,320.00
FUTURE FACULTY LTD Total 2,320.00
KAY PRINGLE OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 3,488.51
KAY PRINGLE Total 3,488.51
GVA GRIMLEY LTD T/A AVISON YOUNG CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 2,250.00
OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 3,960.00

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT CONSULTANCY 46,911.60

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT FEES 85,085.20

VALUATION FEES 12,300.00

GVA GRIMLEY LTD T/A AVISON YOUNG Total 150,506.80
SO FRAICHE MEDIA LTD PHOTOGRAPHY AND VIDEO DESIGN AND PRODUCTION 2,200.00
SO FRAICHE MEDIA LTD Total 2,200.00
PRENAX LIMITED PUBLICATIONS & PERIODICALS 12,166.82
PRENAX LIMITED Total 12,166.82
TOTUS FIRE SAFETY GROUP PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT CONSULTANCY 2,050.00
TOTUS FIRE SAFETY GROUP Total 2,050.00
PUBLIC WORKS GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 7,026.00
PUBLIC WORKS Total 7,026.00
WISE CAMPAIGN CIC CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 2,000.00
WISE CAMPAIGN CIC Total 2,000.00
AUTUS GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 2,000.00
AUTUS Total 2,000.00
THE BIKE PROJECT GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 2,000.00
THE BIKE PROJECT Total 2,000.00
SEEDS FOR GROWTH GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 2,000.00
SEEDS FOR GROWTH Total 2,000.00
NO ORDINARY EXPERIENCE OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 8,000.00
NO ORDINARY EXPERIENCE Total 8,000.00
CONFLICT MANAGEMENT PLUS TROUBLESH STAFF WELFARE BENEFITS 1,754.00
CONFLICT MANAGEMENT PLUS TROUBLESH Total 1,754.00
BROMLEY BY BOW CENTRE GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 1,742.00
BROMLEY BY BOW CENTRE Total 1,742.00
ETHIX MANAGEMENT LIMITED EVENT MANAGEMENT FEE 2,814.00
ETHIX MANAGEMENT LIMITED Total 2,814.00
ASHURST LLP LEGAL FEES 3,000.00
ASHURST LLP Total 3,000.00
MINDFUL SALES TRAINING OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 1,500.00
MINDFUL SALES TRAINING Total 1,500.00
AUDIENCENET CONSULTANCY EVALUATION ASSESSMENT 1,500.00
AUDIENCENET Total 1,500.00
HIGHBURY VALE BLACKSTOCK TRUST GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 1,493.77
HIGHBURY VALE BLACKSTOCK TRUST Total 1,493.77
YELLOW HAT LIMITED STAFF TRAINING 1,450.00
YELLOW HAT LIMITED Total 1,450.00
THE OFFICE GROUP PROPERTIES LIMITED CATERERS SERVICE CHARGES 1,156.50
THE OFFICE GROUP PROPERTIES LIMITED Total 1,156.50
MORGAN HUNT UK LTD AGENCY STAFF 15,426.51
MORGAN HUNT UK LTD Total 15,426.51
HOLLY LODGE ESTATE COMMITTEE GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 1,109.40
HOLLY LODGE ESTATE COMMITTEE Total 1,109.40
GUNDERSON LTD OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 1,000.00
GUNDERSON LTD Total 1,000.00
TURN2US RESEARCH & STUDY FEES 990.28
TURN2US Total 990.28
NURTURE LANDSCAPES LTD HORTICULTURAL EXPENSES 2,967.48
NURTURE LANDSCAPES LTD Total 2,967.48

Page 290

Page 22




Transactions over £ 250.00

Reporting Period : Quarter 1
Start Date: 01 April, 2019
End Date: 20 July, 2019
Financial Year : 2019/20
Appendix 1

Total Spend > £250 (blank)

Vendor Name

Expenditure Account Code Description

Sum of Amount

REDCENTRIC COMPUTER HARDWARE 1,349.38
IT CONSULTANCY 496.82

MANAGE IT SERVICES 1,700.00

REDCENTRIC Total 3,546.20
EHST LTD EVENT MANAGEMENT FEE 800.00
EHST LTD Total 800.00
LONDON INTERNATIONAL GOSPEL CHOIR OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 800.00
LONDON INTERNATIONAL GOSPEL CHOIR Total 800.00
GETTING ON BOAD GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 800.00
GETTING ON BOAD Total 800.00
REACH VOLUNTEERING GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 800.00
REACH VOLUNTEERING Total 800.00
TAP LONDON EXTERNAL EVENTS ROADS SHOWS AND FACE TO FACE 775.00
TAP LONDON Total 775.00
PEDDER & SCAMPTON ARCHITECTS LTD CONSULTANCY-COMMISSIONED REPORT 1,465.00
PEDDER & SCAMPTON ARCHITECTS LTD Total 1,465.00
ISLEDON ARTS CIC EXTERNAL MEETING ROOM HIRE & EXPENSES 730.00
ISLEDON ARTS CIC Total 730.00
BAXTERSTOREY LTD REFRESHMENTS/MEALS AT MEETINGS 658.38
BAXTERSTOREY LTD Total 658.38
LOVE LANGUAGE OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 500.00
LOVE LANGUAGE Total 500.00
WEAREEXCEL STAFF TRAINING 435.00
WEAREEXCEL Total 435.00
PPL PRS LTD EVENT MANAGEMENT FEE 377.94
STATIONERY 1,917.49

PPL PRS LTD Total 2,295.43
WORKER ANT PRODUCTION ARTWORK AND DESIGN FOR MARKETING 350.00
WORKER ANT Total 350.00
EUROPEAN SPACE IMAGING GMBH CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 330.84
EUROPEAN SPACE IMAGING GMBH Total 330.84
BIG BLUE DOOR IT CONSULTANCY 3,500.00
MANAGE IT SERVICES 3,250.00

SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 41,313.50

BIG BLUE DOOR Total 48,063.50
CITY ACADEMY ARTS LTD STAFF TRAINING 295.00
CITY ACADEMY ARTS LTD Total 295.00
BLUE YONDER EVENTS MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT CONSULTANCY 250.00
BLUE YONDER EVENTS Total 250.00
ANN SKIPPERS PLANNING OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 250.00
ANN SKIPPERS PLANNING Total 250.00
EAST LONDON NHS FOUNDATION TRUST OVERAGE PAYABLE 3,800,000.00
EAST LONDON NHS FOUNDATION TRUST Total 3,800,000.00
HERBERT SMITH LLP LEGAL FEES 53,487.33
HERBERT SMITH LLP Total 53,487.33
CB RICHARD ELLIS LTD EVENT MANAGEMENT FEE 579.50
VALUATION FEES 22,500.00

CB RICHARD ELLIS LTD Total 23,079.50
BEVAN BRITTAN SOLICITORS LEGAL FEES 23,217.43
BEVAN BRITTAN SOLICITORS Total 23,217.43
NORTH MIDDLESEX UNIV HOSP NHST CONSULTANCY EVALUATION ASSESSMENT 4,000.00
NORTH MIDDLESEX UNIV HOSP NHST Total 4,000.00
24 AM BROKERS FEES 30,363.56
24 AM Total 30,363.56
PRYTANIA BROKERS FEES 28,480.62
PRYTANIA Total 28,480.62
NOTTING HILL GENESIS HSG GRANTS TO REGISTERED PROVIDERS 2,713,097.00

Page 291

Page 23




Transactions over £ 250.00

Reporting Period : Quarter 1
Start Date: 01 April, 2019
End Date: 20 July, 2019
Financial Year : 2019/20
Appendix 1

Total Spend > £250 (blank)

Vendor Name

Expenditure Account Code Description

Sum of Amount

NOTTING HILL GENESIS Total

2,713,097.00

L B TOWER HAMLETS INCOME MAXIMISATION EXPENSES 174,650.00

L B TOWER HAMLETS Total 174,650.00
T/A COMIC RELIEF LTD GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 123,763.38
T/A COMIC RELIEF LTD Total 123,763.38
L B SOUTHWARK HSG GRANTS TO LOCAL AUTHORITIES 140,000.00

L B SOUTHWARK Total 140,000.00
PARTICIPATORY CITY FOUNDATION GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 142,312.53
PARTICIPATORY CITY FOUNDATION Total 142,312.53
SECOND FLOOR STUDIOS & ARTS LTD GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 88,462.00
SECOND FLOOR STUDIOS & ARTS LTD Total 88,462.00
MEDI PROSPECTS LTD GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 73,750.00
MEDI PROSPECTS LTD Total 73,750.00
HOLBORN COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 73,357.48
HOLBORN COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION Total 73,357.48
TATE GALLERY GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 66,000.00
TATE GALLERY Total 66,000.00
JOHN LYON'S CHARITY GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 63,000.00
JOHN LYON'S CHARITY Total 63,000.00
SIMON RANDLE LEGAL FEES 64,830.00
SIMON RANDLE Total 64,830.00
LOUDSOUND RESEARCH & STUDY FEES 55,000.00
LOUDSOUND Total 55,000.00
BARKING AND DAGENHAM COLLEGE GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 93,000.00
BARKING AND DAGENHAM COLLEGE Total 93,000.00
URBAN DEVELOPME GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 72,016.49
URBAN DEVELOPME Total 72,016.49
LTE GROUP GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 36,591.00
LTE GROUP Total 36,591.00
ENTERPRISE ENFIELD GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 35,000.00
ENTERPRISE ENFIELD Total 35,000.00
CHANCE TO SHINE GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 33,000.00
CHANCE TO SHINE Total 33,000.00
DN&CO AGENCY FEES PAID TO MARKETING AGENCIES 50,010.79
MARKETING STRATEGY AND CONSULTANCY 68,840.00

DN&CO Total 118,850.79
RAMBOLL UK LTD MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT CONSULTANCY 31,483.00
RAMBOLL UK LTD Total 31,483.00
REDBRIDGECVS GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 29,400.00
REDBRIDGECVS Total 29,400.00
BARKING & DAGENHAM CVS GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 29,400.00
BARKING & DAGENHAM CVS Total 29,400.00
THE ARCHBISHOP LNAFRANC ACADEMY GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 25,000.00
THE ARCHBISHOP LNAFRANC ACADEMY Total 25,000.00
THE ENGLISH STAGE COMPANY LIMITED GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 25,000.00
THE ENGLISH STAGE COMPANY LIMITED Total 25,000.00
BLACK TRAINING AND ENTERPRISE GROUP  RESEARCH & STUDY FEES 10,000.00
BLACK TRAINING AND ENTERPRISE GROUP Total 10,000.00
KNOWLEDGE DOCK (UEL) LIMITED CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 19,236.00
KNOWLEDGE DOCK (UEL) LIMITED Total 19,236.00
FIGHT FOR PEACE ACADEMY GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 19,000.00
FIGHT FOR PEACE ACADEMY Total 19,000.00
CAVILL ASSOCIATES LTD CONSULTANCY EVALUATION ASSESSMENT 37,313.34
CAVILL ASSOCIATES LTD Total 37,313.34
THOMAS TELFORD LTD EXTERNAL MEETING ROOM HIRE & EXPENSES 2,390.70
PUBLICATIONS & PERIODICALS 18,500.00

THOMAS TELFORD LTD Total 20,890.70

Page 292

Page 24




Transactions over £ 250.00

Reporting Period : Quarter 1
Start Date: 01 April, 2019
End Date: 20 July, 2019
Financial Year : 2019/20
Appendix 1

Total Spend > £250 (blank)

Vendor Name

Expenditure Account Code Description

Sum of Amount

ZOOCHA LIMITED MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT CONSULTANCY 41,394.00
ZOOCHA LIMITED Total 41,394.00
FRAMEWORKS INSTITUTE CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 15,000.00
FRAMEWORKS INSTITUTE Total 15,000.00
VIVIENNE SEDGLEY LEGAL FEES 12,930.00
VIVIENNE SEDGLEY Total 12,930.00
STONEWALL HOUSING GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 14,500.00
STONEWALL HOUSING Total 14,500.00
KPMG OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 22,015.75
KPMG Total 22,015.75
THE CENTRE FOR YOUTH IMPACT CONSULTANCY EVALUATION ASSESSMENT 11,613.33
THE CENTRE FOR YOUTH IMPACT Total 11,613.33
BOUNDARY EDGE PROJECT MANAGEMNT LTI CONSULTANCY-COMMISSIONED REPORT 15,300.00
BOUNDARY EDGE PROJECT MANAGEMNT LTD Total 15,300.00
CHRIST CHURCH CE PRIMARY SCHOOL GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 19,013.19
CHRIST CHURCH CE PRIMARY SCHOOL Total 19,013.19
WEST LONDON MISSION GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 10,000.00
WEST LONDON MISSION Total 10,000.00
THE FLOWER BANK GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 10,000.00
THE FLOWER BANK Total 10,000.00
HOLY TRINITY CE SCHOOL GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 10,000.00
HOLY TRINITY CE SCHOOL Total 10,000.00
ST MARY'S RC PRIMARY SCHOOL GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 10,000.00
ST MARY'S RC PRIMARY SCHOOL Total 10,000.00
ST MARY'S CATHOLIC PRIMARY SCHOOL GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 10,000.00
ST MARY'S CATHOLIC PRIMARY SCHOOL Total 10,000.00
PALMA BLACK CONSULTING LTD. CONSULTANCY-COMMISSIONED REPORT 18,900.00
PALMA BLACK CONSULTING LTD. Total 18,900.00
UP PROJECTS GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 8,796.00
UP PROJECTS Total 8,796.00
RUSS LTD GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 7,594.25
RUSS LTD Total 7,594.25
NUMIKO LTD IT CONSULTANCY 7,381.00
NUMIKO LTD Total 7,381.00
SERVICE GRAPHICS LTD EXTERNAL EVENTS ROADS SHOWS AND FACE TO FACE 1,035.00
PRODUCTION ARTWORK AND DESIGN FOR MARKETING 6,326.00

SERVICE GRAPHICS LTD Total 7,361.00
BEKI BATESON CONSULTANCY-COMMISSIONED REPORT 5,000.00
OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 6,000.00

BEKI BATESON Total 11,000.00
DIVERSITY LIVING SERVICES GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 6,000.00
DIVERSITY LIVING SERVICES Total 6,000.00
THE3MILLION LTD GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 5,915.00
THE3MILLION LTD Total 5,915.00
THE ROYAL ASSOCIATION FOR DEAF PEOP  GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 5,879.00
THE ROYAL ASSOCIATION FOR DEAF PEOP Total 5,879.00
SALMON YOUTH CENTRE GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 5,810.00
SALMON YOUTH CENTRE Total 5,810.00
YEAR HERE PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT CONSULTANCY 5,099.00
YEAR HERE Total 5,099.00
D-LAB STUDIOS GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 15,322.50
D-LAB STUDIOS Total 15,322.50
STORIES FOR HEALTH CONSULTANCY-COMMISSIONED REPORT 5,304.40
STORIES FOR HEALTH Total 5,304.40
THE MOULE PARTNERSHIP LIMITED EVENT MANAGEMENT FEE 5,284.00
THE MOULE PARTNERSHIP LIMITED Total 5,284.00
BULGARIAN CENTRE 4 SOC INTG & CULT GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 5,000.00

Page 293

Page 25




Transactions over £ 250.00

Reporting Period : Quarter 1
Start Date: 01 April, 2019
End Date: 20 July, 2019
Financial Year : 2019/20
Appendix 1

Total Spend > £250 (blank)

Vendor Name

Expenditure Account Code Description

Sum of Amount

BULGARIAN CENTRE 4 SOC INTG & CULT Total 5,000.00
CONSONANT- MIGRANTS RESOURCE CENTRE GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 5,000.00
CONSONANT- MIGRANTS RESOURCE CENTRE Total 5,000.00
WORK RIGHTS CENTRE GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 5,000.00
WORK RIGHTS CENTRE Total 5,000.00
NEWBERY HOUSE CO-OPERATIVE LIMITED ~ GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 9,740.00
NEWBERY HOUSE CO-OPERATIVE LIMITED Total 9,740.00
MAINSAIL LTD EXTERNAL MEETING ROOM HIRE & EXPENSES 4,500.00
MAINSAIL LTD Total 4,500.00
CIPFA BUSINESS LIMITED PUBLICATIONS & PERIODICALS 11,360.00
CIPFA BUSINESS LIMITED Total 11,360.00
SOUTHBANK CENTRE ENTERPRISES LTD OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 4,362.90
SOUTHBANK CENTRE ENTERPRISES LTD Total 4,362.90
WSA COMMUNITY CONSULTANTS LIMITED CONSULTANCY EVALUATION ASSESSMENT 4,000.00
WSA COMMUNITY CONSULTANTS LIMITED Total 4,000.00
OPENNESS CONSULTING CONFERENCES & SEMINARS 3,500.00
OPENNESS CONSULTING Total 3,500.00
ESTEEM MANAGED SERVICES LTD MANAGE IT SERVICES 3,400.00
ESTEEM MANAGED SERVICES LTD Total 3,400.00
BUILD HOLLYWOOD T/AS JACK ARTS OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 3,042.00
BUILD HOLLYWOOD T/AS JACK ARTS Total 3,042.00
RIGB LTD. OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 3,000.00
RIGB LTD. Total 3,000.00
PAXTON PRIMARY SCHOOL GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 3,000.00
PAXTON PRIMARY SCHOOL Total 3,000.00
LEADERS IN COMMUNITY LIMITED GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 14,322.98
LEADERS IN COMMUNITY LIMITED Total 14,322.98
THE CLORE LEADERSHIP PROGRAMME OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 2,000.00
THE CLORE LEADERSHIP PROGRAMME Total 2,000.00
FRIENDS OF GIPSY HILL GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 2,500.00
FRIENDS OF GIPSY HILL Total 2,500.00
SERYNNI LTD MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT CONSULTANCY 1,300.00
SERYNNI LTD Total 1,300.00
TIMBERLAKE CONSULTANTS COMPUTER SOFTWARE 1,260.00
TIMBERLAKE CONSULTANTS Total 1,260.00
THE RETROFIT ACADEMY CIC STAFF TRAINING 1,199.00
THE RETROFIT ACADEMY CIC Total 1,199.00
TODAY'S TRAINING COURSES LTD STAFF TRAINING 950.00
TODAY'S TRAINING COURSES LTD Total 950.00
AMULET(CHURCHILL SEC SOLUTIONS) LTD  SECURITY SERVICES (GUARDS) 116,986.32
AMULET(CHURCHILL SEC SOLUTIONS) LTD Total 116,986.32
MACCREANOR LAVINGTON PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT CONSULTANCY 800.00
MACCREANOR LAVINGTON Total 800.00
UGLY ENTERPRISES LTD PHOTOGRAPHY & VIDEO 650.00
UGLY ENTERPRISES LTD Total 650.00
ANDREW PARKINSON LEGAL FEES 600.00
ANDREW PARKINSON Total 600.00
PUBLIC REALM SERVICES LTD GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 570.94
PUBLIC REALM SERVICES LTD Total 570.94
NICOLE ROBSON OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 500.00
NICOLE ROBSON Total 500.00
ACTIVE IMPACT CIC EQUIPMENT HIRE & RENTAL 395.00
ACTIVE IMPACT CIC Total 395.00
VEHICLES FOR CHANGE T/A MOBILOO EQUIPMENT HIRE & RENTAL 395.00
VEHICLES FOR CHANGE T/A MOBILOO Total 395.00
PINNACLE PSG TELEPHONY MOBILE 1,500.00
PINNACLE PSG Total 1,500.00

Page 294

Page 26




Transactions over £ 250.00

Reporting Period : Quarter 1
Start Date: 01 April, 2019
End Date: 20 July, 2019
Financial Year : 2019/20
Appendix 1

Total Spend > £250 (blank)

Vendor Name

Expenditure Account Code Description

Sum of Amount

SWNS.COM PHOTOGRAPHY & VIDEO 350.00
SWNS.COM Total 350.00
COMMUNITY BARNET STAFF TRAINING 350.00
COMMUNITY BARNET Total 350.00
ASK EUROPE PLC STAFF TRAINING 2,070.00
ASK EUROPE PLC Total 2,070.00
79 BOROUGH ROAD LTD OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 315.00
79 BOROUGH ROAD LTD Total 315.00
THE GUINNESS PARTNERSHIP LIMITED HSG GRANTS TO REGISTERED PROVIDERS 2,922,499.00
THE GUINNESS PARTNERSHIP LIMITED Total 2,922,499.00
ANCHOR HANOVER GROUP HSG GRANTS TO REGISTERED PROVIDERS 790,000.00
ANCHOR HANOVER GROUP Total 790,000.00
BARKING COLLEGE GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 739,344.52
BARKING COLLEGE Total 739,344.52
NOTTING HILL CARNIVAL LIMITED GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 250,000.00
NOTTING HILL CARNIVAL LIMITED Total 250,000.00
NHS BRENT CCG SECONDED STAFF - NON GROUP 110,605.00
NHS BRENT CCG Total 110,605.00
HEART PRODUCTIONS LIMITED EVENT MANAGEMENT FEE 59,935.11
HEART PRODUCTIONS LIMITED Total 59,935.11
WAGSTAFFS DESIGN LIMITED CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 53,360.00
WAGSTAFFS DESIGN LIMITED Total 53,360.00
ETN MEDIA, INC. DBA STREET LEAGUE GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 50,000.00
ETN MEDIA, INC. DBA STREET LEAGUE Total 50,000.00
BLOCKS LIMITED GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 30,000.00
BLOCK9 LIMITED Total 30,000.00
DECIDEDLY MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT CONSULTANCY 29,500.00
DECIDEDLY Total 29,500.00
INTEGRATE GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 28,963.20
INTEGRATE Total 28,963.20
PRESTON MANOR SCHOOL GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 25,000.00
PRESTON MANOR SCHOOL Total 25,000.00
ELTHAM HILL SCHOOL GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 25,000.00
ELTHAM HILL SCHOOL Total 25,000.00
CENTRAL FOUNDATION GIRLS' SCHOOL GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 25,000.00
CENTRAL FOUNDATION GIRLS' SCHOOL Total 25,000.00
FEATHERSTONE HIGH SCHOOL GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 25,000.00
FEATHERSTONE HIGH SCHOOL Total 25,000.00
EASTBURY COMMUNITY SCHOOL GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 25,000.00
EASTBURY COMMUNITY SCHOOL Total 25,000.00
HARRIS ACADEMY GREENWICH GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 25,000.00
HARRIS ACADEMY GREENWICH Total 25,000.00
HARRIS ACADEMY SOUTH NORWOOD GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 25,000.00
HARRIS ACADEMY SOUTH NORWOOD Total 25,000.00
CHINGFORD ACADEMIES TRUST-RUSHCROFT GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 25,000.00
CHINGFORD ACADEMIES TRUST-RUSHCROFT Total 25,000.00
CITI LOGIK LIMITED DATA PURCHASE 22,500.00
CITI LOGIK LIMITED Total 22,500.00
LPFA RECRUITMENT AGENCY FEES 22,000.00
LPFA Total 22,000.00
THE LINE SCULPTURE WALK COMM INT CO  GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 20,000.00
THE LINE SCULPTURE WALK COMM INT CO Total 20,000.00
WAC ARTS GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 17,500.00
WAC ARTS Total 17,500.00
SUTTON COLLEGE GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 34,233.00
SUTTON COLLEGE Total 34,233.00
ALEXANDRA PALACE TRADING LTD EXTERNAL MEETING ROOM HIRE & EXPENSES 15,000.00

Page 295

Page 27




Transactions over £ 250.00

Reporting Period : Quarter 1
Start Date: 01 April, 2019
End Date: 20 July, 2019
Financial Year : 2019/20
Appendix 1
Total Spend > £250 (blank)
Vendor Name Expenditure Account Code Description Sum of Amount
ALEXANDRA PALACE TRADING LTD Total 15,000.00
ANTHESIS ENERGY UK LTD MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT CONSULTANCY 10,481.61
ANTHESIS ENERGY UK LTD Total 10,481.61
MARKET PLACE MANAGENT LTD MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT CONSULTANCY 10,000.00
MARKET PLACE MANAGENT LTD Total 10,000.00
EAST TWICKENHAM NEIGHBOURHOOD ASSO GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 10,000.00
EAST TWICKENHAM NEIGHBOURHOOD ASSOC Total 10,000.00
FRIENDS OF CRYSTAL PALACE DINOSAURS ~ GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 10,000.00
FRIENDS OF CRYSTAL PALACE DINOSAURS Total 10,000.00
ILLUMINATE ROTHERHITHE GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 10,000.00
ILLUMINATE ROTHERHITHE Total 10,000.00
SALISBURY PRIMARY SCHOOL GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 10,000.00
SALISBURY PRIMARY SCHOOL Total 10,000.00
WESSEX GARDENS PRIMARY AND NURSERY S MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT CONSULTANCY 10,000.00
WESSEX GARDENS PRIMARY AND NURSERY SCHOOL Total 10,000.00
ST STEPHEN'S CE PRIMARY SCHOOL GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 10,000.00
ST STEPHEN'S CE PRIMARY SCHOOL Total 10,000.00
PLAYED LIMITED MARKETING STRATEGY AND CONSULTANCY 3,600.00
PHOTOGRAPHY & VIDEO 9,000.00
PLAYED LIMITED Total 12,600.00
WHITECHAPEL GALLERY OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 8,500.00
WHITECHAPEL GALLERY Total 8,500.00
RAIL FOR LONDON LIMITED GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 7,900.00
RAIL FOR LONDON LIMITED Total 7,900.00
KHAA CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 7,500.00
KHAA Total 7,500.00
LAND USE CONSULTANTS PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT CONSULTANCY 8,115.50
LAND USE CONSULTANTS Total 8,115.50
BBITS PROPERTY MANAGEMENT FEES 6,400.00
BBITS Total 6,400.00
ADVANCE GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 6,000.00
ADVANCE Total 6,000.00
SISTAH SPACE GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 6,000.00
SISTAH SPACE Total 6,000.00
REAP GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 5,978.00
REAP Total 5,978.00
TRUE NORTH SERVICE MANAGEMENT LTD  COMPUTER HARDWARE 3,280.00
COMPUTER SOFTWARE 6,016.00
TRUE NORTH SERVICE MANAGEMENT LTD Total 9,296.00
CODA AGENCY LTD MARKETING EXHIBITIONS & EVENTS 5,000.00
CODA AGENCY LTD Total 5,000.00
ZOE'S GHANA KITCHEN CATERERS SERVICE CHARGES 4,870.00
ZOE'S GHANA KITCHEN Total 4,870.00
THEPUBLICOFFICE LTD OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 4,200.00
THEPUBLICOFFICE LTD Total 4,200.00
BITE THE BALLOT CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 3,750.00
BITE THE BALLOT Total 3,750.00
ROYAL HOLLOWAY UNIVERSITY OF LON CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 3,743.00
ROYAL HOLLOWAY UNIVERSITY OF LON Total 3,743.00
CENTURYLINK COMMUNICATIONS UK LTD ~ TELEPHONY FIXED 16,109.47
CENTURYLINK COMMUNICATIONS UK LTD Total 16,109.47
ZIP EVENT MANAGEMENT FEE 3,335.75
ZIP Total 3,335.75
TPJB FOUNDATION FOR PEACE EVENT MANAGEMENT FEE 3,000.00
TPJB FOUNDATION FOR PEACE Total 3,000.00
ENCOMPASS LATC LTD GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 742.12
ENCOMPASS LATC LTD Total 742.12

Page 296

Page 28




Transactions over £ 250.00

Reporting Period : Quarter 1
Start Date: 01 April, 2019
End Date: 20 July, 2019
Financial Year : 2019/20
Appendix 1

Total Spend > £250 (blank)

Vendor Name

Expenditure Account Code Description

Sum of Amount

SORELLA EVENT MANAGEMENT FEE 3,000.00
SORELLA Total 3,000.00
WE ARE ORCHARD MARKETING STRATEGY AND CONSULTANCY 3,000.00
WE ARE ORCHARD Total 3,000.00
FUTURE CITY GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 3,000.00
FUTURE CITY Total 3,000.00
100 WARDOUR LIMITED REFRESHMENTS/MEALS AT MEETINGS 3,090.59
100 WARDOUR LIMITED Total 3,090.59
COCREATE CONSULTANCY LTD PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT CONSULTANCY 2,800.00
COCREATE CONSULTANCY LTD Total 2,800.00
ASHTEAD PLANT HIRE COMPANY LTD SECURITY SERVICES (GUARDS) 1,353.00
ASHTEAD PLANT HIRE COMPANY LTD Total 1,353.00
GEMEENTE AMSTERDAM SECONDED STAFF - NON GROUP 2,468.75
GEMEENTE AMSTERDAM Total 2,468.75
DUNN CREATIVE LTD PHOTOGRAPHY & VIDEO 2,434.99
DUNN CREATIVE LTD Total 2,434.99
MEYRIC LEWIS LEGAL FEES 4,150.00
MEYRIC LEWIS Total 4,150.00
ANGAGE MISCELLANEOUS COSTS 2,090.00
ANGAGE Total 2,090.00
EAST EUROPEAN RESOURCE CENTRE GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 2,000.00
EAST EUROPEAN RESOURCE CENTRE Total 2,000.00
FURTHER&MORE STAFF TRAINING 3,750.00
FURTHER&MORE Total 3,750.00
INTERCOM R&D MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT CONSULTANCY 1,947.42
INTERCOM R&D Total 1,947.42
FIELD DYNAMICS DATA PURCHASE 1,550.00
FIELD DYNAMICS Total 1,550.00
OPEN THE GATE EVENT MANAGEMENT FEE 1,500.00
OPEN THE GATE Total 1,500.00
MCCLOY CONSULTING LTD MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT CONSULTANCY 1,430.00
MCCLOY CONSULTING LTD Total 1,430.00
THE EGGTOOTH PROJECT PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT CONSULTANCY 1,000.00
THE EGGTOOTH PROJECT Total 1,000.00
POLICINGMATTERS LTD STAFF TRAINING 900.00
POLICINGMATTERS LTD Total 900.00
CAMDENWOOD LIMITED OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 780.00
CAMDENWOOD LIMITED Total 780.00
OBJ COACHING LIMITED STAFF TRAINING 750.00
OBJ COACHING LIMITED Total 750.00
PRINGLE RICHARDS SHARRATT LTD EVENT MANAGEMENT FEE 750.00
PRINGLE RICHARDS SHARRATT LTD Total 750.00
GREATER LONDON MUTUAL LTD (GLM) GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 666.00
GREATER LONDON MUTUAL LTD (GLM) Total 666.00
NAKED HOUSE PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT CONSULTANCY 600.00
NAKED HOUSE Total 600.00
MESH PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT CONSULTANCY 600.00
MESH Total 600.00
THE COLLEGE OF ESTATE MANAGEMENT STAFF TRAINING 406.00
THE COLLEGE OF ESTATE MANAGEMENT Total 406.00
GIGA SOUNDS LTD OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 300.00
GIGA SOUNDS LTD Total 300.00
THE WHITEHALL AND INDUSTRY STAFF TRAINING 295.00
THE WHITEHALL AND INDUSTRY Total 295.00
BNP PARIBAS REAL ESTATE ADV & PROP PROPERTY MANAGEMENT FEES 689,458.00
BNP PARIBAS REAL ESTATE ADV & PROP Total 689,458.00
SEGRO PLC CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 421,730.38

Page 297

Page 29




Transactions over £ 250.00

Reporting Period : Quarter 1
Start Date: 01 April, 2019
End Date: 20 July, 2019
Financial Year : 2019/20
Appendix 1

Total Spend > £250 (blank)

Vendor Name

Expenditure Account Code Description

Sum of Amount

SEGRO PLC Total 421,730.38
HM TREASURY MISCELLANEOUS COSTS 521,060.78
HM TREASURY Total 521,060.78
HARROW COUNCIL HSG GRANTS TO LOCAL AUTHORITIES 1,355,000.00
HARROW COUNCIL Total 1,355,000.00
EDUCATION DEVELOPMENT TRUST GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 112,160.80
EDUCATION DEVELOPMENT TRUST Total 112,160.80
DOUGLAS EDWARDS QC LEGAL FEES 83,575.00
DOUGLAS EDWARDS QC Total 83,575.00
NEWSPAPER LICENSING AGENCY THE MONITORING OF PR AND SOCIAL MEDIA 46,462.36
NEWSPAPER LICENSING AGENCY THE Total 46,462.36
HUBBUB FOUNDATION UK GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 30,000.00
HUBBUB FOUNDATION UK Total 30,000.00
ATKINS LIMITED PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT CONSULTANCY 29,485.00
ATKINS LIMITED Total 29,485.00
IC CONSULTANTS LTD GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 28,000.00
IC CONSULTANTS LTD Total 28,000.00
L B HILLINGDON GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 27,000.00

L B HILLINGDON Total 27,000.00
WHITEFIELD SCHOOL GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 25,000.00
WHITEFIELD SCHOOL Total 25,000.00
HEARTLANDS HIGH SCHOOL GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 25,000.00
HEARTLANDS HIGH SCHOOL Total 25,000.00
CERTAIN BLACKS EVENT MANAGEMENT FEE 25,000.00
CERTAIN BLACKS Total 25,000.00
CLITTERHOUSE FARM PROJECT GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 22,215.00
CLITTERHOUSE FARM PROJECT Total 22,215.00
S&P GLOBAL RATINGS OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 20,500.00
S&P GLOBAL RATINGS Total 20,500.00
IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT AGENCY IT CONSULTANCY 17,235.04
IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT AGENCY Total 17,235.04
UNIVERSITY OF WOLVERHAMPTON RESEARCH & STUDY FEES 14,823.70
UNIVERSITY OF WOLVERHAMPTON Total 14,823.70
COSI CARE LTD GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 14,187.60
COSI CARE LTD Total 14,187.60
LIMELIGHT SPORTS CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 10,305.00
LIMELIGHT SPORTS Total 10,305.00
WEST LONDON BUSINESS OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 10,000.00
WEST LONDON BUSINESS Total 10,000.00
BUILD UP FOUNDATION GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 10,000.00
BUILD UP FOUNDATION Total 10,000.00
PRAXIS GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 9,979.75
PRAXIS Total 9,979.75
WORKING MEN'S COLLEGE GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 9,278.00
WORKING MEN'S COLLEGE Total 9,278.00
QCG MARKETING STRATEGY AND CONSULTANCY 9,138.00
STAFF TRAINING 550.00

QCG Total 9,688.00
BLACKBERRY UK LIMITED IT CONSULTANCY 9,000.00
BLACKBERRY UK LIMITED Total 9,000.00
JACQUIE CHAMBERS CONSULTING LIMITED CONSULTANCY EVALUATION ASSESSMENT 8,700.00
JACQUIE CHAMBERS CONSULTING LIMITED Total 8,700.00
MANGO PIE LTD EVENT MANAGEMENT FEE 7,370.00
MANGO PIE LTD Total 7,370.00
SOCIAL ENGINE CONSULTANCY-PROJECT MANAGEMENT 6,500.00
SOCIAL ENGINE Total 6,500.00
LB OF HAMMERSMITH AND FULHAM GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 6,492.00

Page 298

Page 30




Transactions over £ 250.00

Reporting Period : Quarter 1
Start Date: 01 April, 2019
End Date: 20 July, 2019
Financial Year : 2019/20
Appendix 1

Total Spend > £250 (blank)

Vendor Name

Expenditure Account Code Description

Sum of Amount

LB OF HAMMERSMITH AND FULHAM Total 6,492.00
BREAKTHROUGH MEDIA NETWORK LTD MARKETING STRATEGY AND CONSULTANCY 6,000.00
BREAKTHROUGH MEDIA NETWORK LTD Total 6,000.00
BLACKOUTUK GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 6,000.00
BLACKOUTUK Total 6,000.00
CISION GROUP LTD OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 5,200.00
CISION GROUP LTD Total 5,200.00
GAPSQUARE RESEARCH & STUDY FEES 4,623.50
GAPSQUARE Total 4,623.50
DALLAS-PIERCE-QUINTERO GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 3,331.66
DALLAS-PIERCE-QUINTERO Total 3,331.66
THE UBELE INITIATIVE GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 3,750.00
THE UBELE INITIATIVE Total 3,750.00
OITU-JO GRANTS TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 3,750.00
OITl-JO Total 3,750.00
ROOTS RESEARCH LTD MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT CONSULTANCY 5,447.12
ROOTS RESEARCH LTD Total 5,447.12
ADFIELD HARVEY LTD EXTERNAL MEETING ROOM HIRE & EXPENSES 7,000.00
ADFIELD HARVEY LTD Total 7,000.00
XEIM LIMITED PUBLICATIONS & PERIODICALS 3,480.00
XEIM LIMITED Total 3,480.00
FACTIVA LIMITED MONITORING OF PR AND SOCIAL MEDIA 3,216.84
FACTIVA LIMITED Total 3,216.84
FIRSTSITE LIMITED OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 3,000.00
FIRSTSITE LIMITED Total 3,000.00
THE FLAG CONSULTANCY LIMITED FURNITURE & EQUIPMENT 1,887.00
THE FLAG CONSULTANCY LIMITED Total 1,887.00
FURTHER MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT CONSULTANCY 1,875.00
FURTHER Total 1,875.00
CORE SOLUTIONS GROUP OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 1,829.00
CORE SOLUTIONS GROUP Total 1,829.00
MANCHESTER METROPOLITAN UNIVERSITY  STAFF TRAINING 1,692.00
MANCHESTER METROPOLITAN UNIVERSITY Total 1,692.00
CREATIVE GIANT LIMITED PRODUCTION ARTWORK AND DESIGN FOR MARKETING 1,670.00
CREATIVE GIANT LIMITED Total 1,670.00
INTERMEDIA GLOBAL LIMITED RESEARCH FOR MARKETING CAMPAIGNS AND ACTIVITIES 1,654.20
INTERMEDIA GLOBAL LIMITED Total 1,654.20
CAMBRIDGE ECONOMIC ASSOCIATES LTD MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT CONSULTANCY 1,500.00
CAMBRIDGE ECONOMIC ASSOCIATES LTD Total 1,500.00
ASSOCIATION OF DIR. PUBLIC HEALTH PUBLICATIONS & PERIODICALS 1,200.00
ASSOCIATION OF DIR. PUBLIC HEALTH Total 1,200.00
NAZ PROJECT LONDON MISCELLANEOUS COSTS 800.00
NAZ PROJECT LONDON Total 800.00
ECOTRICITY ELECTRICITY 1,263.74
ECOTRICITY Total 1,263.74
SAGAL FARAH OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 630.00
SAGAL FARAH Total 630.00
CHIFA KHELFAOUI OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 570.00
CHIFA KHELFAOUI Total 570.00
THE WELL-BEAN COMPANY EVENT MANAGEMENT FEE 500.00
THE WELL-BEAN COMPANY Total 500.00
JAMYANG BUDDHIST CENTRE EXTERNAL MEETING ROOM HIRE & EXPENSES 444.00
JAMYANG BUDDHIST CENTRE Total 444.00
WARNER MUSIC UK LTD OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 405.12
WARNER MUSIC UK LTD Total 405.12
LYRIC THEATRE HAMMERSMITH LTD REFRESHMENTS/MEALS AT MEETINGS 400.20
LYRIC THEATRE HAMMERSMITH LTD Total 400.20

Page 299

Page 31




Transactions over £ 250.00

Reporting Period : Quarter 1
Start Date: 01 April, 2019
End Date: 20 July, 2019
Financial Year : 2019/20
Appendix 1

Total Spend > £250 (blank)

Vendor Name

Expenditure Account Code Description

Sum of Amount

ASSAEL ARCHITECTURE LTD PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT CONSULTANCY 400.00
ASSAEL ARCHITECTURE LTD Total 400.00
THE ARTWORKS CLASSROOMS EXTERNAL MEETING ROOM HIRE & EXPENSES 1,167.00
THE ARTWORKS CLASSROOMS Total 1,167.00
COURTHOUSE GARDEN CAFE CIC CATERERS SERVICE CHARGES 377.37
COURTHOUSE GARDEN CAFE CIC Total 377.37
CLUEQUEST LTD. STAFF TRAINING 375.00
CLUEQUEST LTD. Total 375.00
ICC EXTERNAL MEETING ROOM HIRE & EXPENSES 308.00
ICC Total 308.00
UNIVERSITY OF LONDON CATERERS SERVICE CHARGES 296.40
UNIVERSITY OF LONDON Total 296.40
LOCAL PENSIONS PARTNERSHIP OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 265.00
LOCAL PENSIONS PARTNERSHIP Total 265.00
MIGRANT CONNECTIONS FESTIVAL OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES 260.00
MIGRANT CONNECTIONS FESTIVAL Total 260.00
RICH MIX EXTERNAL MEETING ROOM HIRE & EXPENSES 250.00
RICH MIX Total 250.00
STITCH CONSULTANCY EVALUATION ASSESSMENT 19,363.00
STITCH Total 19,363.00
RUPERT COHEN LEGAL FEES 2,100.00
RUPERT COHEN Total 2,100.00
INNOVISION EVENTS MISCELLANEOUS COSTS 51,495.00
INNOVISION EVENTS Total 51,495.00
DATAMINR INC MISCELLANEOUS COSTS 150,000.00
DATAMINR INC Total 150,000.00
Grand Total 163,851,712.01

Page 300

Page 32




Agenda Item 9

GREATERLONDONAUTHORITY LONDONASSEMBLY

Subject: Budget Monitoring Sub-Committee
Work Programme

Report to: Budget Monitoring Sub-Committee

Report of: Executive Director of Secretariat Date: 11 September 2019

This report will be considered in public

1.1

2.1

3.1

4.1

4.2

Summary

This report sets out the proposed Budget Monitoring Sub-Committee timetable for 2019/20.

Recommendation

That the Sub-Committee notes its work programme.

Background

The Committee receives a report monitoring the progress of its work programme at each meeting.
This is the first such report for this Assembly year.

Issues for Consideration

During 2019/20 the Committee will scrutinise budget and performance in a wide variety of areas
across the Greater London Authority (GLA) and its functional bodies including Transport for London,
the Metropolitan Police, the London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority, the London Legacy
Development Corporation, and the Old Oak and Park Royal Development Corporation.

As well as examining the GLA Group quarterly monitoring reports, the Sub-Committee will explore
topical issues or specific areas contributing to the full Committee’s investigations or reports, where
appropriate, and examine Mayoral Decisions.

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SET 2AA
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk

Page 301




43

4.4

5.1

6.1

Proposed meeting timetable
The table below sets out the provisional scheduled future meetings of the Committee in 2019/20
that were approved at the Assembly’s Annual Meeting on 2 May 2019.

° 4 December 2019; and
) 11 March 2020.

The Committee can agree topics for each meeting as the year progresses.

Legal Implications

The Committee has the power to do what is recommended in this report.

Financial Implications

There are no direct financial implications to the GLA arising from this report.

List of appendices to this report: None

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers: None

Contact Officer: Gino Brand, Interim Senior Policy Advisor
Telephone: 0207983 5792

Email:

Gino.Brand@l ondon.gov.uk

Page 302



mailto:Gino.Brand@London.gov.uk

	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interests
	3 Minutes
	Minutes - Appendix 1 - GLA Borrowing

	4 Summary List of Actions
	04a Appendix 1 - TfL Response - 12 June 2019 meeting
	04b Appendix 2 - Response from TfL - 20 March 2019 meeting
	06 Patrick Doig to Gareth Bacon re Budget Monitoring Sub Committee
	06a Appendix 1 (1)
	06b Appendix 1 (2)
	06c Appendix 2


	5 Quarter 1, 2019/20 GLA Group Monitoring Reports
	05a.1 Appendix 1 Assembly Cover Note - Q1 Pack
	05a.2 App 1. Q1 Finance Report - Assembly Version
	05a.3 App 2. Q1 Unit Dashboards - Assembly Version UPDATED
	CSP Q1 Dashboard
	Dashboard

	CCI Q1 Dashboard
	E&Y Q1 Dashboard
	Dashboard

	Env Q1 Dashboard
	Dashboard

	Health Q1 Dashboard
	Dashboard

	H&L Q1 Dashboard
	Dashboard

	Planning Q1 Dashboard
	Dashboard

	RED Q1 Dashboard
	Dashboard

	S&E Q1 Dashboard
	Dashboard

	TL&S Q1 Dashboard
	Dashboard


	05a.4 App 3. Dashboard Traffic Light Guidance
	05a.5 App 4. Q1 CHPI Report - Assembly Version
	Cover
	Summary View
	E1
	E2
	E3
	E4&5
	G1a
	G1b
	G2
	G3
	P1
	P2
	P3
	P4a
	P4b
	P4c
	R1a
	R1b
	R2
	R3
	R4
	R5

	05b Appendix 2 - LLDC_Quarterly_Report_Q1_APR-JUN2019
	05c Appendix 3 TfL Q1 19-20 Report
	05d Appendix 4 Financial Position as at the end of June 2019 Version 7
	05e Appendix 5 OPDC Q1 2019.20 Finance and Performance Report

	6 Q1 2019-20 Review
	7 Mayor's Decision Lists: 3 May 2019 to 4 July 2019
	06a List for 3 May - 6 June 2019
	06b List for 7 June - 4 July 2019

	8 Payments over £250
	08a Supplier turnover 2019_20 - Q1

	9 Budget Monitoring Sub-Committee Work Programme



